
 

Page 1 of 5 

    
    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Be Courteous - TURN OFF your cell phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

5:30 P.M. – SPECIAL MEETING - CLOSED SESSION 
 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 
 The Mayor will open the meeting and take public testimony on closed session items only.  The 

Council will then recess into closed session. 
 
2. CLOSED SESSION 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION - Pursuant to Cal. Gov’t Code 
sec. 54956.9(d)(1) 

 
    Name of Cases:  Piazza Construction v. City of Sonoma; Successor Agency to the   
                                 former Sonoma Community Development Agency v. Ana J.                   
                                 Matosantos, et al. 

 

6:00 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 

 
RECONVENE, CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL (Edwards, Hundley, Cook, Agrimonti, Gallian) 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is recommended 
that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters presented under this item 
cannot be discussed or acted upon by the City Council at this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, the 
public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Council consideration.  Upon being 
acknowledged by the Mayor, please step to the podium and speak into the microphone.  Begin by stating and 
spelling your name. 

 

2. MEETING DEDICATIONS 

 

3. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Item 3A: Proclamation Declaring December 12, 2016 as Diversity Awareness Day in the City 

of Sonoma 
 

 
 

SPECIAL AND CONTINUED REGULAR MEETING OF THE SONOMA CITY COUNCIL 
& 

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETING OF SONOMA CITY COUNCIL AS THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE DISSOLVED SONOMA COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 
 

Monday, December 12, 2016 
5:30 p.m. Special Closed Session Meeting 

6:00 p.m. Continued Regular Meeting 
**** 

AMENDED AGENDA 

City Council 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

Madolyn Agrimonti, MPT 
David Cook, 

Gary Edwards 
Rachel Hundley 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 5 

Item 3B: Proclamation Honoring David Saulius Dikinis for His Caring, Kindness, and 
Community Leadership in Helping Someone in Need   

 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL 

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, staff, or public request 
specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may decide to change the order of the 
agenda. 

 
Item 4A: Waive further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of Ordinances 

by Title Only.  (Standard procedural action - no backup information provided) 
 
Item 4B: Adopt a Resolution Reciting the Facts of the General Municipal Election held on 

November 8, 2016, declaring the Result and such Other Matters as Required by 
Law (City Clerk) 

 Staff Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution  
 
Item 4C: Approve the Resolution Endorsing the City of Sonoma ADA Self-Evaluation, 

Transition Plan, and Implementation Project for the FY 2017-2018 Community 
Development Block Grant Funding Application (Public Works Director/City 
Engineer) 

  Staff Recommendation: Consider the adoption of a resolution endorsing the funding 
application for the City of Sonoma ADA Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and 
Implementation Project for the FY 2017-2018 Community Development Block Grant 
Funding Program. 

 
Item 4D: Adopt a Resolution of the City Council and the City Council as Successor Agency 

Establishing the Regular Meeting Dates for the 2017 Calendar Year (City Clerk) 
  Staff Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution 
 
Item 4E: Receive and File Report on the 2017 Local Commission and Committee 

Appointment List (City Clerk) 
  Staff Recommendation:  Receive and file report. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion.  
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, staff, or public request 
specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may decide to change the order of the 
agenda. 

 

 INTRODUCTION OF NEW CITY MANAGER 

 

 Introduction of Cathy Capriola, New City Manager 
 

 WORDS OF APPRECIATION & GOODBYES 

 

 Presentation to Mayor Laurie Gallian 

 Comments by Councilmembers 

 Comments by the Public 
 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 

 SWEARING IN CEREMONY 

 
The City Clerk will administer the Oath of Office to: 

 David Cook  

 Amy Harrington 
 

 RECESS – 10 Minutes 

 
The meeting will reconvene with the new Councilmembers seated at the dais. 
 

 SELECTION OF THE MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO TEM 

 

6. PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Item 6A:     Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on an Appeal of the Planning 

Commission’s Decision to not allow a Vehicle Entry Gate and Turnaround in 
Conjunction with Approval of a Use Permit to Remodel and Upgrade an Existing 
Eight-unit Condominium Complex at 375 West Napa Street (Planning Director) 

 Staff Recommendation: In accordance with staff’s standard practice of supporting 
Commission decisions, the staff recommendation is to deny the appeal, thereby 
upholding the decision of the Planning Commission. Whatever the Council’s decision, 
staff will return at the following City Council meeting with a Resolution formalizing the 
Council’s decision. 

 
Item 6B: (1) Consider and Possibly Adopt an Extension of an Interim Urgency Ordinance 

Imposing a Moratorium on the Outdoor Cultivation of Nonmedical Marijuana, 
Approving the Issuance of a Gov’t Code Sec. 65858(d) Report and Making Findings 
that said Adoption is Exempt under CEQA Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15061, Among Other Provisions;  

    
 (2) Consider and Possibly Adopt an Extension of an Interim Urgency Ordinance 

Imposing a Moratorium on the Indoor Cultivation of Nonmedical Marijuana, Except 
Under Certain Circumstances, Approving the Issuance of a Gov’t Code Sec. 
65858(d) Report and Making Findings that the Adoption of Said Ordinance is 
Exempt under CEQA Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061, Among Other 
Provisions;  

  
 (3) Provide Feedback and Direction to Staff Regarding the Proposed Process for 

Developing Permanent Regulations on the Cultivation of Nonmedical Marijuana 
and Related Issues (Planning Director)  
Staff Recommendation: (1) Adopt the attached ordinance extending the interim     
moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana; (2) Adopt the attached 
ordinance extending the interim moratorium on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical 
marijuana, except under certain circumstances. (3) Provide feedback and direction to 
staff regarding the proposed process for developing permanent regulations on the 
cultivation of nonmedical marijuana and related issues. 

 
Item 6C: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Update City Fee Schedule 

Based on FY 2016-2017 Operating Budget (Finance Director) 
 Staff Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing; adopt resolution approving the updated 

Fee Schedule for 2016 - 2017. 
  



 

Page 4 of 5 

7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL 

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the City Council) 
 
Item 7A: Consideration, Discussion, and Possible Action Regarding an Appeal of Police 

Chief’s Denial of a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity for a new Type 21 
Off-Sale Retail liquor license at Easy Stop Market (Police Chief) 

  Staff Recommendation: Deny the appeal and uphold the Police Chief’s finding that Public 
Convenience or Necessity would not be served by the issuance of another Type 21 Off-
Sale Retail liquor license. 

 
Item 7B:    Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution Approving and 

Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Administration of the City’s 
Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance and Repealing Resolution No. 57-
1998 (City Manager and City Attorney) 

  Staff Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution. 
 
Item 7C: Discussion, consideration and possible action for extension of the Valley of the 

Moon Certified Farmers’ Market agreement for management of the Tuesday Night 
Farmers’ Market in the Plaza (City Manager) 

  Staff Recommendation: Council discretion. 
 
Item 7D: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Approving and Consenting to the 

use of City Streets for the Napa to Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon on Sunday 
JULY 16, 2017 (City Manager) 

  Staff Recommendation: Adopt the resolution approving the use of city streets, which 
includes the conditions recommended by the Special Events Committee members, 
including Police, Fire, Public Works and Planning Departments. 

 

8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the Council as the Successor Agency) 
 

9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 

10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF 

 

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda 

 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
I do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board on                                           
December 8, 2016.   Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred to on the agenda are 
normally available for public inspection the Wednesday before each regularly scheduled meeting at City Hall, located at No. 1 The 
Plaza, Sonoma CA.  Any documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the City 
Council regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda has been distributed will be made available for inspection at the City 
Clerk’s office, No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA during regular business hours. 
 
If you challenge the action of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised 
at the public hearing described on the agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Clerk, at or prior to the public 
hearing. 
 



 

Page 5 of 5 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact 
the City Clerk (707) 933-2216. Notification 48-hours before the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to 
ensure accessibility to this meeting.  



City of Sonoma 

City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

3A 

12/12/16 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 

Agenda Item Title 

Proclamation Declaring December 12, 2016 as Diversity Awareness Day in the City of Sonoma 

Summary 

On November 10, 2016, approximately 500 Sonoma Valley High School students took part in a 
peaceful march up Broadway to the Sonoma Plaza, chanting and carrying flags and signs to show 
support for people of all ethnicities, genders, religions, and orientations in the wake of the November 
8 Presidential election. The leader of the march and the rally that followed, Lauren Smith, and the 
President of the Gender Sexuality Awareness, Ernest Moore, drafted the Proclamation on behalf of 
those who took part in or supported the march and its message of tolerance 

Mayor Gallian requested the proclamation be presented by the Council at the December 12th 
meeting. In keeping with City practice, the proclamation recipient has been asked to keep the total 
length of their follow-up comments and/or announcements to not more than 10 minutes. 

Recommended Council Action 

Mayor Gallian to present the proclamation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion 

Financial Impact 

N.A. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation

Alignment with Council Goals: 

Not applicable. 

cc: 

1



2



City of Sonoma 

City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

3B 

12/12/16 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 

Agenda Item Title 

Proclamation Honoring David Saulius Dikinis for His Caring, Kindness, and Community Leadership 
in Helping Someone in Need   

Summary 

On October 19, 2015 the Building Board of Appeals of the City of Sonoma adopted Resolution #01-
2015 confirming that the residence located at 20141 Broadway which is owned and occupied by 
Mrs. Irma Castillo constituted a threat to the health and safety of the occupants of the property and 
the neighboring community. Mrs. Castillo was not able to afford to make there needed repairs, Mr. 
Dikinis, after hearing of Mrs. Castillo’s dilemma, took the lead and helped organize, coordinate and 
perform the necessary repairs as the “contractor of record”. The City wishes to honor Mr. Dikinis for 
his contribution; he will be present at the meeting. 

In keeping with City practice, the proclamation recipient has been asked to keep the total length of 
their follow-up comments and/or announcements to not more than 10 minutes. 

Recommended Council Action 

Mayor Gallian to present the proclamation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion 

Financial Impact 

N.A. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation

Alignment with Council Goals: 

Not applicable. 

cc: 

3



4



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
 City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4B  
 
12/12/16 

                                                                                            

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Adopt a Resolution Reciting the Facts of the General Municipal Election held on November 8, 2016, 
Declaring the Result and such Other Matters as Required by Law 

Summary 

A General Municipal election was conducted in the City of Sonoma on November 8, 2016 for the 
purpose of electing two members of the City Council and to vote on three measures. The County of 
Sonoma Elections Department has completed its canvass of the returns of the election and has 
certified the results. David Cook and Amy Harrington were the successful candidates and have been 
elected to the City Council for full terms of four years. All three of the measures were voted in favor of 
and thereby deemed adopted.  

 

Per Election Code 10263 (b), the City Council must declare the results of the election and install the 
newly elected council members. 

Recommended Council Action 

Adopt the resolution. 

Alternative Actions 

n/a 

Financial Impact 

n/a 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

 

Attachments: 

Resolution with Exhibit A - Statement of Votes  

 

5



CITY OF SONOMA 
 

RESOLUTION # ____- 2016 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA RECITING THE FACT 

OF THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION HELD ON NOVEMBER 8, 2016, DECLARING 
THE RESULT AND SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS REQUIRED BY LAW 

 
WHEREAS, a General Municipal Election was held and conducted in the City of Sonoma, 
California, on Tuesday, November 8, 2016, as required by law; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of the election was given in time, form and manner as provided by law; that 
voting precincts were properly established; that election officers were appointed and that in all 
respects the election was held and conducted and the votes were cast, received and canvassed 
and the returns made and declared in time, form and manner as required by the provisions of 
the Elections Code of the State of California for the holding of elections in general law cities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sonoma County Election Department canvassed the returns of the election and 
has certified the results to this City Council, the results are received, attached and made a part 
hereof as “Exhibit A”. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA, DOES RESOLVE, 
DECLARE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That the whole number of ballots cast in the precincts except vote by mail ballots 

and provisional ballots was 1,438. 
 
 That the whole number of vote by mail ballots cast in the City was 4,905, the 

whole number of provisional ballots cast in the City was 0, making a total of 6,343 
ballots cast in the City. 

 
Section 2. That the names of persons voted for at the election for Member of the City Council 

are as follows:   
 

 David Cook 

 Laurie Gallian  

 Amy Harrington  

 Jack Wagner  
 
 That the measures voted upon at the election are as follows:  

 

 Measure U – Sales Tax Extension 

 Measure V – Leaf Blower Regulations 

 Measure W – Smoking and Tobacco Regulations 
 
Section 3. That the number of votes given at each precinct and the number of votes given in 

the City to each of the persons above named for the respective office for which 
the persons were candidates and for and against the measures were as listed in 
“Exhibit A” attached. 

 
Section 4. The City Council does declare and determine that:   
 

1. David Cook and Amy Harrington were elected as Members of the City Council 
for the full term of four years. 

6



2. As a result of the election, a majority of the voters voting on the measures 
relating to Sales Tax Extension, Leaf Blower Regulations, and Smoking and 
Tobacco Regulations, did vote in favor of it, and that the measures were 
carried, and shall be deemed adopted and ratified. 

 
Section 5. That the City Clerk shall enter on the records of the City Council of the City, a 

statement of the result of the election, showing:  (1) The whole number of ballots 
cast in the City; (2) the names of the persons voted for; (3) the measures voted 
upon; (4) for what office each person was voted for; (5) the number of votes given 
at each precinct to each person, and for and against each measure; and (6) the 
total number of votes given to each person, and for and against each measure. 

 
Section 6. That the City Clerk shall immediately make and deliver to each of the persons so 

elected a Certificate of Election signed by the City Clerk and authenticated; that 
the City Clerk shall also administer to each person elected the Oath of Office 
prescribed in the Constitution of the State of California and shall have them 
subscribe to it and file it in the office of the City Clerk.  Each and all of the persons 
so elected shall then be inducted into the respective office to which they have 
been elected. 

 
Section 7. That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution and 

enter it into the book of original resolutions. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED 12th day of December 2016, by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

 ______________________________
 Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________
 Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

22



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4C 
 
12/12/2016 

 

Department 

Public Works 

Staff Contact  

Dan Takasugi, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Agenda Item Title 

Approve the Resolution Endorsing the City of Sonoma ADA Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and 
Implementation Project for the FY 2017-2018 Community Development Block Grant Funding 
Application 

Summary 

The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program was created by the federal Housing and 
Community Development Acts of 1974 and 1987, with its primary objective being the development of 
viable communities through the provision of decent housing, a suitable living environment, and the 
expansion of economic opportunities, primarily for lower income persons. The Sonoma County 
Community Development Commission (SCCDC) is the designated local administrative body for the 
CDBG Program. 

All funding proposals from municipalities must be submitted to the SCCDC with city/town council 
resolutions endorsing the proposed projects. Staff seeks City Council endorsement of one project, the 
ADA Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and Implementation Project (Project), which is estimated at a 
total cost of $90,000. 

The City needs to update its ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan to guide the City in providing 
adequate, barrier-free access to public services, programs, and facilities. The “Self-Evaluation” portion 
of the ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan addresses policies and programs, while the “Transition 
Plan” deals with identification, assessment, project development, and implementation of removal of 
barriers to persons with disabilities.  

Staff has prepared a CDBG funding application to request $70,000 in CDBG funds for the Project and 
other pre-construction activities to prepare projects for design and construction as future funding is 
available.  

Recommended Council Action 

Consider the adoption of a resolution endorsing the funding application for the City of Sonoma ADA 
Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and Implementation Project for the FY 2017-2018 Community 
Development Block Grant Funding Program. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

The Sonoma County Community Development Commission 2017-2018 Funding Policies do not require 
a funding match for the capital project applications for CDBG funds. However, the SCCDC staff has 
emphasized that the CDBG funding is not meant to be the only funding source for projects, and the 
amount of match offered by funding applicants has been a consideration in the funding allocation 
process in the past.  

Therefore, approximately $20,000 is suggested as the match for the Project, which would come out of 
the General Fund, and would be budgeted for during the FY 2017-2018 budget review.  

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

23



Agenda Item Error! Reference source not found. 

 

 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution 
2. SCCDC Funding Application for City of Sonoma ADA Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and 

Implementation Project 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

Supports the City Council Infrastructure Goal to maintain the high level of service and reliability of City 
facilities. 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

Compliance with Climate 2020 Action Plan Target Goals: 

Supports pedestrian accessibility by walking or other means, which could reduce vehicle (car) miles 
travelled.  

cc: 

 

 

24



CITY OF SONOMA 

RESOLUTION #_____ - 2016 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA ENDORSING AND 
PRIORITIZING THE CITY OF SONOMA ADA TRANSITION PLAN, SELF-EVALUATION, AND 

IMPLEMENATION PROGRAM FOR FY 2017-2018 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT FUNDING APPLICATION 

 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program was created to develop 
viable communities through the provision of decent housing, a suitable living environment, and 
the expansion of economic opportunities, primarily for lower income persons; and 
 
WHEREAS, City of Sonoma staff have identified the City of Sonoma ADA Transition Plan, Self-
Evaluation, and Implementation Program (ADA Transition Plan) to meet the goals of the CDBG 
program, including “eliminating blighting influences and the deterioration of property and 
facilities; increasing access to quality public and private facilities and services…” as stated in 
the Sonoma County Community Development Commission 2017-2018 Funding Policies, Sec. II: 
Funding Goals and Objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff have prepared an application requesting grant funding from FY 2017-
2018 Sonoma County Community Development Commission (SCCDC) CDBG Program for the 
ADA Transition Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SCCDC as the designated local administrative body for the CDBG Program 
requires that a municipality submitting CDBG funding applications must include a City Council 
Resolution endorsing projects for which CDBG funding is being pursued; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council approves the attached application 
(Exhibit A) for CDBG funds and authorizes the City Manager or her designee to submit the 
application in substantially similar form and adjust the funding request based on any new 
information that may be submitted prior to the decision of the Sonoma County Board of 
Supervisors. 

 

ADOPTED this 12th day of December 2016 by the following vote: 
 
  AYES:    
  NOES:    
  ABSENT:  
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 

                                                  , Mayor  
 
                                                                                   ________________________________ 

       City of Sonoma Mayor (Print Name) 
 
 

       ATTEST: 
 
       ________________________________ 

       Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

25



 
FUNDING APPLICATION: 

Capital Projects (Non-Housing) 
Application Summary Sheet 

 
 
City of Sonoma    ADA Transition Plan  
Legal Name of Organization   Program Name 
 
Agency DUNS Number: 004952891  
 
Various locations within the City of Sonoma (see Attachment 1, Table 1 and Attachment 2, Proposed 
Project Location Maps)  
Physical Location of Activities (if more than one location, please provide primary location) 
 
Amount  Projected Budget 
Requested: $ 70,000  for this Program: $ 90,000  
 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Carol Giovanatto, City Manager, carolg@sonomacity.org  
City Manager/Executive Director: Name, Title & Email address 
 
Katherine Wall, Public Works Administrative Manager, kwall@sonomacity.org  
Contact Person: Name, Title & Email address 
 
No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma, CA 95476  
Mailing Address of Organization 
 
707-933-2229  707-938-3240  http://www.sonomacity.org/  
Telephone  Fax  Organization website address 
 

CDC Date and Time Stamp 

26



PART I 
 

Summary Project or Program Description:  
This section will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development 
Committee, the Technical Advisory Committee and the Board of Supervisors. 
Descriptions MUST BE 125 words or less.  The description will not be edited and will be 
truncated at 125 words. 
 
The ADA Self-Evaluation, Transition Plan, and Implementation Project (Project) is a multi-year 
phased project to assess City facilities and identify architectural barriers limiting accessibility as 
defined in the 2016 California Building Code Chapter 11B; the 2010 Federal ADA Standards for 
Accessible Design; and the Accessibility Guidelines for Outdoor Developed Areas in the 
Architectural Barriers Act (as applicable). The Project will also describe concept solutions and 
planning level cost estimates for each barrier removal project, create a prioritized project list, and 
address barriers in public right-of-way adjacent to City facilities and schools within City limits. 
Specifically, the Project will result in pre-construction development for the facilities listed in 
Attachment 1, Table 1, and the City will implement the projects as funding is available.  
 

 
PART II 

PROJECT TYPE 
 

Answer only ONE of the following four questions below based  
on the project type: 

 
1. Facilities (ADA Restroom retrofit, New facilities, Improvements, Capital renovation) 

 
Project Street Address:   See Table 1 in Attachment 1 for locations to be assessed in 
ADA Transition Plan____________________________________________________ 
Assessors Parcel Number: See Table 1  Census Tract:  See Table 1                                                                                                 
Is project in the 100 year flood plain?   See Table 1 
Please list the FEMA FIRM panel number:   See Table 1 
Is the project, or any part of it, located within the limits of any city?   All locations are 
within City limits.____                                                                                              
If yes, which city?   Sonoma, CA  
Status of Site Control: Identify the form of site control (whether ownership, lease, or 
option agreement) Can site acquisition be obtained within 12 months? 
All locations in Attachment 1, Table 1 are owned by the City of Sonoma. 
 
Attach a copy of Site Control: 
If applying for funds to acquire the site, attach a copy of a current appraisal, if available* 
* The appraised value must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s).  In addition, the total 
purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost” for the property. 
 

2. For ADA Sidewalk/ curb cut projects 
Address location of Sidewalk       
Census Tract:        
Number of curb cuts anticipated       

27



If project will involve more than the installation of curb cuts, please describe.       
  

3. Housing Rehabilitation projects:  Indicate the number of units to be assisted:        
 

4. Infrastructure: 
 Provide all Census block groups for service area: 
                                                                              

 
 

Answer ALL of the following questions regardless of project type 
 

5. Status of any environmental review. 
Environmental review has neither been performed for the ADA Transition Plan, nor for the 
projects that will result from the Plan assessments.  
 

6.  What is the status of land use, building permits or other approvals?   Not Applicable.  

a.  Attach a certification of the project’s consistency with the applicable General Plan, 
signed by an authorized representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is 
located. (Housing Rehabilitation projects excluded) 
See Attachment 4. 

b. Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or environmental) constraints that 
must be resolved prior to proceeding with the project. 
None anticipated at this time. 

 
7. Provide detail if the project will involve the demolition of any structure or the relocation of 

any persons or businesses. 
 
The facility and public right-of-way assessments, project concepts, planning level estimates, 
and other portions of the ADA Transition Plan as well as the environmental documentation 
and clearance of the ADA Transition Plan will not involve demolitions or relocations. 
Barrier removal projects constructed as part of the multi-year phased ADA Transition Plan 
and Implementation Program may involve demolition, and the specific construction work 
has not yet been identified.   
 

8. Describe your “green” building practices and anticipated certifications (e.g. LEED 
Certifications).  __Not Applicable._____________________________________ 

a. Please attach the green score assessment provided by the jurisdiction where the 
project is located. If jurisdiction has no adopted green policies please refer the CDC 
funding policies, Section IV. I. Green Building Guidelines, for further direction.   

 
9. List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below.  

 
Major Milestones Target Completion Date 
 
ADA Transition Plan Consultant Selection       June 2017  
NEPA Clearance_______________________                         July 2017           

28



Begin ADA Self-Evaluation                               August 2017  
Begin ADA Transition Project Assessments     August 2017  
Complete ADA Self-Evaluation                         November 2017  
Complete ADA Transition Project Assessments November 2017  
Develop Project Concepts and Estimates             April 2018  
Adopt ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan July 2018  
Commence Project Implementation                      July 2018  
 
 
 
 
 

Attach an 8 1/2”x 11” project location map, clearly showing the project area in relation to 
surrounding communities. (See Attachment 2) 

29



PART III 
 
 

SOURCES and USES 
 

 
Sources of Funds: Donations Loans Grants In Kind TOTALS 
 
CDBG  $      $      $70,000 $      $70,000 
City’s General Fund  $      $      $      $20,000 $20,000 
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
       $      $      $      $      $      
Total  $      $      $70,000 $20,000 $90,000 
 
 
 
Projected Uses: Donations Loans Grants In Kind TOTALS 
 
ADA Self-Evaluation  $      $      $20,000 $20,000 $40,000 
ADA Project Assessments  $      $      $20,000 $      $20,000 
ADA Project Development  $      $      $20,000 $      $20,000 
NEPA Clearance                        $      $      $10,000 $      $10,000 
  $      $      $      $      $      
  $      $      $      $      $      
  $      $      $      $      $      
  $      $      $      $      $      
  $      $      $      $      $      
Total  $      $      $70,000 $20,000  $90,000 

 

30



Attachment 1 
Table 1 – Locations for ADA Transition Plan 

Assessment and Potential Project Sites

31



Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e
Si

te
 C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

Si
te

 A
dd

re
ss

 
(A

ll 
w

ith
in

 C
ity

 li
m

its
)

AP
N

 
Ce

ns
us

 
Tr

ac
t

10
0 

Ye
ar

 
Fl

oo
d 

Zo
ne

?
FE

M
A 

FI
RM

 
Pa

ne
l

Se
ni

or
 H

ou
sin

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

70
3,

 7
51

, 8
41

 O
re

go
n 

St
01

8-
55

0-
01

5
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
36

E

So
no

m
a 

Va
lle

y 
Re

gi
on

al
 L

ib
ra

ry
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

75
5 

W
 N

ap
a 

St
01

8-
44

3-
01

9
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
36

E
Fi

el
d 

of
 D

re
am

s/
Po

lic
e 

St
at

io
n/

O
ve

rn
ig

ht
 S

he
lte

r
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

15
1,

 1
75

, 1
77

 F
irs

t S
t W

01
8-

07
1-

00
8

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

Fi
el

d 
of

 D
re

am
s/

M
ar

cy
 H

ou
se

Ci
ty

 B
ui

ld
in

g
20

5 
Fi

rs
t S

t W
01

8-
12

1-
01

5
15

02
.0

2
N

o
06

09
7C

09
37

E

Ci
ty

 H
al

l/T
he

 P
la

za
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

1 
Th

e 
Pl

az
a

01
8-

21
4-

00
1

15
02

.0
2

Ye
s

06
09

7C
09

37
E

Co
m

m
un

ity
 F

ac
ili

ty
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

13
6 

M
iss

io
n 

Te
r

01
8-

17
1-

02
6

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

M
ay

so
nn

av
e 

Ho
us

e
Ci

ty
 B

ui
ld

in
g

29
1 

Fi
rs

t S
t E

01
8-

13
1-

00
6

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 O
ffi

ce
s/

Co
rp

or
at

io
n 

Ya
rd

Ci
ty

 B
ui

ld
in

g
19

72
8 

Ei
gh

th
 S

t E
12

8-
05

1-
02

6
15

01
.0

0
N

o
06

09
7C

09
41

E

Se
ba

st
ia

ni
 T

he
at

re
/P

ub
lic

 P
ar

ki
ng

Ci
ty

 B
ui

ld
in

g
47

6 
Fi

rs
t S

t E
01

8-
22

1-
04

2
01

8-
22

1-
03

6
01

8-
22

1-
03

8
15

02
.0

2
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
37

E

Br
oc

km
an

 L
an

e 
Pa

rk
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
37

5 
Br

oc
km

an
 L

n
12

8-
63

0-
07

0
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
39

E

So
no

m
a 

Va
lle

y 
O

ak
s P

ar
k

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

44
3 

Sa
un

de
rs

 D
r

44
0 

En
gl

er
 S

t
12

8-
62

0-
05

7
12

8-
63

0-
04

8
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
39

E

M
ad

er
a 

Pa
rk

/T
ex

 Ju
en

 P
ar

k
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
13

95
 F

ry
er

 C
re

ek
 D

r
12

8-
56

0-
04

8
12

8-
55

0-
06

0
12

8-
58

0-
03

1
15

02
.0

3
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
39

E

N
at

ha
ns

on
 C

re
ek

 P
re

se
rv

e
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
3 

E 
M

ac
Ar

th
ur

 S
t

12
8-

09
1-

00
6

15
02

.0
3

Ye
s

06
09

7C
09

37
E

He
rt

en
st

ei
n 

Pa
rk

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

10
55

 L
a 

Q
ui

nt
a 

Ln
12

8-
06

1-
02

3
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
37

E
Va

lle
y 

Ce
m

et
er

y
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
42

5 
E 

M
ac

Ar
th

ur
 S

t
01

8-
45

1-
00

1
15

02
.0

3
N

o
06

09
7C

09
37

E

K.
T.

 C
ar

te
r P

ar
k

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

11
35

 C
ox

 S
t

12
8-

17
2-

04
8

12
8-

58
0-

03
0

15
02

.0
3

Ye
s

06
09

7C
09

37
E

06
09

7C
09

39
E

M
ac

Ar
th

ur
 P

ar
k

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

75
8 

Kn
ig

ht
 S

t
12

8-
57

0-
04

9
15

02
.0

4
N

o
06

09
7C

09
37

E
Ar

m
st

ro
ng

 P
ar

k
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
55

0 
Ch

ar
le

s V
an

 D
am

m
e 

W
ay

12
7-

70
0-

05
4

15
02

.0
4

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Ce

m
et

er
y

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

90
 F

irs
t S

t W

09
2-

01
0-

02
1

01
8-

03
2-

00
9

01
8-

03
2-

00
8

01
8-

04
1-

00
1

01
8-

03
2-

00
7

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 L
oc

at
io

ns
 fo

r A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 P

ot
en

tia
l P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
s

32



Fa
ci

lit
y 

N
am

e
Si

te
 C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

Si
te

 A
dd

re
ss

 
(A

ll 
w

ith
in

 C
ity

 li
m

its
)

AP
N

 
Ce

ns
us

 
Tr

ac
t

10
0 

Ye
ar

 
Fl

oo
d 

Zo
ne

?
FE

M
A 

FI
RM

 
Pa

ne
l

Ta
bl

e 
1:

 L
oc

at
io

ns
 fo

r A
DA

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 P

la
n 

As
se

ss
m

en
t a

nd
 P

ot
en

tia
l P

ro
je

ct
 S

ite
s

De
po

t P
ar

k 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Ar

ea
s

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

24
8 

Fi
rs

t S
t W

01
8-

13
1-

02
4

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

Pi
ne

lli
 P

ar
k

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

43
3 

Fr
an

ce
 S

t
01

8-
59

0-
03

8
15

02
.0

4
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
37

E

El
 P

ra
do

 C
om

m
on

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

En
tr

an
ce

 a
lo

ng
 F

ra
nc

e 
St

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Do

nn
er

 A
ve

 &
 O

ak
 L

n
01

8-
37

5-
02

7
15

02
.0

4
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
37

E

De
po

t P
ar

k
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
24

8 
Fi

rs
t S

t W
01

8-
13

1-
02

7
15

02
.0

2
N

o
06

09
7C

09
37

E
O

lse
n 

Pa
rk

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

56
9 

Li
nd

a 
Dr

12
7-

67
0-

05
7

15
02

.0
2

N
o

06
09

7C
09

36
E

N
at

ha
ns

on
 C

re
ek

 P
ar

k
Pu

bl
ic

 P
ar

k 
12

21
 D

ew
el

l D
r

02
3-

04
0-

06
6

15
02

.0
3

Ye
s

06
09

7C
09

39
E

Ga
rd

en
 P

ar
k

Pu
bl

ic
 P

ar
k 

19
99

0,
 1

99
96

 S
ev

en
th

 S
t E

12
8-

04
1-

00
2

15
02

.0
4

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

06
09

7C
09

39
E

Ad
el

e 
Ha

rr
iso

n 
Sc

ho
ol

Pu
bl

ic
 R

O
W

 n
ea

r C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

11
50

 B
ro

ad
w

ay
02

3-
05

0-
00

4
02

3-
03

0-
00

1
15

02
.0

3
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
39

E

Pr
es

tw
oo

d 
Sc

ho
ol

Pu
bl

ic
 R

O
W

 n
ea

r C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls

34
3 

E 
M

ac
Ar

th
ur

 S
t

01
8-

42
1-

00
1

15
02

.0
3

N
o

06
09

7C
09

37
E

So
no

m
a 

Va
lle

y 
Hi

gh
 S

ch
oo

l
Pu

bl
ic

 R
O

W
 n

ea
r C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
95

0 
Br

oa
dw

ay
01

8-
42

1-
00

2
15

02
.0

3
Ye

s
06

09
7C

09
37

E
06

09
7C

09
39

E
Sa

ss
ar

in
i S

ch
oo

l
Pu

bl
ic

 R
O

W
 n

ea
r C

ity
 S

ch
oo

ls
65

2 
Fi

ft
h 

St
 W

01
8-

28
1-

02
1

15
02

.0
4

Ye
s

06
09

7C
09

37
E

33



Attachment 2 
City of Sonoma ADA Transition Plan Proposed 

Project Location Maps  

34



´
0

0
.3

5
0
.7

0
.1

7
5

M
ile

s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 M

a
p

35



SECOND ST EAST

W
E

S
T

 N
A

P
A

 S
T

E
A

S
T

 S
P

A
IN

 S
T

E
A

S
T

 N
A

P
A

 S
T

W
E

S
T

 S
P

A
IN

 S
T

FIRST ST EAST

FIRST ST WEST

B
L
U

E
 W

IN
G

 D
R

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

SECOND ST WEST

M
IS

S
IO

N
 T

E
R

GUADALUPE DR P
A

D
R

E
 D

R

Cit
y H

all/
Th

e P
laz

a

De
pot

 Pa
rk

Fie
ld o

f D
rea

ms
/Po

lice
 St

ati
on/

Ov
ern

igh
t S

hel
ter

Fie
ld o

f D
rea

ms
/Ma

rcy
 Ho

use

De
pot

 Pa
rk 

Par
kin

g A
rea

s

Ma
yso

nna
ve 

Ho
use

Seb
ast

ian
i T

hea
ter

 an
d P

ubl
ic P

ark
ing

Co
mm

uni
ty 

Fac
ilit

y

Mo
unt

ain
 Ce

me
ter

y

´
0

0
.0

6
5

0
.1

3
0
.0

3
2

5
M

ile
s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

10
0 Y

ea
r F

loo
d P

lai
n

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

C
e

n
tr

a
l A

re
a

36



SECOND ST EAST

B
L
U

E
 W

IN
G

 D
R

NORRBOM RD WEST

Mo
unt

ain
 Ce

me
ter

y

Fie
ld o

f D
rea

ms
/Po

lice
 St

ati
on/

Ov
ern

igh
t S

hel
ter

´
0

0
.0

9
0
.1

8
0
.0

4
5

M
ile

s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

10
0 Y

ea
r F

loo
d P

lai
n

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a

37



FIFTH ST EAST

E
A

S
T

 N
A

P
A

 S
T E

A
S

T
 M

A
C

A
R

T
H

U
R

 S
T

OAK LN

C
H

A
S

E
 S

T

P
A

T
T

E
N

 S
T

FOURTH ST EAST E
A

S
T

IN
 D

R

SIXTH ST EAST

KNIGHT ST

TOWNE ST

W
IL

L
IA

M
 C

U
N

N
IN

G
H

A
M

 A
V

E

VIRGINIA CT

C
H

A
S

E
 C

T

Ga
rde

n P
ark

Pre
stw

ood
 Sc

hoo
l

Val
ley

 Ce
me

ter
yArm

str
ong

 Pa
rk

Pub
lic 

Wo
rks

 Of
fic

es/
Co

rpo
rat

ion
 Ya

rd
Ma

rAr
thu

r P
ark

El P
rad

o C
om

mo
n

Pin
elli

 Pa
rk

´
0

0
.1

5
0
.3

0
.0

7
5

M
ile

s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

10
0 Y

ea
r F

loo
d P

lai
n

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

E
a

s
t 
A

re
a

38



BROADWAY

C
H

A
S

E
 S

T

N
A

P
A

 R
D

A
N

D
R

IE
U

X
 S

T

FIRST ST WEST

C
L
A

Y
 S

T

M
A

L
E

T
 S

T

F
R

A
N

C
E

 S
T

MANOR DR

OAK LN

AUSTIN AVE

E
A

S
T

 M
A

C
A

R
T

H
U

R
 S

T
W

E
S

T
 M

A
C

A
R

T
H

U
R

 S
T

L
E

V
E

R
O

N
I 

R
D

N
E

W
C

O
M

B
 S

T

B
E

T
T

E
N

C
O

U
R

T
 S

T

E
A

S
T

IN
 D

R

SECOND ST WEST

HAYES ST

P
E

R
K

IN
S

 S
T

A
R

R
O

Y
O

 W
A

Y

VIRGINIA CT

W
O

O
D

W
O

R
T

H
 L

N

D
E

N
M

A
R

K
 S

T

THIRD ST EAST

L
E

E
 C

T

Son
om

a V
alle

y H
igh

 Sc
hoo

l

Ad
ele

 Ha
rris

on 
Sch

oolPre
stw

ood
 Sc

hoo
l

Sas
sar

ini 
Sch

ool

K.T
. C

art
er 

Par
k

Na
tha

nso
n C

ree
k P

ark

Val
ley

 Ce
me

ter
y

Ma
der

a P
ark

/Te
x J

uen
 Pa

rk

El P
rad

o C
om

mo
nPin

elli
 Pa

rk

Na
tha

nso
n C

ree
k P

res
erv

e

Ma
der

a P
ark

He
rte

nst
ein

 Pa
rk

Son
om

a V
alle

y O
aks

 Pa
rk

Bro
ckm

an 
Lan

e P
ark

´
0

0
.1

5
0
.3

0
.0

7
5

M
ile

s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

10
0 Y

ea
r F

loo
d P

lai
n

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

S
o

u
th

 A
re

a

39



FIFTH ST WEST

W
E

S
T

 N
A

P
A

 S
T

THIRD ST WEST

W
E

S
T

 S
P

A
IN

 S
T

A
N

D
R

IE
U

X
 S

T

SONOMA HWY

O
R

E
G

O
N

 S
T

S
T

U
D

L
E

Y
 S

T

L
IN

D
A

 D
R

J
O

A
Q

U
IN

 D
R

C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
T

ROBINSON RD

L
A

S
U

E
N

 S
T

FOURTH ST WEST

C
U

R
T

IN
 L

N

JUNIPERO SERRA DR

P
A

L
O

U
 S

T

C
L
A

U
D

IA
 D

R

R
O

S
A

L
IE

 D
R

M
IT

C
H

E
L
L
 W

A
Y

SIXTH ST WEST

H
A

R
A

S
Z

T
H

Y
 D

R

C
A

S
A

B
O

N
N

E
 L

N

CARSON CT

Sas
sar

ini 
Sch

ool

Ols
en 

Par
k

Sen
ior

 Ho
usi

ng 
Fac

ilit
y

Son
om

a V
alle

y R
egi

ona
l Li

bra
ry

´
0

0
.1

0
.2

0
.0

5
M

ile
s

Le
ge

nd
Ci

tyL
im

its

10
0 Y

ea
r F

loo
d P

lai
n

Lo
ca

tio
ns

 no
t p

ro
po

se
d f

or
 A

DA
As

se
ss

me
nt

Ci
ty 

bu
ild

ing
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 fo

r A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pa

rk 
loc

ati
on

s f
or

 A
DA

As
se

ss
me

nt
Pu

bli
c R

OW
 ne

ar 
sc

ho
ols

 fo
r

AD
A A

ss
es

sm
en

t

D
a
te

: 
1
1

/2
9

/2
0
1

6

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n
o

m
a

A
D

A
 T

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 P

la
n

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

W
e

s
t 
A

re
a

40



 

Attachment 3 
City Council Resolution 

[TO BE INCLUDED IN FINAL 
SUBMITTAL]

41



 

Attachment 4 
General Plan Consistency Determination 

 

[TO BE INCLUDED IN FINAL 
SUBMITTAL]

42



 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council & 

City Council as Successor Agency 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4D 
 
12/12/16 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Adopt a Resolution of the City Council and the City Council as Successor Agency Establishing the 
Regular Meeting Dates for the 2017 Calendar Year  

Summary 
Per the City’s Municipal Code, the city council shall establish, by resolution, the date and time of 
regular council meetings. Adoption of an annual meeting calendar by resolution not only satisfies this 
requirement, but also acts as an aid in planning and avoiding conflicts with various city events and 
holidays. The calendar lists all regularly scheduled meetings of the City Council and of all City Boards 
and Commissions; all official City Holidays; dates of major Jewish holidays; and meetings of the 
Mayors and Councilmembers Association of Sonoma County.  
 
In an effort to be more efficient and to reduce costs, the Council previously conferred the authority to 
the Mayor and City Manager to cancel Council meetings when there were no pressing issues to be 
considered. This will be done throughout the year at such time as deemed necessary.   
 
Scheduling Study Sessions: 
If the City Council would like to hold special study sessions or joint study sessions with outside 
agencies, beyond the customary budget and water study sessions, it is suggested that special 
meetings/study session dates be penciled in on the calendar early in order to allow for meeting 
planning time. 
 
Summer Break: 
It has been past practice to cancel the first meeting in August to facilitate summer vacations and 
because there is not typically any pressing items for consideration during this time of year. Staff has 
not included it on the meeting calendar. 
 

Recommended Council Action 
 

Adopt the resolution establishing the regular Council meeting dates for 2017. 
 

Alternative Actions 
Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 
N/A 

Environmental Review Status 
   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 
  Resolution 
  Monthly Calendars provided under separate cover. 

 

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42A



CITY OF SONOMA 
 

RESOLUTION # ____-2016 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA AND THE CITY 
COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY ESTABLISHING THE REGULAR MEETING DATES 

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE 2017 CALENDAR YEAR 
 

WHEREAS, Section 2.01.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code requires the City Council to 
establish, by resolution, the date and time of regular Council meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB1x26, the City Council elected to have the City act as the Successor 
Agency to the former Community Development Agency, as “successor agency” is defined in 
AB1x26; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council and City Council as Successor Agency desire to establish the date 
and time of their regular meetings; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council Resolution No. 03-2011 sets forth the days and times of regular 
meetings of the City Council pursuant to Section 2.01.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma and the City 
Council as Successor Agency  that: 

 
1. Regular meetings of the City Council and the City Council as Successor Agency will 

be held on the first and third Mondays beginning at 6:00 p.m. and will be held at 177 
First Street West, Sonoma California; and 

 
2. For the calendar year 2017, the regular meetings of the City Council and the City 

Council as Successor Agency shall be held on the dates set forth on Exhibit A to this 
resolution. 

 
3. This resolution shall supersede and render null and void the provisions of any prior 

resolution establishing dates and times of regular City Council meetings. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED 12th day of December 2016, by the following vote: 
 
  AYES: 
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 
 
 

 ______________________________
 Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________
 Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

 
 

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42B



Exhibit A 
 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AND CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
MEETING SCHEDULE - 2017 

 

Wednesday January 7, 2017 Cancelled 

Wednesday January 18, 2017 Cancelled 

Monday January 23, 2017 
Meeting moved to accommodate LOCC Mayors &  
Council Members Academy 

Monday February 6, 2017  

Wednesday February 22, 2017 Monday February 20, 2017 is an official City Holiday 

Monday March 6, 2017  

Monday March 20, 2017  

Monday April 3, 2017  

Monday April 17, 2017  

Monday May 1, 2017  

Monday May 15, 2017  

Monday June 5, 2017  

Monday June 19, 2017  

Monday July 3, 2017   

Monday July 17, 2017  

Monday August 7, 2017 Cancelled – Summer Recess 

Monday August 21, 2017  

Wednesday September 6, 2017 Monday September 4, 2017 is an official City Holiday 

Monday September 18, 2017  

Monday October 2, 2017  

Monday October 16, 2017  

Monday November 6, 2017  

Monday November 20, 2017  

Monday December 4, 2017  

Monday December 18, 2017  

 
 

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42C



1
New Year's 

Day 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 ML King Day 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28
Chinese New 

Year

29 30 31

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

Council Meeting DRHP

CSEC

CANCELLED Planning 

HOLIDAY City Council 

CANCELLED

HOLIDAY City Council 

JANUARY  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30 31

December 2016

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28

February 2017

LOCC MAYORS & CM ACADEMY - SACRAMENTO

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/2017.html
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/2018.html
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42D



1 2
Groundhog 

Day 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12
Lincoln's B-

Day 13 14
Valentine's 

Day 15 16 17 18

19 20
Presidents' 

Day 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28

FEBRUARY  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

Cotati

City Council SCMCMA

CSEC Planning

DRHPHOLIDAY City Council

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

January 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42E



1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12
Daylight 

Saving 13 14 15 16 17
St. Patrick's 

Day 18

19 20
Vernal 

equinox 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

City Council

MARCH  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28

February 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

April 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42F



1
April Fool's 

Day

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 Passover 12 13 14 Good Friday 15

16 Easter 17 Taxes Due 18 19 20 21 22 Earth Day

23 24 25 26
Admin Assist 

Day 27 28 29

30

APRIL  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

City Council

CSEC Planning

SCMCMA

Healdsburg

City Council DRHP

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

May 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42G



1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 Mother's Day 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27
Ramadan 

begins

28 29 Memorial Day 30 31

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

HOLIDAY

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

City Council

MAY  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

April 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42H



1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 Flag Day 15 16 17

18 Father's Day 19 20 21 June Solstice 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

Petaluma

City Council SCMCMA

JUNE  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

May 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

July 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42I



1

2 3 4
Independence 

Day 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 Parents' Day 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

City Council HOLIDAY

JULY  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24

25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

August 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42J



1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 Aviation Day

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

CANCELLED Rohnert Park

City Council SCMCMA

AUGUST  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

July 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

September 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42K



1 2

3 4 Labor Day 5 6 7 8 9

10
Grandparents 

Day 11 Patriot Day 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21
Rosh 

Hashanah 22
Autumnal 

equinox 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 Yom Kippur

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

HOLIDAY City Council

SEPTEMBER  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

27 28 29 30 31

August 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

October 2017

LEAGUE OF CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42L



1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9
Columbus 

Day 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24
United 

Nations Day 25 26 27 28

29 30 31 Halloween

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP

Santa Rosa

SCMCMA

HOLIDAY CSEC

Planning 

City Council

OCTOBER  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

September 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

November 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42M



1 2 3 4

5
Daylight 

Saving 6 7 8 9 10 11 Veterans Day

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 Thanksgiving 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

City Council DRHP HOLIDAY HOLIDAY

City Council CSEC Planning HOLIDAY

NOVEMBER  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

29 30 31

October 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

December 2017

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text
42N



1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 Chanukah 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 Dec. Solstice 22 23

24
Christmas 

Eve 25
Christmas 

Day 26
Kwanzaa 

begins 27 28 29 30

31
New Year's 

Eve

2017 Calendar 2018 Calendar

Calendars by Vertex42.com

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/

© 2013 Vertex42 LLC. Free to print.

HOLIDAY HOLIDAY

City Council DRHP

CSEC Planning

City Council

DECEMBER  2017
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18

19 20 21 22 23 24 25

26 27 28 29 30

November 2017

S M T W Th F Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24 25 26 27

28 29 30 31

January 2018

KEY: CSEC = Com Serv/Enviro Commission; DHRP = Design Rev/Hist Pres Commission; SCMCMA = SoCo Mayors & CM Association

http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
http://www.vertex42.com/calendars/
rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text

rbarr
Typewritten Text
42O



 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council & 

City Council as Successor Agency 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
4E 
 
12/12/16 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

Agenda Item Title 

Receive and file the Report on the 2017 Local Commission and Committee Appointment List 

 

Summary 

 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54970, commonly referred to as the “Maddy Act”, on or before 
December 31 of each year, the City Clerk shall post an appointment list of all regular and ongoing 
boards, commissions and committees, which are appointed by the legislative body of the local agency. 
The list shall contain a list of all boards, commissions and committees whose members serve at the 
pleasure of the legislative body and a list of all appointive terms which will expire during the next 
calendar year.  
 
The attached Appointment List has been posted at City Hall and has also been posted on the City’s 
website.  
 

Recommended Council Action 
 

 Receive and file the Report  
 

Alternative Actions 
Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 
N/A 

Environmental Review Status 
   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

2017 Appointments List 

 

43



CITY OF SONOMA 

LOCAL APPOINTMENTS LIST 

Posted Pursuant to G.C. 54972  

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Qualifications:  Six members must be electors of the City 

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Michael Coleman 4/20/2015 4/20/2017 

Robert Felder 1/21/2009 1/21/2017 

Robert McDonald 2/15/2015 2/18/2017 

Chip Roberson 8/19/2009 8/19/2017 

Ron Wellander 2/18/2015 2/18/2017 

   

COMMUNITY SERVICES & ENVIRONMENT COMMISSION 

Qualifications:  Resident of Sonoma Valley, Five members must be electors of the City 

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Ken Brown 7/20/2015 7/20/2017 

Christina Cook 7/20/2015 7/20/2017 

Christopher Petlock 11/18/2009 11/18/2017 

Denise Wilbanks 7/20/2015 7/20/2017 
  

DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION 

Qualifications: Four members must be electors of the City 

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Kelso Barnett 2/7/2011 2/7/2017 

Bill Essert 12/16/2015 12/16/2017 

Christopher Johnson 3/2/2015 3/2/2017 

   

CULTURAL & FINE ARTS COMMISSION 

Qualifications:  Five members must be electors of the City 

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Lisa Carlsson 11/4/2009 11/4/2017 

Kari Ontko 4/1/2009 4/1/2017 

Linda Ransom 11/3/2007 11/3/2017 

   

TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Qualifications:  Four members must be electors of the City 

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Rosemary Sutcliffe 1/19/2011 1/19/2017 

Armondo Zimmerman 10/21/2015 10/21/2017 

   

44



SONOMA VALLEY CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMISSION 

Qualifications: The City appoints 3 Commissioners and 1 Alternate and Non-Voting Members;  
Must be an elector of the City  

Name Date of Appointment Date Term Expires 

Jack Ding 2/11/2013 2/11/2017 

Pat Pulvirenti 2/11/2013 2/11/2017 

Ditty Velly 1/07/2013 1/11/2017 

Angela White 2/11/2013 2/11/2017 

   

 

45



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

46



 

 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
6A 
 
12/12/16 

Department 

Planning 

Staff Contact  

David Goodison, Planning Director 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, consideration and possible action on an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision 
to not allow a vehicle entry gate and turnaround in conjunction with approval of a Use Permit to 
remodel and upgrade an existing eight-unit condominium complex at 375 West Napa Street.  

Summary 

On November 10, 2016, the Planning Commission considered the application of Robert Baumann & 
Associates for a Use Permit and Fence Height Exception to expand, remodel, and upgrade an 
existing eight-unit condominium complex at 375 West Napa Street. In general, the Planning 
Commission was very supportive of the proposed modifications and improvements, especially given 
the somewhat dilapidated condition of the structures. However, the majority of the commission 
expressed concern about how improvements near the frontage would relate to West Napa Street, 
including a proposed vehicle entry gate and associated turnaround. While understanding that the 
owner desired the vehicle entry gate primarily for the safety of residents, the majority of the 
commission felt the gate and turnaround were inappropriate at this West Napa Street location and 
inconsistent with the Development Code, resulting in additional paved area adjacent to the frontage 
and visually separating the development from the street and community. The staff report for the item 
notes that Development Code Section 19.14.020.F generally discourages gated residential 
developments and, in commenting on the application, the City Engineer also did not support these 
features due to concern about the potential for awkward turning movements if a vehicle was parked 
in the turnaround. 

Ultimately, the Planning Commission approved the Use Permit and Fence Height Exception on a 
vote of 5-2 (commissioners Sek and Coleman dissenting) preserving the draft condition calling for 
elimination of the gate and turnaround (Condition 1.a) and adding a condition related to fencing in 
the front yard setback and the north elevation of Unit 1 (Condition 1.c). With respect to the two 
dissenting votes, staff would note that Comm. Sek also felt the gate and turnaround should be 
eliminated, but did not agree with imposing the additional requirements under 1.c, whereas Comm. 
Coleman supported the project as submitted and did not feel that either condition 1.a or 1.c were 
warranted (the draft meeting minutes are attached for review). On November 16, 2016, the project 
applicant and property owner filed an appeal of the Planning Commission’s requirement that the 
vehicle entry gate and turnaround be eliminated per condition of approval 1.a. As noted in the 
appeal letter, the appellants feel that these features are warranted for the safety of drivers and 
residents and would not have an adverse aesthetic impact. Further details are provided in the 
attachments. 

Recommended Council Action 

In accordance with staff’s standard practice of supporting Commission decisions, the staff 
recommendation is to deny the appeal, thereby upholding the decision of the Planning Commission. 
Whatever the Council’s decision, staff will return at the following City Council meeting with a 
Resolution formalizing the Council’s decision. 

Alternative Actions 

Uphold the appeal, allowing the proposed vehicle entry gate and associated turnaround. 

Financial Impact 

None.   

47



 

 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

1. Appeal 
2. Final Conditions of Project Approval 
3. Draft minutes of the November 10, 2016, Planning Commission meeting 
4. Planning Commission staff report for the item, with attachments 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

N.A. 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals: 

N.A. 

 cc: 

Teresa Piper (via email) 

Robert Baumann, Robert Baumann & Associates (via email) 

 Robert Felder, Planning Commission Chair (via email) 

 

 

48



49



50



City of Sonoma 
Appeal Application Form 
Planning Commission 
Addendum 
Appellant:  Robert Baumann 
Owner:  2880 Stevens Creek, LLC 
 
 
 
Our project is located at 375 W Napa Street, the property is composed of four 
duplexes (eight units) and is part of a condominium plan.   Although the project is a 
condominium planned development the previous owners chose to run the project as 
a rental property.  Over the last 30+ years the project has suffered deferred 
maintenance and as such is currently vacant and in need of major repairs and 
remodeling.  Most the units do not have heat, the exterior siding is rotting, windows 
are not functioning, leaking roofs, etc.  The project has been a target for homeless 
persons and drug users.  Most recently we were contacted by the City of Sonoma 
regarding the trespassers and are working with them to avoid any dangerous 
situations.  
 
Our intent for this project is to revitalize, renew, improve the energy efficiency and 
create a thoughtful living environment for families and individuals that enjoy the 
“joie de vivre” life style of Sonoma while enhancing the original architectural style of 
an urban farmhouse.  We intend to use the best bones of this project and make it a 
better place to live. 
 
A few of the excellent features of this project are the efficient layout of the floor 
plans, cohesive architectural design both inside and out providing private yard 
spaces for each unit.  In our design we thoughtfully considered these elements and 
as such worked on increasing the size of the units without much impact to the 
footprint of the unit.  Our goal was to preserve as much outdoor space for each 
home as possible while still creating a comfortable modern energy efficient living 
space.   
 
We are pleased that the planning commission shares our excitement for this project 
and thank them for the unanimous praise, complimentary comments and 
encouragement in all aspects of the project with the exception of two subjective 
items as noted in the Conditions of Approval dated November 10, 2016,  Section 1 
item a.  It is for that reason that we are filing our appeal and seeking your review 
and guidance on these two subjective items.  Please note the commission voted 5/2 
for these conditions.  Two of the commissioners agreed with our submittal including 
the fence heights that we are not addressing here.   
 
Section 1. a. 
The entry gate and the turnaround proposed toward the front of the site off the 
driveway shall be eliminated. 

51



Reasons for request for appeal: 
Entry Gate:  The proposed entry gate is 42” tall it will be constructed of steel 
painted pickets spaced to provide a clear visual through the gate.  The gate is set 
back 30’ from the road and the main purpose is to protect children, family members 
and pets from the fast moving traffic on W Napa Street (Highway 12).   The gate is 
intended and is designed to create a safe yet inviting area.  It is important to note 
that there is only one home on W Napa that appears to be inhabited as a home 
between the 1st Street West and 5th Street West.  Any other inhabited homes, condos 
or rental properties are behind another house or building effectively creating a 
barrier for the protection of the inhabitants.  There seems to be an immediate 
negative reaction to the request for a gate.   We ask that you please consider our 
concerns for safety while absorbing the renderings that depict our gated entry with 
the understanding that the proposed gate will sit 30’ from the back of the sidewalk, 
this gate will barely be noticed, just as most did not even know our project existed in 
this area. 
Request for specific Action: 
We respectfully request the gate remain and the condition to deny the entry gate is 
eliminated from the Planning Commission Conditions of Approval. 
 
 
Turnaround: 
The proposed turnaround is intended to be installed as noted on the site plan with a 
permeable surface, it will have landscaping around it and will be marked as a No 
Parking, tow away zone. 
This project has a narrow driveway as built and as such creates a difficult situation 
in turning around a vehicle, in most instances when all carports and parking spots 
are full a driver would need to back out onto W Napa Street (Highway 12).  At most 
times of the day it is difficult to pull out onto W Napa, backing out is even more 
dangerous.  The proposed turnaround is intended for safety with or without a gate.  
It can be used as a safe landing pad for drivers dropping off children or picking them 
up.  The turnaround can be used when the gate is not open for an overflow when 2 
cars are trying to enter the complex rather than creating a traffic situation on W 
Napa Street.   In addition the permeable surface, possibly decomposed granite or 
some sort of pavers is a water safe responsible addition to our landscaping. 
 
Request for specific Action: 
We respectfully request the turnaround remain and the condition to deny the 
turnaround is eliminated from the Planning Commission Conditions of Approval. 
 
Thank you for your thoughtful consideration, we look forward to creating a 
beautiful, safe, efficient housing option in the downtown Commercial mixed used 
zone. 
 
 
 
 

52



FINAL 
 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Use Permit & Fence/Wall Height Exception for 
Modifications to Napa Street West Condominiums 

375 West Napa Street 
 

November 10, 2016 
 
 
 
1. The condominium development shall be modified in conformance with the revised project narrative dated 11/10/16, 

approved site plan and building elevations, except as modified by these conditions and the following: 
a. The entry gate and the turnaround proposed toward the front of the site off the driveway shall be eliminated. 
b. The applicant shall provide the City with written verification that other utilities have no issues with siting the new 

carport structure at the proposed location in the existing Public Utility Easement (PUE). 
c. Through the design review of the project by the DRHPC, the north elevation of northeast building shall be 

designed to address the street. A private outdoor open space area with a fence of up to six feet in height shall be 
allowed behind the 28” diameter redwood and 36” diameter  live oak trees within the required 15-foot front yard 
setback area on the east side of the driveway. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department, Building Department; Public Works Department 

                Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any occupancy permit 
 
2. An amended condominium plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act and filed at the office 

of the Sonoma County Recorder. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 
                Timing:       Prior to issuance of building permits 
 
3. The following public improvements shall be required as deemed necessary by the Public Works Division, City 

Engineer, Caltrans or other applicable department or agency. 
 
 a. Repair or reconstruction of any damaged or non-conforming portion of curb, gutter, sidewalk, along the West 

Napa Street/State Hwy 12 frontage of the property as required by the City Engineer and Caltrans.  
 
 b. Widening/modification of the existing driveway on West Napa Street to conform to City Standard Plan No. 111 

(for Residential Driveway Approaches) to provide a driveway width (excluding flares) of 30-feet.  If there are 
physical site limitations, the City Engineer has the discretion to allow a reduction in the standard driveway 
width\to a minimum of 24 feet. 

 
c. Address numbers shall be posted on each structure within the development. Individual address numbers, or an 

address range, shall be clearly posted on West Napa Street.  
 
 Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Public Works Department; Fire Department; Caltrans 
  Timing: Prior to approval of the grading plan, building permit, or issuance of any occupancy 

permit, as applicable  
 
4. The following plans and agreements for controlling stormwater runoff from the site shall be required: 
 

a. An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. The 
required plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. The Best Management 
Practices specified in the approved plan shall be implemented before and during any rainfall event. Grading 
shall not commence or recommence during the rainy season or the period of time beginning when rains begin or 
October 15, whichever comes first, and ending on the following April 15 or when rains cease, whichever occurs 
last, unless erosion and sediment control measures have been installed, implemented, and maintained on the site 
to the satisfaction of the public works director or his/her representative. 
 
 

53



b. A Stormwater Control Plan (SCP) in conformance with the standards in Provision E.12 of the City of Sonoma’s 
NPDES Permit for stormwater discharges shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. The 
plan shall be prepared in accordance with the guidance provided in the BASMAA Post-Construction Manual. 
The required plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Stormwater Coordinator 

                Timing:       Prior to issuance of a building or grading permit 
 
5. All Building Department requirements shall be met, including compliance with CALGreen standards and the 

installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems within all of the residential buildings/units. Building permits shall be 
required. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department 

                Timing:       Prior to construction 

6. All Fire Department shall be satisfied, including any code modifications effective prior to the date of issuance of any 
building permit. In addition, the following shall be required: 

a. All residential structures/units shall be protected by approved automatic fire sprinkler systems. 
b. On-site parking shall be allowed only in designated parking places as shown on approved on the site plan. All 

other areas, including the driveway and drive aisle shall be posted clearly as a fire apparatus access road with 
approved signs or other approved notices or markings that include the words “NO PARKING-FIRE LANE”. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department; Building Department 
 Timing:Prior to the issuance of any building permit 

 
7.  An encroachment permit shall be required from the City of Sonoma for any work within the West Napa Street right of 

way. In addition, an encroachment permit from the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) shall be required for work 
within the Highway 12 (West Napa Street) right-of-way. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Caltrans; City Engineer; Public Works Department 
    Timing:        Prior to any work within the West Napa Street/Hwy 12 public right of way 
 
8. The project shall be subject to architectural review by the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission 

(DRHPC), encompassing elevation details, exterior colors and materials, and site details, including the carports, 
fences/walls, and bicycle racks/storage area. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 
 Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit 

 
9. If significant alterations to site landscaping are proposed, a landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect 

shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission 
(DRHPC). The landscape plan shall comply with the City of Sonoma’s Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance,  and 
Development Code Sections 19.40.100 (Screening and Buffering), 19.48.090 (Landscaping of Parking Facilities), and 
19.40.060 (Landscape Standards). Street trees proposed along the West Napa Street frontage shall be consistent with 
the City’s Tree Planting Program, including the District Tree List 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 

 Timing: Prior to issuance of any occupancy permit 
 
10. If new exterior lighting is proposed, a lighting plan shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design 

Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). All proposed exterior lighting for the buildings and/or site shall 
be indicated on the lighting plan and specifications for light fixtures shall be included. The lighting shall conform to the 
standards and guidelines set forth in Section 19.40.030 of the Development Code (Exterior Lighting). No light or glare 
shall be directed toward, or allowed to spill onto any offsite areas. All exterior light fixtures shall be shielded to avoid 
glare onto neighboring properties, and shall be the minimum necessary for site safety and security. Light standards shall 
not exceed a maximum height of 15 feet. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 

    Timing:      Prior to issuance of an occupancy permit 

54



 
11. The following agencies must be contacted by the applicant to determine permit or other regulatory requirements of the 

agency prior to issuance of a building permit, including the payment of applicable fees: 
 

a. Caltrans [For encroachment permits and frontage improvements on State Highway 12/West Napa Street] 
b. Sonoma County PRMD Sanitation Division  [For sewer connections and modifications and interceptor 

requirements] 
c. Sonoma Valley Unified School District [For school impact fees] 

 Enforcement Responsibility:       Building Department; Public Works Department City Engineer; Caltrans 
    Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any grading/building permit 
 
12. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of Sonoma County PRMD Engineering Division with respect to 

sanitary sewer requirements and facilities. A sewer clearance shall be provided to the City of Sonoma Building 
Division verifying that all applicable sewer fees have been paid prior to the issuance of any building permit. Note: 
Substantial fees may apply for new sewer connections and/or the use of additional ESDs from an existing sewer 
connection. The applicant is encouraged to check with the Sonoma County PRMD Sanitation Division 
immediately to determine whether such fees apply. 

  
 Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department; 
 Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit 
 
13.  Dust control measures, subject to approval by the Building Official and the City Engineer, shall be implemented 

during the construction of the project. All exposed soil areas shall be watered twice daily or as required by the City's 
construction inspector. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works; Building Department 

     Timing:      Throughout construction 
 
14. The applicant shall be required to pay for all inspections prior to the acceptance of public improvements, or within 30 

days of receipt of invoice; all plan checking fees at the time of the plan checks; and any other fees charged by the City 
of Sonoma, Caltrans, the Sonoma County Water Agency or other affected agencies with reviewing authority over this 
project, except those fees from which any designated affordable units are specifically exempt from. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works Department; Building Department; Affected Agencies 

Timing:      Prior to the acceptance of public improvements, or plan check, or within 30   days of 
receipt of invoice, as specified above 

 
 
 
 
 

55



CITY OF SONOMA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 10, 2016 

 
Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Chair Felder called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
Roll Call: 
 

Present: Chair Felder, Comms. Wellander, Willers, Sek, Roberson, Coleman, 
Cribb McDonald (Alternative) 

Absent:      

 
Others 
Present:  

 
Planning Director Goodison, Senior Planner Gjestland, Associate Planner 
Atkins, Administrative Assistant Morris  

 
Chair Felder stated that no new items would be heard after 10:30 p.m. unless the Planning 
Commission so decides. Any decisions made by the Planning Commission can be appealed 
within 15 days to the City Council. He reminded everyone to turn off cell phones and pagers. 
Comm. Wellander led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: None 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None 
 
CHANGES TO AGENDA ORDER: None 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: Planning Director Goodison stated that Item #8- Study Session 899 
Broadway was withdrawn by the applicant and would not be heard tonight. He reviewed the late 
mail correspondence received #1, #3, and #5 
                            

 
Item #6 - Public Hearing - Consideration of a Use Permit and Fence Height Exception to 
modify an existing eight-unit condominium development at 375 West Napa Street.  
 
Applicant/Property Owner: Robert Baumann & Associates/2880 Stevens Creek LLC 
 
Comm. Cribb recused due to a potential conflict of interest and left the room. Comm. McDonald 
went to the dais.  
 
Senior Planner Gjestland presented staff’s report. 
 
Chair Felder opened the item to public comment.  
 
Robert Baumann, architect/applicant, introduced the property owner, Teresa Piper, and 
development team. He presented photos of existing conditions demonstrating the buildings are 
in much need of repair and then presented proposed elevation drawings showing how the 

56



buildings would be improved. He emphasized they desired the vehicle gate and turnaround for 
noise mitigation and the safety of residents (including children and pets) given traffic on West 
Napa Street/Highway 12, and felt the gate does not violate the intent of Development Code 
Section 19.14.020.F. He stated the gate would not be imposing and noted the turnaround could 
also accommodate drop-offs and ease congestion for residents passing in and out of the 
development. 
 
Comm. Wellander confirmed that each of the units has an individual backyard. 
 
Chair Felder closed the public comment.  
 
Comm. Roberson commented the development is not noticeable from the street. Comparing the 
current condition to what is proposed, he fully supports the project, except for the gate element. 
He noted the Planning Commission has reviewed other proposals involving gates and 
consistently have not allowed gates on West Napa Street. Accordingly, he supported approval 
of the project with the conditions as written. 
 
Comm. McDonald was excited to see the site renovated and thanked the owner for putting such 
a significant investment into the project. However, he does not support gates on Highway 12 
and suggested the building at the northeast corner should better address West Napa Street. He 
felt having a paved turnout versus landscaping was inconsistent with Development Code design 
guidelines that discourage such features within frontyard setbacks. He discouraged tall fences, 
gates, and paving in front of residential uses. He felt the north elevation of unit 1 should be 
better exposed with lower fencing in order to engage the street. However, he does not have any 
objection to the fence proposed in front of the northwest carport.  
 
Comm. Roberson concurred with Comm. McDonald about the need for Unit 1 to engage the 
street. He noted a similar example within a project on West Spain Street. 
 
Comm. Willers agreed with his fellow commissioners. He opposed the gate, he felt Unit 1 should 
engage the street in some manner, and that 8-foot tall fencing proposed in front of Unit 1 should 
be reduced so as not to wall off the property from West Napa Street. He indicated that all other 
elements of the proposal are fine and agreed the project is vast improvement over the current 
state. In his view, approving gates and tall fences along West Napa Street would disrupt its 
visual character. 
 
Comm. Sek felt that the 8-foot tall fencing proposed east of the driveway was acceptable 
because of the additional 15 feet of setback provided by the previous right of way dedication. 
However, she felt the gate should be eliminated for consistency with the Development Code 
design guidelines.  
 
Comm. Coleman disagreed with other commissioner’s perspective about the gate. He felt it 
would not have a significant impact and should be allowed to address the safety concerns noted 
by the project architect. He felt that if the Planning Commission wanted to establish an absolute 
prohibition on gates, that direction should be codified in the Development Code. 
 
Comm. Wellander complimented the applicant for the proposal, which he viewed as a major 
improvement. However, he agreed with other commissioners that the project should be 
respectful of West Napa Street and he did not support a gate for this project on the West Napa 
Street corridor. He supported the preservation of the trees along the frontage. He noted that 
residents of the project would have private yards, so he did not think it likely that the interior 

57



drive would normally be used as a play area. He was not opposed to gates in all circumstances, 
but he did not feel that approach was warranted for this project. 
 
Comm. Roberson expressed the view that gates change the nature of how the properties 
engage the community. In addition, the gate necessitates a paved turn-turnaround within the 
front yard setback, an area where the Development Code emphasizes should be landscaping 
not pavement. In his view, Sonoma’s streets make a good contrast to the walled canyons that 
he sees along streets in other communities. In his view it is a fantastic project, but he cannot 
support that particular feature. 
 
Chair Felder supported the project but also opposed the gate. He felt that opening up views of 
the northeast building was a good idea.  
 
Comm. Willers made a motion to approve the Use Permit with conditions of approval, including 
the direction that through the design review process, the DRHPC address modifications to the 
north elevation of Unit 1 to engage the street, with no gate or turnaround, and that an 8-foot tall 
fence in front of the northeast building not be allowed.  
 
Chair Felder reopened public comment in order to address questions from the applicant 
regarding the motion. 
 
The applicant and property owner requested clarification on the motion and voiced opposition to 
the additional requirements. 
 
In response to a question from the architect, staff clarified that a 3.5-foot fence would be allowed 
in front of the northeast unit.  
 
Teresa Piper stated that the area screened by the proposed fence which is under discussion is 
essentially a back yard and she wanted to maximize private open space for the residents. 
 
In response to a question from Chair Felder, Senior Planner Gjestland reviewed the front yard 
setbacks. 
 
Comm. Sek reiterated that she supported the project as submitted, minus the vehicle gate and 
turnaround. She did not object to the taller fence on the northeast. 
 
Comm. Coleman expressed support for the project as submitted, including the fence, the 
vehicle gate and the turnaround. 
 
Comm. Willers felt the northeast building should address the street and did not support an 8-foot 
tall fence east of the driveway. He objected to allowing a wall along the street, but was willing to 
consider a compromise to allow for additional private yard area in conjunction with the northeast 
unit, that allows a corner of the unit to be visible from the street. While he respects and 
appreciates the proposed application, the job of the Commission is to ensure that community 
needs are met as well. 
 
Planning Director suggested an amended motion based the commission’s discussion. He noted 
that the Commission was not seeking any changes to the internal layout of the northeast unit 
and this was not a requirement of project approval. 
 
Commissioner Willers accepted the amended language.  
 

58



Chair Felder closed public comment.  
 
Comm. McDonald seconded the amended motion. 
 
There was further discussion by the commission and additional questions and comments by the 
applicant and property owner. 
 
At the request of the applicant, the Planning Director reread the motion to approve the Use 
Permit and Fence Height Exception with the following additional condition (1.c): through the 
design review of the project by the DRHPC, the north elevation of northeast building shall be 
designed to address the street. A private outdoor open space area with a fence of up to six feet 
in height shall be allowed behind the 28” diameter redwood and 36” diameter live oak trees 
within the required 15-foot front yard setback area on the east side of the driveway. 
 
The motion was approved 5-2 (Comms. Coleman & Sek opposed).  

59



1 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission
STAFF REPORT

Agenda Item #6  
Meeting Date:11/10/16 

Agenda Item Title: Application for modifications to an existing 8-unit condominium development, 

including consideration of a fence height Exception. 

Applicant/Owner: Robert Baumann & Associates/2880 Stevens Creek LLC 

Site Address/Location: 375 West Napa Street 

Staff Contact: Rob Gjestland, Associate Planner 

Staff Report Prepared: 11/04/16 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Description: Application of Robert Baumann & Associates for modifications to an existing 8-

unit condominium development at 375 West Napa Street. 

General Plan 
Designation: Mixed Use 

Zoning: Base: Mixed Use (MX) Overlay:  Historic 

Site 
Characteristics: The condominium development consists of four buildings (each containing two 

units) on an underlying ±28,400-square foot common area parcel located on the 

south side of West Napa Street (Highway 12) near its intersection with Fourth 

Street West. 

Surrounding 
Land Use/Zoning: North: Offices/Mixed Use 

South: Senior apartments (Village Green I)/Medium Density Residential 

East: Office building/Mixed Use

West:  Office and apartments /Mixed Use 

Environmental 
Review: Categorical Exemption Approved/Certified 

Negative Declaration No Action Required 

Environmental Impact Report Action Required 

Not Applicable 

Staff
Recommendation: Approve subject to conditions.

60



2 

PROJECT ANALYSIS 

DETAILED PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The project involves modifying and renovating an existing eight-unit condominium development 

constructed in the 1980’s (no additional units are proposed). The proposed improvements would 

increase the size of the buildings/units through areas of addition, especially on the second floors. The 

exterior form and appearance of the buildings would change as a result of the additions and a new 

carport would be constructed toward the rear of the site to provide additional covered parking for four 

vehicles, plus bicycle storage (the carport toward the front of the site would be retained). The existing 

condominiums currently have 980 sq. ft. of living area plus an attached one-car garage of ±260 sq. ft.

The project would increase the living area of the four outside units (Units 1, 2, 7 and 8) from 980 sq. ft.

to 1,847 sq. ft., while the four inside units (Units 3, 4, 5 and 6) would be increased from 980 sq. ft. to

1,441 sq. ft. The existing one-car garages would be maintained for all of the units. Other miscellaneous 

site improvements include the provision of entry walls/features toward the frontage and new fencing for 

private yard areas. Further details can be found in the attached narrative and drawings. 

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project)  

The property is designated Mixed Use by the General Plan. The Mixed Use land use designation is 

intended to accommodate uses that provide a transition between commercial and residential districts, to 

promote a pedestrian presence in adjacent commercial areas, and to provide neighborhood commercial 

services to adjacent residential areas. It is also intended to provide additional opportunities for 

affordable housing. The designation allows a density up to 20 residential units per acre and a residential 

component is required in new development, unless an exemption is granted through use permit review. 

The primary General Plan policies potential applicable to the project are as follows: 

Policy CDE-5.5: Promote higher density, infill development, while ensuring that building mass, scale, 
and form are compatible with neighborhood and town character. 

Policy HE 3.2: Encourage property owners to maintain rental and ownership units in sound condition 
through code enforcement and housing rehabilitation programs. 

Policy HE 6.2: Implement Sonoma’s Green Building Ordinance to ensure new development is energy 
and water efficient, and consider establishing additional incentives to achieve energy and water 
conservation efficiencies higher than those required by the Ordinance. Revise and/or revisit the 
ordinance as necessary to reflect the introduction of a State-wide green building code. 

As called for in the Community Development Element, the scale and appearance of the updated 

development need to be considered, especially with respect to relationships with adjoining development. 

The Housing Element encourages the rehabilitation of older multi-family developments and notes that 

such projects present an opportunity to implement updated water and energy conservation features.  

DEVELOPMENT CODE CONSISTENCY ( Not Applicable to this Project) 

Use: The property is zoned Mixed Use (MX). The MX zone is intended to allow for higher density 

housing types, such as apartments and condominiums, in conjunction with commercial and office 

development, in order to increase housing opportunities, reduce dependence on the automobile, and 

provide a pedestrian presence in commercial areas. Multi-family development of five or more units 

(including condominiums) are allowed in the MX zone subject to review and approval of a Use Permit 

by the Planning Commission. The proposed project does not constitute a new use and it does not 

increase the density of the development. However, staff regards it as a modification to an approved Use 

61



Permit, as the size and design of the development was established through the original use permit 
approval of the development. 
 
Front Yard Setback: The minimum front yard setback for additions in the MX zone is 15 feet for one-
story construction and 25 feet for two-story construction. With the proposed additions, the northeast 
building would provide a setback of 31 feet from the front property line, while the carport (a one-story 
structure) is set back 24 feet from the front property line.  
 
Rear Yard Setback: The minimum rear yard setback within the MX zone is 15 feet, except when 
abutting a residential zone in which case the corresponding setback of the residential zone shall apply. 
The project site abuts a Medium Density Residential (R-M) zone to the south, therefore a minimum 20-
foot rear yard setback is required for two-story structures. The southwest building, which is the closest 
residential building to the rear yard, has a setback of 21 feet, in compliance with the standard. The 
proposed carport at the southeast area of the site has a rear yard setback of 5’-6”, which meets the 
requirement for a detached accessory structure. 
 
Side Yard Setbacks: One-story structures require a minimum side yard setback of five feet and combined 
side yard setbacks of fifteen feet. For two-story structures, the minimum setback is increased by two feet 
for every five feet in building wall height above fifteen feet. The central upper-floor elements of the 
existing buildings do not meet the minimum side-yard setback standard in all cases, falling 
approximately one-foot short. However, the new construction complies with side-yard setback 
requirements. 
 
Coverage: The maximum coverage in the MX zone is 60% of the total lot area. With the proposed 
additions and new carport, the development would have a lot coverage of 28%. 
 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR): The maximum FAR in the MX zone is 0.70 (or 70% of the total lot area). With 
the proposed additions, the condominium development would have an FAR of 0.53 in relation to the 
underlying lot. 
 
Building Height: The maximum building height within the MX zone is 30 feet. The areas of addition 
would not exceed ±24 feet in height of to the new roof peaks, except for small cupola features projecting 
up to ±28 feet. 
 
Open Space: The Development Code requires 300 square feet of open space per unit, in any 
combination of private or common open space. Approximately 365 square feet of open space is provided 
on average for each unit, including private rear patios and yard areas. 
 
Parking:  Condominiums require 1.5 parking spaces per unit (one of which must be covered), plus guest 
parking at the rate of 25% of the total required spaces. 
 

On-Site Parking Requirements 

Type of Residential 
Unit 

Number of 
Units 

Parking Factor Calculation Spaces 
Required 

 
Condominiums 

 
8 

1.5 spaces per unit (including one 
covered) plus 

guest parking at rate of 25% of total 
required spaces 

8 x 1.5 
 

12 x 0.25 

12 
 

3 

 
Total 

    
15 

 

62



As noted in the table, 15 parking spaces are required for the project. This requirement is met in that 16 
parking spaces are provided on site, all of which would be covered by carports or unit garages. In 
addition, parking space dimensions and back-up distances generally conform to the standards and are 
consistent with the previous approval. 
 
Bicycle Parking: Bicycle parking is required for new multi-family development subject to review on a 
case-by-case basis (§19.48.110). Bicycle parking is identified on the site plan as part of the new carport. 
Details on the type and number of racks are typically considered by the DRHPC in design review. A 
condition of approval has been included in this regard. 
 
Site Design & Architectural Review: Under the Development Code, the Planning Commission is 
responsible for reviewing and acting upon the project site plan, building massing, and elevation concepts 
to the extent it deems necessary. Subsequent review by the Design Review and Historic Preservation 
Commission is also required for multi-family/condominium projects, encompassing elevation details, 
exterior colors and materials, landscaping (including fences and walls), lighting, site details (such bike 
racks), and any other issues specifically referred to the DRHPC by the Planning Commission 
(§19.54.080E). This requirement has been included in the conditions of approval. 
 
Fence/Wall Height Exception: The applicant is requesting an Exception from the fence/wall height 
standards for the portions of fencing and entry wall proposed within the required 15-foot front yard 
setback (normally fencing/walls in the front yard setback are limited to a maximum height of 3.5 feet). 
The proposed fencing would have a maximum height of eight feet (including one-foot of trellis topping) 
with the associated entry wall at roughly 4.5 feet in height. On the east side of the driveway, the fence 
would be set back five feet from the property line and on the west side of the driveway the setback 
would be 14 feet. The fencing and wall are proposed to serve as an entry feature, to enhance privacy, 
and to screen open space areas from traffic noise. An important consideration with respect to the 
Exception request is that due to a previous right-of-way dedication, the front property line is set back 
fifteen feet from the front of the adjoining properties to the east and west, so it is inset from West Napa 
Street in comparison to them. Visually, the fence would be setback 24-33 feet from the back of sidewalk 
on West Napa Street. In order to approve an exception to these standards, the Planning Commission 
must make four findings, as follows:  
 
1. The fence/wall will be compatible with the design, appearance, and physical characteristics of the 

site and other existing structures in the surrounding neighborhood;  
 

The proposed fencing and wall employ a traditional design. Due to the inset front property line, 
their location will not appear incompatible with that of other fences in the vicinity.  

 
2. The height, orientation, and location of the fence/wall is in proper relation to the physical 

characteristics of the site and surrounding properties; 
 
As noted above, the fencing and wall are intended to serve as an entry feature, to enhance privacy, 
and to screen open space areas from traffic noise. The height, location, and orientation of the 
proposed fencing and wall are logical, given the configuration of the subject property and would 
not be obtrusive relative to other properties in the vicinity. For example, the proposed fence will 
not extend past the face of the adjoining building at 369 West Napa Street (on the east). 

 
 
 

63



3. The fence/wall is a planned architectural feature and does not dominate the site or overwhelm 
adjacent properties, structures, or passersby; 

 
Because the front property line of the subject property is inset fifteen feet from the front of the 
adjoining properties on West Napa Street, the fencing and wall will be set back approximately 24-
33 feet from the back of the sidewalk. In light of this set back, these improvements will not appear 
as a dominating feature.  

  
4. The fence/wall will be of sound construction and located so as not to cause a safety hazard. 

 
The fencing and entry wall would be of a sound design and construction and would not present a 
safety hazard. 

 
In general, staff feels that an Exception to the fence/wall height requirements is justified in that the front 
15 feet of the underlying lot was previously dedicated to the City of Sonoma as additional right of way 
for West Napa Street/Highway 12, which has a variable width within this block. As a result, the fencing 
and entry wall will have an apparent setback of 24-33 feet, which is appropriate to the site and its 
surroundings. In addition, the fence segment on the west will be substantially screened with existing 
vegetation. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER  
CITY ORDINANCES/POLICIES ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW ( Not Applicable to this Project) 
Pursuant to Section of 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the expansion of an existing facility of up 
to 10,000 square feet is Categorically Exempt from the provisions of CEQA (Class 1 – Existing 
Facilities) provided that the project is in an area where all public services and facilities are available to 
allow for maximum development permissible in the General Plan. 
 
DISCUSSION OF PROJECT ISSUES 
Compatibility: The project would increase the size and mass of the structures, especially on the second 
floor. In terms of compatibility with existing, adjoining development, staff would note that the adjoining 
property on the east is largely undeveloped, except for a currently-vacant office building located toward 
the street. Relative to adjoin development on the east, the “Northwest Building”, which is actually more 
or less centered along the western property line, adjoins carports associated with the neighboring mixed-
use development. This relationship does not raise any issues of compatibility. The “Southwest Building” 
generally aligns with a neighboring two-story multi-family residential structure in a side-yard to side-
yard relationship. Currently, the Southwest Building has one-story wings that slope up to a central two-
story element. The proposed project would add second-floor extensions that would change the building 
configuration to a continuous two-story structure. That said, the second-floor additions would be set 
back in compliance with side-yard setback requirements and, in staff’s view, they would not 
substantially change privacy conditions, as only a single bedroom window would be introduced. (The 
second window would be associated with a loft area.)    
 
Building Department Requirements: The Building Department has confirmed that the valuation of 
proposed improvements will trigger the requirement for installation of automatic sprinkler systems 
within all of the residential buildings/units. In addition, CalGreen standards will apply and the payment 
of school impact fees will be required for units that are increased by 500 square feet or more. 
 

64



Fire Department Requirements: The proposal was evaluated by the Fire Marshall who indicated that an 
emergency vehicle turnaround will not be required considering the proposal involves an existing 
development and that all residential buildings will have fire sprinkler systems. However, the access 
driveway must be signed/marked as a fire lane with parking prohibited. In addition, if an entry gate is 
approved (see discussion below), it would have to be designed to accommodate emergency access. 
 
Driveway Apron Width: The proposal was evaluated by the City Engineer who indicated that the width 
of the driveway apron on the West Napa Street frontage must be increased to conform to the Standard 
Plan, which calls for minimum width of 30 feet. Some flexibility from this standard may be allowed, 
however a minimum driveway of at least 24 will be required. 
 
Gate/Turnaround: The proposal calls for an entry gate. A related site plan element is a turn-around on 
the east side of the driveway, intended to enable cars that do not gain access through the gate to properly 
exit. In staff’s view, neither of these features are desirable. Section 19.14.020.F of the Development 
Code discourages gated developments. In addition, the turnaround, which would be required if the gated 
entry is approved, would result in awkward vehicle movements and would be visually intrusive. The 
proposed conditions of approval would eliminate these features. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed project would upgrade and enhance an existing multi-family development that would 
greatly benefit from the proposed improvements. Staff recommends approval of the Use Permit 
modification, subject to the attached conditions. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Findings 
2. Draft Conditions of approval  
3. Location map 
4. Project Narrative 
5. Proposed Site Plan, Floor Plans & Building Elevations 
6. Existing Site Plan, Fl0or Plans & Building Elevations 
7. Existing Condominium Plan (Assessor’s Map) 
8. Existing Condominium Map 
 
 
cc: Robert Baumann via email) 
 Robert Baumann & Associates  
 545 Third Street West 
 P.O. Box 2201 
 Sonoma, CA 95476 
 
 Teresa Piper (via email) 
 375 W. Napa, LLC 

P.O. Box 907 
Menlo Park, CA  94026 

65



 

 7 

 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 

FINDINGS OF PROJECT APPROVAL 

Modifications to Napa Street West Condominiums – 375 West Napa Street 

 

November 10, 2016 

 

 

 

Based on substantial evidence in the record, including but not limited to the staff report, and upon 

consideration of all testimony received in the course of the public review, including the public review, the 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission finds and declares as follows: 

 
 

Use Permit Approval 

 

1. That the proposed use is consistent with the General Plan and any Specific Plan; 

 

2. That the proposed use is allowed with a conditional Use Permit within the applicable zoning district 

and complies with all applicable standards and regulations of the Development Code (except for 

approved Variances and Exceptions). 

 

3. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use are compatible with the 

existing and future land uses in the vicinity; and 

 

4. The proposed use will not impair the architectural integrity and character of the zoning district in 

which it is to be located. 

 

Fence Height Exception Approval 

 

1. The fence will be compatible with the design, appearance, and physical characteristics of the site and 

other existing structures in the surrounding neighborhood;  

 

2. The height, orientation, and location of the fence/wall is in proper relation to the physical 

characteristics of the site and surrounding properties; 

 

3. The fence/wall is a planned architectural feature and does not dominate the site or overwhelm 

adjacent properties, structures, or passersby; 

 

4. The fence/wall will be of sound construction and located so as not to cause a safety hazard. 

66



DRAFT (Revised 11/10/16) 
 

City of Sonoma Planning Commission 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

Modifications to Napa Street West Condominiums – 375 West Napa Street 
 

November 10, 2016 
 
 
 
1. The condominium development shall be modified in conformance with the revised project narrative dated 11/10/16, 

approved site plan and building elevations, except as modified by these conditions and the following: 
a. The entry gate and the turnaround proposed toward the front of the site off the driveway shall be eliminated. 
b. The applicant shall provide the City with written verification that other utilities have no issues with siting the new 

carport structure at the proposed location in the existing Public Utility Easement (PUE). 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department, Building Department; Public Works Department 
                Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any occupancy permit 
 
2. An amended condominium plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act and filed at the office 

of the Sonoma County Recorder. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department 
                Timing:       Prior to issuance of building permits 
 
3. The following public improvements shall be required as deemed necessary by the Public Works Division, City 

Engineer, Caltrans or other applicable department or agency. 
 
 a. Repair or reconstruction of any damaged or non-conforming portion of curb, gutter, sidewalk, along the West 

Napa Street/State Hwy 12 frontage of the property as required by the City Engineer and Caltrans.  
 
 b. Widening/modification of the existing driveway on West Napa Street to conform to City Standard Plan No. 111 

(for Residential Driveway Approaches) to provide a driveway width (excluding flares) of 30-feet.  If there are 
physical site limitations, the City Engineer has the discretion to allow a reduction in the standard driveway 
width\to a minimum of 24 feet. 

 
c. Address numbers shall be posted on each structure within the development. Individual address numbers, or an 

address range, shall be clearly posted on West Napa Street.  
 
 Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Public Works Department; Fire Department; Caltrans 
  Timing: Prior to approval of the grading plan, building permit, or issuance of any occupancy 

permit, as applicable  
 
4. The following plans and agreements for controlling stormwater runoff from the site shall be required: 
 

a. An Erosion and Sediment Control Plan shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. The 
required plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. The Best Management 
Practices specified in the approved plan shall be implemented before and during any rainfall event. Grading 
shall not commence or recommence during the rainy season or the period of time beginning when rains begin or 
October 15, whichever comes first, and ending on the following April 15 or when rains cease, whichever occurs 
last, unless erosion and sediment control measures have been installed, implemented, and maintained on the site 
to the satisfaction of the public works director or his/her representative. 
 

b. A Stormwater Control Plan (SCP) in conformance with the standards in Provision E.12 of the City of Sonoma’s 
NPDES Permit for stormwater discharges shall be submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. The 
plan shall be prepared in accordance with the guidance provided in the BASMAA Post-Construction Manual. 
The required plan shall be approved prior to the issuance of a building or grading permit. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Stormwater Coordinator 

                Timing:       Prior to issuance of a building or grading permit 
 

67



5. All Building Department requirements shall be met, including compliance with CALGreen standards and the 
installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems within all of the residential buildings/units. Building permits shall be 
required. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department 

                Timing:       Prior to construction 

6. All Fire Department shall be satisfied, including any code modifications effective prior to the date of issuance of any 
building permit. In addition, the following shall be required: 

a. All residential structures/units shall be protected by approved automatic fire sprinkler systems. 
b. On-site parking shall be allowed only in designated parking places as shown on approved on the site plan. All 

other areas, including the driveway and drive aisle shall be posted clearly as a fire apparatus access road with 
approved signs or other approved notices or markings that include the words “NO PARKING-FIRE LANE”. 
  

Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department; Building Department 
 Timing:Prior to the issuance of any building permit 

 
7.  An encroachment permit shall be required from the City of Sonoma for any work within the West Napa Street right of 

way. In addition, an encroachment permit from the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) shall be required for work 
within the Highway 12 (West Napa Street) right-of-way. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Caltrans; City Engineer; Public Works Department 
    Timing:        Prior to any work within the West Napa Street/Hwy 12 public right of way 
 
8. The project shall be subject to architectural review by the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission 

(DRHPC), encompassing elevation details, exterior colors and materials, and site details, including the carports, 
fences/walls, and bicycle racks/storage area. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 
 Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit 

 
9. If significant alterations to site landscaping are proposed, a landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect 

shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission 
(DRHPC). The landscape plan shall comply with the City of Sonoma’s Water Efficient Landscaping Ordinance,  and 
Development Code Sections 19.40.100 (Screening and Buffering), 19.48.090 (Landscaping of Parking Facilities), and 
19.40.060 (Landscape Standards). Street trees proposed along the West Napa Street frontage shall be consistent with 
the City’s Tree Planting Program, including the District Tree List 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 

 Timing: Prior to issuance of any occupancy permit 
 
10. If new exterior lighting is proposed, a lighting plan shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design 

Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). All proposed exterior lighting for the buildings and/or site shall 
be indicated on the lighting plan and specifications for light fixtures shall be included. The lighting shall conform to the 
standards and guidelines set forth in Section 19.40.030 of the Development Code (Exterior Lighting). No light or glare 
shall be directed toward, or allowed to spill onto any offsite areas. All exterior light fixtures shall be shielded to avoid 
glare onto neighboring properties, and shall be the minimum necessary for site safety and security. Light standards shall 
not exceed a maximum height of 15 feet. 

  
Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC 

    Timing:      Prior to issuance of an occupancy permit 

11. The following agencies must be contacted by the applicant to determine permit or other regulatory requirements of the 
agency prior to issuance of a building permit, including the payment of applicable fees: 

 
a. Caltrans [For encroachment permits and frontage improvements on State Highway 12/West Napa Street] 
b. Sonoma County PRMD Sanitation Division  [For sewer connections and modifications and interceptor 

requirements] 
c. Sonoma Valley Unified School District [For school impact fees] 

68



 Enforcement Responsibility:       Building Department; Public Works Department City Engineer; Caltrans 
    Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any grading/building permit 
 
12. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of Sonoma County PRMD Engineering Division with respect to 

sanitary sewer requirements and facilities. A sewer clearance shall be provided to the City of Sonoma Building 
Division verifying that all applicable sewer fees have been paid prior to the issuance of any building permit. Note: 
Substantial fees may apply for new sewer connections and/or the use of additional ESDs from an existing sewer 
connection. The applicant is encouraged to check with the Sonoma County PRMD Sanitation Division 
immediately to determine whether such fees apply. 

  
 Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department; 
 Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit 
 
13.  Dust control measures, subject to approval by the Building Official and the City Engineer, shall be implemented 

during the construction of the project. All exposed soil areas shall be watered twice daily or as required by the City's 
construction inspector. 

 
Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works; Building Department 

     Timing:      Throughout construction 
 
14. The applicant shall be required to pay for all inspections prior to the acceptance of public improvements, or within 30 

days of receipt of invoice; all plan checking fees at the time of the plan checks; and any other fees charged by the City 
of Sonoma, Caltrans, the Sonoma County Water Agency or other affected agencies with reviewing authority over this 
project, except those fees from which any designated affordable units are specifically exempt from. 

 
 Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works Department; Building Department; Affected Agencies 

Timing:      Prior to the acceptance of public improvements, or plan check, or within 30   days of 
receipt of invoice, as specified above 

 
 
 
 
 

69



MX

R-M

P

H
IR

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 W

E
S

T

ROBINSON STREET  

BANCHERO ST  

T
H

IR
D

Zoning Designations
R-HS    Hillside Residential (1 D.U./10acres, maximum)
R-R      Rural Residential (2 D.U./acre, maximum)
R-L       Low Density Residential (2-5 D.U./acre)
R-S       Sonoma Residential (3-8 D.U./acre)
R-M      Medium Denisty Residential (6-10 D.U./acre)
R-H      High Density (9-12 D.U./acre)
R-O      Housing Opportunity (15-20 D.U./acre)
R-P       Mobile Home Park (7 D.U./acre, maximum)
MX       Mixed Use (12 D.U./acre, maximum)
C          Commercial (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
C-G      Commercial-Gateway (15 D.U./acre, maximum)
W         Wine Production
P          Public Facility
Pk        Park
A          Agriculture

´

Project Summary

Vicinity Map

0 200 400100 Feet

1 inch = 200 feet

Subject Property

Project Name: West Napa Condos Modifications

Property Addresses: 375 West Napa Street

Applicant: Robert Baumann & Associates

Property Owner: 2880 Stevens Creek LLC

General Plan Land Use: Mixed Use

Zoning - Base: Mixed Use

Zoning - Overlay: Historic

Summary: Consideration of an application 
to modify an existing 8-unit 
condominium development.

70



 
 

Robert Baumann + Associates 
CA License # C28431 

545 Third Street West, Sonoma, CA 95476 
P - 707.996.7947   F - 707.996.7904 

rb@robertbaumann.com 
 

 
 

DATE: November 10, 2016 
TO: City of Sonoma, Planning Department 
 
RE: PROJECT NARRATIVE – Condominiums at 375 West Napa Street 
 

Dear Planning Commission: 

The proposed project is located at 375 W Napa Street in a mixed-use zone of the West Napa 
Street / Sonoma Highway Corridor. The proposed use is to remain a residential condominium 
community. 
 
Currently there are eight (8) condominiums situated in four (4) duplexes all with some form of 
deferred maintenance. The project will include updating the current units and increasing the size 
functionality, energy efficiency and improved design and aesthetics.   
 
The existing property is .65 acres in size, or 28,431 square feet.  
Allowable FAR = 70% of the lot area (19,902 sq. ft.); Proposed FAR = 15,144 (compliant). 
Allowable coverage = 60% of the lot area (17,059 sq. ft.); Proposed coverage = 7,864 (compliant). 
The project also complies with maximum height and all setbacks (shown on site plan). 
 
Per discussions between the surveyor (Aaron Smith at adobe Associates) and the Public Works 
Director, Dan Takasugi, it was agreed that boundary between the previously approved 
condominium area and the Public Utility Easement is not changing. Therefore, a revision to the 
subdivision map is not required.  
 

If you have any questions about the submitted application materials, or require additional 
information, please contact me at your earliest opportunity. 
 
Thank you, 

 
Robert Baumann + Associates       
 
 

 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

80



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
6B 
 
12/12/16 

 
Department 

Planning and Community Services  

Staff Contact  
David Goodison, Planning Director 

Agenda Item Title 
1.  Consider and possibly adopt an extension of an interim urgency ordinance imposing a 
moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana, approving the issuance of a Gov’t 
Code sec. 65858(d) report and making findings that said adoption is exempt under CEQA pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061, among other provisions. 
2.  Consider and possibly adopt an extension of an interim urgency ordinance imposing a 
moratorium on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana, except under certain circumstances, , 
approving the issuance of a Gov’t Code sec. 65858(d) report and making findings that the adoption 
of said ordinance is exempt under CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15061, among other 
provisions. 
3. Provide feedback and direction to staff regarding the proposed process for developing 
permanent regulations on the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana and related issues. 

Summary 
Under State law, an interim moratorium ordinance may be adopted based on anticipated changes in 
development policies arising from ongoing or anticipated planning studies, such as a zoning 
ordinance amendment. At its meeting of November 7, 2016, the City Council voted 4-1 
(Councilmember Hundley dissenting) to adopt two interim moratorium ordinances addressing the 
following: 1) Placing restriction on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana; and 2) prohibiting 
the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana. Upon adoption, the ordinances went into effect 
immediately, but their initial term is limited to 45 days, after which they will expire unless extended 
by a vote of the City Council within that period. Under state law, the ordinance may be extended 
twice: first for an additional period of ten months and 15 days and, then, for one year, for a total of 
two years. To adopt the extensions, a four-fifths vote of the City Council is required. In addition, as 
noted in the attached ordinances, the governing body must issue and adopt a report outlining the 
measures taken to address the conditions that led to the adoption of the interim moratorium 
ordinance. This report is provided as the Supplemental Report to this agenda item (attached). 

Recommended Council Action 
1. Adopt the attached ordinance extending  the interim moratorium  on the outdoor cultivation of 

nonmedical marijuana.  
2. Adopt the attached ordinance extending  the interim moratorium  on the indoor cultivation of 

nonmedical marijuana, except under certain circumstances.  
3. Provide feedback and direction to staff regarding the proposed process for developing 

permanent regulations on the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana and related issues. 
Alternative Actions 
 Decline to extend either or both of the interim moratorium ordinances. 

Financial Impact 
The adoption of these ordinances will not, in and of themselves, create any financial impacts for the 
City. The enforcement of these ordinances or future permanent regulations that may be adopted 
may cause the City to incur costs, the amount of which are not yet determinable. 

Environmental Review Status 
   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 

81



 

 
 

   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Alignment with Council Goals 
The development of local regulations on the cultivation of marijuana is responsive to the City 
Council’s “Policy and Leadership” goal, which includes calls upon the City to: “respond to County, 
State and Federal legislative issues with a focus on retaining local control.” 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals: 
 N.A. 
Attachments: 

1. Supplemental Report 
2. Ordinance extending  an interim urgency  moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical 

marijuana, etc. 
3. Ordinance extending  an interim urgency  moratorium on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical 

marijuana, except under certain circumstances, etc. 
4. League of California Cities Q&A 

cc:  
 

 

82



SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 
 

Consider and possibly adopt an extension of interim urgency ordinances: 1) imposing a 
moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana, and 2) imposing a moratorium 
on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana, except under certain circumstances. Provide 

feedback and direction to staff regarding the proposed process for developing permanent 
regulations on the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana and related issues. 

 
For the City Council Meeting of December 12, 2016 

 

 
Background 
 
On November 8, 2016, Proposition 64 was adopted by California voters.  The passage of 
Proposition 64 results in a number of implications for local governments, including: 
 
• Legalizes the nonmedical use of marijuana by persons 21 years of age and older;  
• Legalizes the indoor personal cultivation of up to six marijuana plants per residence, subject 

to reasonable restrictions that may be imposed by local governments. However, a local 
government may not impose a ban on indoor cultivation. 

• Legalizes the outdoor personal cultivation of up to six marijuana plants per residence, subject 
to reasonable restrictions that may be imposed by local governments. In contrast to the 
provisions concerning indoor cultivation, a local government may choose to completely ban 
outdoor cultivation. 

• Establishes a timetable for the commercial cultivation, production, marketing, delivery, sale 
and possession of nonmedical marijuana, subject to a State licensing process, anticipated to 
become effective in early 2018. 

 
Proposition 64 authorizes local jurisdictions to adopt reasonable rules and regulation pertaining to 
such personal cultivation, indoor and outdoor.  However, to amend the City’s Development Code 
to promulgate such rules, the necessary time to do so would result in such rules taking effect several 
months after the passage of the Proposition, during which time such activities could commence 
without complying with requirements assuring the protection of the community’s health, safety 
and welfare. In light of these circumstances, at its meeting of November 7, 2016, the City Council 
voted 4-1 (Councilmember Hundley dissenting) to adopt two interim moratorium ordinances 
addressing the following: 1) placing restrictions on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical 
marijuana; and 2) prohibiting the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana. 
 
Adoption of Extensions 
 
Upon adoption, the urgency ordinances went into effect immediately, but their initial term is 
limited to 45 days, after which they will expire unless extended by a vote of the City Council 
within that period. Under state law, the ordinances may each be extended twice: first for an 
additional period of ten months and 15 days and, then, for one year, for a total of two years. To 
adopt the extensions, a four-fifths vote of the City Council is required. Because the City is still in 
the process of developing permanent regulations on the indoor and outdoor cultivation of 

83



 2 

nonmedical marijuana, the City Attorney has prepared extensions to the two ordinances for the 
City Council’s consideration.  
 
At least 10 days before these ordinances expire, the City Council is to approve and issue a report 
(“10-day Report”) identifying the steps taken to alleviate the conditions that led to the adoption of 
the ordinances.  This Supplemental Report constitutes that 10-day Report.  And it is this 10-day 
Report the approval and issuance of which is provided in the attached ordinances.   
 
Process for Developing Permanent Regulations 
 
Developing, adopting, and implementing permanent regulations on the cultivation of nonmedical 
marijuana will require amending the Municipal Code, including, most likely, the Development 
Code, which establishes the City’s zoning regulations. In considering what allowances to establish 
and under what rules also requires consideration of how any such rules will be enforced. The 
review of cultivation rules also raises the potential to revisit the current prohibitions of medical 
marijuana dispensaries and delivery services within city limits. In addition, it would be desirable 
to coordinate the City’s rulemaking with that of the County and the state. That said, staff recognizes 
that the City Council wishes to address these issues expeditiously and in a manner that provides 
opportunities for community involvement.  However, all of these tasks take time:  much more time 
than that allotted during the life of the moratoria ordinances adopted by the Council on November 
7, 2016. Moving forward, staff has begun the process of digesting Proposition 64 and the earlier 
enacted Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act (“MMRSA”) and their implications for the 
City.  These are complicated pieces of legislation that create, out of whole cloth, brand new state 
regulatory agencies, a number of which have yet to hire full complements of staff.  City staff has 
been in consultation with the City Attorney’s office to gain a better understanding of the 
requirements of these laws and how the City can retain local control over the businesses and 
activities that these laws allow.  Clearly, further and significant work needs to be done. 
 
To accomplish these goals, staff suggests that the City Council establish a working group, led by 
the Mayor, to develop a draft ordinance addressing, at a minimum, the following: 
 
Required Ordinance Elements 
 

1. Any potential revisions to the rules governing indoor cultivation. For example, 
Councilmember Hundley has suggested that it is not necessary or desirable to require 
tenants to provide proof of property owner consent.  

2. Potential allowances for personal outdoor cultivation, such as when confined within a 
greenhouse, or continuance of a complete ban. 

3. Permitting and enforcement provisions. 
 
Optional Ordinance Elements, at the Council’s Discretion 
 

1. Consideration of allowances and regulations addressing medical marijuana 
dispensaries. (Note: the Police continues to oppose any such allowance.) 

2. Consideration of allowances and regulations addressing medical marijuana deliveries.  
 
 
 

84



 3 

Optional Advisory Issues, at the Council’s Discretion 
 

1. Potential allowances for commercial storefront sale of nonmedical marijuana or a 
complete ban. 

2. Potential allowances for commercial outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana or a 
complete ban. 

 
Staff suggests that the membership of the working group include the Police Chief, the Planning 
Director, the City Attorney and the Code Enforcement Officer, and the Building Official, as well 
as one or more citizen members appointed by the Council. Consideration should also be given to 
including a second Councilmember, schedules permitting. To allow for additional opportunities 
for public input, the working group would hold at a minimum of two community workshops or 
forums. Any such working group would be subject to the Brown Act. Moreover, creation of and 
appointments to such a group are not on the agenda for the December 12, 2016, Council meeting. 
Rather, this approach is made as a suggestion as to how best to proceed to address the issues 
implicated by Proposition 64 and the MMRSA. 
 
Alternatively, the City Council may wish to assume the task of addressing these issues and 
conducting the public outreach necessary to develop a comprehensive body of regulations 
encompassing both medical and nonmedical marijuana use, cultivation and commercial activities. 
In terms of timing, the objective would be to develop a draft ordinance, along with any other related 
recommendations, for Council consideration no later than July, 2017. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council take the following actions: 
 
1. Adopt the attached ordinance extending the moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of 

nonmedical marijuana, approving this 10-day Report’s issuance and making findings that the 
ordinance is exempt under CEQA.  

2. Adopt the attached ordinance extending the moratorium on the indoor cultivation of 
nonmedical marijuana, except under certain circumstances, approving this 10-day Report’s 
issuance and making findings that the ordinance is exempt under CEQA.  

3. Provide feedback and direction to staff regarding the proposed process for developing 
permanent regulations on the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana and related issues. 

85



1 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SONOMA EXTENDING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM 

ON THE OUTDOOR CULTIVATION OF NONMEDICAL MARIJUANA 
 
 

WHEREAS, in 1996 the voters of California approved Proposition 215, codified as 
California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 and entitled “The Compassionate Use Act of 
1996;” and   
 

WHEREAS, the intent of Proposition 215 was to enable persons who are in need of medical 
marijuana for specified medical purposes to obtain medical marijuana, and use it under limited, 
specified circumstances without fear of criminal prosecution under State law; and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2003, the State Legislature enacted SB 420, codified as California Health 
and Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq. and entitled the “Medical Marijuana Program Act” 
(“MMPA”) to clarify the scope of The Compassionate Use Act of 1996; and 
 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2016, the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act 
(“MMRSA”) became effective under which an extensive state regulatory scheme was established 
providing for the monitoring, inspecting and licensing of commercial medical marijuana 
businesses.  The MMRSA created a dual-licensing system under which medical marijuana 
businesses have to obtain both state and local licenses in order to conduct such businesses.  
However, the MMRSA explicitly acknowledged that cities and counties retain the right to not only 
regulate such activities, but to ban them entirely.  The MMRSA also acknowledged that permissive 
zoning schemes can implicitly prohibit such activities, including the indoor and outdoor cultivation 
of medical marijuana when those zoning regulations do not expressly list such activities as 
permitted or conditionally permitted uses; and 
 

WHEREAS, on December 21, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 47-2015 
which confirmed that the City’s Development Code prohibited and prohibits the delivery of 
medical marijuana, other commercial medical marijuana activities and the cultivation of medical 
marijuana; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016, the voters adopted the Control, Regulate and Tax Adult 
Use of Marijuana Act (“Proposition 64”).  Proposition 64 legalizes the recreational use of 
marijuana in California for individuals 21 years of age and older; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Proposition 64 also authorizes the personal cultivation of up to six marijuana 
plants within a private residence or upon the “grounds” of that private residence for nonmedical 
purposes; and 
 

86



2 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Proposition 64, the City may completely prohibit outdoor 
nonmedical marijuana cultivation for personal use until such time as the California Attorney 
General determines that the nonmedical use of marijuana is lawful in California under federal law, 
at which time any ban on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana would be nullified. The 
California Attorney General has not made a determination that nonmedical use of marijuana is 
lawful in California under Federal law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in anticipation of Proposition 64 passing, the City Council, by a 4/5ths vote, 
on November 7, 2016, adopted an urgency ordinance (Ordnance No. 09-2016) imposing a 
temporary moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana for personal use, which 
said ordinance was to become effective only if Proposition 64 passed.  Proposition 64 passed, thus 
triggering the efficacy of said Ordinance No. 09-2016; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution provides that a city may 
make and enforce within its limits all local police, sanitary and other ordinances and regulations 
not in conflict with general laws; and 
 
 WHEREAS, given Proposition 64’s passage, it is more likely than not that the number of 
individuals who will desire to and will cultivate nonmedical marijuana for personal use will be 
significant.  It is further more likely than not that substantial numbers of persons interested in 
cultivating nonmedical marijuana will commence doing so immediately after or soon after 
Proposition 64 passed, unless and until local regulations and/or prohibitions (on outdoor 
cultivation) are enacted which control such activities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cultivation of medical and nonmedical marijuana in other cities has 
resulted in calls for service to their police departments, including calls for robberies and thefts, and 
the increase in criminal activity, and it is reasonable to assume that Proposition 64’s passage, 
without reasonable controls imposed by the City of Sonoma, will generate similar, if not greater, 
numbers of such incidents pertaining to the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana in the City of 
Sonoma. Similar incidents involving complaints resulting in criminal investigations and the 
discovery of illegal marijuana cultivations have occurred in the City of Sonoma.  In the event that 
the restrictions imposed by Ordinance No.  09-2016 are not extended, there is a current and 
immediate threat to the public health, safety and welfare of substantial numbers of persons 
cultivating nonmedical marijuana outdoors and  creating the complaints and enforcement problems 
already experienced in other communities and in the City of Sonoma and exposing citizens to 
robberies, potential violence, vandalism of property and theft of marijuana plants being openly and 
visibly grown in the yards and grounds of residential properties throughout the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, based upon the experience of the State of Colorado and other states in which 
nonmedical marijuana has been legalized, it is likely that Proposition 64 will have significant 
impacts on law enforcement, the medical resources of the State and the regulatory function of local 
agencies, including the City of Sonoma; and  
 

87



3 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

 WHEREAS, the short period between Proposition 64’s qualification for the November 8, 
2016, ballot and the November 8, 2016, election and Proposition 64’s creation of a complex,  state-
wide licensing system for the commercial production, delivery, marketing, testing and selling of 
nonmedical marijuana have impeded and prevented the City from adequately studying its impacts 
and the most appropriate manner in which to comprehensively address the issues implicated by 
the Proposition and its implementation.  The City needs time to further study the Proposition and 
whether and to what extent the City’s General Plan, development code and other regulations will 
need to be or should be modified to accommodate and/or address the impacts of Proposition 64 on 
the City and its citizens.  Were the City Council to permit the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical 
marijuana while it studied the means and methods to address such activities, those persons who 
were engaged in such outdoor cultivation activities may garner rights to continue such activities 
as grandfathered uses, unaffected by later-enacted legislation by the City Council.  Such an 
outcome presents an immediate and current threat to the ability of the City Council to properly 
plan and regulate such activities and will undermine the purpose of any such plan and regulation 
as to those persons who were able to commence the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana 
before such plans and/or regulations are put into place; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to determine the most appropriate and publicly beneficial manner in 
which to address the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana issues implicated by Proposition 
64 and the effect of  such outdoor cultivation activities should the City  determine to permit such 
uses within the City’s corporate boundaries, and in order to protect residents and businesses from 
the potential harmful effects of some outdoor nonmedical marijuana cultivators,   the City needs 
time to study whether to permanently permit and regulate or prohibit such uses and, if the Council 
determines to permit such uses, to examine the regulations relating thereto and to permit the public 
adequate time to review and comment upon the issue in accordance with state law in tandem with 
the City’s consideration of  any such regulations or prohibition; and  
 

WHEREAS, it would be destructive of and render ineffective any proposed policies, 
restrictions, ordinances and regulations if, during the period they are being studied and considered 
by the City, parties seeking to avoid their operation and effect establish such uses, which said 
operations and activities will defeat, in whole or in part, the objectives of such policies, restrictions, 
ordinances and regulations; and  
 

WHEREAS, absent the adoption of this interim urgency ordinance extending Ordinance 
No. 09-2016, it is likely that the establishment and operation of outdoor nonmedical marijuana 
cultivations within the City, without appropriate controls in place to regulate outdoor nonmedical 
marijuana cultivations and their impacts on the community, will result in harmful effects to the 
businesses, property owners and residents of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, because of the facts set forth above, there exists a current and immediate threat 
that persons shall commence outdoor nonmedical cultivation operations, that such poses a current 
and immediate threat to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and  having such 
uses  commence operations and operate in the City before the City has had an opportunity to 
consider, study and/or adopt regulations (or prohibitions) governing the said outdoor cultivations 

88



4 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

will render such regulations ineffective and destroy the purpose of engaging in such an analysis 
and process in the first place, thus constituting  a current and immediate threat to the health, safety 
and welfare of the citizens of the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 09-2016 shall expire at midnight December 22, 2016, unless 

extended by subsequent ordinance adopted pursuant to Cal. Gov’t Code section 65858; and  
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on December 12, 2016, the City Council was presented the 

report described in said section 65858(d) (“Report”) specifying the measures taken to alleviate the 
conditions which led to the adoption of Ordinance No. 09-2016.  In said Report it is stated that the 
said conditions giving rise to the necessity of adopting Ordinance No. 09-2016 have not been 
alleviated and that more time is necessary in order to study and address the issues involved in 
deciding whether to continue prohibiting the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana or 
regulate such, and, if so, how to regulate those cultivation activities.  Said Report is hereby 
approved and the City Manager is authorized and directed to issue the Report; and  
 
 WHEREAS, based on the findings set forth above, it is the intent of the City Council to 
extend Ordinance No. 09-2016’s   moratorium on the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana 
throughout the City to a date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days following the last day 
that Ordinance No. 09-2016 is in effect; and   
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15001 of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) Guidelines, this ordinance is exempt from CEQA based on the following findings: 
 

(1) This ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 15378 of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change in the environment, 
directly or ultimately.   
 

(2) This ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA under Section 15308 of the 
CEQA Guidelines as a regulatory action taken by the City pursuant to its police power and in 
accordance with Government Code Section 65858 to assure maintenance and protection of the 
environment pending the consideration, evaluation and possible adoption of contemplated local 
legislation, regulation and policies. 
 

(3) This ordinance is not subject to CEQA under the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  For 
the reasons set forth in subparagraphs (1) and (2), above, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15061, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that this ordinance will have 
a significant effect on the environment: 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Sonoma does ordain as follows: 
 

89



5 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

Section 1. Recitals Made Findings.  The above recitals are hereby declared to be true and 
correct and represent the findings of the City Council of the City of Sonoma, made in the exercise 
of its independent judgment.  Said findings are incorporated by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Moratorium Imposed. 
 

A. Scope. 
 

In accordance with the authority granted the City of Sonoma under Article XI, Section 7 
of the California Constitution and California Government Code Section 65858, from and after the 
effective date of this ordinance, no permit, variance, building permit, approval or any other 
applicable license or entitlement for use, including, but not limited to any land use entitlement, or  
the issuance of a business license, shall be approved or issued for the cultivation of nonmedical 
marijuana outdoors.  The cultivation of nonmedical marijuana outdoors is hereby expressly 
prohibited in all areas and in all zoning districts of the City during the period of time which this 
ordinance, and any extension thereof, if any, is in effect.  
 

B.  Definitions. 
 
  1. "Fully enclosed and secure structure" means a space within a building that 
complies with the applicable provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted and 
amended by Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code, and has a 
complete roof enclosure supported by connecting walls extending from the ground to the roof, a 
foundation, slab or equivalent base to which the floor is secured by bolts or similar attachments, 
is secure against unauthorized entry, and is accessible only through one or more lockable doors. 
Walls and roof must be constructed of solid materials that cannot be easily broken through, and 
must be constructed with non-transparent material.  Plastic sheeting, canvas, vinyl, or similar 
products or materials, regardless of gauge, are not considered solid materials. A fully enclosed and 
secure structure must be an accessory structure to a private residence located upon the parcel on 
which that private residence is situated. 
 
  2. "Nonmedical marijuana" means marijuana that is intended to be used for 
nonmedical purposes pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11362.1 et seq., as those sections 
may be amended from time to time. 
 

3. "Nonmedical marijuana cultivation" or the “cultivation of nonmedical  
marijuana” means the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, curing, grading, trimming or 
processing of marijuana plants or any part thereof pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
11362.1 et seq., as those sections may be amended from time to time. 
 

4. “Marijuana” means all parts of the plant cannabis sativa L, whether growing  
or not; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; cannabis; and every 
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin.  
 

90



6 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

5. “Outdoors” means any location within the City that is not within a fully  
enclosed and secure structure or a private residence. 
 
 C. Statutory Findings and Purpose. 
 
 This ordinance is declared to be an interim ordinance as defined under California 
Government Code Section 65858.  This ordinance is deemed necessary based on the findings of 
the City Council of the City of Sonoma as set forth in the recitals, incorporated by Section 1 of 
this ordinance. 
 
Section 3. Establishment, Maintenance or Operation of Nonmedical Marijuana 

Cultivation Outdoors Declared Public Nuisance.    
 

It is unlawful and a public nuisance for any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having 
possession of any legal parcel or premises within any zoning district in the city to cause or allow 
such parcel or premises to be used for the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana.  Violations 
of this ordinance may be enforced by any applicable laws or ordinances, including but not limited 
to injunctions, or administrative penalties under the Sonoma Municipal Code. 
 
Section 4. Severability. 
 

If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and 
effect.  To this end, provisions of this ordinance are severable. The City Council of the City of 
Sonoma hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held unconstitutional, 
invalid, or unenforceable. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date and Duration. 
 

This ordinance shall become effective immediately if adopted by at least four-fifths vote 
of the City Council, and shall remain in effect until the date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) 
days following the last day that Ordinance No. 09-2016 is in effect.  Ordinance No. 09-2016’s 
prohibition of uses and other terms and provisions set forth in sections 2 through 4 thereof shall be 
extended to the date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days following the last day that 
Ordinance No. 09-2016 is in effect.   

 
Section 6.      Posting.  The City Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be published and/or posted 
within fifteen days after its adoption. 
 

******** 
 

91



7 
Sonoma	Non-Medical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Outdoor	Cultivation	Ord.		11-14-16	
	

EXHIBIT	A	
	

This ordinance was adopted on the 21st day of November, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
NOES:      City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Lauri Gallian, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Walter, City Attorney   Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 
 

92



	

1 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF SONOMA EXTENDING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM 

(EXCEPT UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES) ON THE INDOOR CULTIVATION 
OF NONMEDICAL MARIJUANA 

 
 

WHEREAS, in 1996 the voters of California approved Proposition 215, codified as 
California Health and Safety Code Section 11362.5 and entitled “The Compassionate Use Act of 
1996;” and   
 

WHEREAS, the intent of Proposition 215 was to enable persons who are in need of medical 
marijuana for specified medical purposes to obtain medical marijuana, and use it under limited, 
specified circumstances without fear of criminal prosecution under State law; and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2003, the State Legislature enacted SB 420, codified as California Health 
and Safety Code Section 11362.7 et seq. and entitled the “Medical Marijuana Program Act” 
(“MMPA”) to clarify the scope of The Compassionate Use Act of 1996; and 
 

WHEREAS, effective January 1, 2016, the Medical Marijuana Regulation and Safety Act 
(“MMRSA”) became effective under which an extensive state regulatory scheme was established 
providing for the monitoring, inspecting and licensing of commercial medical marijuana 
businesses.  The MMRSA created a dual-licensing system under which medical marijuana 
businesses have to obtain both state and local licenses in order to conduct such businesses.  
However, the MMRSA explicitly acknowledged that cities and counties retain the right to not only 
regulate such activities, but to ban them entirely.  The MMRSA also acknowledged that permissive 
zoning schemes can implicitly prohibit such activities, including the indoor and outdoor cultivation 
of medical marijuana when those zoning regulations do not expressly list such activities as 
permitted or conditionally permitted uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 21, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 47-2015 

which confirmed that the City’s Development Code prohibited and prohibits the delivery of 
medical marijuana, other commercial medical marijuana activities and the cultivation of medical 
marijuana; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on November 8, 2016, the voters adopted the Control, Regulate and Tax Adult 
Use of Marijuana Act (“Proposition 64”). Proposition 64 legalizes the recreational use of 
marijuana in California for individuals 21 years of age and older; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Proposition 64 also authorizes the personal cultivation of up to six marijuana 
plants within a private residence or upon the “grounds” of that private residence for nonmedical 
purposes; and 
 

93



	

2 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Proposition 64, the City can enact reasonable regulations for the 
cultivation of nonmedical marijuana that occurs inside a residence or accessory structure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in anticipation of Proposition 64 passing, the City Council, by a 4/5ths vote, 
on November 7, 2016, adopted an urgency ordinance (Ordnance No. 10-2016) imposing a 
temporary moratorium on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana for personal use (except 
under specified conditions), which said ordinance was to become effective only if Proposition 64 
passed.  Proposition 64 passed, thus triggering the efficacy of said Ordinance No. 10-2016; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article XI, Section 7 of the California Constitution provides that a city may 
make and enforce within its limits all local police, sanitary and other ordinances and regulations 
not in conflict with general laws; and 
 
 WHEREAS, given Proposition 64’s passage, it is more likely than not that the number of 
individuals who will desire to and will cultivate nonmedical marijuana for personal use will be 
significant.  It is further more likely than not that substantial numbers of persons interested in 
cultivating nonmedical marijuana will commence doing so immediately after or soon after 
Proposition 64 passes, unless and until local regulations and/or prohibitions (on outdoor 
cultivation) are enacted which control such activities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the cultivation of medical and nonmedical marijuana in other cities has 
resulted in (a) calls for service to their police departments, including calls for robberies and thefts, 
and (b) the increase in criminal activity. Similar incidents involving complaints resulting in 
criminal investigations and the discovery of illegal marijuana cultivations have occurred in the 
City of Sonoma. It is reasonable to assume that Proposition 64’s passage, without reasonable 
controls imposed by the City of Sonoma, will generate similar, if not greater, numbers of such 
incidents pertaining to the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana in the City of Sonoma.  In 
the event that the restrictions imposed by Ordinance No. 10-2016 are not extended, there is a 
current and immediate threat to the public health, safety and welfare of substantial numbers of 
persons cultivating nonmedical marijuana indoors and creating the complaints and enforcement 
problems already being experienced in other communities and in the City of Sonoma and exposing 
citizens to robberies, potential violence, vandalism of property and theft of marijuana plants; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that allowing the use of property within the City for 
the indoor cultivation of marijuana for nonmedical purposes without the City having any 
authority to establish conditions, regulations, restrictions, and limitations upon such activities 
presents a current and immediate threat to the public health, safety, or welfare, including but not 
limited to the harmful effects associated with such activities, such as: the spread of malodorous 
smells; indoor electrical fire hazards; inadequate ventilation; health hazards from mold and water 
damage; criminal activity such as robberies, burglaries, and trespassing, which have been 
experienced by other communities and/or are significant risks resulting from such activities; and 
increased nuisance conditions in neighborhoods, among others; and 

 WHEREAS, based upon the experience of the State of Colorado and other states in which 
nonmedical marijuana has been legalized, it is likely that Proposition 64 will have significant 

94



	

3 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

impacts on the City’s police department, the medical resources of the State and the regulatory 
function of local agencies, including the City of Sonoma; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the short period between Proposition 64’s qualification for the November 8, 
2016, ballot and the November 8, 2016, election and Proposition 64’s creation of a complex,  state-
wide licensing system for the commercial production, delivery, marketing, testing and selling of 
nonmedical marijuana have impeded and prevented the City from adequately studying its impacts 
and the most appropriate manner in which to comprehensively address the issues implicated by 
the Proposition and its implementation.  The City needs time to further study the Proposition and 
whether and to what extent the City’s General Plan, Development Code and other regulations will 
need to be or should be modified to accommodate and/or address the impacts of Proposition 64 on 
the City and its citizens.  Were the City Council to permit the unregulated, indoor cultivation of 
nonmedical marijuana while it studied the means and methods to address such activities, those 
persons who were engaged in such indoor cultivation activities may garner rights to continue such 
activities as grandfathered uses, unaffected by later-enacted legislation by the City Council.  Such 
an outcome presents an immediate and current threat to the ability of the City Council to properly 
plan and regulate such activities and will undermine the purpose of any such plan and regulation 
as to those persons who were able to commence the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana 
before such plans and/or regulations are put into place; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to determine the most appropriate and publicly beneficial manner in 
which to address the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana issues implicated by Proposition 
64 and the effect of  such indoor cultivation activities should the City  determine to regulate such 
uses within the City’s corporate boundaries, and in order to protect residents and businesses from 
the potential harmful effects of some indoor nonmedical marijuana cultivators,   the City needs 
time to study whether to permanently regulate such uses and, if so, the City needs time to examine 
the regulations relating thereto and to permit the public adequate time to review and comment 
upon the issue in accordance with state law in tandem with the City’s consideration of  any such 
regulations; and  
 

WHEREAS, it would be destructive of and render ineffective any proposed policies, 
restrictions, ordinances and regulations if, during the period they are being studied and considered 
by the City, parties seeking to avoid their operation and effect establish such uses, which said 
operations and activities will defeat, in whole or in part, the objectives of such policies, restrictions, 
ordinances and regulations; and  
 

WHEREAS, absent the adoption of this interim urgency ordinance extending Ordinance 
No. 10-2016, it is likely that the establishment and operation of indoor nonmedical marijuana 
cultivations within the City, without appropriate controls in place to regulate same and their 
impacts on the community, will result in harmful effects to the businesses, property owners and 
residents of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, because of the facts set forth above, there exists a current and immediate threat 
that persons shall commence indoor nonmedical cultivation operations, that such poses a current 
and immediate threat to the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City and  having such 

95



	

4 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

uses  commence operations and operate in the City before the City has had an opportunity to 
consider, study and/or adopt regulations governing the said indoor cultivations will render such 
regulations ineffective and destroy the purpose of engaging in such an analysis and process in the 
first place, thus constituting  a current and immediate threat to the health, safety and welfare of the 
citizens of the City; and   

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 10-2016 shall expire at midnight December 22, 2016, unless 

extended by subsequent ordinance adopted pursuant to Cal. Gov’t Code section 65858; and  
 
WHEREAS, at its meeting on December 12, 2016, the City Council was presented the 

report described in said section 65858(d) (“Report”) specifying the measures taken to alleviate the 
conditions which led to the adoption of Ordinance No. 10-2016.  In said Report it is stated that the 
said conditions giving rise to the necessity of adopting Ordinance No. 10-2016 have not been 
alleviated and that more time is necessary in order to study and address the issues involved in 
deciding whether to continue prohibiting the outdoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana or 
regulate such, and, if so, how to regulate those cultivation activities.  Said Report is hereby 
approved and the City Manager is authorized and directed to issue the Report; and  
 
 WHEREAS, based on the findings set forth above, it is the intent of the City Council to 
extend Ordinance No. 10-2016’s   moratorium on the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana 
throughout the City to a date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days following the last day 
that Ordinance No.10-2016 is in effect; and   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 15001 of the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) Guidelines, this ordinance is exempt from CEQA based on the following findings: 
 

(1) This ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 15378 of the State 
CEQA Guidelines, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change in the environment, 
directly or ultimately.   
 

(2) This ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA under Section 15308 of the 
CEQA Guidelines as a regulatory action taken by the City pursuant to its police power and in 
accordance with Government Code Section 65858 to assure maintenance and protection of the 
environment pending the consideration, evaluation and possible adoption of contemplated local 
legislation, regulation and policies. 
 

(3) This ordinance is not subject to CEQA under the general rule that CEQA applies 
only to projects which have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment.  For 
the reasons set forth in subparagraphs (1) and (2), above, and pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15061, it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that this ordinance will have 
a significant effect on the environment: 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Sonoma does ordain as follows: 
 

96



	

5 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

Section 1. Recitals Made Findings.  The above recitals are hereby declared to be true and 
correct and represent the findings of the City Council of the City of Sonoma, made in the exercise 
of its independent judgment.  Said findings are incorporated by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Urgency Moratorium Imposed. 

 
A. Cultivation not in compliance with this ordinance. It is declared to be unlawful and 

a public nuisance for any person owning, leasing, occupying or having charge or possession of any 
parcel or premises within any zoning district in the city to cultivate nonmedical marijuana except 
as provided for in this ordinance. No person other than an individual 21 years of age or older may 
engage in the cultivation of nonmedical marijuana. 

 
B. Indoor cultivation. Indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana is prohibited in all 

zoning districts of the city, except when such cultivation occurs on a parcel with an approved 
private residence. All indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana must be in compliance with this 
ordinance. 

 
C. Indoor cultivation in private residence. The indoor cultivation of nonmedical 

marijuana on a parcel with an approved private residence shall only be conducted within a fully 
enclosed and secure structure or within a residence. Such cultivation shall be in conformance with 
the following minimum standards: 

 
1. The primary use of the property shall be for a residence. Nonmedical marijuana 

cultivation is prohibited as a home occupation. 
 
2. All areas used for cultivation of nonmedical marijuana shall comply with Title 14 

(Buildings and Construction) of the Sonoma Municipal Code, as well as applicable law. 
 
3. Indoor grow lights shall not exceed 1,000 watts per luminaire, and shall comply 

with the applicable provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted and amended 
by Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
4. The use of gas products (CO2, butane, propane, natural gas, etc.) or generators for 

cultivation of nonmedical marijuana is prohibited. 
 
5. Any fully enclosed and secure structure or residence used for the cultivation of 

nonmedical marijuana must have a ventilation and filtration system installed that shall prevent 
marijuana plant odors from exiting the interior of the structure and that complies with the 
applicable provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted and amended by 
Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
6. A fully enclosed and secure structure used for the cultivation of nonmedical 

marijuana shall be located in the rear yard area of the parcel, and must maintain a minimum ten-
foot setback from any property line. The yard where the fully enclosed and secure structure is 

97



	

6 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

maintained must be enclosed by a solid fence at least six feet in height. This provision shall not 
apply to cultivation occurring in a garage. 

  
7. Adequate mechanical locking or electronic security systems must be installed as 

part of the fully enclosed and secure structure or the residence prior to the commencement of 
cultivation. 

 
8. Nonmedical marijuana cultivation shall be limited to six marijuana plants per 

private residence, regardless of whether the marijuana is cultivated inside the residence or in a 
fully enclosed and secure structure. The limit of six plants per private residence shall apply 
regardless of how many individuals reside at the private residence. 

 
9. The residential structure shall remain at all times a residence, with legal and 

functioning cooking, sleeping and sanitation facilities with proper ingress and egress. These rooms 
shall not be used for nonmedical marijuana cultivation where such cultivation will prevent their 
primary use for cooking of meals, sleeping and bathing. 

 
10. Cultivation of nonmedical marijuana shall only take place on impervious surfaces. 
 
11. From a public right-of-way, there shall be no exterior evidence of nonmedical 

marijuana cultivation occurring on the parcel. 
 
12. Nonmedical marijuana cultivation area, whether in a fully enclosed and secure 

structure or inside a residence, shall not be accessible to persons under 21 years of age. 
 
13. Written consent of the property owner to cultivate nonmedical marijuana within the 

residence or in a fully enclosed and secure structure shall be obtained and shall be kept on the 
premises, and available for inspection by the chief of police or his/her designee. 

 
14. A portable fire extinguisher, that complies with the regulations and standards 

adopted by the state fire marshal and applicable law, shall be kept in the fully enclosed and secure 
structure used for cultivation of nonmedical marijuana. If cultivation occurs in a residence, the 
portable fire extinguisher shall be kept in the same room as where the cultivation occurs. 
 

D.  Definitions. 
 
  1. "Fully enclosed and secure structure" means a space within a building that 
complies with the applicable provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted and 
amended by Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code, and has a 
complete roof enclosure supported by connecting walls extending from the ground to the roof, a 
foundation, slab or equivalent base to which the floor is secured by bolts or similar attachments, 
is secure against unauthorized entry, and is accessible only through one or more lockable doors. 
Walls and roof must be constructed of solid materials that cannot be easily broken through, and 
must be constructed with non-transparent material.  Plastic sheeting, canvas, vinyl, or similar 
products or materials, regardless of gauge, are not considered solid materials. A fully enclosed and 

98



	

7 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

secure structure must be an accessory structure to a private residence located upon the parcel on 
which that private residence is situated. 
  

 2. "Indoors" means inside a fully enclosed and secure structure or within a 
private residence. 

 
3.  “Luminaire” means a complete lighting unit consisting of lamp(s) and the 

parts that distribute the light, position and protect the lamp(s), and connect the lamp(s) to the power 
supply. 
 
  4. "Nonmedical marijuana" means marijuana that is intended to be used for 
nonmedical purposes pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 11362.1 et seq., as those sections 
may be amended from time to time. 
 

5. "Nonmedical marijuana cultivation" or the “cultivation of nonmedical  
marijuana” means the planting, growing, harvesting, drying, curing, grading, trimming or 
processing of marijuana plants or any part thereof pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
11362.1 et seq., as those sections may be amended from time to time. 
 

6. “Marijuana” means all parts of the plant cannabis sativa L, whether growing  
or not; the seeds thereof; the resin extracted from any part of the plant; cannabis; and every 
compound, manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds or resin.  
 

7. “Outdoors” means any location within the City that is not within a fully  
enclosed and secure structure or a private residence. 
 

8.     "Private residence" or “residence” means a house, an apartment unit, a 
mobile home or other similar dwelling. 

 
9. "Solid fence" means a fence constructed of substantial material, such as 

wood or metal, that prevents viewing the contents from one side to the other side of the 
fence. 

 
 D. Statutory Findings and Purpose. 
 
 This ordinance is declared to be an interim ordinance as defined under California 
Government Code Section 65858.  This ordinance is deemed necessary based on the findings of 
the City Council of the City of Sonoma as set forth in the recitals, incorporated by Section 1 of 
this ordinance. 
 
Section 3. Except as Provided in this Ordinance, Establishment, Maintenance or 

Operation of Nonmedical Marijuana Cultivation Indoors Declared Public 
Nuisance.    

 

99



	

8 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

It is unlawful and a public nuisance for any person owning, leasing, occupying, or having 
possession of any parcel or premises within any zoning district in the city to cause or allow such 
parcel or premises to be used for the indoor cultivation of nonmedical marijuana except as provided 
in this ordinance.  Violations of this ordinance may be enforced by any applicable laws or 
ordinances, including but not limited to injunctions, or administrative penalties under the Sonoma 
Municipal Code. 
 
Section 4. Severability. 
 

If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance 
is held invalid, the remainder of the ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and 
effect.  To this end, provisions of this ordinance are severable. The City Council of the City of 
Sonoma hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, 
subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held unconstitutional, 
invalid, or unenforceable. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date and Duration. 
 

This ordinance shall become effective immediately if adopted by at least four-fifths vote 
of the City Council, and shall remain in effect until the date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) 
days following the last day that Ordinance No. 10-2016 is in effect.  Ordinance No. 10-2016’s 
prohibition of uses and other terms and provisions set forth in sections 2 through 4 thereof shall be 
extended to the date that is ten (10) months and fifteen (15) days following the last day that 
Ordinance No. 10-2016 is in effect.   

 
Section 6.      Posting.  The City Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be published and/or posted 
within fifteen days after its adoption. 
 

******** 
 
This ordinance was adopted on the 21st day of November, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
NOES:      City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
ABSENT:    City Council Members: ______________________________ 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Laurie Gallian, Mayor 
 
 

100



	

9 
Sonoma	Nonmedical	Marijuana	Extension	Urgency	Indoor	Cultivation	Ord.	11-15-16	
	

EXHIBIT	B	

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Walter, City Attorney   Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 
 

101



1 
 

November 22, 2016 

  

 
 

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) 

 

Adult Use of Marijuana Act
1
 

 

Proposition 64 
 

Question#1:  When does the AUMA take effect? 

 

Answer:   The AUMA took effect November 9, 2016, the day after the election. But note, 

the AUMA requires a state license to engage in commercial nonmedical marijuana 

activity.  Licensing authorities are required to begin issuing licenses by January 1, 2018 

and the League anticipates that the issuance of licenses will not occur much in advance of 

January 1, 2018. Thus, the AUMA provisions legalizing commercial nonmedical 

marijuana activity will not become operational until the state begins issuing licenses 

(likely in late-2017). The AUMA provisions legalizing personal use and cultivation of 

nonmedical marijuana took effect November 9, 2016. 

 

Question #2:  Can private individuals cultivate nonmedical marijuana at home beginning 

November 9, 2016? 

 

Answer: Yes, within a private residence by a person 21 years and older for personal use.  

The AUMA provides that local governments can reasonably regulate, but cannot ban the 

personal indoor cultivation of up to six nonmedical marijuana plants per private 

residence.  This includes cultivation in a greenhouse that is on the property of the 

residence but not physically part of the home, as long as it is fully enclosed, secure, and 

not visible from a public space.  Because this activity is not subject to state licensing 

requirements, individuals may engage in personal indoor cultivation beginning November 

9, 2016, unless a city enacts an ordinance imposing a reasonable regulatory scheme that 

would preclude them from doing so before complying with the city’s regulatory 

requirements.   

 

Local governments may regulate or ban all personal outdoor cultivation.  However, the 

AUMA includes language purporting to repeal any ordinance that bans personal outdoor 

                                                           
1
 Please consult your City Attorney before taking action to implement the AUMA. The answers to these FAQs may 

be different in your city based upon your municipal code, regulations, and policies. The answers do not constitute 

legal advice from the League of California Cities®. 

102



2 
 

cultivation upon the California Attorney General’s determination that nonmedical use of 

marijuana is lawful under federal law. 

 

Question #3: Is there a limitation on the number of marijuana plants that can be cultivated 

within a single residence? 

Answer: Yes.  Not more than six living plants may be planted, cultivated, harvested, 

dried, or processed within a single private residence, or upon the grounds of that private 

residence, at one time.   A “residence” is defined as a house, an apartment unit, a mobile 

home, or other similar dwelling.  No matter how many persons over 21 years of age are 

living in a “residence,” only 6 living plants may be cultivated at one time.  (Health & 

Safety § 11362.2(b)(3).) 

Question #4: Can a landlord ban the cultivation/smoking of marijuana on his or her property? 

 

Answer: Yes.  An individual or private entity may prohibit or restrict personal 

possession, smoking, and cultivation of marijuana on the individual’s or entity’s privately 

owned property.  A state or local government agency also may prohibit or restrict such 

activities on property owned, leased, or occupied by the state or local government. 

(Health & Safety §§ 11362.45(g) and (h).) 

 

Question # 5: Can a city ban personal indoor cultivation in all leased or multi-unit residences 

within the city? 

  

Answer: No. A city cannot prohibit personal indoor cultivation of marijuana in all leased 

or multi-unit residences within the city.  However, because cities may reasonably regulate 

personal indoor cultivation, a city might be able to condition permit approval for personal 

indoor cultivation in a leased residence on the applicant receiving permission from his or 

her landlord. 

 

Question # 6: Does a city’s ban on commercial cultivation, personal outdoor cultivation, or retail 

sales of marijuana or marijuana products make it ineligible for state grant monies for law 

enforcement, fire protection, or other local programs addressing public health and safety 

associated with the implementation of Prop 64? 

 

Answer: Yes.  If a city bans commercial cultivation, or personal outdoor cultivation, or 

retail sales of marijuana or marijuana products, it is ineligible to receive state grant 

monies funded through the new state excise taxes that take effect on January 1, 2018.  

(Revenue and Taxation Code § 34019(e)(3)(D).) 

 

Question #7:  What does the AUMA say about possession, transporting, purchasing or giving 

away of non-medical marijuana? 

 

Answer:   A person 21 years of age or older may possess, process, transport, purchase or 

give away to persons 21 years of age or older not more than 28.5 grams of marijuana in 

the non-concentrated form and not more than 8 grams of marijuana in a concentrated 

103



3 
 

form including marijuana products.  If the AUMA passes, these activities will be lawful 

under state law and cannot be prohibited under local law. 

 

Question #8: Do cities that ban or regulate medical marijuana businesses need to update their 

ordinances to include nonmedical marijuana? 

  

Answer: Yes.  The AUMA prohibits state licensing authorities from issuing a license to a 

commercial nonmedical marijuana business if operation of the business violates a local 

ordinance of the jurisdiction in which the business will operate.  This means that a city 

wishing to adopt business or land use regulations prohibiting or regulating commercial 

nonmedical marijuana businesses must adopt an ordinance prior to the date the state 

begins issuing licenses, which the League anticipates will be in late 2017.
2
 

 

Question #9:  Can cities be confident that a permissive zoning code, by itself, provides sufficient 

protection against nonmedical marijuana businesses setting up shop without local approval? 

 

Answer:  No.  It is unlikely that cities will succeed in arguing that nonmedical marijuana 

land uses are prohibited by permissive zoning codes under the AUMA, because the 

AUMA does not contain the same protective language as the MMRSA with respect to 

permissive zoning.  Therefore, cities that wish to ban all or some nonmedical marijuana 

activities should adopt express prohibitions, even if they operate under a permissive 

zoning code. 

 

Question #10: Are cities at risk of losing the opportunity to impose bans on personal outdoor 

cultivation if they don’t act until after the November election? 

 

Answer: No.  A city may adopt an ordinance banning or regulating personal outdoor 

cultivation at any time.  

 

Question #11: Are cities at risk of losing the opportunity to impose bans on nonmedical 

marijuana businesses, if they don’t act until after the November election? 

 

Answer: No.  However, if a city does not adopt an ordinance expressly banning or 

regulating nonmedical marijuana businesses before the state begins issuing state licenses 

nonmedical businesses, a state-licensed nonmedical marijuana business will be able to 

operate within its jurisdiction without local permission or permitting. This is due to a 

provision in the AUMA that provides that state licenses cannot be issued where the 

activity would violate a local ordinance. If a jurisdiction has no ordinance regulating 

nonmedical marijuana businesses, then the local regulatory scheme is silent on that type 

of activity, and the state can unilaterally issue a license under terms fully compliant with 

the AUMA.  Cities may adopt an ordinance expressly banning or regulating such 

operations after the state begins to issue licenses, but it will be difficult to terminate the 

state licensee’s operations until the state license is up for renewal. Therefore, the best 

practice is to adopt an ordinance before the state begins issuing state licenses. 

 

                                                           
2
 Please see Question #8 regarding the use of public roads for transportation and delivery. 

104



4 
 

Question #12: Can cities ban deliveries under the AUMA? 

 

Answer: Yes. Cities can ban deliveries within their territorial limits. However, cities 

cannot prevent the use of public roads for the delivery of marijuana. For example, if a 

licensed delivery company located in City A must travel on public roads through City B 

to make an authorized delivery in City C, City B cannot prohibit the licensed delivery 

company from travelling on public roads in City B to get to City C.  In addition, cities 

may not prevent the use of public roads within its jurisdiction to transport nonmedical 

marijuana. 

 

Question #13:  What is the best way for cities to notify the state licensing agencies of their local 

ordinances that regulate and/or prohibit commercial non-medical marijuana activities within their 

jurisdictions? 

 

Answer: Unless the state licensing agencies indicate otherwise, cities should mail copies 

of their local ordinances that regulate or prohibit commercial nonmedical marijuana 

activities within their jurisdictions to the Department of Consumer Affairs, the 

Department of Food and Agriculture, and the Department of Public Health. Cities should 

regularly check each Department’s website to ensure that this practice complies with any 

regulations the Departments may pass regarding notice of local ordinances. In addition, 

Cities should ensure that any updates or amendments to local ordinances that regulate or 

prohibit commercial nonmedical marijuana activities are promptly submitted to each 

Department. 

105



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

106



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
6C 
 
12/12/2016 

 

Department 

Finance 

Staff Contact  

DeAnna Hilbrants, Finance Director 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, consideration and possible action to update City Fee Schedule based on FY 2016-2017 
Operating Budget 

Summary 

The City of Sonoma has an established a City Fee Schedule for those services that benefit only the 
specific users of that service and do not benefit the general public as a whole.  Fees are generated 
from a variety of services including building and planning permits, special event fees, appeal fees, 
public safety fees and water service fees (late fees & disconnect fees).  Revenue from fees offsets 
costs of services that would otherwise be paid using general fund revenue.   

The City Council has the authority to establish these fees and charges as defined by the State 
Constitution and in accordance with Government Code Section 39001 with limitations set by 
Proposition 218.  This regulatory authority provides cities the means to “protect overall community 
interests, while charging only the individual who is benefiting from the service.” Annually, the Council 
reviews staff’s recommended user fee schedule to determine if fees are calculated in line with the 
cost of providing the service.  If approved, fees would become effective in 60 days or February 13, 
2017.     

Recommended Council Action 

Conduct Public Hearing; adopt resolution approving the updated Fee Schedule for 2016 - 2017. 

Alternative Actions 

Request additional information; direct staff to make changes to fee schedule and return for 
subsequent adoption. 

Financial Impact 

Fees and charges comprise approximately 2.75% of General Fund Revenue.  Total revenue derived 
from fees, fines and licenses (excluding Business Licenses which are considered a tax) is projected 
to be $620,641 exclusive of the proposed fee increases.   No additional revenue as a result of the 
updated fee schedule was included in the FY 2016-2017 Budget. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

    Supplemental Report 
    Proposed Fee Schedule  
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

Fiscal Management:  Maintain high level fiscal accountability that ensures short and long-term 
sustainability of City’s financial position; provide for effective and efficient management of local 
taxpayers’ dollars; apply prudent internal policies and practices to assure the most cost-effective 
methods are utilized; be wise with our resources. 

 

107



SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Discussion, consideration and possible action to update City  

Fee Schedule based on FY 2016-2017 Operating Budget  
 

For the City Council Meeting of December 12, 2016 
             

The City of Sonoma has an established a City Fee Schedule for those services that 
benefit only the specific users of that service and do not benefit the general public as a 
whole.  Fees are generated from a variety of services including building and planning 
permits, special event fees, appeal fees, public safety fees and utility fees (late fees & 
disconnect fees).  Revenue from fees offsets the costs of services that would otherwise 
be subsidized by the General Fund.   

The City Council has the authority to establish these fees and charges as defined by the 
State Constitution and in accordance with Government Code Section 39001 with 
limitations set by Proposition 218.  This regulatory authority provides cities the means to 
“protect overall community interests, while charging only the individual who is benefiting 
from the service.” Annually, the Council reviews staff’s recommended user fee schedule 
to determine if fees are calculated in line with the cost of providing the service. With 
exception to fees established or limited by State law, all other fees are determined 
through a cost accounting analysis of actual costs the City incurs.  Department 
Managers review staff hours necessary to provide the service factored by the allowable 
overhead costs.  The direct-charge of fees in this manner, frees up general- purpose tax 
funds to be used for services, maintenance and facility costs which benefit the entire 
community. Absent fees, the general fund would subsidize these services and would 
likely need to reduce services that are not covered by fee recovery.  For 2015 – 2016; 
$472,250 was budgeted as revenue from fees.  For 2016 – 2017; $620,641 is budgeted 
to be recovered from fees.  The change in fee recovery primarily results from increases 
in building and zoning fees resulting from increased construction and development 
activity.  Certain fees, such as Building-related fees and solar installation fees, are set by 
State Code and are not based on the cost of providing the service.  In many instances, 
these codes are not cost-covering but the City is unable to recover costs over the 
allowable levels.  

Public Safety Services are provided to the City under contract.  Fees charged by the 
County of Sonoma [Police-related fees] and Valley of the Moon Fire District [Fire-related 
fees] on behalf of services provided to City residents are incorporated by reference.  
Actual fee schedules are adopted separately by the respective agencies.   

While salary costs have increased slightly, many of the fees in the 2017 fee schedule will 
remain flat or will decrease.  This is primarly a result of reductions in overhead as staff 
continues to perform administrative activities more efficiently.  Where fees are 
increasing, the increase primarily results from review and modification of staff time 
associated with performing activities related to the service being performed.   

An overall summary of the changes and highlights to the recommended fee schedule are 
as follows: 

 Audio Tape Duplication Fee (CA-05) has been modified to Media Duplication.  
Rather than a single charge for a cassette, a hourly rate will be charged and 
alternate media options (such as CD or USB drive) will be available.   

108



 After nearly one year with a contracted special events manager, staff makes the 
following recommendations related to special events: 

o Changes in deposit for use of the plaza (SE-18 * SE-24).  Staff recommends that 
the deposit matches the rental rate for the section of the plaza being rented.  

o Removal of the “Wedding Permit” (SE-09) and to include weddings in the 
appropriate standard special event fee (“Large Scale Special Event” [SE-03] or 
“Small Scale Special Event” [SE-04]).  

o Removal of “Plaza Maintenance Fees” (SE-17) and Depot Park Maintenance 
Fees (SE-23).  Instead, staff recommends that events are charged the hourly 
rate based on actual staff time used for activities related to the event.  

o Addition of an “Additional Hours – Special Events Manager” Fee (SE-10).  This 
will recover costs of additional hours required by the special events manager for 
some events.   

o Pilot program to offer reservations of tables in the Plaza or at Depot Park for 
family / small group gatherings:  “Family / Small Group Gathering” (SE-25).  The 
proposal is based on a small amount of administrative time for the Special 
Events Manager and a reduced rental rate.  The following conditions are 
recommended for this program:   

 This is a pilot program only and may be discontinued by the city staff at 
anytime.   

 Use of this event definition is subject to the sole discretion of the City and 
generally includes:   

 A few tables only (versus a full quadrant / section) 

 Signage on the table(s),  

 Groups of 30 or fewer, 

 Gathering cannot generate revenues  

 Gathering cannot use vendors 

 Gathering must last less than four (4) hours) 

 Event must require less than ½ hour of staff time (special events 
manager)   

 No staff enforcement of reservation will be provided.   

 Modifications to the Building Investigation Fee to assign costs based on timeline for 
compliance by the property owner.  The Minimum Investigation Fee (BL-13) is based 
on compliance within 30 days and the Standard Investigation Fee (BL-14) is based 
on compliance exceeding 30 days.  This will better align costs between those 
property owners that comply promptly and those that require additional staff time and 
follow up.   

 Modifications to the Animal Impound Fee to assign costs differently if an animal is 
brough into the Police Department – such as by the public (PD-09) or if an animal is 
retrieved in the field by a Community Service Officer or Deputy (PD-11) 

 For equipment and materials, staff uses the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rates.  These fees, as updated, are 

109



incorporated by reference.  Where applicable, fees will be charged based on the 
Caltrans Rental Rate Book in effect at the time of the activity.  

 Addition of an Electric Vehicle Charging Station Fee (PW-17).  The intent of this fee 
is to discourage use of the charging station as a long term parking space making it 
unavailable for use by others.  In addition, this fee will recover costs especially 
related to ongoing maintenance and replacment of the charging stations.   

 Staff recommends increasing the deposit for the use of City Hydrant Meters and 
incorporating that deposit into the City Fee Schedule (UT-16).   

Changes in other fees reflect:   

 Verification or modification of staff hours incurred to perform tasks associated 
with the fee 

 Modification of overhead costs related to benefits, administrative overhead, and 
capital and facility costs. 

Of the 155 fees included on the schedule: 

 29 fees are increaseing an average of 4% (highest increase 14%) 

 56 fees are decreasing an average of 8% (highest decrease 50%) 

 51 fees are remaining the same 

 4 fees are new 

 6 fees have been deleted or moved to avoid duplication 

 9 fees have been modified in structure 

If approved by the Council, this fee schedule is proposed to go into effect on February 
13, 2017.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

110



CITY OF SONOMA 
 

RESOLUTION # _____- 2016 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA AMENDING THE PREVIOUSLY 
ADOPTED SCHEDULE OF USER FEES, LICENSES AND PERMIT CHARGES EFFECTIVE 

FEBRUARY 13, 2017 
 
WHEREAS, California Constitution, Article XI, Section 7 gives cities police power to engage in regulatory 
activities for which they may charge a fee for reimbursement of costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, California Constitution, Article XIIIB, Section 8 and Government Code Section 39001 provide 
general authority for charging fees for specific services; and 
 
WHEREAS, various other sections of the California Constitution and Government Code provide authority 
for the collection of specific fees and charges; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 16, 2015, the City Council adopted Resolution Number 44-2015 adopting a 
schedule of user fees, licenses and permit charges with an effective date of January 1, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2016 the City Council of the City of Sonoma held a duly noticed Public 
Hearing to allow public input and review amendments to the adopted fees and charges. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Sonoma hereby: 
 

1. Establishes amendments to certain fees and charges, which appear as an attachment to this 
resolution including fee calculation sheets incorporated by reference. 

 
2. Finds and determines that the fees and charges set forth in attachments hereto do not exceed the 

reasonable costs of providing the services for which the fee is charged. 
 

3. The fees set forth in the attachments hereto shall become effective on February 13, 2017. 
 

4. Finds and determines that pursuant to the requirements of California Government Code Section 
66015(c), appropriate ordinances, permit fees, and processes are in place to streamline the 
submittal and approval of permits for solar energy systems in substantial conformance with the 
practices and policies contained in the California Solar Permitting Guidebook.  Calculations 
related to the administrative cost of issuing a solar rooftop permit are incorporated herein by 
reference and any fee charged in excess of the fees prescribed in California Government Code 
Sections 66015(a)(1) or 66015(b)(1) result in the continuation of a quick and streamlined approval 
process by covering the City’s actual administrative cost of providing the service. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED, by the City Council of the City of Sonoma, County of Sonoma, State of 
California on December 12, 2016 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   

 
 
 
_____________________________________  

                                                         , Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________________             
      Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

111



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

 ADMINISTRATION 

CA-00  Copy fee - ALL DEPARTMENTS  -  Unless specific document copy fee is stated.  This applies to 

all printed material i.e. Development Code, General Plan, Minutes, Staff Reports, Agendas and 

Bound Booklets.  Does not apply to Municipal Code.   

 1-10 copies - No Charge

Over 10 copies = $.25 per page 

 CA-01  Copy Fees: Campaign Disclosure, Statement of Economic Interests (per St. Law) $0.10 

CA-02  Maps:  Land Use, Water System, Plaza, Storm Drain, etc. if printed in house  $10.00 if in-house

Actual Cost if outsourced plus Standard 

Administrative Overhead (CA-09) if Outsourced 

 CA-03  Returned Checks [per returned check]  $16.00 + bank fees charged to the City 

 CA-04  Billing Fee [per invoice sent] $                                                                               72.00 

 CA-05 Media Duplication [hourly rate] $                                                                               77.00 

 CA-06  Municipal Code Supplement Service [per supplement]  $                                          38.00

Plus actual cost & postage 

 CA-07  Agenda Packet Subscription, Annual [per year] $                                                                             582.00 

 CA-08  Agendas Only Subscription, Annual [per year] $                                                                             233.00 

 CA-09  Standard Administrative Overhead  15.00%

 CA-10  Appeal (Administrative) [per appeal] $                                                                             211.00 

 CA-11   Mobile home Park Rental Increase Application [per application] $                                                                             163.00 

 CA-12  Tobacco Retailers License [per license] 

 ## FOR LICENSES ISSUED AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) $                                                                             223.00 

112



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

SPECIAL EVENTS
In addition to the fees below, the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rates, as updated, are 
incorporated by reference.  Where applicable, fees will be charged based 
on the Caltrans Rental Rate Book in effect at the time of the activity. 

 SE-01  Alcohol Permit [per permit] $                                                                             258.00 

 SE-03  Large Scale Special Event Permit Application Processing Fee  [per permit / event] $                                                                          1,034.00 

SE-04 Small Scale Special Event Permit Application Processing Fee [per permit / event] $                                                                             237.00 

SE-05 Street Use Permit [per permit] $                                                                             608.00 

SE-06 Film Permit, High Impact Video Production [per permit] $                                                                             591.00 

SE-06 Film Permit, Low Impact Video Production [per permit] $                                                                             283.00 

DELETED 2016 

MOVED

 SE-07 Barricading (Providing barricades for events)  FEE DELETED (MOVED TO PW-16) 

DELETED 2016 

MOVED

 SE-08 Reservation of Public (On Street) Parking Spaces  FEE DELETED (MOVED TO PW-01) 

 DELETED 2017 

MOVED 

FEE DELETED 

 SE-09  Wedding Permit (Ceremony only) [per permit]   (INCLUDED IN SE-03 OR SE-04) 

 NEW 

 SE-10  Additional Hours - Special Events Manager $                                                                               75.00 

SPECIAL EVENTS, Rental, Maintenance Fees & Security Deposits

 SE-12  Plaza North East, North West, & South West Quadrants, per day $                                                                             300.00 

 SE-13  Plaza South East Quadrant, per day $                                                                             400.00 

 SE-14  Plaza Amphitheater, per day $                                                                             200.00 

 SE-15  Plaza Horseshoe Pavement Only, per day $                                                                             200.00 

 SE-16  Plaza Rear Parking Lot (only by exception), per day $                                                                             300.00 

 SE-17  Plaza Maintenance Fees, per section or area, per event (non-refundable) 

 Based on hourly rate for staff required to perform services and number of hours of work provided  MAINTENANCE CHARGED BASED ON ACTUAL 

HOURLY RATES FOR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF.   

DEPOSIT AMOUNT EQUALS RENTAL FEE 

 SE-18  Plaza Security Deposit, Per Quadrant, Section or area, per day (refundable)  FOR SECTION(S) RENTED 

 SE-19  Depot Park Picnic Area 1 & 2 per day $50 per section 

 SE-20  Depot Park Picnic Area 3, per day $                                                                             100.00 

 SE-21  Depot Park Volleyball Area #4, per day $                                                                             100.00 

 SE-22  Depot Park Parking Lot (By Exception Only), per day $                                                                             100.00 

 SE-23  Depot Park Maintenance Fees, per section or area, per day   MAINTENANCE CHARGED BASED ON ACTUAL 

HOURLY RATES FOR PUBLIC WORKS STAFF.   

 SE-24  Depot Park Security Deposit, Per Section or area, per day (refundable) DEPOSIT AMOUNT EQUALS RENTAL FEE FOR 

SECTION(S) RENTED 

 NEW 

 SE-25  Family / Small Group Gathering:  Depot Park or Plaza (PILOT PROGRAM) $                                                                             150.00 

113



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

 BUILDING 

 BL-01  Construction Permit Deposit  Varies (Deposit, not a fee) 

 BL-02  Permit Processing Fee [per permit] $                                                                               44.00 

 BL-03  Training & Certification Fee [per permit] $                                                                                 9.00 

 BL-04  Plan Check Fee [per hour] $                                                                             115.00 

 BL-05  Miscellaneous Building Division Services [per hour] $                                                                             102.00 

 BL-06  Imaging [per sheet]  8.5x11 sheet $.50

Other, $2.40 

 BL-07  Conditional Authorization to Proceed With Work [per authorization] $                                                                             510.00 

 BL-08  Off-Hour Building Dept. Services [per hour] $                                                                             204.00 

 BL-09  Permit Extension Fee [per extension] $                                                                               51.00 

 BL-10  Document Preparation and Recording Fee [per hour] $                                                                             102.00 

 BL-11  Appeal Fee [per appeal] $                                                                             802.00 

 BL-12  Refund Processing Fee [per refund] $                                                                               54.00 

 MODIFIED 2017 

 BL-13  Minimum Investigation Fee | compliance within 30 days (per investigation) $                                                                             357.00 

 MODIFIED 2017 

 BL-14  Standard Investigation Fee | More than 30 day compliance response (per investigation) $                                                                             714.00 

 BL-15  Change of Use or Occupancy Review [each review] $                                                                             510.00 

 BL-16  Contractor's License Tax [each applicable permit]  $1 per $1,000 valuation 

 BL-17  Capital Improvement Fee [each applicable permit] per SMC 3.24.060 

 BL-18 Impact Fee [per residential unit each applicable permit] $                                                                             966.00 

 BL-20  Single Inspection Permit Fee [per permit] $                                                                             127.00 

 BL-21  Building Permit Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit]  Per Building Table BL-21-A 

 BL-22  Building Demolition Inspection Fee [per permit] $                                                                             306.00 

 BL-23  Building Relocation Inspection Fee [per permit] $                                                                             612.00 

 BL-24  Electrical Inspection Fee  [calculated for each applicable permit]  Per Electrical Table BL-24-A 

 BL-25  Plumbing Inspection Fee  [calculated for each applicable permit]  Per Plumbing Table BL-25-A 

 BL-26 

 Water Conserving Plumbing Fixture Verification [calculated for each applicable permit]  $51.00 (self certification)

$51.00 + $16.00 per fixture for Staff Verification 

 BL-27 Mechanical Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit]  Per Mechanical Table BL-27-A 

 Bl-28  Energy Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit] 

 20% of Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-

A, BL-27-A 

 BL-29  Accessibility Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit] 20% of Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A 

 BL-30  One & Two Family Re-Roofing Permits [calculated for each applicable permit] $                                                                             153.00 

BL-31  Private Residential Swimming Pool Inspection Fee [per permit] $                                                                             612.00 

 BL-32  Modular and Manufactured Housing Fee  [calculated for each applicable permit] 25% of Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, 

BL-25-A, BL-27-A 

 BL-34  Grading Permit Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit]  Per Grading Table BL-34-A 

 BL-35  CALGreen Inspection Fee [calculated for each applicable permit]  See Fee Calculation Sheet 

 BL-37  Large Format Printing Costs  See Fee Calculation Sheet 

114



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

FIRE DEPARTMENT
Sonoma Valley Fire Rescue Authority Fee Schedule, as updated, 
incorporated by reference. Where applicable, fees will be charged based 
on the Valley of the Moon Fire Protection District Fee Schedule in effect at 
the time of the activity. 

POLICE DEPARTMENT
In addition to below fees, Sonoma County Sheriff's Office Fees, as 
updated, incorporated by reference.  Where applicable, fees will be 
charged based on the Sonoma County Fee Schedule in effect at the time 
of the activity. 

 PD-01   False Alarm [per response] REMOVED 

 PD-02  Residential Parking Permit [per permit] $                                                                               10.00 

 PD-03  Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity [per request] $                                                                             223.00 

 PD-04  Dog License [per license] 

 Altered $                                                                               25.00 

 Unaltered $                                                                               50.00 

 Senior Citizen - 62 and Older - First License Only (Altered) $                                                                               10.00 

 Senior Citizen - 62 and Older - First License Only (Unaltered) $                                                                               25.00 

 Late Penalty (Altered) $                                                                               15.00 

 Late Penalty (Unaltered) $                                                                               30.00 

 Duplicate / Transfer $                                                                                 5.00 

 PD-05  Kennel Fee [per day] $                                                                               40.00 

 PD-06  Dog Show Permit [per permit] $                                                                               46.00 

 PD-07  Animal-Drawn Vehicle Permit [per permit] $                                                                             174.00 

 PD-08  Owner Surrender of Animal [per surrendered animal] $                                                                               60.00 

MODIFIED

PD-09 Animal Impound Fee | Animal brought in to PD by public (per animal) $                                                                               25.00 

PD-10 Juvenile Diversion Fee [per incident] $                                                                             150.00 

MODIFIED

PD-11 Animal Impound Fee | Animal picked up in field by PD $                                                                               60.00 

Memo All other Police fees not listed in this schedule will be charged in accordance with County Fee 

Ordinance #4743 establishing Sheriff's Department fees

115



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

 PLANNING 

 PL-01  Public Notice [per hearing noticed] $                                                                               91.00 

 PL-02  Tentative Parcel Map [per application] $745 plus $50 per lot plus engineering time 

(minimum fee $845) 

 PL-03  Tentative Subdivision Map [per application] $1871 plus $50 per lot plus engineering time 

(minimum fee $2,171) 

 PL-04  Music License [per application] $                                                                             167.00 

 PL-05  Temporary Use Permit [per permit] $                                                                               93.00 

 PL-06  Minor Use Permit/Exception [per permit] $                                                                             373.00 

 PL-07  Major Use Permit [per permit] $                                                                             791.00 

 PL-08  Variance [per application] $                                                                             479.00 

 PL-09  Planned Unit Development [per application] $                                                                          1,465.00 

 PL-10  Rezoning [per application] $                                                                             981.00 

 PL-11  Prezoning/Annexation [per application] $                                                                          1,281.00 

 PL-12  General Plan Amendment [per application] $                                                                          1,594.00 

 PL-13  Modification of an Approved Plan [per request for modification or revision] $                                                                             281.00 

 PL-14  Deferral Agreement [per application] $                                                                             191.00 

 PL-15  Environmental Review (Initial Study) [per Initial Study] $                                                                          1,135.00 

 PL-16  Environmental Review (Environmental Impact Report) [based on contract costs]  15% of contract cost 

 PL-17  Lot Line Adjustment /Lot Merger/Certificate of Compliance [per application] $                                                                             273.00 

 PL-18  Appeal [per appeal] $                                                                             694.00 

 PL-19  Sign Review (Administrative) [per application] $                                                                               54.00 

 PL-20  Sign Review (DRC) [per application] $                                                                             102.00 

 PL-21  Design Review (Alteration) [per application] $                                                                             151.00 

 PL-22  Design Review (Minor) [per application] $                                                                             235.00 

 PL-23  Design Review (Major) [per application] $                                                                             561.00 

 PL-24  Design Review (Landscaping Plan) [per application] $                                                                             199.00 

 PL-25  Design Review (Demolition or Relocation) [per application] $                                                                             441.00 

 PL-26  Home Occupation Permit [per application] $                                                                               71.00 

 PL-27  Building Plan Review [per hour] $                                                                             110.00 

 PL-28  Extensions [per request] $                                                                               54.00 

 PL-29  Sidewalk Seating/Outdoor Display Permit [per application / renewal fee is per year] 

 $                        63.00

Annual Renewal Fee: $25 

 PL-30  Interpretation [per application] $                                                                             148.00 

 PL-31  Research [per hour] $                                                                             110.00 

 PL-32  Inspection [per hour] $                                                                             110.00 

 PL-33  Zoning Permit [per application] $                                                                               92.00 

 PL-34  Storm water Plan Review  DELETED MOVED TO PW-11 

116



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

PUBLIC WORKS
In addition to the fees below, the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rates, as updated, are 
incorporated by reference.  Where applicable, fees will be charged based 
on the Caltrans Rental Rate Book in effect at the time of the activity. 

PW-01 Parking Barricades-Placement & Removal [per event up to 2 hours of staff time]  $246 + $20 per space 

DELETED 2016 

MOVED

PW-02 Water Deposit (Rentals)  FEE MOVED TO UT-13 

PW-03 Public Works Inspection Fee [per hour] $                                                                             107.00 

PW-04 City Engineer Map and Plan Checking Services [per hour] $                                                                             163.00 

PW-05 City Engineer Inspection Fee [per hour] $                                                                             147.00 

PW-06 Encroachment Permit Fee (Minor) [per permit] $                                                                             170.00 

PW-07 Encroachment Permit Fee (Major) [per permit] $                                                                             360.00 

PW-08

Public Works Crew After Hour Service Charge / Sunday & Holiday Overtime [per hour with 3 
hour minimum]

$258 for First 3 Hours / $136 per hr after 3 Hours 

PW-09

Public Works Crew After Hour Service Fee / Regular Overtime [per hour with 3 hour minimum] $197 for First 3 Hours / $105 per hr after 3 Hours 

PW-11 Storm water Plan Review and Inspection Fee [per hour] $                                                                             101.00 

PW-12

Public Works News rack Initial Permit & Inspection Fee [per application] $121 for first 3 news racks / $20.00 each additional 

on same application 

PW-13 Public Works News rack Annual Fee [per news rack owner per year] $                                                                               35.00 

PW-14 Public Works Crew Hourly Rate Normal Business Hours [per hour] $                                                                               75.00 

PW-15 Deposit For Engineering Fees  Varies (Deposit, not a fee) 

PW-16 Barricading [per event, up to 2 hours of staff time] $                                                                             233.00 

NEW 2017

PW-17 Electric Vehicle Charging Station $2.00 Per Hour 

117



CITY OF SONOMA 2017  FEE SCHEDULE INDEX

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

INDEX NO. SERVICE  FEE OR HOURLY RATE

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 13, 2017

UTILITIES
In addition to the fees below, the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) Labor Surcharge & Equipment Rental Rates, as updated, are 
incorporated by reference.  Where applicable, fees will be charged based 
on the Caltrans Rental Rate Book in effect at the time of the activity. 

 UT-01 

 Water Service Payment Reminder Notice [per account unpaid after 39 days from billing date] $                                                                               23.00 

UT-02 Water Service Turn Off / Turn On (Delinquent Payment) [per account turned off] $                                                                               87.00 

UT-03 Meter Testing Fee [per test] $                                                                             102.00 

UT-04

Utility Crew After Hour Service Charge/Regular Overtime [per hour with 3 hour minimum] $192 for First 3 Hours / $100 per hr after 3 Hours 

UT-05

Utility Crew After Hour Service Charge/Sunday & Holiday Overtime [per hour with 3 hour 
minimum]

$252 for First 3 Hours / $129 per hr after 3 Hours 

UT-06 Non-Residential Fire Line Inspection & Bacteria Testing [per hour] $                                                                             120.00 

DELETED 2016

UT-07 Water Waste Fee DELETED 

UT-08  Water Flow Test [per test] $                                                                             206.00 

UT-09 Water Flow Test - Administrative only [per request] $                                                                               27.00 

UT-10

Back Flow Device Testing Administration (Backflow Fee) [per backflow device per month] $                                                                                 7.00 

UT-11 Meter Cut Lock Fee [per cut lock] $                                                                               81.00 

UT-12 Second or Third Notice Annual Backflow Device Testing [per notice] $                                                                               29.00 

UT-13 Water Deposit [per new account] $                                                                             150.00 

UT-14

Water Service Turn Off / Turn On (Change in Account Holder) [per change in account holder] $                                                                               21.00 

UT-15 Utility Crew Service Charge Normal Business Hours [per hour] $                                                                               71.00 

NEW 2017

UT-16 Hydrant Meter Deposit [per hydrant meter] $                                                                          3,000.00 

118



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Accounting Tech 0.25 $32.57 $8.14

Total Salary $8.14

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $8.14 31.87% $2.60

Operating Expenses: $8.14 31.92% $2.60

Overhead: $8.14 19.02% $1.55

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $8.14 16.10% $1.31

Total $16.20

Previous Fee: $16.00

Fee Effective 2017:* $16.00
per Returned Check 

% Change: 0%

* Plus any applicable bank fees charged to the City.

Returned Checks

Clerical time and expenses involved in contacting a person who has issued a 
check to the City that is returned for any reason (such as closed account, 
insufficient funds, etc.). 

No refund available.

Allocation of Salaries and Services 

This fee is charged in addition to fees charged by the bank.  As of 2/1/2015; 
those fees are $10.00 per returned check.  

119



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-04

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Accounting Tech 0.25 $32.57 $8.14
Avg Mgmt Salary 0.5 $56.39 $28.19

Total Salary $36.34

Salary %
Benefits:  $36.34 31.87% $11.58

Operating Expenses: $36.34 31.92% $11.60

Overhead: $36.34 19.02% $6.91

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $36.34 16.10% $5.85

Total $72.28

Previous Fee: $73.00

Fee Effective 2017: $72.00
per invoice / pass through invoice

% Change: -1%

No refund available.

Billing Fee

Clerical time and expense for provide billing services.  This fee may be 
used when an invoice requires rebilling because it was not paid before the 
due date.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

120



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Clerk 1.00 38.95$      $38.95

Total Salary $38.95

Salary %
Benefits:  $38.95 31.87% $12.41

Operating Expenses: $38.95 31.92% $12.43

Overhead: $38.95 19.02% $7.41

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $38.95 16.10% $6.27

Total $77.48

Previous Fee: $55.00

Fee Effective 2017: $77.00
per hour*

% Change: 40%

* plus actual cost of media * 15%.  

Hourly rate per hour expended by staff to duplicate recording.  

Full refund if recording has not been duplicated and payment has not been 
processed. 50% refund if refund check has to be issued.  No refund after 
recording has been made.

Hourly rate for time and expense for providing copies of recordings.  Actual 
cost of media + 15% overhead will be added to fee. Recordings may be 
provided on media such as audio tape, CD, DVD or USB Drive.  

Media Duplication

121



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-06

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Clerk 0.50 $38.95 $19.48

Total Salary $19.48

Salary %
Benefits:  $19.48 31.87% $6.21

Operating Expenses: $19.48 31.92% $6.22

Overhead: $19.48 19.02% $3.70

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $19.48 16.10% $3.14

Total $38.74

Previous Fee: $61.00 

Fee Effective 2017:* $38.00
per supplement plus postage

% Change: -38%

* Plus actual cost of the printed supplement & postage

Municipal Code Supplement Service

Clerical time and expense for obtaining and distributing Muni Code 
supplements.  The City updates the Municipal Code on an annual basis. The 
City Clerk then provides copies of the supplements to everyone who has a copy 
of the Code.  This charge applies to private entities requesting the supplements.  

No refund if supplement has been provided.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

122



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-07

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 10.00 $29.29 $292.90

Total Salary $292.90

Salary %
Benefits:  $292.90 31.87% $93.36

Operating Expenses: $292.90 31.92% $93.48

Overhead: $292.90 19.02% $55.72

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $292.90 16.10% $47.15

Total $582.61

Previous Fee: $558.00

Fee Effective 2017: $582.00
per year

% Change: 4%

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

Refund on prorated basis minus $25 administration fee.

Clerical time and expense for providing complete agenda packages to members 
of the public per year. City Council candidates who have qualified for the ballot 
receive agenda packets free of charge until the date of the election. 

Agenda Packet Subscription

123



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-08

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 4.00 $29.29 $117.16

Total Salary $117.16

Salary %
Benefits:  $117.16 31.87% $37.34

Operating Expenses: $117.16 31.92% $37.39

Overhead: $117.16 19.02% $22.29

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $117.16 16.10% $18.86

Total $233.05

Previous Fee: $223.00

Fee Effective 2017: $233.00
per year

% Change: 4%

Agendas Only Subscription

Refund on prorated basis minus $25 administration fee. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

Clerical time and expense for providing paper agendas through the postal 
service to members of the public per year .  This fee would apply to private 
citizens who request to be on the mailing list to receive copies of Council and/or 
Commission agendas.   

124



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-10

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Clerk 0.50 $38.95 $19.48
City Manager 1.00 $86.76 $86.76

Total Salary $106.24

Salary %
Benefits:  $106.24 31.87% $33.86

Operating Expenses: $106.24 31.92% $33.91

Overhead: $106.24 19.02% $20.21

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $106.24 16.10% $17.10

Total $211.31

Previous Fee: $247.00

Fee Effective 2017: $211.00
per appeal

% Change: -15%

Appeal (Administrative)

To facilitate, hear and consider an appeal of a staff-level final decision. Must 
be filed within fifteen days of the final decision. 

No refund available.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

125



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Clerk 1.00 $38.95 $38.95
City Manager 0.50 $86.76 $43.38

Total Salary $82.33

Salary %
Benefits:  $82.33 31.87% $26.24

Operating Expenses: $82.33 31.92% $26.28

Overhead: $82.33 19.02% $15.66

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $82.33 16.10% $13.25

Total $163.76

Previous Fee: $215.00

Fee Effective 2017: $163.00
per application

% Change: -24%

Mobile home Park Rental Increase Application

To facilitate, hear and consider an application filed by a park owner for a 
rental increase. (Pursuant to SMC 9.80.035B).  The City is currently in the 
process of updating its Mobile Home Rent Control Administrative 
Guidelines.  This fee may be modified or deleted once that update is 

No refund available.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

126



Administration
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : CA-12

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

ROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Manager 0 51.45$   $0.00
Acct Tech 1 32.57$   $32.57

City Salary $32.57
Salary Percent

Benefits:  $32.57 31.87% $10.38
Total City Salary Costs $42.95

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Police Deputy 16 $88.86 $1,421.76

Administrative Aide 4 $55.29 $221.16

Total Contracted Salary Costs $1,642.92

Total Salary Costs: $1,685.87
Salary Percent

Patrol Car (2 days) $57.38 per day $114.76

Operating Expenses: $1,642.92 31.92% $524.36

Overhead: $1,642.92 19.02% $312.54

Fixed Assets: $1,642.92 16.10% $264.50

Total $2,902.03
Divided by 16 licenses to be issued in City

Previous Fee: $273.00

Fee Effective 2017: $223.00 
per license

Costs of Police Staff based on Sonoma County Fee Schedule % Change: -18%

For Licenses issued after January 1, 2017

No refund available.

Tobacco Retailers License

Administration and enforcement of the TRL program pursuant to Ordinance No. 04-
2015 adopted June 1, 2015.  In addition costs of city enforcement (such as City 
Prosecutor, Code Enforcement Officer) or Administrative Violation penalties may apply 
for violations. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel and fixed assets

127



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-01

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Manager 0.25 $86.76 $21.69

City Salary Cost $21.69

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $21.69 31.87% $6.91

Total City Salary Cost $28.60

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Cost: Police Chief 0.5 $122.89 $61.45

Administrative Aide 0.2 $55.29 $11.06
Special Events Manager 1 $45.00 $45.00

Total Contracted Salary Cost $117.50

Total Salary Costs: $146.11
Salary Percent

Operating Expenses: $146.11 31.92% $46.63

Overhead: $146.11 19.02% $27.79

Fixed Assets: $146.11 16.10% $23.52

Total $244.05

Previous Fee: $256.00

Fee Effective 2017: $244.00 
per permit

Costs of Police Staff based on Sonoma County Fee Schedule % Change -5%

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

Alcohol Permit

Processing Alcohol Permit Applications for organizations holding events on 
city property that request permission to serve alcohol.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus 
calculated staff costs based on time expended between time of application 
and issuance of refund if application has not been processed.

128



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Mgmt Analyst 0 $32.39 $0.00
Parks Supervisor 2 $39.74 $79.48
Street Supervisor 1 $41.73 $41.73

City Salary $121.21
Salary Percent

Benefits:  $121.21 31.87% $38.63
Total City Salary Costs $159.84

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Police Sergeant 1.5 $102.48 $153.72

Administrative Aide 0.5 $55.29 $27.65
Fire Marshall 0.5 $127.00 $63.50
Special Events Manager 5 $45.00 $225.00

Total Contracted Salary Costs $469.87

Total Salary Costs: $629.71
Salary Percent

Operating Expenses: $629.71 31.92% $200.98

Overhead: $629.71 19.02% $119.79

Fixed Assets: $629.71 16.10% $101.38

Total $1,051.86

Previous Fee: $958.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,051.00 
per Application / Event

Costs of Police Staff based on Sonoma County Fee Schedule % Change 10%
Cost of Fire Marshall Based on Valley of the Moon Fire District Fee Schedule

Large Scale Special Event Permit Application Processing Fee

Staff time and expenses for reviewing and processing special event applications 
for events within the City and at City Facilities, including the Plaza, Depot Park, 
and City Streets.  During the application process, a contract will be developed to 
estimate costs to support the event.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff 
costs based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund 
if event has not been held.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  If 
additional services are required in advance of contract, customer may be billed at 
the applicable hourly rate for the staff involved.  

129



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-04

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Parks Supervisor 1 39.74$      $39.74
Street Supervisor 0 41.73$      $0.00

City Salary $39.74
Salary Percent

Benefits:  $39.74 31.87% $12.67
Total City Salary Costs $52.41

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Special Events Manager 2 $45.00 $90.00

Total Contracted Salary Costs $90.00

Total Salary Costs: $142.41
Salary Percent

Operating Expenses: $142.41 31.92% $45.45

Overhead: $142.41 19.02% $27.09

Fixed Assets: $142.41 16.10% $22.93

Total $237.87

Previous Fee: $306.00

Fee Effective 2017: $237.00 
per Application / Event

% Change -23%

Small Scale Special Event Application Processing Fee

Staff time and expenses for reviewing and processing special event applications 
for events within the City and at City Facilities, including the Plaza, Depot Park, 
and City Streets.  This fee includes weddings unless the wedding meets the 
definition of a large scale special event.    Additional costs may be identified 
during the application review process.  

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff 
costs based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund 
if event has not been held.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

130



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Clerk 0.5 $38.95 $19.48
City Manager 0 $86.76 $0.00
Street Supervisor 1.5 $41.73 $62.60

Total Salary $82.07

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $82.07 31.87% $26.16

Total City Salary Costs $108.23

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Police Sergeant 1.5 $102.48 $153.72

Special Events Manager 2 $45.00 $90.00
Total Salary Costs: $351.95

Salary Percent
Operating Expenses: $351.95 31.92% $112.33

Overhead: $351.95 19.02% $66.95

Fixed Assets: $351.95 16.10% $56.66

Total $587.89

Previous Fee: $576.00

Fee Effective 2017: $587.00 
per permit + $20.00 per parking space made unavailable by use of street

% Change 2%

Costs of Police Staff based on Sonoma County Fee Schedule

Processing applications for the  use of city streets.  Requires City Council 
approval.  If street use permit is authorized, additional fees will be charged 
including, but not limited to:  Barricaiding (PW-16), additional staff time 
requried for barricaiding (PW-14, PW-08, PW-09), and costs of any other staff 
required to set up, clear, and manage street closure.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated 
staff costs based on time expended between time of application and issuance of 
refund if event has not been held.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

Street Use Permit

131



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-06

SERVICE: Film Permit

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE - HIGH IMPACT VIDEO PRODUCTION
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Manager 0.5 $86.76 $43.38
Public Wks Super 0 $39.74 $0.00
Mgmt Analyst 0 $32.39 $0.00

Total City Salary $43.38
Salary Percent

Benefits $43.38 31.87% $13.83
Total City Salary Costs $57.21

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs Police Chief 1.5 119.87$             $179.81

Special Events Manager 2 45.00$               $90.00

Total Salary Costs: $327.01

Salary Percent
Operating Expenses: $327.01 31.92% $104.37

Overhead: $327.01 19.02% $62.21

Fixed Assets: $327.01 16.10% $52.65

Total $546.24

Previous Fee: $706.00

Fee Effective 2017: $546.00
per permit

% Change -23%

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-06
CALCULATION OF FEE - LOW IMPACT VIDEO PRODUCTION

Hours Rate
Salaries: City Manager 0.5 $86.76 $43.38

Public Wks Super 0.5 $39.74 $19.87
Mgmt Analyst 0 $32.39 $0.00

Total City Salary $63.25
Benefits:  

$63.25 31.87% $20.16
Total City Salary Costs $83.41

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs Police Chief 0.5 $122.89 $61.45

Special Events Manager 1 $45.00 $45.00
Total Salary Costs: $169.70

Salary Percent
Operating Expenses: $169.70 31.92% $54.16

Overhead: $169.70 19.02% $32.28

Fixed Assets: $169.70 16.10% $27.32

Total $283.46

Previous Fee: $334.00

Fee Effective 2017: $283.00 
per permit

% Change -15%

Processing of application for permission to film within city limits.  There are two structures for 
this fee depending on the anticipated impact of the event:  "High Impact Video Productions" 
applies to large scale events.  "Low Impact Video Productions" applies to small scale events.  
Staff will make determination of scale of event at the time of application submittal.  If film 
permit is approved, additional fees may be charged including, but not limited to costs of any 
staff required to set up, clear, and manage activity related to permit.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs based 
on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if event has not been held.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

132



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-10

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: 0 $0.00
0 $0.00
0 $0.00
0 $0.00

City Salary $0.00
Salary Percent

Benefits:  $0.00 31.87% $0.00
Total City Salary Costs $0.00

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Special Events Manag 1 $45.00 $45.00

Total Contracted Salary Costs $45.00

Total Salary Costs: $45.00
Salary Percent

Operating Expenses: $45.00 31.92% $14.36

Overhead: $45.00 19.02% $8.56

Fixed Assets: $45.00 16.10% $7.24

Total $75.17

Previous Fee: NEW FEE

Fee Effective 2017: $75.00 
per Application / Event

% Change NEW FEE

Additional Hours - Special Events Manager

Staff time and expenses for additional time reviewing and processing special 
event applications for events within the City and at City Facilities, including 
the Plaza, Depot Park, and City Streets.  This rate is for hours in addition to 
hours specified in associated application fee.  Hours may result from:  
additional follow-up on event requirements (vendor business license, 
payments, etc.); changes to event plans / layout, etc.

No Refund.  Charges occur after work has taken place.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

133



Special Events
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : SE-25

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: 0 $0.00
0 $0.00
0 $0.00
0 $0.00

City Salary $0.00
Salary Percent

Benefits:  $0.00 31.87% $0.00
Total City Salary Costs $0.00

Hours Rate
Contracted Salary Costs: Special Events Manager 0.4 $45.00 $18.00

Total Contracted Salary Costs $18.00

Total Salary Costs: $18.00
Salary Percent

Operating Expenses: $18.00 31.92% $5.74

Overhead: $18.00 19.02% $3.42

Fixed Assets: $18.00 16.10% $2.90

Total $30.07

Rental Fee $120.00

TOTAL FEE $150.07

Previous Fee: NEW FEE

Fee Effective 2017: $150.00 
per Application / Event

% Change NEW FEE

Family / Small Group Gathering

This is a pilot option introduced in 2017 to provide reservations for tables at City 
Parks.  Use of this event definition is subject to the sole discretion of the City and 
typically includes:  a few tables only (versus a full quadrant / section), signage on 
the table(s), groups of 30 or fewer, no revenues earned from event, no vendors 
used by event, an event lasting less than 4 hours, and requiring less than 1/2 hour 
of staff time to coordinate and approve.  No staff enforcement of reservation will 
be provided.  

Refund of the rental fee only may be issued if event organizer provides proof that 
they were unable to hold the planned event because the space became unavailable.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

134



Building Department Fee Summary Sheet - Effective 1/20/17

Fee Type Fee ID 2017 Fee Unit
Administrative or Plan Review
Construction Permit Deposit BL-01 Varies (Deposit - Not a Fee)
Permit Processing Fee BL-02 $44.00 Ea
Training & Certification Fee BL-03 $9.00 Ea
Plan Check Fee BL-04 $115.00 per Hr.
Miscellaneous Building Division Services (Hourly Rate) BL-05 $102.00 per Hr.
Imaging  -  8.5 x 11 BL-06 $0.50 Ea
Imaging  -  Other sizes BL-06 $2.40 Ea
Conditional Authorization to Proceed with Work BL-07 $510.00 Ea
Off-Hour Building Dept. Services BL-08 $204.00 per Hr.
Permit Application / Permit Extension Fee BL-09 $51.00 Ea
Document Preparation and Recording Fee BL-10 $102.00 Ea
Appeal Fee BL-11 $802.00 Ea
Refund Processing Fee BL-12 $54.00 Ea
Minimum Investigation Fee (Compliance Response Within 30 Days) BL-13 $357.00 Ea
Standard Investigation Fee (More than 30 Day Compliance Response) BL-14 $714.00 Minimum
Change of Use or Occupancy Review (Building Survey) BL-15 $510.00 Ea
Contractor's License Tax BL-16 $1.00 per $1,000 valuation
Capital Improvement Fee  -  per square foot for commercial buildings BL-17 $0.19 per S.F.
Capital Improvement Fee  -  for one-bedroom dwelling BL-17 $410.00 Ea Unit
Capital Improvement Fee  -  for two-bedroom dwelling BL-17 $478.00 Ea Unit
Capital Improvement Fee  -  for three or more bedroom dwelling BL-17 $614.00 Ea Unit
Capital Improvement Fee  -  for each added bedroom BL-17 $68.00 Ea
Impact Fee BL-18 $966.00 Ea Unit

Inspection Services
Single Inspection Permit Fee BL-20 $127.00 Ea
Building Permit Inspection Fee BL-21 Per Building Table BL-21-A Ea Pmt
Building Demolition Inspection Fee BL-22 $306.00 Ea
Building Relocation Inspection Fee BL-23 $612.00 Ea
Electrical Inspection Fee  -  Unit Fee BL-24 Per Electrical Table BL-24-A varies
Plumbing Inspection Fee  -  Unit Fee BL-25 Per Plumbing Table  BL-25-A varies
Water Conserving Plumbing Fixture Verification  -  Plumber Certified BL-26 $51.00 All Fixt.
Mechanical Inspection Fee  -  Unit Fee BL-27 Per Mechanical Table  BL-27-A varies
Energy Inspection Fee BL-28 20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, 

BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-27-A
Ea Pmt

Accessibility Inspection Fee BL-29 20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A. Ea Pmt

One & Two Family Re-Roofing Permits BL-30 $153.00 Ea Pmt
Private Residential Swimming Pool Inspection Fee BL-31 $612.00 Ea Pmt
Modular and Manufactured Housing Inspection Fee BL-32 25% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, 

BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-27-A.
Ea Pmt

Grading Permit Inspection Fee BL-34 Per Grading Table BL-34-A Ea Pmt
CALGreen Inspection Fee BL-35 20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, 

BL-24-A, BL-25-A, BL-27-A and BL-34-A, or 1-hr. 
minimum based on the Hourly Building Dept. Rate, 

whichever is greater.

Ea Pmt

Large Format Printing BL-37 Per Table in BL-37 varies

135



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-01

SERVICE: Construction Permit Deposit

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF DEPOSIT

If Estimated Project Cost is: Deposit Rate is:

Design Change for an existing Permit $57.50 Minimum

<$100,000 $100 MINIMUM OR
$10.00 for each $1000 of Estimated Project Cost or portion thereof, whichever is greater

>=$100,000 but<$1,000,000 $1,000 MINIMUM OR
$5.00 for each $1,000 of Estimated Project Cost or Portion thereof, whichever is greater

>=1000000 $5,000 MINIMUM OR
$3.00 for each $1,000 of Estimated Project Cost or Portion thereof, whichever is greater

This is a deposit paid by an applicant at the time an application is made for a building 
permit. This deposit is to be applied towards the costs of processing the permit application, 
plan checking services, training fees, and other permit costs required to be paid by the 
applicant. Permit processing fees and training fees apply to every permit application. Plan 
checking fees only apply on those permit applications where plan review services are 
provided.  

The deposit is not a fee but is to be applied towards the payment of fees owed to the City.  
The deposit amount approximates the costs of processing the permit application, plan 
checking services and training fees.  Since an exact amount for these services cannot be 
determined at the time of application, the deposit amount is only an approximation of those 
fees. 

Once all costs and expenses are calculated for a project, any remaining balance will be 
refunded to the applicant.

136



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-02

SERVICE: Permit Processing Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Average Staff Rate 0.15 $51.28 $7.69

Total Salary $22.34

Salary Percent
Benefits: $22.34 31.87% $7.12

Operating Expenses: $22.34 31.92% $7.13

Overhead: $22.34 19.02% $4.25

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $22.34 16.10% $3.60

Total $44.43

Previous Fee: $44.00

Fee Effective 2017: $44.00
per permit

% Change: 0%

Staff time and expenses involved in routing, handling and processing a permit application, 
including initial application assistance, calculating and collecting the deposit, permit 
issuance and permit reporting and recordkeeping. This fee does not include plan check time 
or the calculation of permit fees. The fee is due and payable at time of application.    

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

137



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-03

SERVICE: Training & Certification Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Estimated Training Costs $5,700.00

Estimated Permits 605

Cost per Permit $9.42 Total Cost $9.42

Previous Fee: $9.00

Fee Effective 2017: $9.00
per permit

% Change: 0%

Costs associated with state mandated training and certification for Building Department 
personnel. The fee is due and payable at the time of permit application.   

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

The fee is calculated based on total budgeted training costs divided by the estimated number 
of permits issued. The fee is charged on each building permit. [AB 717 (1995) requires that 
beginning January 1, 1996, certain building department personnel (i.e. Building Officials, 
Plan Checkers and Building Inspectors) be trained and certified in the type of work they 
perform on the job. AB 717 provides that jurisdictions may recover the costs for training 
and certifying the personnel by charging a fee.] 

138



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-04

SERVICE: Plan Check Fee

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Plan Check Staff Rate 1.00 $58.17 $58.17

Total Salary $58.17
Salary Percent

Benefits: $58.17 31.87% $18.54

Operating Expenses: $58.17 31.92% $18.57

Overhead: $58.17 19.02% $11.07

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $58.17 16.10% $9.36

Total $115.71

Previous Hourly Fee: $116.00

Fee Effective 2017: $115.00
per hour

% Change: -1%

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

This fee may be charged at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof.  In the event 
that this service is outsourced, the actual vendor costs may be passed through to the 
applicant with the additional charges as specified in Fee CA-09 (Standard Administrative 
Overhead).  Where multiple permits will be issued under a single plan review (i.e.  master 
plan, P.U.Ds, etc.) the Plan Check fee may either be charged on the first permit issued or 
divided between the permits at the sole discretion of the Building Official. 

This fee is based on the actual hourly cost of performing plan review and related services 
such as counter assistance, corresponding with applicants, design meetings, preliminary site 
investigations, code research, and other activities related to a building permit application. 

A refund of 100% of the Plan Check Fee may  be authorized by the Building Official when 
an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project.  
The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for 
refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Performance of plan checking and preliminary site review services to verify compliance 
with the California Building Code, the Sonoma Municipal Code and other  applicable 
regulations, including administrative work and permit approval coordination related thereto.                                                                                                                                           

A Construction Permit Deposit (BL-01) must be paid at the time of application. The balance 
of any plan check fee shall be due and payable immediately following the rendering of the 
service. 

139



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 1.00 $51.28 $51.28

Average Salary $51.28

Salary Percent
Benefits: $51.28 31.87% $16.35

Operating Expenses: $51.28 31.92% $16.37

Overhead: $51.28 19.02% $9.76

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $51.28 16.10% $8.26

Total $102.01

Previous Hourly Fee: $101.00

Fee Effective 2017: $102.00
per hour

% Change: 1%

Staff time and expenses involved in:  •  Researching code requirements or file documentation 
not otherwise covered under other fees, duplicating approved permit documentation; (30 
minute minimum) •  Verifying compliance with various building construction laws on 
projects where changes to the approved plans are necessary; (30 minute minimum) •  When  
incomplete, changed, or multiple alternative design schemes require additional  plan review 
or inspection; (30 minute minimum)   •  Plot plan  and duplicate plan reviews that are part of 
an approved master plan for a  project; (30 minute minimum) •  Reinspection and  
miscellaneous inspections; (1-hr. minimum) •  Temporary and Conditional Occupancy 
Permits; (1-hr. minimum) •  Labor for duplication of lost construction documentation (i.e. 
Inspection cards, permits, approved plans, etc.) (30 minute minimum)  •  Minimum rate for 
each deferred submittal item. (1-hr. minimum) •  Cost for preparation and issuance of a 
Performance Guarantee;  (1-hr. min.) •  All other misc. building department services not 
otherwise covered by a fee.

A refund of 100% of this  fee may  be authorized by the Building Official when an unexpired 
permit has been terminated and none of the  services  listed above have been performed. The 
Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for 
refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies for 1 hour of 
activity. 

Miscellaneous Building Division Services (Hourly Rate)

In the event that this service is outsourced, the actual vendor costs shall be passed through to 
the applicant with the additional charges as specified in Fee CA-09.  

140



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-06

SERVICE: Imaging

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: No refund is allowed. 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Actual Cost for Imaging/Equipment for each 8.5 x 11sheet $0.51
Actual Cost for Imaging/Equipment for each other sized sheet $2.41

Previous Fee for each 8.5 x 11sheet: $0.50
Previous Fee for each other sized sheet: $2.40

Fee for each 8.5 x 11sheet: $0.50
Fee for each other sized sheet: $2.40

per sheet
% Change: 0%

8.5 x 11 and 14 Documents
Approved Plan Documentation 8.5 x 11, 8.5 
x 14 $0.01
Index of Building Files, Org. Permits, App $0.06
Plans, Plan Doc, Arc P. $0.01
Double Key Verification $0.01
Document Preparation $0.05
Database Merge $0.01
Output to Media $0.01
Installation/setup $0.24
Creation of Master CD $0.05
Creation of Duplicate Backup Copy $0.03
City prep time $0.03

Cost per image $0.51

Plan size Documents
Approved Building Plans $1.45
Index of Building Files, Org. Permits, App. $0.06
Double Key Verification $0.06
Document Preparation $0.50
Database Merge $0.01
Output to Media $0.01
Installation/setup $0.24
Creation of Master CD $0.05
Creation of Duplicate Backup Copy $0.03

Cost per image $2.41

This fee covers the costs of scanning file documents and maintaining micrographics 
equipment.

Based on the actual cost of contracted services and equipment. Charged per sheet 
based on the size of the document to be microfilmed.

141



Building Department

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-07

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Staff Rate 5.00 $51.28 $256.42

         Total Salary $256.42

Salary Percent
Benefits: $256.42 31.87% $81.73

Operating Expenses: $256.42 31.92% $81.84

Overhead: $256.42 19.02% $48.78

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $256.42 16.10% $41.28

Total $510.04

Previous Fee: $456.00

Fee Effective 2017: $510.00
per authorization

% Change: 12%

Conditional Authorization to Proceed with Work

Time and expenses involved in verifying compliance with various building construction 
laws. This service will allow the applicant or his/her representative to start work on a project 
before all necessary approvals have been granted for the entire project. The authorization 
shall apply only to certain parts of the project which are unrelated to the items or elements 
yet to receive approval. The authorization may be issued at the discretion of the Chief 
Building Official or his/her designated representative. This fee shall be assessed in addition 
to any other applicable fees. The project applicant or his/her representative shall pay this fee 
at the time the authorization is granted and prior to starting work.

A refund of 100% of this  fee may  be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and none of the  services  listed above have been 
performed. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. 
Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

142



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-08

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 1.00 $51.28 $51.28

Total Salary $51.28

Salary Percent
Benefits: $51.28 31.87% $16.35

Operating Expenses: $51.28 31.92% $16.37

Overhead: $51.28 19.02% $9.76

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $51.28 16.10% $8.26

Sub Total $102.01
$102.01

Total $204.02

Previous Fee: $203.00

Fee Effective 2017: $204.00
per hour

% Change: 0%

Off-Hour Building Dept. Services

Time and expenses involved in:  Performing inspections and other services outside of 
normal business hours. This service is subject to voluntary staffing availability. 

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no service has been performed for the project. 
The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application 
for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel (including overtime or holiday pay), 
services and supplies for 1 hour response during non-business hours.  Actual fee to vary 
according to staff involved (1 hour minimum).  

This fee may be charged at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof.  In the event 
that this service is outsourced, the actual vendor costs shall be passed through to the 
applicant with the additional charges as specified in Fee CA-09.  Where multiple permits 
will be issued under a single plan review (i.e.  master plan, P.U.Ds, etc.) the Plan Check 
fee may either be charged on the first permit issued or divided between the permits at the 
sole discretion of the Building Official. 

143



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-09

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 0.50 $51.28 $25.64

Total Salary $25.64

Salary Percent
Benefits: $25.64 31.87% $8.17

Operating Expenses: $25.64 31.92% $8.18

Overhead: $25.64 19.02% $4.88

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $25.64 16.10% $4.13

Total $51.00

Previous Fee: $50.00

Fee Effective 2017: $51.00
per extension

% Change: 2%

Permit Application / Permit Extension Fee

Time and expenses involved in reviewing, processing and filing a building permit 
application extension or an extension on an issued building permit including issuance of 
reminder letters. The fee is due and payable prior to granting an extension of time on an 
unexpired permit application or an unexpired issued permit. (Permit applications  expire 
by limitation if no permit is issued within a 180-days of the initial application date and 
no extension is granted. Permits expire by limitation if no regular inspections are made 
within a 180-day  period and no extension is granted.)

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

144



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-10

SERVICE: Document Preparation and Recording Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 1.00 $51.28 $51.28

Total Salary $51.28

Salary Percent
Benefits: $51.28 31.87% $16.35

Operating Expenses: $51.28 31.92% $16.37

Overhead: $51.28 19.02% $9.76

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $51.28 16.10% $8.26

Total $102.01

Previous Fee: $101.00

Fee Effective 2017: $102.00
per hour

% Change: 1%

Time and expenses involved in preparing, researching, notarizing, routing, handling, 
processing and filing violation, termination or other notices with the County Recorder's 
Office. This fee includes recording fees assessed by the County Recorder. The fee is 
due and payable prior to filing the notice.    

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

145



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Building Official 6.00 $67.20 $403.20

Total Salary $403.20

Salary Percent
Benefits: $403.20 31.87% $128.51

Operating Expenses: $403.20 31.92% $128.69

Overhead: $403.20 19.02% $76.70

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $403.20 16.10% $64.91

Total $802.01

Previous Fee: $703.00

Fee Effective 2017: $802.00
per appeal

% Change: 14%

Appeal Fee

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

If the board rules in full favor of the appellant, a full refund shall be made  to the appellant 
when requested by the appellant in writing and authorized by the building board of appeals.  
The Building Official or City Manager may authorize a refund of up to 50% of the Appeal 
Fee when, in the sole discretion of the Building Official or City Manager a refund of  a 
portion of the appeal fee is merited due to  the circumstances of the case. The Refund 
Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must 
be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Time and expenses involved in processing an appeal of a decision of the building official to 
be heard by the Board of Appeals or a hearing officer.    

146



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-12

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.5 $29.29 $14.65
Average Staff Rate 0.25 $51.28 $12.82

Total Salary $27.47

Salary Percent
Benefits: $27.47 31.87% $8.75

Operating Expenses: $27.47 31.92% $8.77

Overhead: $27.47 19.02% $5.22

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $27.47 16.10% $4.42

Total $54.63

Previous Fee: $53.00

Fee Effective 2017: $54.00
per refund

% Change: 2%

Refund Processing Fee

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

Time and expenses involved in calculating, routing, paying, mailing, handling and 
processing a refund for a permit application or issued permit. The fee is due and 
payable at the time the refund has been calculated and prior to issuance of the refund.

This fee is not applicable for refunds issued as a result of an overcharging error on the 
part of City staff.

147



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-13

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Staff Rate 3.50 $51.28 $179.49

         Total Salary $179.49
Salary Percent

Benefits: $179.49 31.87% $57.21

Operating Expenses: $179.49 31.92% $57.29

Overhead: $179.49 19.02% $34.15

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $179.49 16.10% $28.90

Total $357.03

Previous Fee: $406.00

Fee Effective 2017: $357.00
each Investigation

% Change: -12%

Minimum Investigation Fee (Compliance Response Within 30 Days) 

The Minimum Investigation Fee shall be assessed where staff time is needed to enforce 
the requirements of the codes or on all permits where work has been performed without 
first obtaining the required permits. The Minimum Investigation Fee shall apply where 
corrective action including submittal of a permit application along with  complete plans 
and documentation are submitted to the building department within and including 30 
days of notification of the violation and as otherwise determined appropriate by the 
building official.  This fee may be added to the cost of a building permit intended to 
mitigate the violation/s or may be separately billed by invoice to the owner of the 
property where the violation(s) exists.  This fee is in addition to all other required fees 
assessed for the enforcement action or work.                                           

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

The Minimum Investigation Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel 
(including overtime or holiday pay), services and supplies during normal business 
hours. It is estimated that an average minimum of 3.5 hours of building department 
personnel hours are needed for each minor investigation and related enforcement 
efforts. The fees based on an average minimum of 3.5 hours of staff time.  Where staff 
time exceeds 4 hours, the Standard Investigation Fee shall apply.  If work is performed 
after normal business hours, the fee shall be 200% of the fee normally assessed.

148



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-14

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Staff Rate 7.00 $51.28 $358.98

         Total Salary $358.98
Salary Percent

Benefits: $358.98 31.87% $114.42

Operating Expenses: $358.98 31.92% $114.58

Overhead: $358.98 19.02% $68.29

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $358.98 16.10% $57.79

Total $714.06

Previous Fee: $406.00

Fee Effective 2017: $714.00
each Investigation

% Change: 76%

Standard Investigation Fee (More than 30 Day Compliance Response)

The Standard Investigation Fee shall be assessed where staff time is needed to enforce 
the requirements of the codes or on all permits where work has been performed without 
first obtaining the required permits.  The Standard Investigation Fee shall apply where 
corrective action, including submittal of a permit application along with complete plans 
and documentation are NOT submitted to the building department within and including 
30 days of notification of the violation.  This fee may be added to the cost of a building 
permit intended to mitigate the violation/s or may be separately billed by invoice to the 
owner of the property where the violation(s) exists.  This fee is in addition to all other 
required fees assessed for the enforcement action or work.                                           

No refund of this fee is allowed. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel (including overtime or holiday 
pay), services and supplies during normal business hours. It is estimated that an 
average minimum of 7 hours of building department personnel hours are needed for 
each investigation and related enforcement efforts. The fee will be based on an average 
minimum of 7 hours of staff time plus the actual staff time over 7 hours charged at the 
average hourly staff rate. If work is performed after normal business hours, the fee shall 
be 200% of the fee normally assessed.

149



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-15

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 5.00 $51.28 $256.42

Total Salary $256.42

Salary Percent
Benefits: $256.42 31.87% $81.73

Operating Expenses: $256.42 31.92% $81.84

Overhead: $256.42 19.02% $48.78

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $256.42 16.10% $41.28

Total $510.04

Previous Fee: $507.00

Fee Effective 2017: $510.00
each review

% Change: 1%

Change of Use or Occupancy Review (Building Survey)

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

Staff time and expenses involved in verifying compliance with various laws governing the change 
of use of an existing structure. The fee is due and payable at time of application.

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an unexpired 
permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project. The Refund 
Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be 
made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

150



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-16

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee: $1.00 per $1,000 valuation

Fee Effective 2017: $1.00 per $1,000 valuation
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Contractor's License Tax

This fee is 100% refundable where no work is performed. The Refund Processing Fee 
(BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made 
within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Tax established by ordinance S.M.C.5.08.050 

Imposed on all permits where contractors are performing work with a valuation of 
$2,000 or more. Per S.M.C.5.08.050.     

151



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-17

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee: $0.19
$410.00
$478.00
$614.00

$68.00

Fee Effective 2017: $0.19
$410.00
$478.00
$614.00

$68.00

each applicable permit
% Change: 0%

for each added bedroom

for each added bedroom

per square foot for commercial buildings
for one-bedroom dwelling

for one-bedroom dwelling

for two-bedroom dwelling

for two-bedroom dwelling

for three or more bedroom dwelling

for three or more bedroom dwelling

Capital Improvement Fee

Fee established by ordinance S.M.C.3.24.060. 

Imposed on permits per S.M.C.3.24.060.    

This fee is 100% refundable where no work is performed. The Refund Processing Fee 
(BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made 
within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

per square foot for commercial buildings 

152



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-18

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee: $966.00 per residential unit

Fee Effective 2017: $966.00 per residential unit
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Impact Fee

Fee established by Resolution 47-86. 

Imposed on every new dwelling unit.    

This fee is 100% refundable where no work is performed. The Refund Processing Fee 
(BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made 
within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

153



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-20

SERVICE:
 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 1.25 $51.28 $64.10

Average Salary $64.10
Salary Percent

Benefits: $64.10 31.87% $20.43

Operating Expenses: $64.10 31.92% $20.46

Overhead: $64.10 19.02% $12.19

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $64.10 16.10% $10.32

Total $127.51

Previous Fee: $126.00

Fee Effective 2017: $127.00
per permit

% Change: 1%

Single Inspection Permit Fee

Cost and expense for inspection of work requiring only one inspection with an anticipated 
inspection duration, including travel time, of less than 45 minutes. This fee also includes one 
reinspection, administrative services and recordkeeping.     
NOTE: This fee may be used when Building Department staff determine that work is of a minor 
nature only requiring a single minor inspection such as window replacement, siding replacement, 
etc.                                   

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an unexpired permit 
has been terminated and none of the services listed above have been performed. The Refund 
Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be 
made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies for a Single Inspection 
Permit with an anticipated inspection duration, including travel time, of less than 45 minutes, plus 
the additional time for one reinspection, administrative services and recordkeeping. 

154



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-21

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

Fee: Per Building Table BL-21-A

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

Building Permit Inspection Fee

Performance of building inspections and related administrative work. The fee is due 
and payable at time of permit issuance. 

A refund of 100% of the Building Permit Inspection Fee may be authorized by the 
Building Official when an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has 
been performed on the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be 
deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) 
year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the valuation of the work to be performed pursuant to Tables BL-
21-A and Table BL-21-B. The building valuation for a permit is determined and 
modified as necessary by the Building Official using the Building Valuation Data 
published by the International Code Council in Building Safety Journal and other 
relevant data as necessary. Where no Building Valuation data is specifically listed the 
Building Official will determine the appropriate valuation using any  reasonable 
means or methods.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

In lieu of assessing inspection fees based on permit valuation as set forth herein, the 
building official may, at his/her sole discretion, calculate and charge a fee equal to 
the estimated actual cost of providing the inspection and inspection-related services 
in accordance with the hourly rate set forth in the adopted fee schedule.

When in the opinion of the Building Official a Single Inspection Permit may be 
issued for the proposed work, the fee shall be based on the Single Inspection Permit  
Fee (BL-20) in lieu of this fee. The Single Inspection Permit Fee  shall be treated as 
the Building Permit Inspection Fee for the purposes of calculating any other fees. 

155



Building Department
[NOTE: Rates have not changed since 1997]
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-21 (continued)

Building Permit Inspection System Fees
Total Valuation Fee

$1 to $500 - $23.50

$501 to $2,000 - $23.50 for the first $500 plus $3.05 for each additional $100 or fraction thereof, to and 
including $2,000

$2,001 to $25,000 - $69.25 for the first $2,000 plus $14.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, to and 
including $25,000

$25,001 to $50,000 - $391.25 for the first $25,000 plus $10.10 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, to 
and including $50,000

$50,001 to $100,000 - $643.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, to 
and including $100,000

$100,001 to $500,000 - $993.75 for the first $100,000 plus $5.60 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, to 
and including $500,000

$500,001 to $1,000,000 - $3233.75 or the first $500,000 plus $4.75 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof, to 
and including $1,000,000

$1,000,001 and up - $5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3.65 for each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof.

Building - Table 21-A
 Inspection Fee Schedule

When a building permit is required for a project, the applicant will pay the above-mentioned fees based on the valuation of 
the proposed project. The fee for issuing the permit is included in this table. The permit fees shall be paid at the time that the 
building permit is issued.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

The building valuation for a permit is determined and modified as necessary by the Building Official using the latest 
Building Valuation Data published by the International Code Council in Building Safety Journal and other relevant data as 
necessary (see Building - Table BL-21-B). 

In lieu of assessing inspection fees based on permit valuation as set forth herein, the building official may, at his/her sole 
discretion, calculate and charge a fee equal to the estimated actual cost of providing the inspection and inspection-related 
services in accordance with the hourly rate set forth in the adopted fee schedule.                                      

156



G
ro

up
 (2

00
9 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

od
e)

IA
IB

II
A

II
B

II
IA

II
IB

IV
V

A
V

B
A

-1
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 th
ea

te
rs

, w
ith

 st
ag

e
$2

63
.2

3
$2

54
.1

6
$2

48
.0

1
$2

37
.8

5
$2

23
.8

3
$2

17
.3

3
$2

30
.3

3
$2

04
.3

7
$1

96
.8

9
A

-1
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 th
ea

te
rs

, w
ith

ou
t s

ta
ge

$2
41

.2
4

$2
32

.1
8

$2
26

.0
3

$2
15

.8
6

$2
02

.0
1

$1
95

.5
2

$2
08

.3
5

$1
82

.5
6

$1
75

.0
7

A
-2

 A
ss

em
bl

y,
 n

ig
ht

cl
ub

s
$2

05
.8

9
$1

99
.9

2
$1

94
.8

6
$1

86
.9

7
$1

76
.2

6
$1

71
.4

0
$1

80
.4

0
$1

59
.6

0
$1

54
.2

0
A

-2
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 re
st

au
ra

nt
s, 

ba
rs

, b
an

qu
et

 h
al

ls
$2

04
.7

3
$1

98
.7

6
$1

92
.5

4
$1

85
.8

1
$1

73
.9

4
$1

70
.2

4
$1

79
.2

4
$1

57
.2

8
$1

53
.0

4
A

-3
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 c
hu

rc
he

s
$2

43
.5

4
$2

34
.4

7
$2

28
.3

2
$2

18
.1

6
$2

04
.5

3
$1

98
.0

3
$2

10
.6

4
$1

85
.0

7
$1

77
.5

9
A

-3
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 g
en

er
al

, c
om

m
un

ity
 h

al
ls

, l
ib

ra
rie

s, 
m

us
$2

03
.1

4
$1

94
.0

8
$1

86
.7

7
$1

77
.7

7
$1

62
.9

8
$1

57
.6

4
$1

70
.2

5
$1

43
.5

2
$1

37
.2

0
A

-4
 A

ss
em

bl
y,

 a
re

na
s

$2
40

.0
8

$2
31

.0
2

$2
23

.7
1

$2
14

.7
0

$1
99

.6
9

$1
94

.3
6

$2
07

.1
9

$1
80

.2
4

$1
73

.9
1

B
 B

us
in

es
s

$2
10

.1
0

$2
02

.3
3

$1
95

.6
6

$1
85

.9
1

$1
69

.5
7

$1
63

.2
1

$1
78

.6
0

$1
48

.8
8

$1
42

.3
5

E 
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l
$2

23
.0

6
$2

15
.1

5
$2

08
.9

7
$1

99
.6

6
$1

86
.4

4
$1

76
.9

6
$1

92
.7

7
$1

62
.9

3
$1

57
.9

7
F-

1 
Fa

ct
or

y 
an

d 
in

du
st

ria
l, 

m
od

er
at

e 
ha

za
rd

$1
25

.9
0

$1
20

.1
0

$1
13

.1
7

$1
08

.8
2

$9
7.

63
$9

3.
21

$1
04

.2
4

$8
1.

86
$7

6.
65

F-
2 

Fa
ct

or
y 

an
d 

in
du

st
ria

l, 
lo

w
 h

az
ar

d
$1

24
.7

4
$1

18
.9

4
$1

13
.1

7
$1

07
.6

6
$9

7.
63

$9
2.

05
$1

03
.0

8
$8

1.
86

$7
5.

49
H

-1
 H

ig
h 

H
az

ar
d,

 e
xp

lo
si

ve
s

$1
17

.8
6

$1
12

.0
6

$1
06

.2
9

$1
00

.7
8

$9
0.

99
$8

5.
40

$9
6.

20
$7

5.
21

N
P

H
23

4 
H

ig
h 

H
az

ar
d

$1
17

.8
6

$1
12

.0
6

$1
06

.2
9

$1
00

.7
8

$9
0.

99
$8

5.
40

$9
6.

20
$7

5.
21

$6
8.

84
H

-5
 H

PM
$2

10
.1

0
$2

02
.3

3
$1

95
.6

6
$1

85
.9

1
$1

69
.5

7
$1

63
.2

1
$1

78
.6

0
$1

48
.8

8
$1

42
.3

5
I-

1 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
su

pe
rv

is
ed

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t

$2
09

.6
4

$2
02

.0
0

$1
96

.3
7

$1
86

.9
0

$1
72

.9
1

$1
68

.2
4

$1
86

.9
0

$1
55

.0
8

$1
50

.1
4

I-
2 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l, 

ho
sp

ita
ls

$3
53

.5
7

$3
45

.8
1

$3
39

.1
4

$3
29

.3
8

$3
11

.9
5

N
P

$3
22

.0
8

$2
91

.2
6

N
P

I-
2 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l, 

nu
rs

in
g 

ho
m

es
$2

44
.9

9
$2

37
.2

3
$2

30
.5

6
$2

20
.8

0
$2

05
.6

2
N

P
$2

13
.5

0
$1

84
.9

3
N

P
I-

3 
In

st
itu

tio
na

l, 
re

st
ra

in
ed

$2
39

.0
5

$2
31

.2
9

$2
24

.6
1

$2
14

.8
6

$2
00

.2
4

N
P

$2
07

.5
6

$1
79

.5
5

N
P

I-
4 

In
st

itu
tio

na
l, 

da
y 

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s
$2

09
.6

4
$2

02
.0

0
$1

96
.3

7
$1

86
.9

0
$1

72
.9

1
$1

68
.2

4
$1

86
.9

0
$1

55
.0

8
$1

50
.1

4
M

 M
er

ca
nt

ile
$1

53
.3

9
$1

47
.4

2
$1

41
.2

0
$1

34
.4

7
$1

23
.1

7
$1

19
.4

7
$1

27
.9

0
$1

06
.5

1
$1

02
.2

7
R

-1
 R

es
id

en
tia

l, 
ho

te
ls

$2
11

.4
4

$2
03

.8
1

$1
98

.1
7

$1
88

.7
1

$1
75

.0
0

$1
70

.3
3

$1
88

.7
1

$1
57

.1
7

$1
52

.2
3

R
-2

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

m
ul

tip
le

 fa
m

ily
$1

77
.3

1
$1

69
.6

8
$1

64
.0

4
$1

54
.5

7
$1

41
.5

6
$1

36
.8

9
$1

54
.5

7
$1

23
.7

3
$1

18
.7

9
R

-3
 R

es
id

en
tia

l, 
on

e-
 a

nd
 tw

o-
fa

m
ily

$1
66

.9
5

$1
62

.3
6

$1
58

.3
5

$1
54

.0
8

$1
48

.4
2

$1
44

.5
5

$1
51

.4
6

$1
38

.8
9

$1
30

.6
8

R
-4

 R
es

id
en

tia
l, 

ca
re

/a
ss

is
te

d 
liv

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
$2

09
.6

4
$2

02
.0

0
$1

96
.3

7
$1

86
.9

0
$1

72
.9

1
$1

68
.2

4
$1

86
.9

0
$1

55
.0

8
$1

50
.1

4
S-

1 
St

or
ag

e,
 m

od
er

at
e 

ha
za

rd
$1

16
.7

0
$1

10
.9

0
$1

03
.9

7
$9

9.
62

$8
8.

67
$8

4.
24

$9
5.

04
$7

2.
89

$6
7.

68
S-

2 
St

or
ag

e,
 lo

w
 h

az
ar

d
$1

15
.5

4
$1

09
.7

4
$1

03
.9

7
$9

8.
46

$8
8.

67
$8

3.
08

$9
3.

88
$7

2.
89

$6
6.

52
U

 U
til

ity
, m

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s (

Pr
iv

at
e 

G
ar

ag
es

 &
 A

cc
es

so
ry

 
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A
$5

1.
77

O
th

er
 V

al
ua

tio
ns

N
EW

 - 
C

ar
po

rts
 / 

Pa
tio

 C
ov

er
s /

 A
rb

or
s /

 C
ov

er
ed

 P
or

$3
5.

37
N

EW
 - 

D
ec

ks
$1

7.
68

N
EW

 - 
Fi

re
 S

pr
in

kl
er

 (i
nc

lu
de

d 
in

 th
is

 p
er

m
it)

$1
.5

1
N

EW
 - 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 F
ire

 S
pr

in
kl

er
$3

.0
2

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
T

yp
e

B
ui

ld
in

g 
V

al
ua

tio
ns

 T
ab

le
 B

L
-2

1-
B

Sq
ua

re
 F

oo
t C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
os

ts
N

ew
 F

lo
or

 A
re

a 
S.

F.
 V

al
ua

tio
ns

Th
e 

ab
ov

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 m

od
ifi

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 1

.1
6 

re
gi

on
al

 m
od

ifi
er

 fo
r t

he
 S

an
 F

ra
nc

is
co

 B
ay

 A
re

a

157



C
at

eg
or

ie
s o

f W
or

k
W

or
k 

C
at

eg
or

y 
M

od
ifi

er
s a

pp
lie

d 
to

 N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
V

al
ue

s f
or

 A
lte

ra
tio

n 
W

or
k 

N
on

st
ru

ct
ur

al
36

%
St

ru
ct

ur
al

20
%

El
ec

tri
ca

l
8%

Pl
um

bi
ng

 
8%

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l

8%
El

ev
at

or
 o

r C
on

ve
yo

r S
ys

te
m

6%
Fi

re
 S

pr
in

kl
er

s
3%

Sh
el

l O
nl

y?
 

80
%

Fi
rs

t T
im

e 
Te

na
nt

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 O
nl

y?
 

25
%

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
is

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y 

m
ul

tip
ly

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 v

al
ue

(s
) l

is
te

d 
by

 th
e 

gr
os

s a
re

a 
of

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g.

Th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 a
 re

m
od

el
 e

qu
al

s t
he

 a
re

a 
of

 th
e 

re
m

od
el

 ti
m

es
 th

e 
R

M
D

L 
M

od
ifi

er
 ti

m
es

 th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
fo

r a
 n

ew
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

oc
cu

pa
nc

y 
of

 V
B

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
ty

pe
.

N
/A

 =
 N

ot
 A

pp
lic

ab
le

;  
N

P 
= 

N
ot

 P
er

m
itt

ed

A
dd

iti
on

s s
ha

ll 
be

 v
al

ue
d 

at
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

ra
te

 p
er

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
 a

s f
or

 n
ew

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.

A
lte

ra
tio

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t C
at

eg
or

y 
M

od
ifi

er
s

R
ed

uc
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
20

%
 fo

r s
he

ll 
on

ly
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.
R

ed
uc

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

75
%

 fo
r f

irs
t-t

im
e 

tim
e 

te
na

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

nl
y 

pe
rm

its
.

158



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-22

SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Staff Rate 3.00 $51.28 $153.85

Total Salary $153.85
Salary Percent

Benefits: $153.85 31.87% $49.04

Operating Expenses: $153.85 31.92% $49.10

Overhead: $153.85 19.02% $29.27

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $153.85 16.10% $24.77

Total $306.03

Previous Fee: $304.00

Fee Effective 2017: $306.00
per permit

% Change: 1%

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

Building Demolition Inspection Fee

Time and expenses involved in verifying field compliance with various laws 
governing the demolition of an existing structure. The fee is due and payable at 
time of permit issuance.                                                                                   

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

A refund of 100% of the Building Demolition Inspection Fee may be authorized by 
the Building Official when an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work 
has been performed on the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be 
deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) 
year of the date the fee is paid.

[For demolitions of small wood framed accessory structures such as carports or tool 
sheds, the fee may alternatively be based on the standard building permit 
calculation method which is based on valuation of work and could result in a lower 
fee.] 

159



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-23

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Salaries: Hours Rate

Average Staff Rate 6.00 $51.28 $307.70

Total Salary $307.70
Salary Percent

Benefits: $307.70 31.87% $98.07

Operating Expenses: $307.70 31.92% $98.21

Overhead: $307.70 19.02% $58.54

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $307.70 16.10% $49.54

Total $612.05

Previous Fee: $609.00

Fee Effective 2017: $612.00
per permit

% Change: 0%

Building Relocation Inspection Fee

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

Time and expenses involved in verifying and inspecting compliance with various laws 
governing the relocation of an existing structure.  Covers foundation, connection of 
existing plumbing, existing electrical and existing mechanical systems to new utilities. 

A refund of 100% of the Building Relocation Fee may be authorized by the Building 
Official when an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed 
on the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund 
due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

160



Building Department

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-24

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

Previous Fee: Per Electrical Table BL-24-A

Fee Effective 2017: Per Electrical Table BL-24-A
each applicable permit

% Change: -15% (+/-)

Electrical Inspection Fee

Performance of electrical inspections and related administrative work. The fee is due 
and payable at time of permit issuance.   

A refund of 100% of the Electrical Permit Fee may be authorized by the Building 
Official when an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been 
performed on the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from 
any refund due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date 
the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the system or unit fee schedules of the work to be performed 
pursuant to Electrical Table BL-24-A.

161



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-24 (continued)

Electrical  Permit Unit Inspection Fees Unit Fee
Electrical Permit Issuance Fee (Minimum Charge) each $42.50

Services & Sub-Panels
For each new electrical sub-panel each $17.00
For temporary and permanent services 600 volts or under and 1000 amperes or under in rating each $42.50
For services over 600 volts or over 1000 amperes in rating each $68.00

Receptacle, Switches, Controls, Lighting Outlets, Fixtures and Similar Devices
For receptacle, switch, lighting or other outlets at which current is used or controlled and for lighting 
fixtures, sockets or other lamp-holding devices.
Note: For mutli outlet assemblies, each 5 feet or fraction thereof may be considered as one outlet. each $0.85

Residential Appliances
For fixed residential appliances or receptacle outlets for same, including wall mounted electric ovens; 
counter-mounted cooktops; electric ranges, self-contained room, console, or through-wall air 
conditioners; space heaters; food waste grinders; dishwashers; washing machines; water heaters; 
clothes dryers; or other motor-operated appliances not exceeding one horse power (HP) in rating.
Note: For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger electrical 
ratings, see Power Apparatus. each $6.80

Nonresidential Appliances
For nonresidential appliances and self-contained factory-wired non-residential appliances not 
exceeding one horse power (HP), kilowatt (kW), or kilovolt ampere (KVA), in rating including 
cooking equipment, medical and dental devices; food, beverage, and ice cream cabinets; illuminated 
showcases; drinking fountains; vending machines; laundry machines; other similar type of equipment.
Note: For other types of air conditioners and other motor-driven appliances having larger electrical 
ratings, see Power Apparatus. each $10.20

Power Apparatus
For motors, generators, transformers, rectifiers, synchronous converters, capacitors, industrial heating, 
air conditioners and heat pumps, hoods, exhaust fan, cooking or baking equipment and other 
apparatus, as follows:
Notes: For equipment or appliances having more than one motor, transformer, heater, etc., the sum of 
the combined ratings may be used. These fees include all switches, circuit breakers, contactors, 
thermostats, relays and other directly related control equipment .
Rating in horse power (HP), kilowatts (kW), kilovolt-amperes (KVA), or kilovolt-amperes-reactive 
(KVAR):

Up to and including 1 each $10.20
Over 1 and not over 10 each $13.60
Over 10 and not over 50 each $25.50
Over 50 and not over 100 each $51.00
Over 100 each $76.50

Unit Inspection Fee Schedule
Electrical - Table BL-24-A 

162



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-24 (continued)

Electrical  Permit Unit Inspection Fees Unit Fee
Unit Inspection Fee Schedule

Electrical - Table BL-24-A 

Busways
For each 100 ft or fraction thereof of trolley and plug-in type busways.
Note: An additional fee will be required for lighting fixtures, motors and other appliances that are 
connected to trolley and plug-in-type busways. No fee is required for portable tools. each $8.50

Signs, Outline Lighting, Marquees, Pole Lighting, Theatrical Lighting and other Special Purpose 
Nonresidential Lighting

For signs, outline lighting, marquees, pole lighting, theatrical lighting and other special purpose 
nonresidential lighting supplied from one branch circuit each $25.50

Miscellaneous Apparatus, Conduits and Conductors
For electrical apparatus, equipment, conduits and conductors for which a permit is required but for 
which no fee is herein set forth.
Note: This fee is not applicable when a fee is paid for one or more services, outlets, fixtures, 
appliances, power apparatus, busways, signs or other equipment. each $25.50

Carnivals, circuses, or other traveling shows or exhibitions utilizing transportable-type rides, booths, 
displays and attractions. For permanently installed rides, booths, displays and attractions, use the 
ELECTRICAL UNIT FEES.

For electric generators and electrically driven rides each $34.00
For mechanically driven rides, and walk-through attractions or displays having electric lighting and 
for a an area of festoon or booth lighting each $8.50

Photovoltaic Systems 
Roof Mount Systems (including rack system)

For the first 0-15 Kilowatts (kW) for each system each $102.00
For each kW of a system over 15 Kilowatts and less than or equal to 50 Kilowatts each $13.60
For each kW of a system over 50 Kilowatts and less than or equal to 250 Kilowatts each $8.50
For each kw of a system over 250 Kilowatts each $5.10

Ground Mount Systems (including rack & support system)
For the first 0-15 Kilowatts (kw) for each system each $204.00
For each kW of a system over 15 Kilowatts and less than or equal to 50 Kilowatts each $20.40
For each kW of a system over 50 Kilowatts and less than or equal to 250 Kilowatts each $13.60
For each kW of a system over 250 Kilowatts each $8.50

Electric Vehicle Charging Station each $102.00

163



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-25

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Unit Fee: Per Plumbing Table  BL-25-A 

Fee: Per Plumbing Table  BL-25-A 
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Plumbing Inspection Fee

Fee for performing plumbing inspections and related administrative work. The fee is due 
and payable at time of permit issuance.  

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project. The 
Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for 
refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the system or unit fee schedules of the work to be performed pursuant 
to Plumbing Table BL-25-A.   

164



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-25 (continued)

Plumbing Permit "Unit" Inspection Fees Unit Fee
Plumbing Permit Issuance Fee (Minimum Charge) each $42.50

Fixtures, Traps, Water Piping, Drainage Piping and Vents

For each new or replacement plumbing fixture on one trap or a set of fixtures on one trap and served 
by potable water (including water, drainage piping, venting and backflow protection therefore). each $17.00
For each plumbing fixture installed on a Recycled (reclaimed) Water System (including non potable 
water supply and backflow protection therefore). Includes inspection and initial testing of supply and 
cross-connection of the system. each $17.00
For each kitchen-type grease trap, including its vent. each $17.00
For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor including its trap and vent, excepting kitchen-type 
grease traps. each $20.40
For installation, alteration or repair water treatment equipment. each $6.80
For alteration or repair of water piping for each fixture. each $6.80
For repair or alteration of drainage or vent piping for each fixture each $6.80

Water Heaters (Including Solar Thermal)
For each water heater including its vent. each $17.00

Gas Piping Systems
For each fuel gas piping system of five outlets or less. each $8.50
For each additional fuel gas piping outlet over five outlets. each $1.70
For each medical gas piping system of five outlets or less. each $34.00
For each additional medical gas piping outlet over five outlets. each $3.40

Lawn Sprinklers, Backflow Devices and Graywater Disposal Systems
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one meter including backflow
protection devices therefore. each $8.50

For each backflow protective device not otherwise included with the lawn sprinkler system fee. each $8.50

For the installation of each alternative water source (nonpotable) Clothes Washer System each $17.00
For the installation of each water source (nonpotable) Simple System. Includes inspection and initial 
testing of supply and cross-connection of the system. each $76.50
For the installation of each water source (nonpotable) Complex System. Includes inspection and initial 
testing of supply and cross-connection of the system. each $204.00

Rainwater Systems
For the installation of each rainwater drain within a building. each $8.50
For the connection of each pump, tank, fixture, appliance, industrial process, equipment or disposal 
field to a nonpotable rainwater catchment system. Includes inspection and initial testing of supply and 
cross-connection of the system. each $17.00

Miscellaneous
For each fixture, appliance, equipment or piece apparatus regulated by the Plumbing Code but not 
classed in other categories, or for which no other fee is listed in the table. each $8.50

Unit Inspection Fee Schedule
Plumbing - Table BL-25-A 

165



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER:  BL-26

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 0.50 $51.28 $25.64

Total Salary $25.64

Salary Percent
Benefits: $25.64 31.87% $8.17

Operating Expenses: $25.64 31.92% $8.18

Overhead: $25.64 19.02% $4.88

Fixed Assets: $25.64 16.10% $4.13

Total $51.00

Previous Fee for Self Certification: $50.00

Fee for Self Certification Effective 2017: $51.00
each applicab  

% Change: 2%

Water Conserving Plumbing Fixture Verification

This service fee is to recover costs associated with inspecting, verifying and 
administering a program for the upgrading of existing noncompliant plumbing 
fixtures in buildings constructed and approved for use prior to January 1, 1994 
pursuant to the requirements of CA Civil Code Sections 1101.1-1101.8. This is an 
unfunded state mandated program. This fee is due and payable at time of permit 
issuance.   

A refund of 100% of this  fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project. 
The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. 
Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the estimated hourly cost (30 minutes at the average staff rate) to 
perform the service for all applicable permits.

166



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-27

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee: Per Mechanical Table  BL-27-A 

Fee Effective 2017: Per Mechanical Table  BL-27-A 
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Mechanical Inspection Fee

Fee for performing mechanical inspections and related administrative work. The fee 
is due and payable at time of permit issuance.   

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the 
project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. 
Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the system or unit fee schedules of the work to be performed 
pursuant to  Mechanical Table BL-27-A. 

167



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-27 (continued)

Mechanical  Permit Unit Inspection Fees Unit Fee
Mechanical Permit Issuance Fee each $42.50

HVAC Change out
Furnace or air conditioner replacement including ductwork and vents in new residential and new 
single tenant and single use non-residential business office, retail sales or similar light-commercial 
buildings. each $51.00

Furnaces
For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, including ducts 
and vents attached to such appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3kW).  each $22.10
For the installation or relocation of each forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, including ducts 
and vents attached to such appliance over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW). each $25.50
For the installation or relocation of each floor furnace, suspended heater, recessed wall heater or floor-
mounted unit heater, including vent. each $13.60

Appliance Vents
For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed and not included in an 
appliance permit. each $8.50

Repairs or Additions
For the repair of, alteration of, or addition to each heating appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, absorption, evaporative cooling system or air ducts, including 
installation of controls regulated by the Mechanical Code. each $13.60

Boilers, Compressors, Air Conditioners and Absorption Systems
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor to and including 3 horsepower (10.6 
kW), or each absorption system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW). each $17.00
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over three horsepower (10.6 kW) to and 
including 15 horsepower (52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and 
including 500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW). each $25.50
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower (52.7 kW) to and 
including 30 horsepower (105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to 
and including 1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW). each $34.00
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower (105.5 kW) to and 
including 50 horsepower (176 kW), or each absorption system over 1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to 
and including 1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW). each $51.00
For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower (176 kW), or each 
absorption system over 1,750,000 Btu/h(512.9 kW). each $85.00

Unit  Inspection Fee Schedule
Mechanical - Table BL-27-A

168



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-27 (continued)

Mechanical  Permit Unit Inspection Fees Unit Fee
Unit  Inspection Fee Schedule
Mechanical - Table BL-27-A

Air Handlers
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-handling unit which is a portion of a factory-assembled 
appliance cooling unit, evaporative cooler, or absorption unit for which a permit is required 
elsewhere in the Mechanical Code.
For each air-handling unit to and including 10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm), including ducts 
attached thereto. each $13.60
For each air-handling unit over 10,000 cfm each $20.40

Evaporative Coolers
For each evaporative cooler other than portable type. each $13.60

Ventilation and Exhaust
For each ventilation fan connected to a single duct. each $8.50
For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any heating or air conditioning system authorized 
by a permit. each $20.40
For the installation of each hood which is served by mechanical exhaust, including the ducts for such 
hood. each $25.50

Miscellaneous
For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the Mechanical Code but not classed in other 
appliance categories, or for which no other fee is listed in the table. each $13.60

169



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-28

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee:

Fee Effective 2017:

each applicable permit
% Change: 0%

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A and 
BL-27-A

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-
27-A

Energy Inspection Fee

This service is to recover costs associated with inspecting elements required to meet 
State energy efficiency regulations. California Energy Efficiency Standards are State 
mandated locally enforced regulations. This fee is due and payable at time of permit 
issuance.

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the 
project.  The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund 
due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is 
paid.

This fee is based on 20% of the permit fees calculated pursuant to Tables BL-21-A, 
BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-27-A.  

170



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-29

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee:

Fee Effective 2017:
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Accessibility Inspection Fee

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A. 

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A. 

This fee is based on 20% of the permit fees calculated pursuant to Tables BL-21-
A. 

This service is to recover costs associated with inspecting elements required to 
meet State disabled access regulations. California disabled access standards are 
State mandated locally enforced regulations. This fee is due and payable at time 
of permit issuance.   

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when 
an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on 
the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any 
refund due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date 
the fee is paid.

171



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-30

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 1.50 51.28$     $76.93

Total Salary $76.93

Salary Percent
Benefits: $76.93 31.87% $24.52

Operating Expenses: $76.93 31.92% $24.55

Overhead: $76.93 19.02% $14.63

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $76.93 16.10% $12.38

Total $153.01

Previous Fee: $152.00

Fee Effective 2017: $153.00
per permit

% Change: 1%

One & Two Family Re-Roofing Permits

Time and expenses involved in verifying compliance with various laws governing the re-roofing of 
an existing one or two family dwelling. The fee is due and payable at time of permit issuance.  

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an unexpired permit 
has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project. The Refund Processing Fee 
(BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made within one 
(1) year of the date the fee is paid.

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

172



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-31

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Average Staff Rate 6.00 $51.28 $307.70

Total Salary $307.70
Salary Percent

Benefits: $307.70 31.87% $98.07

Operating Expenses: $307.70 31.92% $98.21

Overhead: $307.70 19.02% $58.54

Fixed Assets: Building & Equipment $307.70 16.10% $49.54

Total $612.05

Previous Fee: $609.00

Fee Effective 2017: $612.00
per permit

% Change: 0%

Private Residential Swimming Pool Inspection Fee

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

Time and expenses involved in inspecting compliance with various laws governing the 
construction of swimming pools. This fee includes required grading, building, 
plumbing, mechanical and electrical permit fees for private, one- and two-family 
residential pools. This service also covers costs associated with inspecting elements 
required to meet State swimming pool barrier regulations. California swimming pool 
barrier standards are State mandated locally enforced regulations.

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project.  
The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application 
for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

173



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-32

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee:

Fee Effective 2017:

each applicable permit
% Change: 0%

25% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-
27-A.

25% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A and 
BL-27-A.

Modular and Manufactured Housing Inspection Fee

Fee for performing inspection services related to the California Building Code and 
related administrative work. For detached modular housing and detached 
manufactured housing that has been inspected in the plant through a State or 
Federally approved inspection program.  Any portions of a building that are site-
built are subject to regular inspection fees.

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an 
unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the 
project.  The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. 
Application for refund must be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on 25% of the permit fees calculated pursuant to Tables BL-21-A, 
BL-24-A, BL-25-A and BL-27-A . Any portions of a building that are site-built are 
subject to regular inspection fees (i.e. 100% of calculated inspection fees).

174



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-34

SERVICE: Grading Permit Inspection Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

  Previous Fee:

Fee Effective 2017:
each applicable permit

% Change: 0%

Fee for performing grading inspections and related administrative work. The fee is 
due and payable at time of permit issuance. This fee does not cover Public Works 
Inspections of public or private infrastructure improvements  (i.e. water, gas, sewer, 
storm drainage, curbs, gutters and public sidewalks, public and private streets, etc.) 
associated with a subdivision or other improvement project.

A refund of 100% of the Grading Permit Inspection Fee may be authorized by the 
Building Official when an unexpired permit has been terminated and no work has 
been performed on the project. The Refund Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be 
deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must be made within one (1) 
year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on the cubic yards of grading materials moved, removed or 
processed.   

Per Grading Table BL-34-A

Per Grading Table BL-34-A

175



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET BL-34 (continued)

Building Permit Inspection System Fees
Cubic Yards Fee Inspection Allotment

50 cubic yards or less - $54.00 Covers up to 1 inspection. 
51 to 100 cubic yards - $108.00 Covers up to 2 inspections. 

101 to 1,000 cubic yards - $216.00 Covers up to 3 inspections. 
1,001 to 10,000 cubic yards - $432.00 Covers up to 6 inspections. 

10,001 to 100,000 cubic yards - $864.00 Covers up to 12 inspections. 
100,001 to 200,000 cubic yards - $1,296.00 Covers up to 24 inspections. 

200,001 cubic yards or more - $1,944.00 Covers up to 36 inspections. 

Grading Table BL-34-A
 Inspection Fee Schedule

Any time or expenses for grading inspections exceeding the inspection allotment will be billed to the 
permittee at the Hourly Building Department Rate (see BL-05). This fee only covers grading inspection and 
does not include stormwater management or other agency inspection fees. 

176



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-35

SERVICE: CALGreen Inspection Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee:

Fee Effective 2017: 

each applicable permit
% Change: 0%

This service is to recover applicable costs associated with inspecting elements required to 
meet California Green Building Code (CALGreen) regulations. CALGreen is a State 
mandated, locally enforced green building code. This fee is assessed only on those projects 
where the City staff performs CALGreen inspections (i.e. some addition and alteration 
projects). The CALGreen inspection fee is due and payable at time of permit issuance.

A refund of 100% of this fee may be authorized by the Building Official when an unexpired 
permit has been terminated and no work has been performed on the project.  The Refund 
Processing Fee (BL-12) shall be deducted from any refund due. Application for refund must 
be made within one (1) year of the date the fee is paid.

This fee is based on 20% of the permit fees calculated pursuant to Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, 
BL-25-A, BL-27-A and  BL-34-A, or 1-hr. minimum based on the Hourly Building Dept. 
Rate, whichever is greater.  

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A, BL-27-A and  BL-
34-A, or 1-hr. minimum based on the Hourly Building Dept. Rate, whichever is greater.

20% of calculated Inspection Fees in Tables BL-21-A, BL-24-A, BL-25-A, BL-27-A and 
BL-34-A, or 1-hr. minimum based on the Hourly Building Dept. Rate, whichever is 
greater.

177



Building Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : BL-37

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Paper Type Paper Weight

Roll or 
Paper 
Width Cost Per Sheet

Bond or Bright White 20-24lb 36" 7.10 + 0.20 per foot
Coated Paper 26lb 24" 7.10 + 0.10 per foot
Coated Paper 26lb 36" 7.10 + 0.30 per foot
Super Heavyweight Coated 42lb 36" 7.10 + 0.90 per foot
Vellum 3.3 mil 36" 7.10 + 0.40 per foot
High Gloss Photo 9 mil 36" 7.10 + 1.90 per foot

% Change: 0%

Large Format Printing Costs

Large Format Printing Costs

Cost to customer for large format printing services using the City's plotter.

No refund available.

These fees are based on the actual costs for plotter supplies and amortized costs 
for the plotter and maintenance. 

178



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-02

SERVICE: Residential Parking Permit

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: Administrative Aide 0.1 $60.49 $6.05

Total Salary $6.05
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $6.05 31.92% $1.93

City Overhead $6.05 19.02% $1.15

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $6.05 16.10% $0.97

Total $10.10

Previous Fee: $20.00
per permit

Fee Effective 2017: $10.00

To issue parking permits to residents who live in a designated residential 
three hour parking zone.  Requires verification of resident status

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

No refund available.

179



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: Administrative Aide 0.5 $60.49 $30.25
Chief 0.75 $138.09 $103.57

Total Salary $133.81
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $133.81 31.92% $42.71

City Overhead $133.81 19.02% $25.46

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $133.81 16.10% $21.54

Total $223.52

Previous Fee: $204.00
per request

Fee Effective 2017: $223.00

%Change: 9%

Analysis of statistical information for Alcoholic Beverage Control 
License. Prepare Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity.

Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

No refund available.

180



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-04

SERVICE: Dog License

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: CSO 0.4 $46.42 $18.57

Total Salary $18.57
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $18.57 31.92% $5.93

City Overhead $18.57 19.02% $3.53

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $18.57 16.10% $2.99

Total $31.02

Previous Fee: Varies

Cost: $31.00

Dog Licenses (based on recommended fee for unaltered dog)

Altered $25.00 per license

Unaltered $50.00 per license

Late Penalty $15.00 Altered per license
$30.00 Unaltered per license

Duplicate/Transfer $5.00 per license

Senior Citizen (62 and older)* $10.00 Altered per license
*applies to first license only $25.00 Unaltered per license

To issue a license for dogs that reside in the city limits.  This includes 
review of appropriate paperwork and maintenance of database.  State Ag 
code 30804.5 Ag code requires a 50% discount for altered dogs.  A 50% 
discount for the first dog licensed to (and by) a senior citizen (62 and older) 
is proposed.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

No refund available.

181



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-05

SERVICE: Kennel fee per day

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: CSO 0.6 $46.42 $27.85

Total Salary $27.85
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $27.85 31.92% $8.89

City Overhead $27.85 19.02% $5.30

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $27.85 16.10% $4.48

Total $46.52

Previous Fee: $60.00

Fee Effective 2017: $40.00
per day

%Change: -33%

Boarding of animals.  This includes food, cleaning supplies, and exercise. 
This fee is charged for animals brought into PD and for animals picked up 
by Police Department Staff.  This fee is charged after one day (PD-09 is 
charged for the first day).  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

No refund available.

182



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-06

SERVICE: Dog Show Permit

Description Of  Service:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: CSO 0.6 $46.42 $27.85

$27.85
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $27.85 31.92% $8.89

City Overhead $27.85 19.02% $5.30

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $27.85 16.10% $4.48

Total $46.52

Previous Fee: $48.00

Fee Effective 2017: $46.00
per permit

%Change: -4%

Clerical time and expenses in issuing Dog Show Permit.

No refund available.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

183



Police
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-07

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: Traffic Officer 0.75 $93.11 $69.83
Police Chief 0.25 $138.09 $34.52

Total Salary $104.36
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $104.36 31.92% $33.31

City Overhead $104.36 19.02% $19.85

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $104.36 16.10% $16.80

Total $174.31

Previous Fee: $166.00

Fee Effective 2017: $174.00
per permit

%Change: 5%

Animal-Drawn Vehicle Permit

To issue permits for animal-drawn vehicles.  Includes time associated with 
permit paperwork, inspection, and issuance of Mandated City Resolution #25-
2009

No refund available.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

184



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-08

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary, benefits and overhead: CSO 0.8 $46.42 $37.14

Total Salary $37.14

Salary Percent
Operating Expense $37.14 31.92% $11.85

City Overhead $37.14 19.02% $7.06

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $37.14 16.10% $5.98

Total $62.03

Previous Fee: $81.00

Fee Effective 2017: $60.00
per animal surrendered

%Change: -26%

Owner surrender of animal

The fee is charged to pet owners who surrender their animals to the animal 
control officer if they can no longer care for them.  Fee covers the 
associated paperwork, kenneling, and sheltering/adoption fees.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

No refund available.

185



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-09

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: CSO 0.33 $46.42 $15.32

Total Salary $15.32
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $15.32 31.92% $4.89

City Overhead $15.32 19.02% $2.91

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $15.32 16.10% $2.47

Total $25.59

Previous Fee: varies

Fee Effective 2017: $25.00
per animal surrendered

%Change: N/A

Animal Impound Fee - Animal Brought by Public

This fee is charged for animals brought into PD by public.  This fee is 
charged to the owner of the animal for the first day.  After the first day, PD-
05 (Kennel Fee) applies. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

In addition to the fees specified, the owner will be responsible for any costs 
incurred by the City for contract service such as veterinary services plus 
Standard Administrative Overhead (CA-09) shall apply.  This fee includes 
the first 24 hours in the kennel.  After the first day, the daily kennel fee 
applies.

No refund available.

186



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-10

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salary based on YFS contract cost YFS Mgr 6.5 28.78$      $187.08

Total Salary $187.08

Salary Percent
Operating Expense $187.08 31.92% $59.71

City Overhead $187.08 19.02% $35.59

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $187.08 16.10% $30.12

Total Cost $312.50

Previous Fee: $150.00

Fee Effective 2017: $150.00
per incident

* Salary based upon YFS contract cost.
* If juvenile provides proof that family is qualify for free school lunch, fee is reduced to $50. 

Fee is charged to  participate in Youth and Family Services program.  Per 
Resolution, this fee may be reduced/waived based upon ability to pay.  Fees 
collected are shared with the Sheriff's Office since they pay for half the 
program.

Fee Established by City RESOLUTION NO. 35-2012

 Juvenile Diversion Fee

No refund available.

187



Police Department
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PD-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE

Salary, benefits and Police Department overhead: CSO 0.8 $46.42 $37.14

Total Salary $37.14
Salary Percent

Operating Expense $37.14 31.92% $11.85

City Overhead $37.14 19.02% $7.06

Fixed Assets (Building and Equipment): $37.14 16.10% $5.98

Total $62.03

Previous Fee: varies

Fee Effective 2017: $60.00
per animal surrendered

%Change: N/A

No refund available.

Animal Impound Fee

This fee is charged for animals brought into PD and for animals picked up 
(impounded such as for running at large) by Police Department Staff.  This 
fee is charged for the first day.  After the first day, PD-05 (Kennel Fee) 
applies. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies.  

In addition to the fees specified, the owner will be responsible for any costs 
incurred by the City for contract service such as veternary services plus 
Standard Administrative Overhead (CA-09) shall apply.  This fee includes 
the first 24 hours in the kennel.  After the first day, the daily kennel fee 
applies.

188



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-01

SERVICE: Public Notice

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.10 $67.20 $6.72
Senior Planner 0.40 $51.45 $20.58
Associate Planner 0.10 $48.72 $3.43
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $33.66

Salary Percent
Benefits: $33.66 31.87% $10.73

Operating Expenses: $33.66 31.92% $10.74

Overhead: $33.66 19.02% $6.40

Fixed Assets: $33.66 16.10% $5.42

Publication Fee, postage and materials $25.00 $25.00

Total $91.95

Previous Fee: $92.00

Fee Effective 2017: $91.00
per hearing noticed
Change: -1.09%

Processing, administration and direct costs associated with preparing and posting public 
notices for planning applications.

Full refund minus calculated staff costs based on time expended notice has not been 
issued.  Non-refundable after notices have been issued.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

189



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-02

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 2.00 $67.20 $134.40
Senior Planner 3.00 $51.45 $154.35
Associate Planner 2.50 $48.72 $121.80
Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

Total Salary $425.20

Salary Percent
Benefits: $425.20 31.87% $135.52

Operating Expenses: $425.20 31.92% $135.71

Overhead: $425.20 19.02% $80.89

Fixed Assets: $425.20 16.10% $68.45

Total $845.76

Previous Fee: $756.00

Fee Effective 2017:* $745.00
per application + $50 per lot (minimum fee - $845)

Change: -1%
*$50.00 per lot fee is charged (minimum $100), in addition to the base fee of $750
* In addition to the base fee, engineering time will be billed on an hourly basis. Deposit required.

Tentative Parcel Map

Processing and administration of an application for a tentative parcel map (four lots or fewer).

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs based 
on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to the first Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
associated with the activity.

190



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 5.00 $67.20 $336.00
Senior Planner 7.00 $51.45 $360.15
Associate Planner 7.00 $48.72 $341.04
Administrative Asst 1.00 $29.29 $29.29

Total Salary $1,066.48

Salary Percent
Benefits: $1,066.48 31.87% $339.92

Operating Expenses: $1,066.48 31.92% $340.38

Overhead: $1,066.48 19.02% $202.88

Fixed Assets: $1,066.48 16.10% $171.70

Total $2,121.36

Previous Fee: $1,900.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,871.00
per application + $50 per lot (minimum fee - $2,121)

Change: -1.53%

* In addition to the base fee, engineering time will be billed on an hourly basis. A deposit is required (PW-15)

Tentative Subdivision Map

*$50.00 per lot fee is charged (minimum of $250), in addition to the base fee of 

Processing and administration of an application for a tentative subdivision map (5 or more 
lots).

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs based 
on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to the first Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

191



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-04

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.10 $67.20 $6.72
Senior Planner 0.50 $51.45 $25.73
Associate Planner 1.00 $48.72 $48.72
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $84.09

Salary Percent
Benefits: $84.09 31.87% $26.80

Operating Expenses: $84.09 31.92% $26.84

Overhead: $84.09 19.02% $16.00

Fixed Assets: $84.09 16.10% $13.54

Total $167.27

Previous Fee: $170.00

Fee Effective 2017: $167.00
per application

Change: -1.76%

Music License

Processing and administration of an application for a Music License.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
associated with the activity.

192



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.10 $51.45 $5.15
Associate Planner 0.80 $48.72 $38.98
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $47.05

Salary Percent
Benefits: $47.05 31.87% $15.00

Operating Expenses: $47.05 31.92% $15.02

Overhead: $47.05 19.02% $8.95

Fixed Assets: $47.05 16.10% $7.57

Total $93.59

Previous Fee: $95.00

Fee Effective 2017: $93.00
per permit

Change: -2.11%

Temporary Use Permit

Processing and administration of an application for Temporary Use permit approval. (Note: 
this is typically an administrative action.)

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

193



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-06

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.30 $67.20 $20.16
Senior Planner 1.25 $51.45 $64.31
Associate Planner 2.00 $48.72 $97.44
Administrative Asst 0.20 $29.29 $5.86

Total Salary $187.77

Salary Percent
Benefits: $187.77 31.87% $59.85

Operating Expenses: $187.77 31.92% $59.93

Overhead: $187.77 19.02% $35.72

Fixed Assets: $187.77 16.10% $30.23

Total $373.50

Previous Fee: $380.00

Fee Effective 2017: $373.00
per permit

Change: -1.84%

Minor Use Permit/Exception

Processing and administration of an application for Minor Use permit approval and 
Exceptions.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

194



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-07

SERVICE: Major Use Permit

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 2.00 $67.20 $134.40
Senior Planner 3.00 $51.45 $154.35
Associate Planner 2.00 $48.72 $97.44
Administrative Asst 0.40 $29.29 $11.72

Total Salary $397.91
Salary Percent

Benefits: $397.91 31.87% $126.82

Operating Expenses: $397.91 31.92% $127.00

Overhead: $397.91 19.02% $75.70

Fixed Assets: $397.91 16.10% $64.06

Total $791.48

Previous Fee: $800.00

Fee Effective 2017: $791.00
per permit

Change: -1.13%

Processing and administration of an application for a Major Use permit approval.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

195



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-08

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.50 $67.20 $33.60
Senior Planner 2.50 $51.45 $128.63
Associate Planner 1.50 $48.72 $73.08
Administrative Asst 0.20 $29.29 $5.86

Total Salary $241.16

Salary Percent
Benefits: $241.16 31.87% $76.87

Operating Expenses: $241.16 31.92% $76.97

Overhead: $241.16 19.02% $45.88

Fixed Assets: $241.16 16.10% $38.83

Total $479.70

Previous Fee: $486.00

Fee Effective 2017: $479.00
per application

Change: -1.44%

Variance

Processing of an application for a Variance.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

196



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-09

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 5.00 $67.20 $336.00
Senior Planner 5.00 $51.45 $257.25
Associate Planner 5.00 $48.72 $114.25
Administrative Asst 1.00 $29.29 $29.29

Total Salary $736.79

Salary Percent
Benefits: $736.79 31.87% $234.84

Operating Expenses: $736.79 31.92% $235.16

Overhead: $736.79 19.02% $140.16

Fixed Assets: $736.79 16.10% $118.62

Total $1,465.57

Previous Fee: $1,480.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,465.00
per application

Change: -1.01%

Planned Unit Development

Processing and administration of an application for Planned Unit Development approval.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

197



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-10

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 2.00 $67.20 $134.40
Senior Planner 4.00 $51.45 $205.80
Associate Planner 3.00 $48.72 $146.16
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $493.68

Salary Percent
Benefits: $493.68 31.87% $157.35

Operating Expenses: $493.68 31.92% $157.57

Overhead: $493.68 19.02% $93.92

Fixed Assets: $493.68 16.10% $79.48

Total $981.99

Previous Fee: $995.00

Fee Effective 2017: $981.00
per application

Change: -1.41%

Rezoning

Processing and administration of an application for a rezoning.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

198



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 3.00 $67.20 $201.60
Senior Planner 5.00 $51.45 $257.25
Associate Planner 3.50 $48.72 $170.52
Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

Total Salary $644.02

Salary Percent
Benefits: $644.02 31.87% $205.27

Operating Expenses: $644.02 31.92% $205.55

Overhead: $644.02 19.02% $122.51

Fixed Assets: $644.02 16.10% $103.68

Total $1,281.02

Previous Fee: $1,296.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,281.00
per application

Change: -1.16%

Prezoning/Annexation

Processing and administration of an application for a Prezoning and related activities 
associated with the annexation of property.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

199



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-12

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 4.00 $67.20 $268.80
Senior Planner 6.00 $51.45 $308.70
Associate Planner 4.00 $48.72 $194.88
Administrative Asst 1.00 $29.29 $29.29

Total Salary $801.67

Salary Percent
Benefits: $801.67 31.87% $255.52

Operating Expenses: $801.67 31.92% $255.87

Overhead: $801.67 19.02% $152.50

Fixed Assets: $801.67 16.10% $129.06

Total $1,594.62

Previous Fee: $1,612.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,594.00
per application

Change: -1.12%

Processing and administration of an application for a General Plan Amendment.

General Plan Amendment

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

200



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-13

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.25 $67.20 $16.80
Senior Planner 1.00 $51.45 $51.45
Associate Planner 1.20 $48.72 $58.46
Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

Total Salary $141.36

Salary Percent
Benefits: $141.36 31.87% $45.06

Operating Expenses: $141.36 31.92% $45.12

Overhead: $141.36 19.02% $26.89

Fixed Assets: $141.36 16.10% $22.76

Total $281.18

Previous Fee: $284.00

Fee Effective 2017: $281.00
per request for modification or revision

Change: -1.06%

Modification of an Approved Plan

Modification or revision to a development proposal that was previously approved by the 
Planning Commission or Design Review Commission.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

201



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-14

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.00 $67.20 $0.00
Senior Planner 1.25 $51.45 $64.36
Associate Planner 0.50 $48.72 $24.36
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $96.05

Salary Percent
Benefits: $96.05 31.87% $30.61

Operating Expenses: $96.05 31.92% $30.65

Overhead: $96.05 19.02% $18.27

Fixed Assets: $96.05 16.10% $15.46

Total $191.05

Previous Fee: $192.00

Fee Effective 2017:* $191.00
per application

Change: -0.52%

Deferral Agreement

Processing and administration of an application for the deferral of public improvements.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
associated with the activity.

*Plus engineering time, which will be billed on an hourly basis. Deposit required (PW-15).

202



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-15

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 3.00 $67.20 $201.60
Senior Planner 5.00 $51.45 $257.25
Associate Planner 2.00 $48.72 $97.44
Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

Total Salary $570.94

Salary Percent
Benefits: $570.94 31.87% $181.97

Operating Expenses: $570.94 31.92% $182.22

Overhead: $570.94 19.02% $108.61

Fixed Assets: $570.94 16.10% $91.92

Total $1,135.66

Previous Fee: $1,146.00

Fee Effective 2017: $1,135.00
per Initial Study

Change: -0.96%

Environmental Review (Initial Study)

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

Preparation of an initial study in conformance with the requirements of CEQA.

203



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-16

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 30.00 $67.20 $2,016.00
Senior Planner 40.00 $51.45 $2,058.00
Associate Planner 40.00 $48.72 $1,948.80
Administrative Asst 6.00 $29.29 $175.74

Total Salary $6,198.54
Salary Percent

Benefits: $6,198.54 31.87% $1,975.66

Operating Expenses: $6,198.54 31.92% $1,978.36

Overhead: $6,198.54 19.02% $1,179.17

Fixed Assets: $6,198.54 16.10% $997.92

Other Costs: Contract cost of EIR consultants (paid by applicant).

Total $12,329.65

Previous Fee: 15% of contract cost

Fee Effective 2017: 15% of contract cost

Change: 0.00%

Environmental Review (Environmental Impact Report)

Preparation of an Environmental Impact Report, including consultant selection, administration and support.

Not Refundable.  Fees are charged as they occur.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies associated with 
the activity.

* Staff recommends connecting the fee to the cost of the EIR consultant contract so that less complicated projects are not penalized and larger 
projects pay their fair share.

204



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-17

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 2.00 $67.20 $134.40
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $137.33

Salary Percent
Benefits: $137.33 31.87% $43.77

Operating Expenses: $137.33 31.92% $43.83

Overhead: $137.33 19.02% $26.12

Fixed Assets: Equipment  $137.33 16.10% $22.11

Total $273.16

Previous Fee: $274.00

Fee Effective 2017:* $273.00
per application

Change: -0.36%

*Plus engineering time, which will be billed on an hourly basis. Deposit required (PW-15).

Lot Line Adjustment/Lot Merger/Certificate of Compliance

Processing and administration of an application for a lot line adjustment, lot merger, or 
certificate of compliance.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

205



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-18

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

Hours Rate
Salaries: Planning Director 2.00 $67.20 $134.40

Senior Planner 2.00 $51.45 $102.90
Associate Planner 2.00 $48.72 $97.44
Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

Total Salary $349.39

Salary Percent
Benefits: $349.39 31.87% $111.36

Operating Expenses: $349.39 31.92% $111.51

Overhead: $349.39 19.02% $66.46

Fixed Assets: $349.39 16.10% $56.25

Total $694.97

Previous Fee: $703.00

Fee Effective 2017: $694.00
per appeal

Change: -1.28%

*The City Council has previously chosen to subsidize this fee.

Appeal

Processing and administration of an appeal.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

CALCULATION OF FEE

206



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-19

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

Hours Rate
Salaries: Planning Director 0.00 $67.20 $0.00

Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 0.50 $48.72 $24.36
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $27.29

Salary Percent
Benefits: $27.29 31.87% $8.70

Operating Expenses: $27.29 31.92% $8.71

Overhead: $27.29 19.02% $5.19

Fixed Assets: $27.29 16.10% $4.39

Total $54.28

Previous Fee: $55.00

Fee Effective 2017: $54.00
per application

Change: -1.82%

Sign Review (Administrative)

Processing of an application for administrative sign review.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to approval.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

CALCULATION OF FEE

207



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-20

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 1.00 $48.72 $48.72
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $51.65

Salary Percent
Benefits: $51.65 31.87% $16.46

Operating Expenses: $51.65 31.92% $16.48

Overhead: $51.65 19.02% $9.83

Fixed Assets: $51.65 16.10% $8.32

Total $102.74

Previous Fee: $105.00

Fee Effective 2017: $102.00
per application

Change: -2.86%

Sign Review (DRC)

Processing and administration of an application for sign review subject to the review of 
the Design Review Commission.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to approval.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

208



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-21

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 1.50 $48.72 $73.08
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $76.01

Salary Percent
Benefits: $76.01 31.87% $24.23

Operating Expenses: $76.01 31.92% $24.26

Overhead: $76.01 19.02% $14.46

Fixed Assets: $76.01 16.10% $12.24

Total $151.19

Previous Fee: $155.00

Fee Effective 2017: $151.00
per application

Change: -2.58%

Design Review (Alteration)

Processing and administration of an application for design review involving the 
alteration of an existing building.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

209



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-22

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.50 $51.45 $25.73
Associate Planner 1.75 $48.72 $85.26
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $118.31

Salary Percent
Benefits: $118.31 31.87% $37.71

Operating Expenses: $118.31 31.92% $37.76

Overhead: $118.31 19.02% $22.51

Fixed Assets: $118.31 16.10% $19.05

Total $235.33

Previous Fee: $240.00

Fee Effective 2017: $235.00
per application

Change: -2.08%

Design Review (Minor)

Processing and administration of an application for design review of minor commercial 
development (involving additions or new construction of less than 5,000 square feet) or 
minor residential development (new development of 4 or fewer units).

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

210



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-23

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.00 $67.20 $0.00
Senior Planner 2.50 $51.45 $128.63
Associate Planner 3.00 $48.72 $146.16
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $282.11

Salary Percent
Benefits: $282.11 31.87% $89.92

Operating Expenses: $282.11 31.92% $90.04

Overhead: $282.11 19.02% $53.67

Fixed Assets: $282.11 16.10% $45.42

Total $561.15

Previous Fee: $571.00

Fee Effective 2017: $561.00
per application

Change: -1.75%

Design Review (Major)

Processing and administration of an application for design review of major commercial 
development (involving additions or new construction of 5,000 square feet or more) or major 
residential development (new development of 5 or more units).

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
associated with the activity.

211



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-24

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 2.00 $48.72 $97.44
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $100.37

Salary Percent
Benefits: $100.37 31.87% $31.99

Operating Expenses: $100.37 31.92% $32.03

Overhead: $100.37 19.02% $19.09

Fixed Assets: $100.37 16.10% $16.16

Total $199.65

Previous Fee: $205.00

Fee Effective 2017: $199.00
per application

Change: -2.93%

Design Review (Landscaping Plan)

Processing and administration of an application for design review of a landscaping plan.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

212



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-25

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.25 $67.20 $16.80
Senior Planner 1.00 $51.45 $51.45
Associate Planner 3.00 $48.72 $146.16
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $221.73

Benefits: $221.73 31.87% $70.67

Operating Expenses: $221.73 31.92% $70.77

Overhead: $221.73 19.02% $42.18

Fixed Assets: $221.73 16.10% $35.70

Total $441.05

Previous Fee: $450.00

Fee Effective 2017: $441.00
per application

Change: -2.00%

Design Review (Demolition or Relocation)

Processing and administration of an application for design review involving the 
demolition or relocation of an existing building.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

213



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-26

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.10 $67.20 $6.72
Senior Planner 0.20 $51.45 $10.29
Associate Planner 0.30 $48.72 $14.62
Administrative Asst 0.15 $29.29 $4.39

Total Salary $36.02
Salary Percent

Benefits: $36.02 31.87% $11.48

Operating Expenses: $36.02 31.92% $11.50

Overhead: $36.02 19.02% $6.85

Fixed Assets: $36.02 16.10% $5.80

Total $71.65

Previous Fee: $72.00

Fee Effective 2017: $71.00
per application

Change: -1.39%

Home Occupation Permit

Processing and administration of an application for a home occupation permit.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to approval.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

214



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-27

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 1.00 $67.20 $67.20
Senior Planner 1.00 $51.45 $51.45
Associate Planner 1.00 $48.72 $48.72

Average Salary $55.79
Salary Percent

Benefits: $55.79 31.87% $17.78

Operating Expenses: $55.79 31.92% $17.81

Overhead: $55.79 19.02% $10.61

Fixed Assets: $55.79 16.10% $8.98

Total $110.97

Previous Hourly Fee: $112.00

Fee Effective 2017: $110.00
per hour*

Change: -1.79%

*Charged in 15-minute increments

Building Plan Review

Review of building permit plans for compliance with zoning regulations and conditions of 

Non-refundable.

This fee is charged on an hourly basis with a 15 minute minimum at the time of issuance of 
a building permit. Due to the varied nature and requirements of building permit plans, the 
fee is charged at an hourly rate based on actual time expended.   

215



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-28

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.00 $67.20 $0.00
Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 0.50 $48.72 $24.36
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $27.29

Salary Percent
Benefits: $27.29 31.87% $8.70

Operating Expenses: $27.29 31.92% $8.71

Overhead: $27.29 19.02% $5.19

Fixed Assets: $27.29 16.10% $4.39

Total $54.28

Previous Fee: $55.00

Fee Effective 2017: $54.00
per request

Change: -1.82%

Extension

Processing a request for an extension of an approved use permit or tentative map.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and 
supplies associated with the activity.

216



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-29

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 0.60 $48.72 $29.23
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $32.16

Salary Percent
Benefits: $32.16 31.87% $10.25

Operating Expenses: $32.16 31.92% $10.26

Overhead: $32.16 19.02% $6.12

Fixed Assets: $32.16 16.10% $5.18

Total $63.97

Previous Fee: $65.00
Previous Annual Renewal Fee: $25.00

Fee Effective 2017: $63.00
Annual Renewal Fee Effective 2017: $25.00

per application
Change: -3.08%

Sidewalk Seating/Outdoor Display Permit

Processing of an application for a sidewalk seating permit or an outdoor display permit.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs based 
on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to approval.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
associated with the activity.

217



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-30

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 1.00 $67.20 $67.20
Senior Planner 0.00 $51.45 $0.00
Associate Planner 0.00 $48.72 $0.00
Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $74.52

Salary Percent
Benefits: $74.52 31.87% $23.75

Operating Expenses: $74.52 31.92% $23.79

Overhead: $74.52 19.02% $14.18

Fixed Assets: $74.52 16.10% $12.00

Total $148.23

Previous Fee: $148.00

Fee Effective 2017: $148.00
per application

Change: 0.00%

Interpretation

Processing and administration of an application for an interpretation (Planning 
Commission review).

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if 
application is withdrawn prior to any Planning Commission hearing on the item.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

218



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-31

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: $0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Average Staff Rate 1.00 $55.79 $55.79

Total Salary (Based on Average Staff Rate): $55.79
Salary Percent

Benefits: $55.79 31.87% $17.78

Operating Expenses: $55.79 31.92% $17.81

Overhead: $55.79 19.02% $10.61

Fixed Assets: $55.79 16.10% $8.98

Total $110.97

Previous Hourly Fee: $112.00

Fee Effective 2017: $110.00
per hour*

Change: -1.79%

*Charged in 15-minute increments

Research

Performing research.

Non-refundable.

This fee is charged on an hourly basis with a 15 minute minimum. This fee is based upon 
the hourly rate (after overhead and expenses) of the staff person performing the review.

219



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-32

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: $0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Average Staff Rate 1.00 $55.79 $55.79

Total Salary (Based on Average Staff Rate): $55.79
Salary Percent

Benefits: $55.79 31.87% $17.78

Operating Expenses: $55.79 31.92% $17.81

Overhead: $55.79 19.02% $10.61

Fixed Assets: $55.79 16.10% $8.98

Total $110.97

Previous Hourly Fee: $112.00

Fee Effective 2017: $110.00
per hour*

Change: -1.79%

*Charged in 15-minute increments

Inspection

Carrying out required field inspections to ensure compliance with zoning regulations and 

Non-refundable.

This fee is charged on an hourly basis with a 1 hour minimum at the time of issuance of 
a building permit.  Due to the varied nature and requirements of building permit plans, 
this fee is based upon actual time and material costs. 

220



Planning Division
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PL-33

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Planning Director 0.00 $67.20 $0.00
Senior Planner 0.40 $51.45 $20.58
Associate Planner 0.40 $48.72 $19.49
Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93

Total Salary $43.00

Salary Percent
Benefits: $43.00 31.87% $13.70

Operating Expenses: $43.00 31.92% $13.72

Overhead: $43.00 19.02% $8.18

Fixed Assets: $43.00 16.10% $6.92

Publication Fee, postage and materials $7.00

Total $92.53

Previous Fee: $93.00

Fee Effective 2017: $92.00
per application

Change: -1.08%

Zoning Permit

Processing of an application for a Zoning Permit.

No refund after application has been processed.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs 
based on time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application 
is withdrawn prior to approval.

This fee is based upon an average allocation of the costs of personnel, services and 
supplies associated with the activity.

221



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-01

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Maintenance Worker II 2.00 $30.60 $61.20
Streets Superintendent 1.50 $41.73 $62.60

Total Salary $123.80

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $123.80 31.87% $39.46

Operating Expenses: $123.80 31.92% $39.51

Overhead: $123.80 19.02% $23.55

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $123.80 16.10% $19.93

Total $246.24

Previous Fee: $238 + $20 per space

Fee Effective 2017: $246 + $20 per space

Percent Change: 3.36%

Parking Barricades - Placement & Retrieval

Staff time and expenses associated with placing "No Parking" signs and retrieving 
barricades for special events or construction activities. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  $238 is 
base fee for staff time required for preparing vehicle, loading and delivery of barricades, 
retrieving barricades and making vehicle available for next assignment. $20 per space is 
rental fee per space including barricade.  

This fee is based on two hours of staff time for barricade set up.  If additional staff hours 
are required during normal business hours, those hours may be charged at the hourly rate 
specified in PW-14.  If service is required after normal business hours (including 
additional hours), the Public Works After Hours Service Charge / Overtime Fee or 
Public Works After Hours Service Charge/ Sunday & Holiday Fee may be charged in 
addition to or substituted for any fee that is based on hourly rate.

No refund after event has occurred.  Full refund minus calculated staff costs based on 
time expended between time of application and issuance of refund if application is 
withdrawn prior to placement of barricades.

222



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administration Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
Streets Superintendent or 
Water Operations 
Supervisor 1 $42.79 $42.79

Total Salary $50.11

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $50.11 31.87% $15.97

Operating Expenses: $50.11 31.92% $15.99

Overhead: $50.11 19.02% $9.53

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $50.11 16.10% $8.07

Standard Plan Update Fee: $50.11 16.00% $8.02

Total $107.69

Previous Fee: $107.00

Fee Effective 2017: $107.00
per hour

% Change: 0.00%

Staff time and expenses associated with conducting public works and site 
improvement inspections including associated document review, 
recordkeeping, and travel time.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies 
for one hour of activity.  Actual number of hours will vary depending on the 
project. 1/2 hour minimum charge for any service covered by this fee. 16% of 
the Total Salary is added to this fee for the purpose of recovering costs to 
maintain the City's Standard Plans. 

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file 
documents and maintaining micrographics equipment.

Public Works Inspection Fee

If service is required after normal business hours, the Public Works After 
Hours Service Charge / Overtime Fee or Public Works After Hours Service 
Charge/ Sunday & Holiday Fee may be charged in addition to or substituted 
for any fee that is based on hourly rate.

No Refund.  Fee charged as occurs.  

223



Public Works

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-04

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Engineer 1.00 $68.54 $68.54
Administration Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32

Total Salary $75.86
 Salary Percent

Benefits: $75.86 31.87% $24.18

Operating Expenses: $75.86 31.92% $24.21

Overhead: $75.86 19.02% $14.43

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $75.86 16.10% $12.21

Standard Plan Update Fee: $75.86 16.00% $12.14

Total $163.04

Previous Fee: $158.00

Fee Effective 2017: $163.00
per hour

% Change: 3.16%

Actual time and expenses associated with checking subdivision maps, public 
improvement plans, and site review services by the City Engineer.  Activities 
may include, but are not limited to, performing plan review and related services 
(e.g. corresponding with applicants, design meetings, preliminary site 
investigations, code research, etc.) for building or grading permit applications, 
subdivision improvements, parcel maps, and similar improvements.  

Full refund minus calculated staff costs based on time expended between time 
of application and issuance of refund if application is withdrawn prior to final 
approval.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 
The fee shall be charged at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof. 

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file 
documents and maintaining micrographics equipment.

City Engineer Map and Plan Checking Services 

This fee may be charged at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof. In 
the event that this service is outsourced, the actual vendor costs shall be passed 
through to the applicant with additional charges as specified in Fee CA-09 
(Standard Administrative Overhead).  

224



Public Works

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: City Engineer 1.00 $68.54 $68.54

Total Salary $68.54

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $68.54 31.87% $21.85

Operating Expenses: $68.54 31.92% $21.88

Overhead: $68.54 19.02% $13.04

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $68.54 16.10% $11.03

Standard Plan Update Fee: $68.54 16.00% $10.97

Total $147.30

Previous Fee: $147.00

Fee Effective 2017: $147.00
per hour

% Change: 0.00%

Actual time and expenses associated with inspection of public works projects by 
the City Engineer.

City Engineer Inspection Fee

Full refund minus calculated staff costs based on time expended between time of 
application and issuance of refund if application is withdrawn prior to final 
inspection.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies. 
The fee shall be charged at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof.  In 
the event that City Engineer Inspection services are provided by an outside 
vendor, the actual vendor costs shall be passed through to the applicant with 
additional charges as specified in Fee CA-09 (Standard Administrative 
Overhead).  Sixteen percent (16%) is added to this fee for the purpose of 
recovering costs to maintain the City's Standard Plans.  This fee may be charged 
at increments of 15 minutes or any portion thereof. 

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file 
documents and maintaining micrographics equipment.

225



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-06

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administration Asst 1.25 $29.29 $36.61
Streets Superintendent 1 $41.73 $41.73

Total Salary $78.34

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $78.34 31.87% $24.97

Operating Expenses: $78.34 31.92% $25.00

Overhead: $78.34 19.02% $14.90

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $78.34 16.10% $12.61

Standard Plan Update Fee: $15.00 $15.00

Total $170.83

Previous Fee: $168.00

Fee Effective 2017: $170.00
per permit

% Change: 1.19%

Encroachment Permit Fee (Minor)

This fee is non-refundable.

Staff time and expenses associated with issuing an encroachment permit for 
activities in the public right of way, including but not limited to, parking 
construction related vehicles, placing a debris box for an extended period of 
time, planting a tree, and other minor work not requiring City Engineer 
review. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies. 
$15 per permit is allocated for the purpose of maintaining PW standard plans.

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file 
documents and maintaining micrographics equipment.

226



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-07

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:   

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 1.25 $29.29 $36.61
Streets Superintendent 2.00 $41.73 $83.46
PW Director / City Engineer 1.00 $68.54 $68.54

Total Salary $188.61

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $188.61 31.87% $15.37

Operating Expenses: $188.61 31.92% $60.20

Overhead: $188.61 19.02% $35.88

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $188.61 16.10% $30.37

Standard Plan Update Fee: $30.00 $30.00

Total $360.43

Previous Fee: $363.00

Fee Effective 2017: $360.00
per permit

% Change: -1%

Encroachment Permit Fee (Major)

Staff time and expenses associated with processing an encroachment permit for 
activities in the public right of way such as the installation, repair or replacement 
of curb, gutter, sidewalk, or driveway approach; installation, repair or replacement 
of underground utilities; installation , repair or replacement of street paving; 
similar or other related construction activities.

This fee is non-refundable.

This fee is based on two hours of staff time.  If additional staff hours are required 
during normal business hours, those hours may be charged at the hourly rate 
specified in PW-14.  If service is required after normal business hours (including 
additional hours), the Public Works After Hours Service Charge / Overtime Fee or 
Public Works After Hours Service Charge/ Sunday & Holiday Fee may be 
charged in addition to or substituted for any fee that is based on hourly rate.  Fee is 
based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

$30 per permit is added for the specific of maintaining PW standard plans.

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file documents 
and maintaining micrographics equipment.

227



Public Works
 

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-08

SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
[Sunday & Holiday OT] Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $61.20 $61.20

Total Salary $68.52

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $68.52 31.87% $21.84

Operating Expenses: $68.52 31.92% $21.87

Overhead: $68.52 19.02% $13.04

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $68.52 16.10% $11.03

Total $136.30

3 Hour Minimum $373.00
Previous Fee*: $373 for first 3 hours / $124 per hour after 3 hours

Fee Effective 2017: $258.00
for 3 hour minimum

Fee Effective 2017: $136.00
per hour after 3 hour Minimum

Percent Change: 9.38%

Staff time and expenses associated with a customer-requested, after hours service call. Examples of a service call
request may include turning on and off electrical service in the Plaza during special events. Fee to be charged for
customer-caused problem. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

Public Works Crew After Hour Service Charge / Sunday & Holiday Overtime

No Refund.  

228



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-09

SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
[3 hr. Mandatory OT per MOU] Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $45.90 $45.90

Total Salary $53.22

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $53.22 31.87% $16.96

Operating Expenses: $53.22 31.92% $16.99

Overhead: $53.22 19.02% $10.12

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $53.22 16.10% $8.57

Total $105.87

* error in prior year calculation Previous Fee*: $282 for first 3 hours / $94 per hour after 3 hours

Fee Effective 2017: $197.00
for 3 hour minimum

Fee Effective 2017: $105.00
per hour after 3 hour Minimum

Percent Change: 12.77%

Staff time and expenses associated with a customer requested/after hours service call. Examples of a service call
request may include turning on and off electrical service in the Plaza during special events or for issues caused by
special events customers.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

Public Works Crew After Hours Service Charge / Regular Overtime

No Refund.  

229



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administration Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Storm Wtr Compliance Spec 1.00 $36.51 $36.51

Total Salary $51.16

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $51.16 31.87% $16.30

Operating Expenses: $51.16 31.92% $16.33

Overhead: $51.16 19.02% $9.73

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $51.16 16.10% $8.24

Total $101.75

Previous Fee: $97.00

Fee Effective 2017: $101.00
per hour (one hour minimum)

% Change: 4.12%

Hourly rate for staff time and expenses associated with reviewing plans for 
compliance with stormwater runoff regulations, conducting inspections to verify 
compliance, and related activities.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies. Actual 
number of hours will vary depending on the project. One hour minimum charge for 
field inspection service covered by this fee.

Add BL-06 Imaging Fee as necessary to cover the cost of scanning file documents 
and maintaining micrographics equipment.

One hour minimum. Additional hours charged at hourly rate.

Stormwater Plan Review and Inspection Fee

Full refund minus calculated staff costs based on time expended between time of 
application and issuance of refund if application is withdrawn prior to final 
inspection.  

230



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-12

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Streets Superintendent 1.00 $41.73 $41.73

Total Salary: $56.38

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $56.38 31.87% $17.97

Operating Expenses: $56.38 31.92% $17.99

Overhead: $56.38 19.02% $10.72

Fixed Assets: $56.38 16.10% $9.08
Buildings & Equipment

Standard Plan Update Fee: $56.38 16.00% $9.02

Total $121.16

Previous Fee:

$120 for first 3 newsracks on same application.  
$20 for each newsrack received as part of same 
permit application

Fee Effective 2017:* $121.00
for first 3 newsracks on same application.  $20 for each newsrack received as part of same permit application

% Change: 0.83%

*Fee of $120.00 is for up to 3 newsracks per permit application. Additional fee of $20.00 applies for each additional rack received as part of same permit 
application.

Staff time and expenses associated with issuing Newsrack Permit including, but not limited to, Public Works conducting 
initial site inspections and associated document review, recordkeeping, and travel time.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies. Minimum one hour for up to 3 newsracks. 
There is an additional fee for each additional rack received as part of the same permit application. 16% of the Total Salary 
is added to this fee for the purpose of recovering costs to maintain the City's Standard Plans.

Public Works Newsrack Initial Permit & Inspection Fee

This also requires an Encroachment Permit.

No Refund.  

231



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER  PW-13

SERVICE: Public Works Newsrack Annual Fee

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
PW Foreman 0.25 $41.73 $10.43

Total Salary $17.76

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $17.76 31.87% $5.66

Operating Expenses: $17.76 31.92% $5.67

Overhead: $17.76 19.02% $3.38

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $17.76 16.10% $2.86

Total $35.32

Previous Fee: $34.00

Fee Effective 2017: $35.00

% Change: 3%

Staff time and expenses associated with managing Newsrack Permit including, 
but not limited to, Public Works conducting site inspections, follow up on 
insurance paperwork, and notifications to newsrack owners of issues as well as 
associated document review, recordkeeping, and travel time.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies. 

If a newsrack owner is notified that it is out of compliance with the Newsrack 
Ordinance and fails to make corrections specified by the City, the Newsrack 
may be pulled by City Staff and the owner will be billed at the Public Works 
Hourly Rate (PW-14). 

No Refund.  

232



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-14

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $30.60 $30.60

Total Salary $37.92

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $37.92 31.87% $12.09

Operating Expenses: $37.92 31.92% $12.10

Overhead: $37.92 19.02% $7.21

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $37.92 16.10% $6.11

Total $75.43

Previous Fee: $83.00

Fee Effective 2017: $75.00

% Change: -10%

Staff time and expenses associated for public works services that are not 
specified in another rate.  

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
for one hour of activity. 

Public Works Crew Hourly Rate Normal Business Hours

No Refund.  Fee charged as occurs.  

233



Public Works 
FEE COST WORKSHEET PW-15

SERVICE: Deposit for Engineering Fees

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF DEPOSIT

This is a deposit paid by an applicant at the time an 
application is made for a building permit requiring 
engineering services. This deposit is to be applied towards 
the costs of processing the public works services such as 
Public Works Inspections, City Engineer Inspection, Map 
and Plan Checking Services. 

The deposit is not a fee but is to be applied towards the 
payment of fees owed to the City. The deposit amount 
approximates the costs of processing the permit 
application, public works, and engineering services.  Since 
an exact amount for these services cannot be determined at 
the time of application, the deposit amount is an estimate 
of those fees. 

Deposit is calculated by City Engineer or designee in advance of initiating engineering services.  
Deposit must be received before services are started. In the event that the deposit is depleted before 
the project is completed, applicant will need to replenish the deposit before work can be continued. 
All fees must be paid before final building permit sign off.  

Once all costs and expenses are calculated for a project, 
any remaining balance will be refunded to the applicant.

234



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-16

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administration Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Street Supervisor 1.00 $41.73 $41.73
Maintenance Worker II 2.00 $30.60 $61.20

Total Salary:  $117.58

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $117.58 31.87% $37.47

Operating Expenses: $117.58 31.92% $37.53

Overhead: $117.58 19.02% $22.37

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $117.58 16.10% $18.93

Total $233.87

Previous Fee: $238.00

Barricading

Utilizing City staff and equipment to set up barricades on City streets to 
accommodate events (e.g. events in or around the Plaza). This fee differs 
from PW-01, which is related to placement of parking barricades and rental 
or parking spaces.  In some cases, both fees may apply.

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
for 1 hour of activity. 

This fee is based on two hours of staff time for barricade set up.  If 
additional staff hours are required during normal business hours, those 
hours may be charged at the hourly rate specified in PW-14.  If service is 
required after normal business hours (including additional hours), the 
Public Works After Hours Service Charge / Overtime Fee or Public Works 
After Hours Service Charge/ Sunday & Holiday Fee may be charged in 
addition to or substituted for any fee that is based on hourly rate.

No refund after event has occurred.  Full refund minus calculated staff 
costs based on time expended between time of application and issuance of 
refund if application is withdrawn prior to placement of barricades.

235



Fee Effective 2017: $233.00

% Change: -2%

236



Public Works
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : PW-17

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
HOURLY RATE OF STAFF 

Hours Rate
Salaries: PW Operations Manager 1.00 $43.85 $43.85

Subtotal Salary:  $43.85

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $43.85 31.87% $13.98

Operating Expenses: $43.85 31.92% $14.00

Overhead: $43.85 19.02% $8.34

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $43.85 16.10% $7.06

Total: $87.22

MAINTENANCE/OPERATION & CAPITAL REPLACEMENT COSTS

Total Daily Cost of EACH Charging Station $12.35

Total Cost per Hour of Charging $2.22

Total $2.22

Previous Fee: NEW FEE

Fee Effective 2017: $2.00
per hour (two hour minimum)

Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

Hourly fee to maintain and operate each electric vehicle charging station 
(two stations total) owned by the City. These stations were originally 
installed utilizing federal grant funding through Sonoma County, which will 
not be available for continued maintenance and operation costs. 

Fee based upon allocation of the costs of maintenance/operation activities 
and amortized capital replacement. Fee will be charged per hour of use with 
a two hour minimum charge. 

This hourly fee would cover expenses associated with the continued 
operation of the City-owned electric vehicle charging stations. The fee would 
also encourage users of the stations to move their electric vehicle when the 
charge session is complete, allowing for another user to access the station.

No Refund. 

237



% Change: NEW FEE

238



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-01

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Accounting Tech 0.25 $32.57 $8.14

Total Salary $8.14

Salary Percent

Benefits:  $8.14 26.96% $2.19

Operating Expenses: $8.14 41.03% $3.34

Overhead: $8.14 12.00% $0.98

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $8.14 9.23% $0.75

Mailing and Printing Costs $8.00

Total $23.41

Previous Fee: $25.00

Fee Effective 2017: $23.00
Per Notification

% Change: -8.00%

Water Service Payment Reminder Notice 

Staff time and expenses for the notification to a water customer of a past due 
water bill. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

No Refund

239



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-02

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Accounting Tech 0.50 $32.57 $16.29
Maintenance Worker II 0.50 $30.60 $15.30

Total Salary $46.23

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $46.23 26.96% $12.46

Operating Expenses: $46.23 41.03% $18.97

Overhead: $46.23 12.00% $5.55

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $46.23 9.23% $4.26

Total $87.47

Previous Fee: $97.00

Fee Effective 2017: $87.00
Per Turn Off / Turn On

% Change: -10.31%

Water Service Turn Off / Turn On (Delinquent Payment)

Staff time and expenses for (1) turn off of water service for delinquent accounts 
and (2) turn on of water service when payment is received.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

No Refund

240



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-03

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

Hours Rate  
Salaries:                                         Accounting Tech 0.25 32.57$      $8.14

Maintenance Worker II 1.50 30.60$      $45.90

Total Salary $54.04

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $54.04 26.96% $14.57

Operating Expenses: $54.04 41.03% $22.18

Overhead: $54.04 12.00% $6.48

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $54.04 9.23% $4.99

Total $102.25

Previous Fee: $131.00

Fee Effective 2017: $102.00
Per Test

% Change: -22.14%

CALCULATION OF FEE

Staff time and expenses associated with testing a water meter at the request of a 
customer.  The City will test a meter at no charge on one occasion.  If a customer 
makes multiple requests and the meter is not found to be faulty, the City may 
charge the Meter Testing Fee. 

In the event that meter testing services are provided by an outside vendor, the
actual costs from the vendor plus the Billing Fee / Overhead Pass Through (CA-
04) may apply. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

Meter Testing Fee

No Refund

241



Utilities

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-04

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
[3 hr. Mandatory OT per MOU] Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $45.90 $45.90

Total Salary $53.22

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $53.22 26.96% $14.35

Operating Expenses: $53.22 41.03% $21.84

Overhead: $53.22 12.00% $6.38

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $53.22 9.23% $4.91

Total $100.70

3 Hour Minimum $192.50

Previous Fee:

$307 per hour 
for 3 hour 
minimum.  
$102 per hour 
after 3 hour 
minimum.

Fee Effective 2017: $192.00
for 3 Hour Minimum

$100.00
per hour after 3 hour Minimum

% Change: 2%

Fee is based on three (3) hour minimum. After 3 hour minimum, hourly rate 
specified applies.  

Staff time and expenses associated with a customer requested, after hours service
call. This fee may be charged in addition to, or substituted for, any fee that is
based on an hourly rate if that service is requested after hours. Examples of a
service call request include, but are not limited to, turning water service on/off or
responding to water related problems found to be on the customer side of the
meter.    

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

Utility Crew After Hour Service Charge / Regular Overtime

No Refund

242



Utilities

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-05

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
[Sunday & Holiday OT @ double time] Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $61.20 $61.20

Total Salary $68.52

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $68.52 26.96% $18.47

Operating Expenses: $68.52 41.03% $28.12

Overhead: $68.52 12.00% $8.22

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $68.52 9.23% $6.32

Total $129.65

3 hour minimum $252.05

Previous Fee:

$404 for first 3 
hours; $134 per 
hour after 3 
hour minimum

Fee Effective 2017: $252.00
for 3 hour Minimum

$129.00
per hour after 3 hour Minimum

% Change: -4%

Staff time (including travel time) and expenses associated with a customer
requested, after hours service call that occurs on Sunday or City holiday. Examples
of a service call request include, but are not limited to, turning water service on/off
or responding to water related problems found to be on the customer side of the
meter.    

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and, supplies.  

Fee is based on three (3) hour minimum. After 3 hour minimum, hourly rate 
specified applies.  

Utility Crew After Hour Service Charge / Sunday & Holiday Overtime

No Refund

243



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-06

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY:

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Water Ops Supervisor 1.00 $43.84 $43.84

Total Salary $58.49

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $58.49 26.96% $15.76

Operating Expenses: $58.49 41.03% $24.00

Overhead: $58.49 12.00% $7.02

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $58.49 9.23% $5.40

Standard Plan Update fee $58.49 16.00% $9.36

Total $120.02

Previous Fee: $134.00

Fee Effective 2017: $120.00
Per hour

% Change: -10.45%
* Previous Fee was based on 6 hour.  Will charge hourly.    

Non-Residential Fire Line Inspection & Bacteria Testing

Hourly rate for staff time and expenses (including travel time and test services) 
associated with conducting inspection and water testing of non-residential fire 
sprinkler lines connected to the public water system.   

80% of this fee is refundable if no work is performed.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  
Actual number of hours will vary depending on the project. 1/2 hour minimum 
charge for any service covered by this fee.  16% of the Total Salary is added to 
this fee for the purpose of recovering costs to maintain the City's Standard Plans.

 If re-inspection or re-testing is required due to failed inspections or testing, 
additional hourly fees are applicable at the Public Works Inspector hourly rates. If 
service is requested after hours, the customer may be charged the After Hours 
Service Charge in addition to this fee.  

244



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-08

SERVICE: Water Flow Test

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:  

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65
Maintenance Worker II 2.00 $30.60 $61.20

Total Salary $75.85

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $75.85 26.96% $20.44

Operating Expenses: $75.85 41.03% $31.12

Overhead: $75.85 12.00% $9.10

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $75.85 9.23% $7.00

Water Use (12,000 gal @ 6.90/1000 [1/2015 water rates]) $62.76

Total $206.27

Previous Fee: $221.00

Fee Effective 2017: $206.00
Per Test

% Change: -6.79%

Staff time associated with determining water line pressure and hydrant flows.

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

If service is required after normal business hours, the Public Works After Hours 
Service Charge / Overtime Fee or Public Works After Hours Service Charge / 
Sunday & Holiday Fee may be charged in addition to or substituted for any fee that 
is based on hourly rate.  

No Refund

245



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-09

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.50 $29.29 $14.65

    

Total Salary $14.65

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $14.65 26.96% $3.95

Operating Expenses: $14.65 41.03% $6.01

Overhead: $14.65 12.00% $1.76

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $14.65 9.23% $1.35

Total $27.71

Previous Fee: $24.00

Fee Effective 2017: $27.00
per request

% Change: 12.50%

Staff time to prepare invoice and statements from hydrant flow reports when an 
actual test is not performed.

Water Flow Test - Administrative Only

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

No Refund

246



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-10

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.10 $29.29 $2.93
Water Ops Supervisor 0.02 $43.84 $0.88

    

Total Salary $3.81

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $3.81 26.96% $1.03

Operating Expenses: $3.81 41.03% $1.56

Overhead: $3.81 12.00% $0.46

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $3.81 9.23% $0.35

 

Total $7.20

Previous Fee: $7.00

Fee Effective 2017: $7.00
per month per device

% Change: 0.00%

Staff time and expenses related to meeting the requirements of the Cross-
Connection Control Program mandated by the State Water Resources Control 
Board formerly (CDPH) to monitor cross connections and backflow device 
testing.   Tasks include:  Sending out annual testing notices; maintaining and 
validating a list of approved testers; logging of test results; updating changes in 
ownership; respond to calls and inquiries about program; on-site activities such 
as checking meter ID’s; locating backflow devices; identifying systems that are 
in place and not on existing list; maintaining memberships and certifications; 
and annual reporting.

Back Flow Device Testing (Backflow Fee)

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies 
and converted into a monthly rate to include on monthly water bills.  

This fee is billed on the customer's monthly water bill.  In the event that 
customer fails to perform required backflow test after the third notice, water 
service may be turned off.  If that occurs, a Water Service Turn Off Fee (UT-
02) will apply.

No Refund

247



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-11

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Accounting Tech 0.25 $32.57 $8.14
Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $30.60 $30.60

Total Salary $38.74
 
Lock Replacement: $8.00

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $38.74 26.96% $10.44

Operating Expenses: $38.74 41.03% $15.90

Overhead: $38.74 12.00% $4.65

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $38.74 9.23% $3.57

Total $81.30

Previous Fee: $79.00

Fee Effective 2017: $81.00
per Cut Lock

% Change: 2.53%

Staff time and expenses associated with replacing a water meter lock when it has
been cut off. 

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

Meter Cut Lock Fee

No Refund

248



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-12

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
Accounting Technician 0.25 $32.57 $8.14

    

Total Salary $15.47

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $15.47 26.96% $4.17

Operating Expenses: $15.47 41.03% $6.35

Overhead: $15.47 12.00% $1.86

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $15.47 9.23% $1.43

Supplies Certified Mail and Printing $6.50
 

Total $29.26

Previous Fee: $42.00

Fee Effective 2017: $29.00
per Notice

% Change: -30.95%

Second or Third Notice Annual Back Flow Device Testing

Water customers with Backflow Devices are required to test the device annually 
and submit information to the City.  The City notifies the customers via a letter 
with information.  If the customer does not respond, a second or third notice 
may be sent.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

If a second or third notice is required, this fee is billed on the customer's 
monthly water bill.  In the event that customer fails to perform required 
backflow test after the third notice, water service may be turned off.  If that 
occurs, a Water Service Turn Off / Turn On Fee (UT-02) will apply.

No Refund

249



Utilities  

FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-13

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE

Previous Fee: $150.00

BASED ON TWO-MONTH WATER BILL Fee Effective 2017: $150.00

Water Deposit

A deposit of $150 will be charged to all new accounts, residential 
or non-residential. Deposit shall be credited to customer account if 
no late fees or turn off for non-payment have been issued by the 
City for 24 months and no returned checks have been written on 
the account.  A temporary turn on may be allowed but the deposit 
must be received within 7 days of turn on or water service may  be 
turned off and the customer will be responsible for water turn off 
fee (UT-02). 

Deposit is based on average 2 month residential water billing.  

Deposit will be credited to customer's account when account is 
closed or when no late fees or turn off for non-payment have been 
issued by the City and no returned checks have been issued on the 
account.

250



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-14

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
Accounting Tech 0.25 $32.57 $8.14
Maintenance Worker II 0.25 $30.60 $7.65

Total Salary $23.12

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $23.12 26.96% $6.23

Operating Expenses: $23.12 41.03% $9.48

Overhead: $23.12 12.00% $2.77

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $23.12 9.23% $2.13

Total $43.74

Previous Fee: $33.00

Fee Effective 2017: $21.00
Per Turn Off / Turn On

% Change: -36.36%

* Cost of activity is divided in half to be shared between account being closed and account being opened.  

Water Service Turn Off / Turn On (Change in Account Holder)

Staff time and expenses for (1) turn off of water service for new account holder 
(such as new owner / tenant) and set up of account for new tenant.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services, and supplies.  

No Refund

251



Utilities
FEE COST WORKSHEET NUMBER : UT-15

SERVICE:

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE:

REFUND POLICY: 

PROCESS OF COSTING SERVICE:

SPECIAL NOTES:

CALCULATION OF FEE
Hours Rate

Salaries: Administrative Asst 0.25 $29.29 $7.32
Maintenance Worker II 1.00 $30.60 $30.60

Total Salary $37.92

Salary Percent
Benefits:  $37.92 26.96% $10.22

Operating Expenses: $37.92 41.03% $15.56

Overhead: $37.92 12.00% $4.55

Fixed Assets: Buildings & Equipment $37.92 9.23% $3.50

Total $71.75

Previous Fee: $70.00

Fee Effective 2017: $71.00
Per Hour 

% Change: 1%

Utility Crew Service Charge Normal Business Hours

Staff time and expenses associated for utility crew services that are not specified 
in another rate.  

Fee is based upon allocation of the costs of personnel, services and supplies.  

No Refund

252



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date:  12/12/16 

 
7A 
 
 

 

Department 

Police 

Staff Contact  

Bret Sackett, Police Chief 

Agenda Item Title 

Appeal of Police Chief’s denial of a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity for a new Type 21 
Off-Sale Retail liquor license at Easy Stop Market 

Summary 

The owner of Easy Stop Market, 925 Broadway, submitted an application to the California Alcohol 
Beverage Control (ABC) for a new Type 21 Off-Sale Retail liquor license to sell distilled spirits (hard 
alcohol).  Per the ABC, there already exists too many Off-Sale Retail licenses in this area, which 
requires the application to obtain a “Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity” from the local 
jurisdiction. This process helps ensure that local jurisdictions and the ABC are working 
collaboratively when considering new alcohol licenses in areas that are overly concentrated and the 
local jurisdiction can maintain local control in such matters.  In Sonoma, these letters are provided 
by the Chief of Police. 

 

After careful consideration, the Police Chief did not find that public convenience or necessity would 
be served by the issuance of another license.  The applicant has subsequently appealed that 
decision to the City Council.  

Recommended Council Action 

Deny the appeal and uphold the Police Chief’s finding that Public Convenience or Necessity would 
not be served by the issuance of another Type 21 Off-Sale Retail liquor license. 

Alternative Actions 

Uphold the appeal and direct the Police Chief to provide a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity to 
the applicant and Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control in support of a new Type 21 Off-Sale 
Retail liquor license. 

Financial Impact 

None 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

253



 

 

Attachments:  

 Supplemental staff report 

 Exhibit A, B, C, D, E, F 

 Appeal submitted by applicant 

 Request for reconsideration submitted by applicant’s attorney 

 Letter from Louann Carlomagno, SVUSD Superintendent 

 Email from Nicole Abate Ducarroz 
 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

This item is not directly related to any stated in Council Goal. 

cc:  Sonoma Valley Unified School District Superintendent and associated staff 

 

254

file://///COSFX1/VOL1/SHARE/CITY%20COUNCIL/Council%20Goals/2013-14%20COUNCIL%20GOALS.docx


Supplemental Staff Report 
Appeal of Police Chief’s denial of a Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity for a new 

Type 21 Off-Sale Retail liquor license at Easy Stop Market 
Prepared by Bret Sackett, Police Chief 

 
             
 
In October 2016, the owner of Easy Stop Market, located at 925 Broadway in 
Sonoma, made an application with the Department of Alcohol Beverage Control 
(ABC) for a new Type 21 Off-Sale Retail liquor license.  A Type 21 license will allow 
for the sale of beer, wine, and distilled spirits (hard alcohol) for consumption off the 
premise.  Easy Stop currently has a Type 20 Off-Sale Retail license, which allows 
them to sell beer and wine for consumption off the premise.  
 
Upon review, the ABC determined the proposed location is within an area that 
meets the criteria of “Undue Concentration” as outlined in the Business and 
Professions Code.  In essence, Undue Concentration exists when there are more Off-
Sale Retail Licenses in a particular census tract than deemed appropriate based 
upon a formula identified in the Business and Professions Code.   Undue 
Concentration also exists if the premise is in “high crime” area, which means the 
reporting district has 20% more crimes than the average of the jurisdiction as a 
whole.   
 
When the ABC determines the proposed location is in an area that has an over 
concentration of Off-Sale Retail Licenses, they require the applicant to obtain a 
“Letter of Public Convenience or Necessity” from the local jurisdiction.  This process 
helps to ensure that ABC and the local jurisdiction are working in collaboration 
when reviewing new alcohol licenses, particularly since there is ample evidence to 
suggest that the density of alcohol establishments can be detrimental to community 
health and safety.   
 
On October 24 2016, I received a request to provide a “Letter of Public Convenience 
or Necessity” in support of a new ABC License at Easy Stop Market, 925 Broadway, 
Sonoma.   
 
After careful review of many factors, I determined that public convenience or 
necessity would not be served, and requested ABC deny the application.  
 
Per ABC, there should be 7 Off-Sale Retail Licenses in this particular census tract, 
but 11 currently exist; nearly 60% more than deemed appropriate (Exhibit A).  
While many of these retail establishments are not “storefront” type operations, 
prudent public policy suggests that it is imperative to look beyond the census tract 
and consider the application in light of the city as a whole. 
 

255



Per the ABC website, there are 110 Off-Sale Retail Licenses listed for Sonoma. There 
are 11 Type 21 Off Sale Retail Liquor licenses in the Sonoma; such as CVS, Safeway, 
Lucky’s, and Broadway Market (Exhibit B).  
 
The proposed location is also in an area considered “high crime”, although we no 
longer report crime stats to the ABC.  It should be noted that most of the Hwy 12 
corridor in Sonoma falls within this category and I am, by no means, suggesting Easy 
Stop is a haven for crime.  In 2013, the clerk was cited for selling alcohol to a minor, 
but that was under a previous owner. 
 
Easy Stop has applied for a Type 21 Off-Sale Retail liquor license on 2 other 
occasions; 2003 and 2007.   A finding of public convenience or necessity was denied 
both times, so ABC denied those license applications.  
 
The proposed location is across the street from Sonoma Valley High School, 
Creekside High School, and Adele Harrison Middle School and is along the primary 
route for students who walk or bike to/from school.  It’s not uncommon to see 
students in the store before/after school, or during the lunch break.   
 
In the most recent California Healthy Kids Survey for Sonoma Valley, the report 
concludes that kids are experimenting with alcohol as early as 7th grade.  It also 
reveals that 25% of 11th grade students consider themselves “heavy alcohol users” 
and 52% of 11th graders at the alternative high school consider themselves heavy 
alcohol users (Exhibit C).  The report also reveals at 63% of the 9th graders and 74% 
of the 11th graders feel alcohol is “fairly easy or very easy” to obtain (Exhibit D).   In 
talking with students and parents, many believe alcohol is often obtained by stealing 
it from retail stores. 
 
In a recent online survey by the Sonoma Index Tribune regarding underage 
drinking, 72% of the respondents said underage drinking has always been a 
problem and still is, 21% said the problem has gotten worse, and only 7% thought 
the problem was better due to increased awareness (Exhibit E). 
 
Although cases for underage drinking has remained fairly consistent for the past 2 
years, the number of kids cited and the level of intoxication has increased.  Most 
notable was a case where a group of students skipped school, stole 3-4 bottles of 
vodka from another store, and drank to excess, which resulted in one girl 
experiencing life-threatening alcohol poisoning and was in a coma for several days. 
 
According to Sonoma Valley Hospital, 81 people ages 14-25 were treated for alcohol 
or drug related emergencies in 2015- mid 2016.   
 
The Sonoma Valley Youth and Family Services (SVYFS) diversion program states the 
majority of the referrals are for substance abuse (alcohol and marijuana).  In 2014, 
there were 54 referrals (large spike in marijuana related) and there were 46 
referrals in 2015. 

256



 
A quote from SVYFS 2015 annual report states, "This year substance abuse referrals 
are at 46.5% of the total number of referrals (an increase of 6.2% since last 
year).  There has been a large influx of alcohol arrests." 
 
Its’ been well established that the density of alcohol outlets has a direct correlation 
to underage access to alcohol.   The Community Preventative Services Task Force, an 
independent, nonfederal, unpaid group of public health experts appointed by the 
Director of CDC, recommends “the use of regulatory authority (e.g., though licensing 
and zoning) to limit alcohol outlet density on the basis of sufficient evident of a 
positive association between outlet density and excessive alcohol consumption and 
related harms (Exhibit F).” 
 
I have met with the applicant and his representative, where they offered to install 
several safeguards to prevent underage access, such as limiting store hours or 
securing the distilled spirits behind the counter.   It should be noted, however, that 
these conditions are completely voluntary and are not regulatory in nature, unless 
ABC agrees to include them at the time of issuance.  In my experience, ABC tends to 
shy away from unique (voluntary) conditions and prefers to utilize a standard set of 
conditions to ensure regulatory and enforcement consistency.  As such, absent other 
regulatory authority imposed by ABC, the applicant can remove such safeguards at 
any time they choose and any such voluntary conditions will not likely apply if the 
store (or license) is sold or transferred.  
 
And finally, the applicant suggests in his letter that denying him this license will put 
him at a disadvantage with his competitors.  However, I have to question this claim 
since I think he is comparing himself to more traditional retail stores, such as CVS 
and Safeway.  In my opinion, Easy Stop is more similar to 7-11 or Jolly Washer, 
which only sells beer and wine.    
 
In closing, given the fact there are numerous other locations to obtain distilled 
spirits within Sonoma, including 2 places just blocks from Easy Stop’s location, 
coupled with it’s close proximity to our local schools, I do not believe public 
convenience or necessity would be served by the issuance of another license.  In 
addition, I believe youth access and underage drinking can be attributed to the over 
concentration of Off-Sale Retail Licenses.   
 
As such, I recommend the City Council deny the appeal.   

257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



December 6, 2016 

 

Dear Sonoma City Council Chairperson and Council Members, 

 

As Superintendent of Sonoma Valley Unified School District along with Principals Kathleen Hawing (Sonoma Valley High 

School), Sydney Smith (Creekside High School), Jason Sutter (Prestwood Elementary School), and Mary Ann Spitzer (Adele 

Harrison Middle School), we are asking the City Council of Sonoma to reject the appeal of Easy Stop Market, 925 Broadway, 

application for a Type 21 Off Sale Liquor License.  While we appreciate having the convenience store in our community, we are 

strongly opposed to the addition of a Type 21 Hard Liquor License for the following reasons:  

 

  Student safety in and around our schools remains our priority. According to local law enforcement, the Easy Stop business is 

located in an area where 20% more crimes have been reported. The proposed use is located across the street from Sonoma 

Valley High School and Creekside High School, and in close proximity to Adele Harrison Middle School and Prestwood 

Elementary School. During lunch hours, Sonoma Valley High School students access the store and frequent the Easy Stop 

parking lot. Given the proximity of the business to “sensitive land use areas” (schools, preschools, child care centers, and 

parks) issuing a liquor license at this location poses significant risks. 

 

     Easy Stop is located on Broadway in an area of “Undue Concentration”. Undue Concentration of licenses in a given area is 

defined as a higher ratio of retail liquor licenses to the population in an area which the applicant premises are located. Studies 

suggest a high-density area associated with an increase in alcohol consumption. Increased alcohol consumption leads to an 

increase in related harms and potential fatalities among underage drinkers. 

 

     Easy Stop currently holds a Type 20 license, allowing the sale of wine and beer.  The addition of a hard liquor license at this 

location, frequented by students from the neighboring schools is unnecessary. The economic benefit does not outweigh the 

potential negative impacts of selling hard liquor at this business location. Research suggests that the negative impacts of 

selling hard liquor in areas of undue concentration lead to a range of health and social problems.  Most importantly to note are 

the potential risks of youth binge drinking which is a major cause of death among young people. 

 

     Areas with a high number of young adults and a large number of alcohol outlets may create an unusually high risk of health 

problems, including excessive drinking. Limiting the physical availability is one of the most effective approaches to mitigating 

the social and health-related consequences of binge drinking. According to the Surgeon General, alcohol is the most widely 

used substance of abuse among America’s youth, with a higher percentage of young people between the ages of 12 and 20 use 

alcohol than tobacco or illicit drugs.    

 

As leaders in our schools and community, we feel strongly about the issue of excessive drinking among youth.  Each of us, 

including the City of Sonoma Chairperson and Council Members, are not powerless to prevent underage drinking. We owe nothing 

less to our children than to commit ourselves to help solve this problem.  

 

We urge the Sonoma City Chairperson and Council Members to oppose the appeal of Easy Stop Market’s Type 21 Liquor License. 

This action is necessary to continue a proactive approach to protecting the health and safety of our community including children. 

With evidence that positively correlates reducing access to reducing social and health related impacts of excessive drinking, we 

feel empowered to take this necessary position to protect the youth in our valley.    

 

Thank you in advance for your time.  We appreciate your consideration. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Louann Carlomagno 

Kathleen Hawing 

Sydney Smith 

Mary Ann Spitzer 

Jason Sutter 

279



1

Rebekah Barr

From: Madolyn Agrimonti <magrimonti@comcast.net>
Sent: Monday, December 05, 2016 12:16 PM
To: Rebekah Barr
Subject: Fwd: No to Easy Stop, protect our children

FYI 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
Begin forwarded message: 

From: Nicole Abate Ducarroz <nicole@ducarroz.org> 
Date: December 5, 2016 at 12:02:22 PM PST 
To: mayorgallian@icloud.com, Gary Edwards <gary@sagekase.com>, Rachel Hundley 
<rachelhundleyesq@gmail.com>, Madolyn Agrimonti <magrimonti@comcast.net>, 
david@cvmgrapes.com, David Goodison <davidg@sonomacity.org> 
Cc: Louann Carlomagno <lcarlomagno@sonomaschools.org>, Susan Gorin 
<Susan.Gorin@sonoma-county.org> 
Subject: No to Easy Stop, protect our children 

Dear City Council, 
 
Please vote A BIG NO to granting the appeal for Easy Stop to sell Liquor. They are too close to 
our schools. 
This may not affect you or your children yet, but I am sure that alcoholism has affected you in 
some way at some point in your life.  Lets keep them protected for as long as possible before 
sending them off to college.  We have an elementary school, middle school and high school less 
than 500 feet of this easy stop.   
 
Thank you, 

Nicole 

Nicole Abaté Ducarroz 
707.495.6707  
nicole@ducarroz.org 
 
 
 

280



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
7 
 
12/12/2016 

 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Carol Giovanatto, City Manager 

Jeffrey A. Walter, City Attorney 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution Approving and Establishing Rules 
and Regulations for the Administration of the City’s Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance 
and Repealing Resolution No. 57-1998 

Summary 

At its meeting of April 18, 2016, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 02-2016 which amended 
Chapter 9.80 of the Sonoma Municipal Code pertaining to the protection of rents for spaces in 
mobilehome parks.  A provision in that ordinance authorized the City Manager to promulgate rules 
and regulations to administer and implement the ordinance, subject to the City Council’s approval.  
Rules implementing the ordinance have been prepared and are now being presented to the Council 
for its approval.  These rules pertain to the implementation of the automatic annual rent increase, the 
banking of that increase, registration, definitions of capital improvements, amortization schedules, 
the proper interest rates to be applied for capital improvement expenses, exclusions from the “in-
place” transfer of mobilehomes and homeowner petitions for reduced rent due to reduction in 
services. 

Recommended Council Action 

Adopt the resolution approving rules and regulations for the implementation of the mobilehome 
space rent protection ordinance and repealing Resolution No. 57-1998. 

Alternative Actions 

Decline to adopt the resolution.  

Adopt the resolution with modifications to the rules and regulations. 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

1.  Resolution Repealing Resolution No. 57-1998 and Adopting Rules and Regulations for the  
Administration of the City’s Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance 

2.  Rules and Regulations for the Administration of the City of Sonoma’s Mobilehome Space Rent 
Protection Ordinance (SMC Chapter 9.80) 

 

cc: 

 

 

281

rbarr
Typewritten Text
B



1 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Adoption of Resolution Approving and 

Establishing Rules and Regulations for the Administration of the City’s 

Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance and Repealing Resolution No. 57-1998 

 

For Council Meeting of November 21, 2016 

              

 

BACKGROUND 

 

On April 18, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 02-2016 which amended the City’s 

Municipal Code pertinent to the protection of rents for spaces in mobilehome parks.  That 

ordinance authorized the City Manager to adopt rules and regulations to implement and 

administer the Rent Control Ordinance subject to City Council approval.  The City Manager and 

City Attorney offices have prepared rules and regulations implementing and addressing some of 

the provisions in the Mobilehome Rent Control Ordinance and are requesting that the Council 

approve same.  The proposed Rules and Regulations are attached. 

 

After the adoption of the original Mobilehome Rent Control Ordinance in 1992, the Council 

adopted Resolution No. 57-1998 which set forth some guidelines for the implementation of that 

previous ordinance.  The attached rules incorporate and update many of Resolution No. 57-

1998’s guidelines, thus, making Resolution No. 57-1998 unnecessary. 

 

The highlights of the proposed rules are as follows:1 
 

Section 1.00 – Automatic Annual Rent Increase 

 

The rules lay out in greater detail the logistics and timing of the annual adjustment in rents that 

park owners are entitled to implement, based on 80% of the change in the CPI.  Park owners are 

required under these rules to post, in each park, certain information provided to the park by the 

City Manager’s office. 

 

Section 1.01 – Banking 

 

Under this particular rule, the banking provision of the newly amended Rent Control Ordinance 

is explained in greater detail.  Under the ordinance amendments approved by the Council in 

April 2016, park owners are not required to implement the automatic annual increase in rents 

allowed under the ordinance, but, rather, can withhold all or a portion of the increase for 

implementation at a later date.  However, Section 1.01 requires that any landlord who wishes to 

defer the annual rent increase must notify the park’s residents by January 30 of the year in 

question of each annual increase allowed under Section 9.80.045 of the Rent Control Ordinance 

which has not been implemented and advising the park’s residents that the park owner intends to 

bank the increase for future implementation. 

                                                           
1 The following section numbers correspond to the section numbers utilized in the attached rules. 

282



2 

 

Section 2.00 – Registration 

 

The rules, consistent with the recently amended Rent Control Ordinance, specify that by May 31 

of each year each park owner must file with the City Manager an annual registration statement.  

The rules set forth the form of that registration statement that must be utilized by the park 

owners. 

 

Section 3.00 – Homeowner/Resident Petitions 

 

Sections 3.00, 3.01, 3.02, 3.03, 3.04 and 3.05 set forth the rules and regulations pertinent to 

homeowner petitions filed to challenge certain actions by park owners that may violate the Rent 

Control Ordinance or the rules and regulations.  In addition, these sections set forth the 

procedures and forms to be utilized by a park resident who contends that the housing services 

provided by the park have been discontinued or materially reduced, thus warranting a 

corresponding reduction in rent.  In a petition by a park resident to reduce rent because of the 

discontinuation or material reduction in housing services, the resident bears the burden of 

proving the reduction and that the park owner had notice of the reduction and notwithstanding 

this notice did not take appropriate action to restore the housing service upon which the original 

rental arrangement with the park owner and the resident was based. 

 

In addition, the Section 3 series provide mechanisms for park residents to bring to the City’s 

attention a park owner’s failure to properly register mobilehome spaces governed by the recently 

amended Rent Control Ordinance, a park owner’s failure to properly notice the maximum 

allowable rent, and a park owner’s improper banking of the annual increase among other things.  

 

Section 5.00 – Capital Improvements 

 

This section repeats the definition of capital improvements found in Resolution No. 57-1998, but 

expands upon it and clarifies the definition.  For example, Section 5.00 states that any 

rehabilitation of the park that is necessitated as a result of the park owner’s neglect, permissive 

waste, deferred maintenance or acts of God shall not be considered capital improvements to the 

extent that they restore facilities and premises to the conditions reasonably bargained for by the 

mobilehome park residents.  In other words, the expenses incurred by landlords in effecting these 

types of capital improvements cannot be recouped from the residents through capital 

improvement pass-throughs or otherwise. 

 

Section 6.00 – Definition of In-Place Sale 

 

Under Section 9.80.060 of the Rent Control Ordinance, a mobilehome park owner is permitted to 

charge a new base rent for a mobilehome space whenever an in-place transfer or lawful space 

vacancy occurs.  The rental increase allowed to be charged by the park owner cannot be greater 

than 5% of the rent in effect prior to the increase.  However, regulation Section 6.00 states that 

there are certain in-place sales or transfers that will not permit the increase of rent at all.  Those 

include transfers to a spouse, former spouse, child, sibling, mother or father-in-law, sister or 

brother-in-law, or transfers upon death to any of the foregoing relatives. 

Forms 

283



3 

 

 

The rules propose the use of a number of forms to implement the rules’ provisions.  These forms 

may need to be modified and/or tweaked over time and the resolution prepared for the Council to 

adopt these rules and regulations grants to the City Manager the authority to revise these rules as 

circumstances warrant, in the exercise of the City Manager’s reasonable judgment. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

284



  

CITY OF SONOMA 
 

RESOLUTION #  -2016 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA REPEALING 
RESOLUTION 57-1998 AND ADOPTING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CITY’S MOBILEHOME SPACE RENT PROTECTION 

ORDINANCE 
 
WHEREAS, in 1998, by Resolution No. 57-1998, the City Council adopted administrative 
guidelines governing the implementation and administration of its Mobilehome Space 
Rent Protection Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 18, 2016, the City Council adopted amendments to said Ordinance 
and authorized the City Manager, with the approval of the City Council, to adopt rules and 
regulations for its administration and implementation: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Sonoma as follows: 
 
 1. Resolution # 57-1998 is hereby repealed. 
 
 2. The rules and regulations for the administration of the City’s Mobilehome 
Space Rent Protection Ordinance (codified as Chapter 9.80 of the City of Sonoma 
Municipal Code) and attached hereto as Exhibit A are hereby approved. 
 
 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to modify some or all of the forms 
attached to these rules as appendices, as necessity may dictate and within the exercise 
of the City Manager’s reasonable discretion and judgment; provided said revisions are 
consistent with the Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance and these rules and 
regulations. 
 
The foregoing resolution was duly adopted this 21st day of November, 2016, by the 
following roll call vote: 
 
  AYES:     
  NOES:    
  ABSENT:    
  DISQUALIFIED:   
 
             
            , Mayor 
 
                                       ________    
        Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly passed by the City 
Council of the City of Sonoma at a regular adjourned meeting thereon held on November 
21, 2016. 

 
              
        Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk 

285



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

286



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Appendix 1A to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 
 

APPENDIX 1A 
Page 1 of 4 

 

REGISTRATION FORM FOR 
INDIVIDUAL MOBILEHOME PARK 

[PARK] 
 
Dated:            Mobilehome Park 
 
Required by the City Manager pursuant to the Sonoma Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance. 
 
Effective Date:  The data requested will be as of     . 
 
Administration Fee:  A fee of $   must be paid for each mobilehome space not exempted from 
payment of the administration fee. 
 
Due Date:  Registration Forms #1A, #1B and #1C must be completed and returned to the City Manager 
no later than May 31.  Payment of the $  administration fee for each non-exempt space must be 
received by the City no later than June 30,  . 
 
1. Mobilehome Park: Name, mailing address, and telephone number of the mobilehome park: 
 
              
              
 
2. Park Owners:  The name(s), business address, email address, business telephone number of each 

person or legal entity possessing an ownership interest in the park and the nature of that interest: 
 
 a. Current owner(s):          

             
 
 b. Previous owner(s):           
              
 
3. Park Records: 
 
 a. Name and address of the custodian of the park owner’s records: 
              
              
 
 b. Name, address, email address of park representative to whom notices may be sent: 
              
              
  
4. Spaces:  a.  Number of spaces in the park:   
   b.  Have any spaces been added within the park in calendar year 20 ? 
    No      Yes    If yes, how many?   
 
5. Services:  What housing services are provided to the mobilehome owners/residents within the 

park?  Attach copies of the forms of rental agreement(s) used and copies of the park’s Rules and 
Regulations in effect during calendar year 20 . 

 
 
 

 

287



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Appendix 1A to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 
 

APPENDIX 1A 
Page 2 of 4 

 

 Landscaping, Groundskeeping  Community Laundry   Utilities: 
 Swimming Pool    Recreation/Clubhouse    Water 
 Roads     Sidewalks     Garbage 
 Storage     Parking      Sewer 
 Mailboxes    Lighting      Cable Television 
 Security Services    Animal Runs     Telephone 
      DSL      (Landline)  
            Other:   
 
6. Utilities:  Indicate whether the following utilities or services are paid by the park owner or the 
homeowner/resident: 
  
  

 
 

Utility 

 
Park pays and does not separately 

charge homeowner/resident 
(Yes or No) 

 
Date Service Began 

(Write “X” if not provided) 

 
 

Date Ended 

Electricity    
Gas    
Water    
Cable TV    
Internet    
Sewer    

 
If the provision of gas, water, sewer and/or electric services is not consistent park-wide, then answer 
question No. 8 for each individual mobilehome space. 

 
7. Exempt Spaces:  List on Form #1C those spaces and mobilehomes which the park owner considers exempt 

from Chapter 9.80 and a statement of the reasons therefor. 
 
8. Individual Electricity/Gas Rates (if any):  Supply the information only if the provision of water, sewer, 

electricity and/or gas services is not consistent park-wide.  For each individual mobilehome park space, 
indicate whether the following utilities or services are paid by the park owner or the homeowner/resident: 

 
 
 

Space Nos. 

 
Park pays and does not separately 

charge homeowner/resident 
(Yes or No) 

 
Date Service Began 

(Write “X” if not provided) 

 
 

Date Ended 

  
 Electricity: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 
 Gas: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       

 
 
 

288



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Appendix 1A to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 
 

APPENDIX 1A 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Cable TV: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Internet: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Water: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Garbage: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Sewer: 
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Extra TV  
Outlet: 

                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
 

Storage  
Space: 

                       
                       
                       
                       
                       
                       

289



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Appendix 1A to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 
 

APPENDIX 1A 
Page 4 of 4 

 

9. Attach a current rent schedule, dated, reflecting the current space rents for each of the spaces in the park.  
Attach a current rent schedule, dated, reflecting the current rents charged for the renting of each of the 
mobilehomes owned by the park owner. 

 
10. State the name, address, space number, email address (if known), and telephone number of each 

mobilehome owner. 
 
11. State the name, address, space number, email address (if known), and telephone number of each person 

renting a mobilehome. 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

The undersigned warrants and represents that s/he is authorized by the owner of the park to execute this 

form on behalf of the park owner, and the undersigned warrants and represents that the information provided 

hereinabove, attached hereto and otherwise supplied to the City of Sonoma as part of this registration statement is 

true and correct, complete and does not omit any material facts. 

 
 
            
 
      Name:      
      Title:        
      Date:        

290



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 1B – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 1B 

Page 1 of 2 

 

REGISTRATION FORM FOR 

 MOBILEHOME SPACES UNDER RENT CONTROL 

[EACH MOBILEHOME SPACE] 

 

Dated:            Mobilehome Park 

 

Required by the City Manager pursuant to the Sonoma Mobilehome Space Rent Protection Ordinance. 

 

Effective Date:  The data requested will be as of     . 

 

Due Date:  Registration Forms #1A, #1B and #1C must be completed and returned to the City no later 

than May 31,   . 

 

Please answer the following questions for each space under rent control in the mobilehome park: 

 

1. Mailing address of space: 

              

              

              

 

2. Has the mobilehome coach on this space been sold since January 1,   (previous year)?   

 

 No    Yes     If yes, date of sale:        

  

3. What was the total monthly rent paid on January 1,   excluding any amount separately 

charged for gas, electricity, water, sewer, garbage, extra TV outlets, storage space and/or Internet: 

 

 $   

 

 a. Name and address of the custodian of the park owner’s records: 

  

4. What are the current amounts charged for the following items (as of January 1,   )? 

 

  Items    Amount 

 

 a. Extra TV Outlet   $   

 b. Storage Space   $   

 c. Amortized Pass-Through $    Expiration Date:    
  [approved by net operating income or capital improvement pass-through petition] 

 d. Gas    $____________ 

 e. Electricity   $____________ 

 f. Water    $____________ 

 g. Garbage   $____________ 

 h. Sewer    $____________ 

 i. Cable TV   $____________ 

 j. Internet    $____________ 

 k. Other    $____________ 

 

5. Name of current homeowner/resident as of January 1,    

 

              

 

291



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 1B – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 1B 

Page 2 of 2 

 

6. List any housing services provided to this mobilehome space, but not provided to others: 

 

              

              

              

 

7. List any housing services not provided to this mobilehome space, but provided to others: 

 

            

            

             

 

8. Supply this information only if the provision of electricity, water, sewer and/or gas services is not 

consistent park-wide.  Indicate whether the following utilities or services are paid by the park owner or 

the homeowner/resident: 

  
 

 

Utility 

 

Park pays and does not separately 

charge homeowner/resident 

(Yes or No) 

 

Date Service Began 

(Write “X” if not provided) 

 

 

Date Ended 

Electricity    
Gas    
Water    
Cable TV    
Internet    
Sewer    

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned warrants and represents that s/he is authorized by the owner of the park to execute this 

form on behalf of the park owner, and the undersigned warrants and represents that the information provided 

hereinabove, attached hereto and otherwise supplied to the City of Sonoma as part of this registration statement is 

true and correct, complete and does not omit any material facts. 

 

 

            

 

      Name:      

      Title:        

      Date:        

292



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 1C – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re smc 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 1C 

Page 1 of 2 

 

REGISTRATION FORM FOR 

 IDENTIFYING EXEMPT SPACES AND MOBILEHOMES 

 

Date of Filing:           Mobilehome Park 

 
Please list the space number and mailing address, and state the reasons the park owner considers the space or the 

mobilehome being rented on the space exempt from SMC Chapter 9.80. 

   

Space No. Mailing Address     Reasons for Exemption 

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

 

293



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 1C – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re smc 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 1C 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned warrants and represents that s/he is authorized by the owner of the park to execute this 

form on behalf of the park owner, and the undersigned warrants and represents that the information provided 

hereinabove, attached hereto and otherwise supplied to the City of Sonoma as part of this registration statement is 

true and correct, complete and does not omit any material facts. 

 

 

            

 

      Name:      

      Title:        

      Date:        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

294



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 2 to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF SONOMA 

MOBILEHOME RENT PROTECTION 

 

Mobilehome Park:          

 

REGISTRATION FORM 

Mobilehome Space Number   

[NEW OR NO LONGER EXEMPT SPACE] 

 

Please answer the following questions for this space in the mobilehome park: 

 

1. Mailing address of the space:          

              

 

2. What was the total monthly rent paid on January 1, 2010, excluding any amount separately 

charged for gas, electricity or any other matter?         

             

 

3. How many rental increases have been imposed against the space since January 1, 2010.  Please 

state the date of each increase, the amount of the increase and the amount of the monthly rent 

before and after the increase. 

  
Rent before increase (excluding 

any amount specifically 

 charged for gas & electricity) 

 

 

Increase Date 

 

 

Amount of 

Increase 

Rent after increase (excluding 

any amount specifically 

charged for gas & electricity) 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

4. Name and current address of each resident from January 1, 2010, to date: 

 

 Name of Resident      Address 

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

              

295



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 2 to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

              

 

              

 

              

 

5. What is the name and address of the legal owner of the mobilehome? 

 

              

 

              

 

6. Is there a written lease?     If yes, when did it commence and when will it expire? 

 

              

 

7. List any housing services provided to this mobilehome space, but not provided to others: 

 

              

  

              

 

8. List any housing services not provided to this mobilehome space but provided to others: 

 

              

 

              

 

9. Supply this information only if the provision of gas, cable, water, sewer, Internet, and/or electric 

services are not consistent parkwide: 

 

 Indicate whether the following utilities are paid by the park owner or homeowner/resident: 

 
 

 

Utility 

Park pays and does not 

separately charge 

homeowner/resident 

(Yes or No) 

 

Date Service Began (Write 

“X” if not provided) 

 

 

Date Ended 

Electricity    

Gas    

Cable    

Internet    

Water    

Sewer    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

296



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 2 to Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

The undersigned warrants and represents that s/he is authorized by the owner of the park to execute this 

form on behalf of the park owner, and the undersigned warrants and represents that the information provided 

hereinabove, attached hereto and otherwise supplied to the City of Sonoma as part of this registration statement is 

true and correct, complete and does not omit any material facts. 

 

 

            

 

      Name:      

      Title:        

      Date:        

 

 

297



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 3 – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 1 of 2 

 

Petitioner Number:    

 

HOMEOWNER/RESIDENT PETITION 

 

[Please type or print] 

 

My name is:             

  (Last)    (First)     (Initial) 

 

I have lived in:             

     (Name of Mobilehome Park) 

 

              

     (Address/Space Number) 

 

Since:      My phone number(s) are: (         )    (home)   

 (Month/Year)         (        )   (work)  

 

The park owner is:            

 

The park owner’s business address, phone number and email address are: 

 

              

     (Address) 

              

     (City/State/Zip) 

              

     (Phone)   (Email Address) 

 

My rent is currently: $   per month 

 

The reason I am filing this petition is: 

 

  I have received a discontinuance or substantial reduction in housing service(s) without a  

  corresponding decrease in the rent.  (Attach Decrease in Service Statement, Appendix 4) 

 

  The landlord has not registered or re-registered the mobilehome space in which I am a 

homeowner/resident in accordance with the requirements of the City’s Mobilehome 

Space Rent Protection Ordinance (“Ordinance”). 

 

  The landlord has failed to properly post notice of the maximum allowable rent for my  

space as required by the Ordinance and/or failed to provide information required by 

Section  1.00 of the City’s Rent Control Administration Rules and Regulations 

(“Regulations”). The landlord therefore may not demand, accept, or retain all or any 

portion of the Annual General Adjustment.  I have given the landlord thirty (30) calendar 

days’ notice of the failure to properly post the notice or provide information and the 

notice has still not been posted as of the date I am filing this petition. 

 

  The landlord has improperly imposed a rent increase based upon banking, in violation of  

the Ordinance.  My rent history as a homeowner/resident in the mobilehome space is set 

forth below. 

 

298



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 3 – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 2 of 2 

 

  The landlord has accepted and retained rent in excess of the amount permitted by the  

Ordinance.  The landlord should therefore not be allowed to impose an Individual Rent 

Adjustment.  The reason(s) why the landlord is in violation of the Ordinance is/are set 

forth below. 

 

Please state below all facts in support of your petition.  Use the reverse side and/or additional sheets if 

necessary. 

 

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

              

 

Dated:       Signed:        

299



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 4 – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Page 1 of 3 

 

MOBILEHOME OWNER/RESIDENT 

DECREASE IN SERVICES STATEMENT 

Petition No.    

 

Please read the instructions prior to filling out form. 

 

HOMEOWNER’S/RESIDENT’S NAME:         

 

ADDRESS, SPACE NUMBER:           

 

1. Description of Service No. 1:           

 

a. What was the prior level of service established by the park owner?    

              

 

b. When was this level of service first provided by the park owner?     

              

 

c. What is the nature of the change in level of service that you believe constitutes a 

reduction in service?          

            

 

d. When did you first notice the reduction in service level?      

              

 

e. How did you learn of the reduction in service level?      

              

 

f. Did you tell the landlord/owner, manager, or representative?      

 Date:       Written Notice:       Oral:     

 

g. Did you ask the manager to solve the problem?        

 Date:       Written Notice:       Oral:     

 

h. What did the manager do?        

             

             

           Date:     

 

i. Was the service improved or corrected?        

           Date:     

 

j. What is it like now?           

            

             

           Date:     

 

k. Has the reduction in service level reduced or diminished your enjoyment of your 

mobilehome?      If so, explain how:      

            

300



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 4 – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Page 2 of 3 

 

l. If so, by what percentage has your enjoyment been so diminished or reduced?   

              

 

m. How do you calculate or determine the percentage you stated above?    

              

 

1. Description of Service No. 2:           

 

a. What was the prior level of service established by the park owner?    

              

 

b. When was this level of service first provided by the park owner?     

              

 

c. What is the nature of the change in level of service that you believe constitutes a 

reduction in service?          

            

 

d. When did you first notice the reduction in service level?      

              

 

e. How did you learn of the reduction in service level?      

              

 

f. Did you tell the landlord/owner, manager, or representative?      

 Date:       Written Notice:       Oral:     

 

g. Did you ask the manager to solve the problem?        

 Date:       Written Notice:       Oral:     

 

h. What did the manager do?        

             

             

           Date:     

 

i. Was the service improved or corrected?        

           Date:     

 

j. What is it like now?           

            

             

           Date:     

 

k. Has the reduction in service level reduced or diminished your enjoyment of your 

mobilehome?     If so, explain how:      

            

 

l. If so, by what percentage has your enjoyment been so diminished or reduced?   

              

 

 

301



CITY OF SONOMA 

C:/JAW/Sonoma/Appendix 4 – Reso Establishing Rules Regs re SMC 9.80.docx 

 

APPENDIX 4 

Page 3 of 3 

 

m. How do you calculate or determine the percentage you stated above?    

              

 

 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury that these statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge 

and belief. 

 

Dated:      Signature:         

 

 

 

 Attach additional pages if needed for additional signatures of other homeowner/resident petitioners. 

 

 Attach copies of any supporting written documentation. 

 

 Attach an additional page with a statement of all information in support of your petition for a rent 

decrease. 

 

 

SERVICE REDUCTION INSTRUCTIONS 

 

 

Individuals or associations representing several homeowners/residents can use one service reduction 

claim form for everyone they represent and who are affected by the alleged reduction in service level(s).  

A service reduction claim applies to all homeowners/residents who are affected by it and are included in 

the matter and bound by the outcome, regardless of whether they have also filed a claim. 

 

“Service Reduction” is defined by the Regulations as a decrease or diminution in the basic service level 

provided by the landlord pursuant to any of the following: 

 

California Civil Code Sections 1941.1 or 1941.2, the Mobilehome Residency Law, the 

Mobilehome Parks Act, the implied warranty of habitability, an express or implied 

agreement, the level of services at the last rent increase, the park rules and regulations. 

 

Each question in the claim form must be answered and proven by the petitioner(s). 

 

Proof: Mobilehome park homeowners/residents have the burden of proving their claim to be true.  

Correspondence, photographs, and witnesses are some of the types of evidence that can be used.  One 

copy of all documentation must be filed with the City Manager and one with the landlord by the filing 

deadline. 

 

Calculation of Value of Service Reduction:  If proven, service reductions can result in a credit based upon 

their duration and the reduction in enjoyment of the mobilehome space.  The City Manager or a hearing 

officer cannot order compensation for the damage to your property or person.  The intent is that a 

reduction in service be accompanied by a “corresponding reduction in rent.” 

302



 

 

 

City of Sonoma 
No. 1 The Plaza 

Sonoma California 95476-6690 
Phone  (707) 938-3681    Fax  (707) 938-8775 

E-Mail: cityhall@sonomacity.org 

CHECKLIST 

 

January: 

 

Increases (See Section 1.00 of Guidelines) 

 Calculate CPI (80% of increase) usually avail approx. 1/15 
 

 Send CPI increase letter (mail or email) to owners and Tri-Park Committee 
 

 Per guidelines increase letter must be posted at City Hall, on city website, 
and posted in a prominent place at each mobilehome park  
 

 When increase requests come in, within 5 days of receipt, verify calcs and 
send approval letters to owners (mail and email) 
 

 After all is complete, send all approval letters, requests, responses and 
back-up to the Tri Park Committee 
 

 

May: 

 

May 1st send Rent Stabilization Admin Fee 

 

 

303



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 1 of 10 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE CITY OF SONOMA’S 

MOBILE HOME SPACE RENT PROTECTION ORDINANCE (SMC CHAPTER 9.80) 

 

 

Section 1.00 - Automatic Annual Rent Increase (SMC 9.80.045) 
 

A. Except as is provided in Section 1.01, below, automatic annual increases may be noticed by the  

park owner pursuant to the State Mobilehome Residency Law such that the increases take effect in May  

of each year. 

 

B. The allowable annualized percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) upon which the 

automatic annual rent adjustment is to be based shall be annually calculated by the City Manager and 

posted by February 15th of each year in City Hall and on the City’s website, and on a notice board at each 

mobilehome park and shall be mailed to each park owner and to the designated tenant representative 

(“DTR”).  A copy of the City Manager’s notice shall be posted in a prominent place by each park owner 

in each mobilehome park within three working days after it is received by the park owner. 

 

C. Park owners shall provide the City Manager with a list of all park spaces subject to the automatic 

annual rent adjustment, the current monthly rent for each space, and the amount of the rent increase for 

those spaces resulting from the automatic rent adjustment.  Upon receipt of the information provided to 

the City Manager pursuant to this subsection C, the City Manager shall send a copy of the information to 

the Designated Homeowner/Tenant Representative, and a copy shall be posted on the City’s website.   

 

D. Within five working days of the receipt of the information provided pursuant to subsection C, the 

City Manager shall confirm to each park owner in writing that the annual adjustment in rent shown in the 

information provided pursuant to subsection C has been correctly calculated and has not exceeded 80% of 

the announced change in the CPI.  A copy of the City Manager’s notice shall be posted in a prominent 

place by each park owner in each mobilehome park within three working days after it is received by the 

park owner. 

 

E. In order to calculate the allowable annual rent increase, the percentage change in the CPI shall be 

computed by calculating the percentage change between the CPI in effect in the December (“subsequent 

December”) immediately preceding the February 15th identified in subsection B above, and the CPI in 

effect in December of the prior year. 

 

F. If a space was exempt from Chapter 9.80 for a portion of the prior calendar year but during that 

same year lost its exemption and became subject to Chapter 9.80, the allowable rent adjustment shall be 

calculated by calculating the percentage change between the CPI in effect on the date of the termination 

of the exemption and the subsequent December CPI used to calculate the automatic annual increase. 

 

G. The percentage change in the CPI which forms the basis of the annualized rental increase shall be 

rounded to the nearest one-quarter of a percent. 

 

Section 1.01 – Banking (SMC 9.80.045(D)) 

 

A. A park owner who refrains from imposing an allowed, annual general rent adjustment, or any 

portion thereof, may accumulate the increase and impose some or all of the increase at any time. 

 

B. Rent increases permitted under SMC Section 9.80.045 (Annualized Automatic Increase) may be 

implemented by a park owner at any future time, subject to the precondition that by January 30th of each 

year, the park owner notify the mobilehome owner of each increase allowed pursuant to Section 9.80.045  

 

304



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 2 of 10 

 

which has not been implemented.   The notification shall also state that the park owner has banked the 

increase and that the banked increase may be added to the rent at any future date. 

 

C. The permissible imposition of a banked increase at any time is the one exception to the rule 

which proscribes more than one rent increase within a 12-month period. 

 

D. (1)  If the City Manager or a hearing officer determines that a landlord has imposed a banked 

increase to which the landlord is not entitled, the landlord shall be required to notify all 

homeowner/tenants affected by the overcharge and provide the City Manager or hearing officer with 

proof that notice was given and/or that a good faith effort was made to provide such notice. 

 

(2)  The City Manager or hearing officer shall recalculate the maximum allowable rent.  In 

determining this amount, the City Manager or hearing officer shall determine the rent in effect as of the 

date of the last properly noticed and implemented rent increase which was in compliance with Chapter 

9.80 and these rules and regulations.  The City Manager or hearing officer shall disallow any and all 

annual general adjustments subsequent to the date of an improper banking increase.  The City Manager or 

hearing officer shall allow the recalculated maximum rent to be increased by properly noticed and 

implemented individual rent adjustments subsequent to the date of the last properly noticed and 

implemented rent increase. 

 

Section 1.02 – Automatic Annual Increases After the Termination of a Lease Exempted by State 

Law (SMC 9.80.050) 

 

A. For the purpose of calculating automatic annual increases in rent after the termination of a lease 

exempted from regulation by the Mobilehome Residence Law (CA Civil Code §798.17), the rent in effect 

at the time the lease terminates shall be used for the purpose of determining the allowable increase and the 

calculation of the allowable, annual CPI increase shall be equal to the percentage change between the CPI 

in effect on the date the lease terminates and the CPI used to determine the allowable annual automatic 

increase. 

 

Section 2.00 – Registration (SMC 9.80.150) 
 

A. No later than May 31st of each year, each park owner shall file with the City Manager an annual 

registration statement in the form attached hereto as Appendices 1A, 1B and 1C. 

 

Section 2.01 – New and Previously Exempt Controlled Rental Spaces 
 

A. Within thirty (30) calendar days after the creation of a new controlled rental space, park owners 

shall notify the City Manager by registering the space by filing with the City Manager a registration 

statement in the form attached hereto as Appendix 2 and paying a prorated administration fee pursuant to 

SMC Section 9.80.200, covering the period beginning with the first day of the month within which the 

controlled rental space was created and continuing through the remainder of the calendar year. 

 

B. Within thirty (30) calendar days after a previously exempt controlled rental space loses its exempt 

status, the park owner shall notify the City Manager and pay a prorated administration fee as set forth in 

subsection 2.01(A), above. 

 

Section 3.00 – Homeowner/Resident Petitions - General 

  

A. Petitioning homeowners/residents may assert on a homeowner/resident petition any of the 

violations of the Ordinance as set forth in this Section 3.  (See, Appendix 3) 

 

305



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 3 of 10 

 

B. Nothing in these Rules and Regulations shall prevent a park owner or park residents from 

exercising their rights under the Mobilehome Residency Law, Article 5, Homeowners Meetings with 

Management (CA Civil Code §798.53). 

 

C. If, in a decision, the City Manager or a hearing officer determines that a landlord or 

homeowner/resident is owed any money as a result of a petition filed under this Section 3, then any 

amount of money owed: 

 

1. shall be a credit towards the next month(s) rent (payable after the final decision) until the 

full amount of the credit is received for any homeowner/resident who continues to live in 

a controlled rented space. 

 

2. shall constitute a debt owed the homeowner/resident by the landlord which may be 

collected in any manner provided by law for the collection of debts for a prior 

homeowner/resident or a homeowner/resident whose tenancy of the controlled rental 

space ends prior to receiving any or all of the credit owed by the landlord. 

 

D. Until the issuance of a final written statement of decision, or an order of the City Manager or 

hearing officer authorizing the withholding of all or a portion of rent, a homeowner/resident shall pay the 

properly noticed rent. 

 

E. 1.   Unless otherwise specified, any of the homeowner/resident petitions filed under this 

section may be filed at any time and are not subject to a requirement of consolidation of petitions, 

although at the discretion of the City Manager or hearing officer they may be consolidated with similar 

petitions. 

 

 2.   If a final decision requires a homeowner/resident to pay money to the landlord, the 

landlord shall be paid by the homeowner/resident on or before the next date on which monthly rent is due, 

after the date of the final decision. 

 

F. Retaliation.  The park owner/management shall in no way retaliate against any 

homeowner/resident for the homeowner’s/resident’s assertion or exercise of any right under this Section 

3.  In the event of retaliatory action by the park owner/management, the homeowner/resident is referred to 

state law and homeowner/resident rights existing under state law. 

 

Section 3.01 – Rent Adjustment Based Upon Discontinuance or Material Reduction of Housing 

Service 

 

A.  General.  The City Manager or a hearing officer may order a reduction in a 

homeowner’s/resident’s base rent pursuant to a finding that the homeowner/resident has suffered a 

discontinuance or material reduction of housing service(s) without a corresponding reduction in rent in 

violation of SMC Section 9.80.100. 

 

 1.   A homeowner/resident petition alleging a discontinuance or material reduction in housing 

service: 

  a. Must be filed on Forms Appendices 3 and 4. 

 

  b. May be filed with the City Manager at any time up to one (1) year from the date 

the homeowner/resident knew or should have known of the reduction or discontinuance of service, 

subject to the notice requirement set forth in subsection A(4), below. 

 

306



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 2. All affected homeowners/residents, whether or not they have filed a petition, shall receive 

a reduction in rent if the City Manager or a hearing officer determines that they have been subject to the 

discontinuance and/or the material reduction in service set forth in the petition. 

 

 3. Except in extraordinary circumstances, or where there have been long-term credible oral 

or written notices to a landlord of a discontinuance or a material decrease in services, no rent decrease in 

any amount in excess of twelve months’ rent will be allowed, nor shall consideration be given to an issue 

that arose prior to one year preceding the filing of the petition.  This provision shall not limit any civil 

remedies that would otherwise be available to a homeowner/resident or landlord. 

 

 4. For a homeowner/resident to prevail on an allegation of a discontinuance or material 

reduction in housing service, the homeowner/resident must prove that notice was given to the landlord of 

the discontinuance or reduction in housing service by either: 

 

  a. the homeowner/resident actually notifying the landlord in accordance with the 

terms of the Mobilehome Residency Law (CA Civil Code §798.84, as amended) currently at least thirty 

(30) calendar days before filing a petition with the City Manager; or 

 

  b. demonstrating that there was a housing code violation concerning the alleged 

discontinuance or material reduction in housing service on file with a state or local housing agency five 

(5) calendar days before the date on which the homeowner/resident filed a petition with the City Manager. 

 

 5. If the City Manager or hearing officer finds that a material service reduction or 

discontinuance of housing services has occurred, then the value of the service reduction will be 

determined, as set forth in subsection B(5), below, and the homeowners/residents shall receive a credit for 

each day they have been subject to the service reduction or discontinuance of housing services without a 

corresponding reduction in rent until the service was or is restored. 

 

 6. If the City Manager or hearing officer finds that a material service reduction or 

discontinuance of housing services is continuing as of the final date of the decision on a 

homeowner/resident’s petition, then the homeowner/resident shall be allowed to continue to reduce his or 

her monthly rent payment by the value of the service reduction. 

 

 7. a. After the date of the final decision, if the landlord restores a discontinued or 

reduced housing service then the landlord may give the tenant a ninety (90) calendar day notice of the 

restoration of the rent by an amount equal to the amount by which the decision reduced the rent, to be 

effective as of the legally noticed date.  The legally noticed date must be on or after the date of the 

restoration of the housing service. 

 

  b. If the homeowner/resident does not agree with the landlord that the housing 

service has been restored in whole or in part, then the homeowner/resident (within fifteen (15) calendar 

days of receipt of notice from the landlord) may notify the City Manager and request that the City 

Manager determine whether the housing service has actually been restored in whole or in part.  The City 

Manager’s consideration of this request will be based on the homeowner’s/resident’s prior petition so that 

the homeowner/resident will not be required to pay an additional filing fee. 

 

  c. If the City Manager or a hearing officer determines that the discontinued or 

reduced housing service has been restored, in whole or in part, then the homeowner’s/resident’s rent shall 

be increased accordingly, as of the legally noticed date. 

 

 

 

 

307



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 5 of 10 

 

B. Valuation of Discontinuance or Material Reduction of Housing Services.   

 

 1. Basic Service Level.  The landlord is required to furnish to the homeowner/resident a 

basic level of housing services, herein called the “Basic Service Level.”  The Basic Service Level for a 

particular housing service for a particular controlled rental space is established by: 

 

a. the Mobilehome Parks Act and other applicable codes and statutes, including but  

limited to CA Civil Code §§1941.1 and 1941.2; 

 

  b. the Mobilehome Residency Law; 

 

  c. the landlord’s implied warranty of habitability; 

 

  d. the park’s rules and regulations; 

 

  e. any express or implied agreement between the landlord and homeowner/resident; 

 

  f. the level of service consistent with subsections a-e, above, and implied by: 

 

   (i) the nature and quality of original construction of improvements, fixtures 

    and equipment; 

 

   (ii) the age of the improvements, fixtures and equipment; 

 

(iii) the condition of the improvements, fixtures and equipment at the 

beginning of the applicable term of tenancy; and/or 

 

(iv) the landlord’s policies of operation and maintenance, repair and 

replacement communicated to the homeowner/resident at the beginning 

of the applicable term of tenancy. 

 

 2. Service Reductions.  A service reduction occurs when the landlord has breached its 

obligation to furnish to the homeowner/resident the Basic Service Level and the homeowner’s/resident’s 

usability and/or enjoyment of the premises is therefore measurably reduced. 

 

 3. Allegations of Service Reductions or Discontinuance of Housing Services.  Each 

allegation of a material service reduction or of a discontinuance of a housing service shall be made in a 

separate writing (Appendix 4), signed by the homeowner/resident claiming it, and filed with the City 

Manager by the date specified in subsection 3.01(A)(1)(b). 

 

 4. Proof of Service Reductions.  The burden of proof of each service discontinuance or 

reduction in service is on the person alleging the reduction.  A service discontinuance or reduction for a 

particular service for a particular rental space shall be proven as follows: 

 

  a. the person alleging the service reduction shall prove: 

 

(i) the Basic Service Level for the particular service for the particular 

controlled rental space; and 

 

(ii) the actual service level for the particular service for the particular 

controlled rental space; and 

 

308



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 6 of 10 

 

(iii) that the actual service level is, or was, materially lower than the Basic 

Service Level; and 

 

(iv) that the service reduction existed within the twelve (12)-month period 

immediately preceding the date of filing the petition commencing the 

proceeding in which the issue is being heard; and 

 

(v) the amount or percentage by which the person’s rent should be reduced. 

 

b. The burden of proof shall be satisfied by persuading the City Manager or hearing  

officer that the fact sought to be proven is more probable than not. 

 

c. The burden of proof shall be met by using evidence which has a tendency in  

reason to prove or disprove a disputed fact of consequence in determining the Basic Service Level, or that 

the actual service level is materially lower than the Basic Service Level. 

 

d. Proof shall be received only for a service discontinuance or reduction alleged in a  

petition filed with the City Manager during or prior to the submission date as specified in SMC Section 

9.80.080(D)(1). 

 

 5. Determining Value of a Discontinuance or Reduction in Service.  If the City Manager or 

a hearing officer finds that a discontinuance or material reduction in service has occurred which was or is 

unreasonable under the circumstances, the City Manager or hearing officer shall determine the monetary 

value to be assigned to the service discontinuance or reduction in service by applying the following 

standards and procedures: 

 

  a. The City Manager or hearing officer shall determine the percentage reduction in 

usability and/or enjoyment of the controlled rental space caused by the discontinuance or reduction in 

service commencing with the date on which the service was discontinued or reduced subject to the 

provisions of subsection 3.01(A) and subsection 3.01(B)(4). 

 

  b. In determining the percentage reduction of usability and/or enjoyment, the City 

Manager or hearing officer shall consider the following factors: 

 

   (i) the area effected; 

 

   (ii) the amount of time the homeowner/resident is exposed to the condition; 

 

   (iii) the degree of discomfort the condition imposes; 

 

(iv) the extent to which such a condition causes homeowners/residents to find 

the premises uninhabitable and leave (temporarily or permanently); 

 

(v) the extent to which the homeowner/resident is unable to use his/her space 

and/or the common areas of the park; 

 

(vi) the number of homeowners/residents affected by the condition; 

 

(vii) the degree to which the condition affects the health and/or safety of the 

homeowner/resident; and 

 

(viii) any other similar factors. 

309



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 7 of 10 

 

  c. The City Manager or hearing officer shall apply the percentage reduction to the 

monthly rent, divide by thirty (30), and multiply the resulting sum by the number of days commencing 

from the date the service was first reduced or discontinued to the date of restoration of the Basic Service 

Level, to determine the value of the service reduction. 

 

 6. Consequences of a Discontinuance or Reduction in Service. 

 

  a. Once the value of the service reduction is determined, it shall be applied as a 

credit against future rent payments. 

 

  b. If the City Manager or a hearing officer finds a reduction or discontinuance of 

service which occurred during the occupancy by a previous homeowner/resident, then the monetary value 

of the reduction or discontinuance of service shall constitute a debt owed the previous 

homeowner/resident by the landlord which may be collected in any manner provided by law for the 

collection of debts. 

 

 7. Severe Reductions in Service.  If the City Manager or a hearing officer determines that a 

discontinuance or reduction in service is so severe as to jeopardize the health and/or safety of a 

homeowner/resident, then the City Manager or hearing officer may reasonably condition, disallow, or 

reduce rent and/or a rent increase based upon the severity of such conditions. 

 

Section 3.02 – Improper Registration 
 

A. The homeowner/resident of a controlled rental space, which has not been registered in violation 

of Section 9.80.150 of the Ordinance, may file a petition pursuant to these Regulations on the form 

attached as Appendix 3.  The petition may request the right to withhold all or a portion of the space rent 

until the rental space is properly registered.  Such action may be taken by the City Manager on his or her 

own initiative.  After sustaining a properly filed homeowner/resident petition, the City Manager or 

hearing officer may authorize the homeowner/resident to withhold all or a portion of the rent for the 

controlled rental space until the space is properly registered. 

 

B. 1. After the City Manager or hearing officer finds that a landlord has complied with the 

registration requirements of the Ordinance, in determining what if any portion of the withheld rent shall 

be owed to the landlord for the period in which the rental space was not properly registered, the City 

Manager or hearing officer shall consider such factors as the landlord’s motivation and intent in failing to 

properly register the controlled space. 

 

 2. The City Manager or hearing officer shall order the homeowner/resident to pay any 

money owed to the landlord pursuant to subsection B(1), above, on or before the next date on which 

monthly rent is due, after the date of the order. 

 

C. The City Manager or hearing officer may disallow a rent increase demanded, accepted or retained 

by the landlord if at the time of the noticed increase or thereafter the landlord had not properly registered 

or re-registered the controlled rental space. 

 

D. 1. If the City Manager or hearing officer determines that a landlord has demanded, accepted 

or retained any increase in rent for a controlled rental space which has not been properly registered, the 

City Manager or hearing officer shall disallow said increase for the period during which the controlled 

rental space was not properly registered. 

 

 

 

310



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 8 of 10 

 

 2. Any amount of rental increase paid by the homeowner/resident which the City Manager 

or hearing officer determines to be disallowed shall be a credit towards the next monthly rent(s) due.  If 

the homeowner/resident leaves the park prior to receiving the full benefit of the credit, the remainder shall 

constitute a debt owed the homeowner/resident by the landlord which may be collected in any manner 

provided by law for the collection of debts. 

 

Section 3.03 – Landlord’s Failure to Properly Post Notice of Maximum Allowable Rents 
 

A. If a landlord fails to post the maximum allowable rent for each space, in violation of Section 

9.80.045(B) of the Ordinance, and the other information required to be posted under Section 1.00 of these 

Regulations, then the landlord shall not demand, accept or retain the annual general rent adjustment 

otherwise permitted by the Ordinance. 

 

B. The landlord will be permitted to impose the annual general adjustment increase otherwise 

permitted by the Ordinance effective on the date the City Manager or hearing officer determines that a 

landlord has complied with the posting requirement. 

 

C. Any amount of rent retained by the landlord prior to compliance with the provisions of this 

Section shall be paid to the homeowner/resident as set forth in Section 3.00, above. 

 

D. For a homeowner/resident to prevail on an allegation of a landlord’s failure to post a notice of 

maximum allowable rent, the homeowner/resident must give the landlord thirty (30) calendar days’ notice 

of failure to post, and the violation of the Ordinance must still be in effect at the time the 

homeowner/resident files a petition under this Section. 

 

Section 3.04 – Improper Banking Increase 
 

A. A landlord may impose a rent increase based upon allowable accumulated but uncharged rent 

increases in the annual general adjustment at any time upon proper notice.  Any rent increase imposed 

under this Section may not be rescinded and re-imposed at a later date. 

 

B. The City Manager or hearing officer may order the landlord to repay the homeowner/resident any 

rent improperly collected and retained, and set the maximum allowable rent on the affected controlled 

rental space(s) in accordance with the provisions of Section 3.00, above. 

 

Section 3.05 – Homeowner/Resident Defense to Individual Rent Adjustment Increases 

 

A. If a landlord has accepted and retained rent in excess of the amount permitted by the Ordinance, 

the landlord shall be in violation of Section 9.80.180 of the Ordinance. 

 

B. A homeowner/resident may file a petition under this Section at any time, provided only that the 

portion of the current rent resulting from the last individual rent adjustment prior to filing the petition 

which was accepted or retained in violation of Section 9.80.180 of the Ordinance may be subject to an 

order by the City Manager or hearing officer.  After giving proper notice, the landlord shall be entitled to 

impose the individual rent adjustment provisions of Section 9.80.180 of the Ordinance.  The individual 

rent adjustment shall not be retroactively imposed. 

 

C. Subject to the limitation imposed in subsection B, above, the City Manager or hearing officer 

may order the landlord to repay the homeowner/resident any rent improperly collected and retained in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 3.00, above. 

 

 

 

311



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 9 of 10 

 

Section 4.00 - Calculation of Base Year Operating Costs Pursuant to Maintenance of Net Operating 

Income Formula When Applicant Does Not Have Base Year Information and Presumptions About 

Increases in Management and Maintenance Expenses 

 

A.   In cases where an applicant cannot provide complete information on base year operating costs 

despite good faith efforts to obtain such information, said expenses shall be projected. In order to project 

costs, if the costs are determined by public regulation or  public charges or fees, changes in these charges 

between the base year and the current year shall be considered.  (For example, if water rates have 

increased by 40% since the base year, it shall be presumed that water expenses have increased by 40% 

since the base year, unless there is evidence that  consumption patterns have changed thereby affecting 

annual costs.) 

 

B.   There shall be a rebuttable presumption that maintenance expenses have increased by the 

percentage increase in the CPI, unless the level of maintenance has significantly increased or decreased 

since the base year. 

 

C.   There shall be a rebuttable presumption that management expenses have increased by the 

percentage increase in the CPI, unless the level of management services has significantly increased or 

decreased since the base year. 

 

5.00 - Capital Improvements – Definition 

 

A.   Capital improvements are expenditures which materially add to the value of a property or 

appreciably prolong its life, which have a life of ten or more years, and are not treated as an expense for 

income tax purposes. 

 

B.   Expenses related to the provision of gas and electricity, facilities for which a fee is charged (such 

as coin operated washers and dryers), or for which reimbursement may be obtained shall not be 

considered. 

 

C. The term “capital improvements” does not include those costs associated with the normal 

maintenance and upkeep of facilities and premises which were reasonably intended to be part of the 

consideration provided by the mobilehome park as rent. 

 

D. Substantial rehabilitation of the park that is necessitated as a result of the park owner’s neglect, 

permissive waste, deferred maintenance, or acts of God shall not be regarded to be capital improvements 

to the extent that they restore facilities and premises to the conditions reasonably bargained for by the 

mobilehome park residents. 

 

E. Capital improvements must be reasonably related to the operation of the business, are appropriate 

to the use of the property, and for the primary benefit, use and enjoyment of the homeowners/residents of 

the entire park.  Costs must be allocated over all spaces in the park. 

 

5.01 - Interest Rate for Capital Improvement Expenses 

 

The interest rate for capital improvements shall be equal to the prime interest rate as report by the Wall 

Street Journal, on the date the application is deemed complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

312



C:/JAW/Sonoma/Resolutions/Rules and Regs re Mobilehome Space Rent Ordinance Ch. 9.80.docx 

Page 10 of 10 

 

5.02 - Amortization Periods 

 

A.   Capital improvements shall be amortized according to the following schedule.  If an improvement 

is not itemized in the schedule, it shall be amortized in accordance with the useful life tables of the 

Internal Revenue Service which are used to set depreciation schedules.  If shown by a preponderance of 

the evidence that the amortization schedule should be different than the schedule in this section or the IRS 

tables, then a schedule shall be set based on the evidence.  Improvements that are made in conjunction 

with the construction of a building shall be amortized over the life of the  building. 

 

   Improvement    Amortization Period 

                  (Years) 

 

   Fencing         15 

   New Building        27.5 

   “Petromat” Paving       10 

   Re-roofing        18 

   Sewer Systems        50 

   Water Distribution Systems      50 

 

B. Proposed capital improvements claims must set forth an amortization table spreading the cost of 

the improvement, less any industry rebates, insurance proceeds, or other reimbursement, over its proven 

useful life. 

 

5.03 - Notification of the Amount of Capital Improvement Increases and Their Amortization Period 

 

All notices to tenants of their rent levels shall separately set forth amounts of any capital improvement 

increases and the termination date(s) of  those increases. 

 

6.00 - Definition (“in-place”) Sale 

 

A.   For the purposes of determining if an in-place transfer has occurred pursuant to Section 

9.80.060(C) of the Sonoma Municipal Code, the following types of transfers shall not be considered in-

place sales:  transfers to a spouse, former spouse, child, sibling, mother or father in-law, sister or brother 

in-law, or transfers upon death to any of the foregoing relatives. 

313



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

314



 

 

City of Sonoma 
City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
7C 
 
12/12/2016 

 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Carol Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, consideration and possible action for extension of the  Valley of the Moon Certified 
Farmers’ Market agreement for management of the Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market in the Plaza  

Summary 

The Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market on the Plaza has been managed by the Valley of the Moon 
Certified Farmers’ Market (VOMCFM), a nonprofit organization, since 2011.  They were first granted 
management authority by the City Council in December 2010 when they submitted a proposal in 
response to the City’s Request for Proposals for Market Management.  In 2015 the Council 
extended their management agreement through the 2016 season.  A letter of request has been 
submitted by the VOMCFM requesting Council consider an additional extension for an undetermined 
period of time. 

 

Recommended Council Action 

Council discretion. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

To be determined.  The CSEC currently determines the amount of Plaza Use fees that are charged.  
Council may consider changes to the fee structure as a component of the discussion. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

315



Agenda Item Error! Reference source not found. 

 

 

Attachments: 

    Supplemental Report 
    Letter from Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers Market 
    2010 RFP for Farmers Market Management 
    Proposal from Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers Market 
 

 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

 

cc:    Bill Dardon via email 

 

316



SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 

Discussion, consideration and possible action for extension of the Valley of the  
Moon Certified Farmers’ Market agreement for management of the Tuesday  

Night Farmers’ Market in the Plaza 
 

For the Council Meeting of December 12, 2016 

 

The Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market on the Plaza has been managed by the Valley of the Moon 
Certified Farmers’ Market (VOMCFM) since 2011.  They were first granted management 
authority by the City Council in December 2010 when they submitted a proposal in response to 
the City’s Request for Proposals for Market Management.  In 2015 the Council extended their 
management agreement through the 2016 season.  A letter of request has been submitted by 
the VOMCFM requesting Council consider an additional extension for an undetermined period 
of time. 

The Tuesday Night Farmers Market is an event that has grown significantly over the past years 
and has been successful when viewed as an overall gathering place for both locals and visitors.  
The original Request for Proposal for Operation of Tuesday Night Farmers Market [RFP] issued 
in 2010 was general in its objectives in stating: 

 The primary purpose of the Tuesday Night Farmers Market will be to offer 
 Community members an opportunity to purchase fresh, locally grown produce and other 
 artisan goods, provide farmers an opportunity to sell their products locally, to benefit 
 local  businesses, provide an opportunity for local musicians to perform, and provide a 
 festive community event which highlights the town character and to create a social 
 gathering place in the Town Square, the Plaza. 
 
In response to the 2010 RFP the City received two proposals, each of which submitted their 
plan in meeting the above objective.  Once the VOMCFM’s proposal was accepted, they were 
required to annually submit their Plaza Use application to the City’s Community Services and 
Environment Commission for further review and approvals including setting Plaza Use Fees 
prior to initiating the Farmers Market Season which has traditionally run from April through 
October. 
 
The Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market is interested in continuing the relationship with 
the City and has presented an option to work directly with a sub-committee appointed by the 
Council to modify the objectives of the Market should the Council desire to do so.  Since the 
contract has come to the end of its extended term, staff submits the following options for Council 
consideration: 
 

1) Renew the agreement with VOMCFM for Council-specified timeframe under the existing 
guidelines with no changes. 
 

2) Appoint a Council sub-committee, including members of CSEC, staff and VOMCFM to 
redefine the objectives of the Market and report back for Council ratification before 
consideration of extension of VOMCFM agreement. 
 

317



3) Appoint a Council sub-committee to work with staff and/or members of the CSEC to draft 
new guidelines and objectives for the Market; issue new Request for Proposal for Market 
Management.  Time would be of the essence in getting the RFP prepared and distributed for 
the 2017 Market season. 
 
New guidelines could include more specific requirements for management, vendors, hours 
of operation, environmental considerations and local preferences.  Adding additional detail 
to the Market Plan will allow the Proposer or Current Manager the opportunity to structure 
the event in compliance with Council preferences.  Council may also want to consider the 
fee structure as a separate component of the sub-committee discussion. 

 
 

318



319



 

 

SONOMA’S 
 

TUESDAY NIGHT FARMERS 
MARKET 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SONOMA 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

REVISED 
 

OPERATION OF  
TUESDAY NIGHT FARMERS 

MARKET 
(As Permittee in Plaza Park) 

 
SUBMITTAL DEADLINE – NOVEMBER 19, 2010 

320



 2 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR OPERATION 
OF TUESDAY NIGHT FARMERS MARKET 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Sonoma is seeking proposals from qualified persons/firms for  The operation, 
management and marketing of Tuesday Night Farmers Market from May 3, 2011 to October 25, 
2011, in Plaza Park in the City of Sonoma. The successful bidder will be subject to the issuance 
of a Plaza Permit with conditions, as set forth herein and the City of Sonoma Special Events 
Policy, including Appendix A, Plaza Park Restrictions, Requirements & Guidelines. 
 
This Request for Proposal (RFP) describes the project, the required scope of services, selection 
process, and the minimum information that must be included in the proposal. 
 
BACKGROUND AND GENERAL COMMUNITY DESCRIPTION 
 
Located in the heart of one of the world’s premier wine producing regions, Sonoma is a working 
town with approximately 9,800 residents and a rich cultural heritage. The adjacent scenic hills 
and agricultural valley provide a setting of unparalleled natural beauty. The San Francisco de 
Solano mission and other historic buildings that surround the central Plaza complement the 
area’s viticulture prominence and visual beauty to make Sonoma a distinctive and successful 
tourism destination. The City serves as the economic hub for the rural Sonoma Valley, which 
has a population of about 39,000.  
 
A Tuesday Night Certified Farmers Market has taken place in the City’s historic eight-acre Plaza 
in the heart of downtown for the past 20+ years.  The Market has grown in size and scope, and 
has become one of the trademark summer events for the City.  The City and the community at 
large have a stake in the Market continuing as a signature event for Sonoma Valley.  The 
Market is not only a hub for residents who wish to purchase fresh, locally grown produce, but is 
also a social gathering place for all ages, a popular picnic destination, and culturally important to 
the City.  As such, the goal of this RFP and selection process is to continue and enhance 
Tuesday Night Certified Farmers Market in the Plaza and to integrate the community’s values 
into the process of Market Management and operations. 
 
PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
 
The primary purpose of the Tuesday Night Farmers Market will be to offer community members 
an opportunity to purchase fresh, locally grown produce and other artisan goods, provide 
farmers an opportunity to sell their products locally, to benefit local businesses, provide an 
opportunity for local musicians to perform, and provide a festive community event which 
highlights the town character and to create a social gathering place in the Town Square, the 
Plaza. 
 
The City of Sonoma is requesting proposals from qualified organizations/individuals for the 
creation, operation, overall management and marketing of the Tuesday Night Farmers Market. 
The operation of the Market expected to begin May 3, 2011. 
 
The Sonoma City Council and Community Services and Environment Commission recently took 
public testimony and deliberated on their preferred values and management philosophy for the 
Farmers Market.  As a result, the following values must be reflected in any proposal and 
implemented in the Market:  transparency in operations; openness and fairness in selection 
process for vendors; accountability of Market Management to the City and to the community; 
emphasis on locally grown produce and locally produced goods; and sustainable environmental 
and green practices throughout. 

321



 3 

 

The successful proposal shall be expected to comply with all applicable California Codes, 

Regulations, Certified Farmers Market rules, maintain a valid City Business License and meet 

the Insurance Requirements of the City.  The proposer should also seek to provide a consumer 

mix that reaches all aspects of the local marketplace, and appeals to adults, teenagers and 

children.  Proposers shall include a detailed description and process for how local vendors will 

be supported and given priority 

 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
General 
 
The proposal should be concise, well organized, and demonstrate the proposer’s qualifications 
and experience applicable to the project.  The proposal shall be limited to 10 pages, double-
sided (8-1/2 x 11 inches), exclusive of resumes, graphics, forms, photographs, cover letter, etc. 
Type size and margins for text should be in keeping with accepted standard formats for desktop 
publishing and processing. 
 
The proposal must include a discussion of the proposer’s approach to the project, a breakdown 
and explanation of project tasks, a proposed project schedule, an estimate of revenues and 
expenditures, documentation of the proposer’s qualifications for the scope of work, and any 
other relevant materials. 
 
 
Contents 
 

Proposals submitted in response to this RFP shall be in the following order and shall include: 

 Executive Summary: Include a (1) page summary of the entire proposal describing the 

most important elements of the proposal. 

 

 Identification of the Lead Entity, including: 

 Legal name and address of company or non-profit proposing to conduct the Market. 
 Legal form of company or non-profit (e.g. partnership, corporation, non-profit status, 

etc.). If joint venture, identify the members of the joint venture and provide all 
information required within this section for each member.  

 Disclosure of “parent company” if proposer is a wholly-owned subsidiary (or subject to 
other partnerships).  

 Physical address(es) of office(s) working on this project.  
 Name, title, address, email, and telephone number of the person to serve as project 

manager and a proposal contact (if different).  

  

 Experience and Technical Competence-:  

 Describe the team’s experience in operating other certified or non-certified farmers 
markets or related community event management experience. List the name and 
location of the farmers market and type of work accomplished in operating the market. 
Include reference contact information, as applicable.  

 Describe experience recruiting, retaining, and managing community event logistics. 
 Describe any past event management experience including, but not limited to, vendor 

recruitment, booth arrangement, traffic flow, parking, market event set-up and take-
down, and any other related information.  

 Briefly describe your advertising and marketing philosophy and experience as it 
relates to farmers markets.  

322



 4 

 Describe your knowledge of and indicate your ability to obtain all regulatory/health 
permits and County and State certifications applicable to the operation and 
management of a certified farmers market.  

 
Proposed Method to Accomplish the Work  
 Explain how current vendors of the Tuesday Night Farmers Market will be integrated 

into your approach to the Market. 
 Briefly describe the proposer’s technical and management philosophy regarding the 

successful operation of a farmers market.  
 Describe how proposer will work with special event managers to promote the City 

Party, Jazz Nights in coordination with the Farmers Market. 
 Explain space requirements. Proposers should be aware that the Plaza Chavoya 

Horseshoe is the primary Market location, with additional space around City Hall 
available if requested and necessary. 

 A website for the Tuesday Night Farmers Market is required and will need to be 
updated and maintained regularly. Describe how the website will be utilized to 
provide key information.  

 

Knowledge and Understanding of Local Environment 

 Express and demonstrate a knowledge and understanding of the local environment 
and culture by describing the applicant’s experience with the City of Sonoma and 
how the applicant plans on maintaining an open local presence while working with 
City of Sonoma staff.   

 Display understanding of the Plaza Use Guidelines and Special Event Policy.   
 
Project Organization and Key Personnel 
 Describe proposed project organization, including team structure and identification 

and responsibilities of key personnel. Include resumes’ for key personnel as 
attachments. 

 Describe type of availability and hours during non-market hours including office 
location/hours, phone and fax numbers and email addresses. Provide an indication of 
the approximate staffing level(s) for the project.  

 If there will be a Board for the Farmers Market, describe the composition of the 
Board, how Board members are chosen, their terms, how Board meetings will be 
held and conducted, and their decision-making authority with respect to vendor 
selection and Market rules.  Include any appeal procedures. 

 Describe in detail the qualifications and experience of the individual who will act as 

the Market Manager including a detailed job/duties description.   Market Manager 

must be on site during the Tuesday Night Farmers Market.   In the event that a 

Market Manager has not yet been identified, describe in detail the process for 

recruiting and selecting a Market Manager and include a detailed job/duties 

description for same as attachment.  

 Provide a projected operational budget of costs and services proposed, including but 
not limited to costs associated with marketing, vendor recruitment, special events, 
and projected City monetary and/or in-kind contribution(s), if any.  

 Provide a project timeline for services provided leading up to, and including the 
opening day of the market, operation throughout the market season, and the close of 
the market at the end of the season.  

 
 
 
 
 

323



 5 

Rules and Regulations 

 Provide an organized and detailed set of Rules and Regulations for the operation of 

the Tuesday Night Farmers Market, which should include consideration of, but is not 

limited to, the following:   

 Farmers Market requirements for managing organization and vendors 

 General rules for all participants   

 Application process for vendors 

 Process for Vendor selection and space allocation 

 Process for vendor approval, or denial and maintenance of a waiting list  

 Requirements for Edible Food Vending 

 Fundraisers and Non-Profit organizations 

 Political, Religious and other Informational Groups / First Amendment 

accommodation 

 Entertainment – music (including youth oriented), live performance arts, etc. 

 Arts & Crafts 

 Merchant Booths 

 Proposer will be required to submit certification for the Tuesday Night Farmers 

Market prior to the issuance of the Plaza Use Permit and before the first day of the 

market.   

 Include a comprehensive and “green” waste management system for the event, 

including how the requirement of “No Styrofoam” will be enforced, and how 

recycling/composting will be encouraged and supervised.    

 Provide a Power Plan for electrical needs and information on what steps will be 

taken to preserve the Plaza lawn, turf, vegetation and other Plaza amenities. 

 
Financial Sustainability and Fees 
 Fees for Plaza Use for the Weekly Farmers Market are as follows: 
 Chavoya Horseshoe - $100.00 week, North Parking Lot $75.00 week (as 
 incentive for use during the 2011 Season). 
 For additional space, charges will be determined in accordance with the City Fee 

Schedule. 
 Include a proposed budget and any other relevant financial documents which 

demonstrate your ability to undertake this endeavor.  
 
Exceptions to this Request for Proposal  
 The proposer shall certify that it takes no exception(s) to any portion of the RFP. If the 

proposer does take exception(s) to any portion of the RFP, the specific portion of the 
RFP to which exception(s) is taken shall be identified and explained. 

 
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Proposals may be submitted by email, mail, or hand-delivered to City Hall.  If hard copy, 

please submit one original proposal. Proposals submitted by facsimile are not acceptable 
and will not be considered.  

 The proposal shall be signed by an individual or individuals authorized to execute legal 
documents on behalf of the proposer.  

 The entire proposal must be received no later than 2:00 PM, November 19, 2010. E-mail, 
mail or hand-deliver all proposals to:  

 
     

Milenka Bates, Public Works Director 
    City of Sonoma 

324



 6 

    #1 The Plaza 
    Sonoma, CA 95476 
    mbates@sonomacity.org 
 
 Failure to comply with the requirements of the RFP may result in disqualification.  
 Proposals and/or modifications received subsequent to the hour and date specified above 

will not be considered.  
 
PRE-SUBMITTAL ACTIVITIES 
 
All questions relating to the RFP should be presented to:  
 
  Colleen Pratt, Public Works Administrative Assistant 
  (707) 938-3332 
  cpratt@sonomacity.org 
  
The City of Sonoma reserves the right to revise the RFP prior to the date that proposals are 
due. Revisions to the RFP shall be mailed to all potential proposers and all holders of the RFP. 
 
 
SELECTION PROCESS  
 
A selection committee (the “Committee”) will be established for this project which will include 
City of Sonoma staff, CSEC Commissioners, and may include representatives from the private 
sector, the general public, or individuals with expertise and experience in managing a farmers 
market.  
 If applicable, the Committee may interview the short listed organizations. Based upon the 

proposal and interview, the Committee will rank the finalists as to their individual 
qualifications and merits.  

 Due to the short timeline, the negotiations regarding the scope of work, contract schedule, 
contract terms and conditions, technical specifications, and price may be held with the 
primary and secondary proposers concurrently.  

 Following Committee and staff review, a recommendation will be brought to the Community 
Services Environment Commission (CSEC) and City Council for approval.  

 
REVIEW PROCESS 
 
During the first year, the Farmers Market Manager will be required to meet on the following 
dates with the CSEC and staff to review the event: 
     
  Special Event Committee Review (Staff) January 6, 2011 
  CSEC Plaza Use Application Review  January 12, 2011 
  CSEC Review  (pre market check-in)  April 13, 2011 
  CSEC Review     June 9, 2011 
  CSEC Review     August 11, 2011 
  (Additional dates may be added if staff or CSEC deem necessary) 
 
EVALUATION CRITERIA  
 
Proposers will be evaluated on the following criteria:  
 Proposer qualifications and experience, including internal organization and resources, 

comparable project experience, and knowledge of the Sonoma community.  
 Proposer’s approach to project management, including coordination with City of Sonoma 

staff, budget monitoring and quality control, and applicable progress/reporting systems.  

325

mailto:mbates@sonomacity.org
mailto:mbates@sonomacity.org


 7 

 Ability to meet the City’s requirements and the unique needs of the Sonoma community with 
respect to the Market. 

 
 

SCHEDULE FOR RFP, SELECTION, AWARD AND MARKET IMPLEMENTATION 
 
Issue RFP 
 

October 12, 2010 

Proposal Due Date 
 

November 19, 2010 

Oral Interviews 
 

November 29 – December 2, 1010 

Presentation to CSEC 
CSEC Recommendation to City Council 
 

December 8, 2010 

Presentation to City Council  
City Council award RFP  
 

December 15, 2010 

Special Event Review 
 

January 6, 2011 

CSEC Plaza Use Application Review 
 

January 12, 2011 

CSEC Review  (pre market check-in)  
 

April 13, 2011 

Market Opens 
 

May 3, 2011 

 
  

326



 8 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
Reservations   
This RFP does not commit the City of Sonoma to award a permit or contract, to defray any cost 
incurred in the preparation of a proposal pursuant to this RFP, or to procure or contract for work. 
 
Public Records   
All proposals submitted in response to this RFP become the property of the City of Sonoma and 
public records and, as such, may be subject to public review.  
 
Right to Cancel  
The City of Sonoma reserves the right to cancel, for any or no reason, in part or in its entirety, 
this RFP, including but not limited to: selection schedule, submittal date, and submittal 
requirements. If the City of Sonoma cancels or revises the RFP, all proposers will be notified in 
writing by the City of Sonoma.  
 
Additional Information   
The City of Sonoma reserves the right to request additional information and/or clarification from 
any or all proposers to this RFP.  
 
Public Information  
Proposers who wish to release information to the public regarding operators selection, contract 
award or data provided by the City of Sonoma must receive prior written approval from the City 
of Sonoma before disclosing such information to the public.  
 
Insurance Requirements  
The City of Sonoma requires individuals and business entities doing business with it to obtain 
insurance. The required insurance certificates must comply with all requirements of the 
standards as shown in this document and must be provided within fifteen (15) days of notice of 
selection and prior to the commencement of any work on the project. 
 

### 

327



 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED  

SUBSEQUENT TO THE WRITING OF THE  

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

HAS NOT BEEN  

REVIEWED BY STAFF 

328



Proposal to the City of Sonoma

for

Operating and Managing
The Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market

2017 Season

Submitted December 7, 2016

by

Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market
34 West Spain Street
Sonoma, CA 95476

Bill Dardon
President of the Board of Directors

329



Introduction:

The Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market (VOMCFM) requests a one year extension of 
our agreement with the City of Sonoma to present and manage the Tuesday Night Farmers’ 
Market in the Plaza for the 2017 season. This agreement is critical to have in place as soon as 
possible, because our usual schedule is to begin accepting vendor applications on December 1st, 
with applications closed on February 1st and notifications to accepted vendors by March 1st. 
Delays in these dates and this process will impose a hardship and possible additional expenses on
our vendors as they work to get necessary permits, licenses and insurance in place for Market 
opening on May 2, 2017.

VOMCFM understands that City Council has expressed some concerns about the Tuesday night 
market, and we stand ready to discuss and respond to those concerns, always with the objective 
of creating a Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market that works for the City and citizens of Sonoma. 
Based on Council concerns that we heard expressed during the April 18, 2016 Council meeting, 
we submitted a request on November 1, 2016 to formally meet and work together with Council 
and City staff to agree on any new parameters and guidelines for the Market, if they may have 
changed from those outlined in the 2010 Request for Proposal. The only response to that letter 
was to let us know that we have been placed on the agenda for the December 12, 2016 City 
Council meeting. This proposal urges the Council to extend our agreement for just the 2017 
market season, so that we may immediately begin the necessary preparations for our season, 
already at least two weeks behind schedule from previous years. In addition, we ask again to 
have an opportunity, well in advance of the end of our 2017 season, to sit down with City 
Council and staff (and perhaps members of the community in an ad hoc “citizens advisory” 
committee) to discuss and refine the vision of what we would like the Farmers’ Market to be for 
the coming years. Out of those discussions, we would hope to agree on some goals and 
objectives, as well as criteria for continuing evaluation of how the Market is being managed, 
updating the original objectives as they were outlined in the 2010 Request for Proposal.

In the immediate term, however, we would request that the Council, at its December 12, 2016 
meeting, approve our management agreement for the 2017 season, so that we may start 
immediately on preparing. Integral to that approval, in order to accommodate our non-profit 
organization’s budget and financial situation, we would request the 2017 Plaza Use fee be the 
same as it has been for the last 6 years. If there is going to be a significant change in the City 
fees, the time to do that would be when we have adequate planning and preparation time to 
adjust our budget or locate sources of additional funding.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 2 of 8

330



Background:

Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market (VOMCFM) is a non-profit 501(c)(4) social 
welfare organization, as officially recognized by the State of California. The sole purpose of 
VOMCFM is to present and manage the Tuesday night Farmers’ Market in Sonoma’s Plaza, for 
the benefit, education and socialization of the citizens of Sonoma and the surrounding areas. 
VOMCFM has been in existence since early 2011, when it was created after being awarded the 
right to operate, manage and market the Tuesday night Farmers’ Market in response to a Request 
for Proposal from the City of Sonoma.

Here is an excerpt from the 2010 Request for Proposal, describing the Market as the City sees it:

A Tuesday Night Certified Farmers Market has taken place in the City’s 
historic eight-acre Plaza in the heart of downtown for the past 20+ years. 
The Market has grown in size and scope, and has become one of the 
trademark summer events for the City. The City and the community at 
large have a stake in the Market continuing as a signature event for 
Sonoma Valley. The Market is not only a hub for residents who wish to 
purchase fresh, locally grown produce, but is also a social gathering place
for all ages, a popular picnic destination, and culturally important to the 
City. As such, the goal of this RFP and selection process is to continue 
and enhance Tuesday Night Certified Farmers Market in the Plaza and to 
integrate the community’s values into the process of Market Management 
and operations.

PROJECT OBJECTIVES

The primary purpose of the Tuesday Night Farmers Market will be to offer
community members an opportunity to purchase fresh, locally grown 
produce and other artisan goods, provide farmers an opportunity to sell 
their products locally, to benefit local businesses, provide an opportunity 
for local musicians to perform, and provide a festive community event 
which highlights the town character and to create a social gathering place
in the Town Square, the Plaza.

For VOMCFM, these words have formed the guiding principles for operating the market.

After two years of successfully managing the Market (2011 and 2012), VOMCFM came before 
the City Council to review our performance and request an extension of our right to manage the 
Market. City Council and City staff were very positive in their evaluation, and our agreement 
was extended for the 2013 and 2014 Market seasons.

Again after the 2014 Market season, VOMCFM came before City Council to request another 
extension of our agreement. Because it is hard to plan in two year increments, and to enable us to
seek grants and other funds to supplement our operating costs with the assurance that we would 

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 3 of 8

331



continue to manage the Market and be able to plan and work with organizations offering grants 
(such as the Tourism Improvement District and the County of Sonoma), we requested a longer-
term agreement. Again the City Council and staff were very generous with their praise, but chose
to only extend the agreement for another two years. In a letter to VOMCFM dated February 5, 
2015, Assistant City Manager Gay Johann had this to say:

Since it has been under your management, the Tuesday Night Market has 
been met with great enthusiasm by the vendors and the community as a 
whole. This has been evidenced by the large (and sometimes huge) turnout
we see each and every Tuesday evening of the market season. Also, as 
noted in the staff report that went to the City Council, the Community 
Services and Environment Commission (CSEC) has been so pleased with 
your spirit of cooperation and compliance with the conditions of approval 
they eliminated their Farmers’ Market subcommittee as they felt the 
market no longer needed that level of scrutiny. You have brought the 
market a long way since taking over four years ago!

VOMCFM would like to continue to present and manage the Tuesday night Farmers’ Market. We
feel that, due to the unique nature of the Market event, it would be most beneficial and workable 
to consider ourselves “partners” with the City in presenting this venerable community event, so 
well-loved, well-attended and relied upon by the citizens of Sonoma and the Sonoma Valley.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 4 of 8

332



Proposal Summary:

Valley of the Moon Certified Farmers’ Market is a nonprofit corporation that has successfully 
operated this venerable Farmers’ Market/Community Event under a two year agreement from 
2011-2012 that was subsequently renewed for another two years for the 2013 and 2014 seasons, 
and then renewed again for the 2015 and 2016 seasons. For this request, in order to avoid delay 
in commencing the upcoming season, we are submitting this proposal to continue to present and 
manage the Tuesday Night Market for just the 2017 season, under the same terms as the previous
6 seasons. We are anticipating and requesting that, during the 2017 season, the City and 
VOMCFM will meet and work together to solidify longer-range plans and objectives for the 
future of the Tuesday Night Farmers’ Market and create a framework for a public/private 
partnership tasked with presenting and managing it.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 5 of 8

333



Summary of Accomplishments 2011-2016:

Community-oriented

 Renewing the Market focus on farmers and reaffirming our commitment to providing a 
source for healthy local foods for members of our community.

 Offering an EBT (Food Stamp) matching program during half of the 2015 season and all 
of the 2016 season, which doubles the purchasing power of EBT customers, composed of
Sonoma’s less-fortunate and elderly populations, supporting the health and well-being of 
our citizens. EBT use at the Market increased 70% from the 2014 season to the 2016, and
we expect that increase to continue as more Market patrons become aware of the 
matching program.

 Offering a place for youth of Sonoma to congregate and enjoy our Plaza under the 
watchful eye of the elders of our community.

 Offering a family gathering and picnicking event for 26 weeks of each year, especially 
during the summer out-of-school season.

 Presenting family-oriented entertainment and activities, such as weekly musical 
performances, annual Zucchini Races, and Halloween parade and trick-or-treating.

 Offering a no-cost space for any community non-profit organization to reach out and 
provide information to the community, as well as solicit volunteers & monetary support.

 Offering a no-cost space for political organizations to distribute information and seek 
petition signatures.

 Bringing many people to Sonoma’s downtown, on the traditionally slowest night of the 
week, to enjoy not only the Market vendors, but also patronize and support surrounding 
Plaza businesses, many of whom leverage the event with market-oriented specials.

 Cooperating with Sonoma Valley Jazz Society to attract large spillover crowds to their 
Tuesday Night Jazz Series from June through September.

 Offering a no-cost weekly stall space throughout the summer to the Sonoma Valley 
Education Foundation for promotion of their fund-raising raffle and Red and White Ball.

 Granting over $20,000 in scholarships and grants to local students and school programs, 
through our Scholarship/Grants program.

 Connecting community members with the Farmers’ Market through our FarmFan weekly 
texts.

 Involving local businesses in the Market through our Sponsorship program, begun in 
2013, offering 3 levels of sponsorship (Platinum, Gold & Silver).

 Offering beer and wine sales to Market patrons, in response to new state laws allowing 
and encouraging such sales at Farmers’ Markets.

 On-going and regular website re-designing to make it easier for community members to 
get timely information about the Market.

 Working with local artist Caroline Hipkiss to design and market an annual 
commemorative poster for the Market.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 6 of 8

334



Vendor-oriented

 Offering a weekly venue, at affordable stall fees, for local farmers, food vendors, artisans 
and service providers to present themselves to their community.

 Being fair and transparent in our vendor selection process, including creating an objective
vendor evaluation/scoring system that favors more-local businesses, smaller start-up 
businesses, and businesses that source their product ingredients from other local 
businesses.

 Focusing on farmers to make sure the Market works for them. In the run-up to the 2016 
season, lengthy meetings were held with local farmers and farmer representatives, and 
out of these meetings several plans of action were agreed upon. These include 2016 
season efforts to re-arrange the market to offer patrons more time to shop from farmers, 
offering the FarmFan text messaging service to promote the Market and farmers, and 
offering our EBT (Food Stamp) matching program to increase EBT customers purchases 
at farmer vendors.

 Constantly improving and fine-tuning our operations to make things easier for the 
vendors, for instance posting online “virtual meetings” to disseminate important 
information and policies, or offering annual emailed vendor receipts.

 Managing and applying rules in a fair and consistent manner.

 Offering local vintners and micro-breweries access to our Market patrons, through the 
new vendor category of beer and wine sales (closed bottles only), newly allowed at 
farmers markets due to a change in state law.

Entertainment-oriented

 Offering local entertainers an opportunity to play in front of a home-town audience.

 Providing a venue that supports and encourages local youth performing artists and 
musicians.

 Revamping the staging area to face out toward Broadway, providing more space for 
audiences to gather.

 Improving our weekly entertainment offerings through professional management 
(Mooneyhan Promotions).

 Providing professional sound equipment and a technician for select larger bands.

 Promoting Market entertainment through our website, Facebook page, and FarmFan 
texting service.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 7 of 8

335



City-oriented

 Providing stable, reliable, professional management of a cherished community event.

 Working and coordinating with City staff to address any problems that might arise in a 
timely manner.

 Being responsive to the community, soliciting and listening to input to constantly 
improve the event and reflect favorably on the City.

Market Operations

 Complying with all applicable state and local laws and regulations, to ensure a well-run, 
legally-compliant market. This includes close work with the City’s Fire Marshall, making
sure each season that emergency access to all areas of the market are clear and all 
vendors are safely complying with fire regulations.

 Contracting with and paying several thousand dollars per year to Sonoma County Sheriffs
to provide additional security for Market evenings.

 Continually improving and upgrading our waste and recycling systems, including 
monitoring of vendors and their containers, dedicated receptacles for Trash, Recycling 
and Compost in strategic locations throughout the Market, and a dedicated 
garbage/recycling staff person who is present during and after each Market to clean the 
Plaza and return it to an acceptable condition.

 Maintaining and cleaning the Plaza restrooms for all Market evenings, with hourly 
monitoring.

 Working closely with City Parks staff to ensure that our cherished Plaza is returned to 
excellent condition by Wednesday morning after each Market.

City of Sonoma VOMCFM Proposal 2017 Page 8 of 8

336



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
      
 
12/12/16 

 

Department 

Public Works 

Staff Contact  

Lisa Janson/Special Events Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Approval of Application by Destination Races for Temporary Use of City Streets for the Napa to 
Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon on Sunday, July 16, 2017   

Summary 

Destination Races has requested temporary use of city streets for the Napa to Sonoma Wine Country 
Half Marathon as follows: 

 

1. Closure of East Napa Street between Broadway and First Street East 6:30 a.m. until 11:00 a.m. 
on Sunday July 16, 2017. Barricades and Police Officers will be posted at Broadway to ensure 
that drivers are making a left hand turn onto Napa Street from Broadway.  

 

2. Closure of the west-bound of East Napa between 1st Street East and City Limit between 7:55 
a.m. until 11:00 a.m. on Sunday July 16, 2017. Road will be conned down the middle runners 
running down the west bound lane. The north side of the East Napa Street will be posted No 
parking during the closure time 

 

3. CHP to manage intersection at 7th Street East and East Napa Street. 

  

4. The applicant will be responsible for providing notice and detour routes to all residents and 
business affected by street closures in the affected areas 10 days in advance. This includes 
residents North of East Napa Street. Residents South of East Napa Street will also receive 
notification and will have full access out of the neighborhood during the race.    

i. East Napa Street between Broadway and First Street East 6:30 a.m. until 
11:00 a.m. 

ii. East Napa Street between 1st Street East and City Limits (one house East 
of 6th Street East) from 7:55 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
 

5. Applicant will be required to hire a professional traffic safety entity to assist with all detours within 
City limits. The traffic safety entity will provide all signs necessary to alert the neighbors in advance 
of the event about the upcoming traffic delays, provide flaggers and detour support during the 
race. 
   

6. At 11:00 a.m. East Napa Street will be completely re-open, a crossing guard will be in place to 
help the remaining runners cross at 1st Street East at East Napa Street. After 11:00am all runners 
and walkers left on the course will be instructed that they need to move to the sidewalk and that 
the streets are open to vehicles.  
 

7. Reach out to the CHP and the Sonoma Police Department for assistance with the course 
management.  

 
 337

rbarr
Typewritten Text
7D



Agenda Item       

 

 

8. Notify Shell Vista Fire and SVFRA with the race route and times.  
 

9. Access to alley behind Basque Boulangerie will remain accessible until 7:55 a.m. 
 

 
10. East-bound lane of East Napa remains open, allowing residents in the block immediately south of 

East Napa Street to exit the neighborhood heading east. Flaggers at East Napa Street and 5th 
Street East and Patten and 5th Street East will direct cars back to Broadway, where they will be 
able to travel in any direction.  
 

11. Professional traffic safety entity will be positioned at 2nd Street East and East Napa Street and 2nd 
Street east and East Spain Street. Any cars approaching from the North will be directed on East 
Spain Street to travel west or Lovall Valley and 7th Street East to travel east towards Napa.  

 
12. Professional traffic safety entity will be positioned at 4th Street East and East Napa Street and 4th 

Street East and East Spain Street. Any cars approaching from the North will be directed on Spain 
Street to 2nd Street West to access Broadway.  

 
13. Sonoma Police officers will be positioned at 1st Street East and East Spain Street and 1st Street 

East and East Napa Street to ensure no thru traffic enters 1st St. East (open for parking and local 
business access during the race.  

 

Members of the Special Events Committee have met with the Event Organizer and reviewed the above 
proposal, at which time they identified recommended conditions of approval that have been 
incorporated in the attached Resolution. The CSEC approved the Plaza Use Permit on November 9, 
2016 additional details regarding the Plaza Use Permit are included in the attachments. 

Council Action   

Adopt the resolution approving the use of city streets, which includes the conditions recommended by 
the Special Events Committee members, including Police, Fire, Public Works and Planning Departments. 

Alternative Actions 

N/A 

Financial Impact 

The applicant is required to reimburse the City for additional personnel costs incurred as a result of 
this event. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

338



Agenda Item       

 

 

Attachments: 

1. Draft Resolution 
2. Course Maps 
3. Application for Use of City Streets 
4. Testimonials from businesses, charitable organizations, and community members 

 

cc:  Matt Dockstader 
 Destination Races 
 1905 Sperring Road 
 Sonoma, CA 95476 

 

 

339



 
CITY OF SONOMA 

 
RESOLUTION # _____ - 2016     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA APPROVING AND 

CONSENTING TO THE USE OF CITY STREETS FOR THE NAPA TO SONOMA WINE 
COUNTRY HALF MARATHON ON SUNDAY, JULY 16, 2017 

  
WHEREAS, Destination Races has made application to conduct the Napa to Sonoma Wine 
Country Half Marathon, which will involve use of city streets; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Napa to Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon will temporarily impede and restrict 
the free passage of traffic over city streets on July 16, 2017 between the hours of 7:50 a.m. and 
11:00 a.m.; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Special Events Committee have identified recommended conditions of approval 
which are detailed in attached Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application for the use of city streets was brought forward to the City Council at 
its meeting of December 12, 2016.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma as follows: 
 

1. The City Council approves and consents to the street closure associated with the 
proposed Wine Country Half Marathon upon terms and conditions deemed appropriate 
and necessary by the State of California and Department of Transportation. 

2. The approval of the street closure is subject to the conditions and limitations as 
detailed in Exhibit A, along with the following: 
 
A. Applicant shall work with Sonoma Police Department and California 

Highway Patrol as soon as possible to finalize traffic control plan and 
contract with the Sonoma County Sheriff’s Department for services as 
required.  
 

B. Applicant shall provide a written request for special barricading to the 
Public Works Department at least thirty days prior to the event and meet 
with the Street and Police Dept. 

 
C. Applicant shall comply with City of Sonoma standard insurance 

requirements. 
 

D. The applicant is required to reimburse the City for additional personnel 
costs incurred as a result of this event. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED 12th day of December 2016, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:   

 
 ______________________________  

                                              , Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
__________________________________             
Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk    

340



EXHIBIT A 
 

WINE COUNTRY MARATHON CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
 

1. Closure of East Napa Street between Broadway and First Street East 6:30 a.m. until 
11:00 a.m. on Sunday July 16, 2017. Barricades and Police Officers will be posted at 
Broadway to ensure that drivers are making a left hand turn onto Napa Street from 
Broadway.  

 

2. Closure of the west-bound of East Napa between 1st Street East and City Limit between 
7:55 a.m. until 11:00 a.m. on Sunday July 16, 2017. Road will be conned down the 
middle runners running down the west bound lane. The north side of the East Napa 
Street will be posted No parking during the closure time.  

 

3. CHP to manage intersection at 7th Street East and East Napa Street.  

 
4. The applicant will be responsible for providing notice and detour routes to all residents 

and business affected by street closures in the affected areas 10 days in advance. This 
includes residents North of East Napa Street. Residents South of East Napa Street will 
also receive notification and will have full access out of the neighborhood during the race.    

i. East Napa Street between Broadway and First Street East 6:30 a.m. until 11:00 a.m. 
ii. East Napa Street between 1st Street East and City Limits (one house East of 6th Street 

East) from 7:55 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
 
5. Applicant will be required to hire a professional traffic safety entity to assist with all 

detours within City limits. The traffic safety entity will provide all signs necessary to alert 
the neighbors in advance of the event about the upcoming traffic delays, provide flaggers 
and detour support during the race.   

 
6. At 11:00 a.m. East Napa Street will be completely re-opened, a crossing guard will be in 

place to help the remaining runners cross at 1st Street East at East Napa Street. After 
11:00am all runners and walkers left on the course will be instructed that they need to 
move to the sidewalk and that the streets are open to vehicles.  

 
7. Applicant shall notify Shell Vista Fire and SVFRA of the race route and times.  
 
8. Access to alley behind Basque Boulangerie will remain accessible until 7:55 a.m. 
 
9. East-bound lane of East Napa remains open, allowing residents in the block immediately 

south of East Napa Street to exit the neighborhood heading east. Flaggers at East Napa 
Street and 5th Street East and Patten and 5th Street East will direct cars back to Broadway, 
where they will be able to travel in any direction. 

 
10. Professional traffic safety entity will be positioned at 2nd Street East and East Napa Street 

and 2nd Street east and East Spain Street.  Any cars approaching from the North will be 
directed on East Spain Street to travel west or Lovall Valley and 7th Street East to travel 
east towards Napa. 

 
11. Professional traffic safety entity will be positioned at 4th Street East and East Napa Street 

and 4th Street East and East Spain Street. Any cars approaching from the North will be 
directed on Spain Street to 2nd Street West to access Broadway.  

 
12. Sonoma Police Officers will be positioned at 1st Street East and East Spain Street and 1st 

Street East and East Napa Street to ensure no thru traffic enters 1st St. East (open for 
parking and local business access during the race. 

341



342



343



344



345



346



347



1

Rebekah Barr

From: Carol Giovanatto
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2016 10:57 AM
To: Rebekah Barr
Subject: FW: Napa to Sonoma
Attachments: image001.jpg

Another letter. 
 
~Carol  
Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 
City of Sonoma 
No. 1 The Plaza 
Sonoma, CA  95476 
 
[707] 933-2213 Phone 
[707] 938-2559 Fax 
cgiovanatto@sonomacity.org 
www.sonomacity.org 
  

 

From: Monte Wallace <Monte@groskopf.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, December 6, 2016 9:36 PM 
To: David@cvmgrapes.com 
Cc: gary@sagekase.com; rachelhundleyesq@gmail.com; magrimonti@comcast.net; amy@amyharringtonlaw.com;  
Subject: Napa to Sonoma  
  
Good Afternoon All, 
  
The reason for this E‐mail is to urge the council to permit the Napa 2 Sonoma race to finish in the Plaza. 
  
I was born in Sonoma and have lived here for 50 years now.  
  
I live downtown and I’m  well aware of the traffic implications of this type of event but with or without the event traffic 
in our town will not be much different. 
  
I take my boy to the plaza playgrounds quite often on the weekends and it is always plagued with tourists so that with or 
without the event  that will not be much different. 
  
This event should be treated as the crown jewel of Sonoma’s events calendar. 
  
With obesity being so prevalent in our society this is the kind of event we should treasure it changes peoples lives!!!! 
  
I invite all of you, if you haven’t done so already, to join up and train for this event meet the people who come from 
across the country and around the globe and have a truly unique experience.   
  
  

348



1

Rebekah Barr

From: Carol Giovanatto
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2016 10:54 AM
To: Rebekah Barr
Subject: FW: Napa-to-Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon

More letters. 
 
~Carol  
Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 
City of Sonoma 
No. 1 The Plaza 
Sonoma, CA  95476 
 
[707] 933-2213 Phone 
[707] 938-2559 Fax 
cgiovanatto@sonomacity.org 
www.sonomacity.org 
  

 

From: Meghan Leerskov <megleerskov@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 7, 2016 5:58 PM 
To: David@cvmgrapes.com; gary@sagekase.com; rachelhundleyesq@gmail.com; magrimonti@comcast.net; 
mayorgallian@icloud.com; amy@amyharringtonlaw.com;  
Cc: raceinfo@destinationraces.com 
Subject: Napa‐to‐Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon  
  
Good morning, 
 

I’m a runner, a local and the owner of a plaza business and I want the Napa-to-Sonoma Wine 
Country Half Marathon to stay in Sonoma. 
 

  
As a fanatic runner who has participated in the event, it was one of the best executed races that I’ve 
run--seamless, safe, clean and fun—I’ve been looking forward to July 2017 since I crossed the finish 
line this summer.  
  
As a business owner with a long-time establishment on the plaza, I know that events like these are 
how our town’s bread gets buttered. Several thousand runners came to town and patronized the 
businesses that we Sonomans own and work at. Some of those runners came just for the race, but 
many stayed for days before and after, going to our restaurants, salons, shops, parks and grocery 
stores. I met couples, sisters and friends that were in town for the week, lured by the run to plan a 
vacation in the valley. Each year my business sees an uptick from the race and we happily bring on 
extra staff to accommodate.  
  

349



2

As a local, I was pleased to hear from other runners that the race raised millions for charity. Besides 
many runners raising funds for a colitis foundation, the local Native Sons of the Golden West and 
other groups were paid to volunteer, cash that will filter back into our community through their good 
works and scholarships. 
  
Was the race a minor inconvenience to some who were temporarily caught unaware in traffic, looking 
for parking downtown and those along the route? Perhaps. But there were also neighbors who set up 
chairs along the road and crafted handmade signs to cheer us on; kids at the finish line who watched 
what hard work and perseverance in motion looks like; and people who saw the best side of our city 
that will come back every year to run.  
  
Let us run. 
 
Meghan Leerskov 
A 26-year resident of Sonoma and an owner of Steiners Tavern 
 

350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



1

Rebekah Barr

From: Carol Giovanatto
Sent: Wednesday, December 07, 2016 10:54 AM
To: Rebekah Barr
Subject: FW: Napa-to-Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon

More letters. 
 
~Carol  
Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 
City of Sonoma 
No. 1 The Plaza 
Sonoma, CA  95476 
 
[707] 933-2213 Phone 
[707] 938-2559 Fax 
cgiovanatto@sonomacity.org 
www.sonomacity.org 
  

 

From: Meghan Leerskov <megleerskov@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, December 7, 2016 5:58 PM 
To: David@cvmgrapes.com; gary@sagekase.com; rachelhundleyesq@gmail.com; magrimonti@comcast.net; 
mayorgallian@icloud.com; amy@amyharringtonlaw.com;  
Cc: raceinfo@destinationraces.com 
Subject: Napa‐to‐Sonoma Wine Country Half Marathon  
  
Good morning, 
 

I’m a runner, a local and the owner of a plaza business and I want the Napa-to-Sonoma Wine 
Country Half Marathon to stay in Sonoma. 
 

  
As a fanatic runner who has participated in the event, it was one of the best executed races that I’ve 
run--seamless, safe, clean and fun—I’ve been looking forward to July 2017 since I crossed the finish 
line this summer.  
  
As a business owner with a long-time establishment on the plaza, I know that events like these are 
how our town’s bread gets buttered. Several thousand runners came to town and patronized the 
businesses that we Sonomans own and work at. Some of those runners came just for the race, but 
many stayed for days before and after, going to our restaurants, salons, shops, parks and grocery 
stores. I met couples, sisters and friends that were in town for the week, lured by the run to plan a 
vacation in the valley. Each year my business sees an uptick from the race and we happily bring on 
extra staff to accommodate.  
  

368



2

As a local, I was pleased to hear from other runners that the race raised millions for charity. Besides 
many runners raising funds for a colitis foundation, the local Native Sons of the Golden West and 
other groups were paid to volunteer, cash that will filter back into our community through their good 
works and scholarships. 
  
Was the race a minor inconvenience to some who were temporarily caught unaware in traffic, looking 
for parking downtown and those along the route? Perhaps. But there were also neighbors who set up 
chairs along the road and crafted handmade signs to cheer us on; kids at the finish line who watched 
what hard work and perseverance in motion looks like; and people who saw the best side of our city 
that will come back every year to run.  
  
Let us run. 
 
Meghan Leerskov 
A 26-year resident of Sonoma and an owner of Steiners Tavern 
 

369



 

  

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Rebekah Barr, MMC 

 City Clerk/Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Councilmembers’ Reports on Committee Activities. 

Summary 

Council members will report on activities, if any, of the various committees to which they are assigned. 

MAYOR  GALLIAN MPT AGRIMONTI CLM. COOK CLM. EDWARDS CLM.  HUNDLEY 

City Audit Committee LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison 

ABAG Alternate ABAG Delegate Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council, Alt. 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD 

North Bay Watershed 
Association 

City Audit Committee Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council 

LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison, 
Alternate 

Sonoma County 
Trans. Authority & 
Regional Climate 
Protection Authority 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD, Alt. 

City Facilities 
Committee 

City Facilities 
Committee 

Sonoma Clean Power 
Alt. 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council 

Sonoma County 
Trans. & Regional 
Climate Protection 
Authority, Alternate 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

Sonoma County 
Waste Management 
Agency 

Sonoma Clean Power 

 

Sonoma County 
Health Action & SV 
Health Roundtable 

S. V. Citizens Advisory 
Commission 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council, Alternate 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee, Alt. 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee 

Sonoma Valley 
Citizens Advisory 
Comm. Alt. 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD, Alt. 

   

Water Advisory 
Committee 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

   

 VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee, 
Alternate 

   

 Water Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

   

 

Recommended Council Action – Receive Reports  

Attachments:  None 

 

Agenda Item:          9 

Meeting Date:         12/12/2016 
City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 


	Item 4C FY 17-18 CDBG Application.pdf
	FINAL 17-18 Capital Projects-Non-Housing App (Sonoma City).pdf
	FUNDING APPLICATION:
	Capital Projects (Non-Housing) Application Summary Sheet

	CDBG App Attachments.pdf
	Sheet1
	Attach. 2 Location Maps.pdf
	CDBG_Application_2016_Overview_Map
	CDBG_Application_2016_Central
	CDBG_Application_2016_North
	CDBG_Application_2016_East
	CDBG_Application_2016_South
	CDBG_Application_2016_West



	Item 6A WNapa375-Baumann Gate Appeal.pdf
	Baumann Appeal AIS Attachments.pdf
	Attachment 1 - Appeal Form & Letter
	Appeal Form
	Appeal narrative

	Attachment 2 - Final COA
	1. The condominium development shall be modified in conformance with the revised project narrative dated 11/10/16, approved site plan and building elevations, except as modified by these conditions and the following:
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department, Building Department; Public Works Department
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department
	Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Stormwater Coordinator
	5. All Building Department requirements shall be met, including compliance with CALGreen standards and the installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems within all of the residential buildings/units. Building permits shall be required.
	Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department
	Timing:       Prior to construction
	6. All Fire Department shall be satisfied, including any code modifications effective prior to the date of issuance of any building permit. In addition, the following shall be required:
	a. All residential structures/units shall be protected by approved automatic fire sprinkler systems.
	Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department; Building Department
	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit

	7.  An encroachment permit shall be required from the City of Sonoma for any work within the West Napa Street right of way. In addition, an encroachment permit from the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) shall be required for work within the High...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Caltrans; City Engineer; Public Works Department

	Timing:        Prior to any work within the West Napa Street/Hwy 12 public right of way
	8. The project shall be subject to architectural review by the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC), encompassing elevation details, exterior colors and materials, and site details, including the carports, fences/walls, and bicycle...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC
	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit

	9. If significant alterations to site landscaping are proposed, a landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). The land...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC

	10. If new exterior lighting is proposed, a lighting plan shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). All proposed exterior lighting for the buildings and/or site shall be indi...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC

	11. The following agencies must be contacted by the applicant to determine permit or other regulatory requirements of the agency prior to issuance of a building permit, including the payment of applicable fees:
	a. Caltrans [For encroachment permits and frontage improvements on State Highway 12/West Napa Street]
	Enforcement Responsibility:       Building Department; Public Works Department City Engineer; Caltrans


	Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any grading/building permit
	12. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of Sonoma County PRMD Engineering Division with respect to sanitary sewer requirements and facilities. A sewer clearance shall be provided to the City of Sonoma Building Division verifying that all ...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department;

	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit
	13.  Dust control measures, subject to approval by the Building Official and the City Engineer, shall be implemented during the construction of the project. All exposed soil areas shall be watered twice daily or as required by the City's construction ...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works; Building Department


	Attachment 3 - 11_10_16 Item 6 Draft Minutes
	November 10, 2016
	Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma, CA
	DRAFT MINUTES
	COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: None

	Attachment 4 - Staff Report w attachments
	zoning map
	Project Narrative
	11-03-16_W NAPA CONDOS_Planning Application Revised 11x17
	_Existing Drawings
	WNapa375-Baumann-Condo Mods SR.pdf
	City of Sonoma Planning Commission
	CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER
	1. The condominium development shall be modified in conformance with the project narrative, approved site plan and building elevations, except as modified by these conditions and the following:
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department, Building Department; Public Works Department
	Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Planning Department; Building Department
	Enforcement Responsibility: City Engineer; Stormwater Coordinator
	5. All Building Department requirements shall be met, including compliance with CALGreen standards and the installation of automatic fire sprinkler systems within all of the residential buildings/units. Building permits shall be required.
	Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department

	Timing:       Prior to construction
	6. All Fire Department shall be satisfied, including any code modifications effective prior to the date of issuance of any building permit. In addition, the following shall be required:
	a. All residential structures/units shall be protected by approved automatic fire sprinkler systems.
	Enforcement Responsibility: Fire Department; Building Department
	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit

	7.  An encroachment permit shall be required from the City of Sonoma for any work within the West Napa Street right of way. In addition, an encroachment permit from the Department of Transportation (Caltrans) shall be required for work within the High...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Caltrans; City Engineer; Public Works Department

	Timing:        Prior to any work within the West Napa Street/Hwy 12 public right of way
	8. The project shall be subject to architectural review by the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC), encompassing elevation details, exterior colors and materials, and site details, including the carports, fences/walls, and bicycle...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC
	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit

	9. If significant alterations to site landscaping are proposed, a landscape plan prepared by a licensed landscape architect shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). The land...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC

	10. If new exterior lighting is proposed, a lighting plan shall be required, subject to the review and approval of the Design Review & Historic Preservation Commission (DRHPC). All proposed exterior lighting for the buildings and/or site shall be indi...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Planning Department; DRHPC

	11. The following agencies must be contacted by the applicant to determine permit or other regulatory requirements of the agency prior to issuance of a building permit, including the payment of applicable fees:
	a. Caltrans [For encroachment permits and frontage improvements on State Highway 12/West Napa Street]
	Enforcement Responsibility:       Building Department; Public Works Department City Engineer; Caltrans


	Timing:       Prior to the issuance of any grading/building permit
	12. The applicant shall comply with all requirements of Sonoma County PRMD Engineering Division with respect to sanitary sewer requirements and facilities. A sewer clearance shall be provided to the City of Sonoma Building Division verifying that all ...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Building Department;

	Timing: Prior to the issuance of any building permit
	13.  Dust control measures, subject to approval by the Building Official and the City Engineer, shall be implemented during the construction of the project. All exposed soil areas shall be watered twice daily or as required by the City's construction ...
	Enforcement Responsibility: Public Works; Building Department





	Item 6B Urgency Ordinance Extensions.pdf
	AIS Extension of Moratorium Ordinances 12-7-16 Redline JW
	Supplemental Report re Extending Moratorium on Cultivation 12-7-16 Redline JW
	Extension Outdoor
	Extension Indoor
	AUMA-FAQ

	Item 6C 2017 Fee Schedule .pdf
	_FY 2017 Fee Schedule Index - FINAL.pdf
	AdministrationFeeSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	CA-03
	CA-04
	CA-05
	CA-06
	CA-07
	CA-08
	CA-10
	CA-11
	CA-12

	SpecialEventsFeeSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	SE-01
	SE-03
	SE-04
	SE-05
	SE-06
	SE-10
	SE-25

	BuildingFeeSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	Summary Sheet
	BL-01
	BL-02
	BL-03
	BL-04
	BL-05
	BL-06
	BL-07
	BL-08
	BL-09
	BL-10
	BL-11
	BL-12
	BL-13
	BL-14
	BL-15
	BL-16
	BL-17
	BL-18
	BL-20
	BL-21
	BLDG - Table BL-21-A
	BLDG - Table BL-21-B
	BL-22
	BL-23
	BL-24
	ELEC - Table BL-24-A
	BL-25
	PLUMB - Table BL-25-A
	BL-26
	BL-27
	MECH - Table BL-27-A 
	BL-28
	BL-29
	BL-30
	BL-31
	BL-32
	BL-34
	GRADG - Table BL-34-A 
	BL-35
	BL-37

	PoliceFeeSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	PD-02
	PD-03
	PD-04
	PD-05
	PD-06
	PD-07
	PD-08
	PD-09
	PD-10
	PD-11

	PlanningFeesSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	PL-01
	PL-02
	PL-03
	PL-04
	PL-05
	PL-06
	PL-07
	PL-08
	PL-09
	PL-10
	PL-11
	PL-12
	PL-13
	PL-14
	PL-15
	PL-16
	PL-17
	PL-18
	PL-19
	PL-20
	PL-21
	PL-22
	PL-23
	PL-24
	PL-25
	PL-26
	PL-27
	PL-28
	PL-29
	PL-30
	PL-31
	PL-32
	PL-33

	PublicWorksAndUtilitiesFeeSchedule2017FINAL.pdf
	PW-01
	PW-03
	PW-04
	PW-05
	PW-06
	PW-07
	PW-08
	PW-09
	PW-11
	PW-12
	PW-13
	PW-14
	PW-15
	PW-16
	PW-17
	UT- 01
	UT-02
	UT-03
	UT-04
	UT-05  
	UT-06
	UT-08
	UT-09
	UT-10
	UT-11
	UT-12
	UT-13
	UT-14
	UT-15






